
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

November 15, 2016 6:00 PM

  CALL TO ORDER
  Invocation - Led by Reverend Rilla Barrett of St. Stephen's Episcopal Church 
  Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Bob Severns 
  Excuse Absent Councilmembers
 
  1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
 

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations
b. Honors & Recognitions

i. Employee Recognition - Sgt. Cedric Niiro, 25 years
c. Community Presentations

i. Presentation by Julie Langrock, Executive Director, Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island 
County

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

November 15, 2016 6:00 PM

  CALL TO ORDER
  Invocation - Led by Reverend Rilla Barrett of St. Stephen's Episcopal Church 
  Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Bob Severns 
  Excuse Absent Councilmembers
 
  1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
 

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations
b. Honors & Recognitions

i. Employee Recognition - Sgt. Cedric Niiro, 25 years
c. Community Presentations

i. Presentation by Julie Langrock, Executive Director, Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island 
CountyCounty

 
3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the 
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers
b. Approve Minutes of the October 26, 2016 Special Meeting and November 1, 2016 Regular 

Meeting
c. Lease Agreement - Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County
d. Special Event Permit to Serve Alcohol at Fort Nugent Park ~ Whidbey Island Bicycle Club
e. 10-inch Transmission Main Bridge Hanger Replacement - Contract Management Reserve Fund
f. Amendment to WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 - SRF Loan Financing

County
 

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the 
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers
b. Approve Minutes of the October 26, 2016 Special Meeting and November 1, 2016 Regular 

Meeting
c. Lease Agreement - Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County
d. Special Event Permit to Serve Alcohol at Fort Nugent Park ~ Whidbey Island Bicycle Club
e. 10-inch Transmission Main Bridge Hanger Replacement - Contract Management Reserve Fund
f. Amendment to WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 - SRF Loan Financing

1



5. MAYOR, COUNCIL & STAFF COMMENTS
  a. Mayor
  b. Councilmembers
  c. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS

To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. Ordinance No. 1780: Model Homes
b. 2017-2018 Preliminary Biennial Budget
c. Ordinance No. 1777:  Property Tax Levy 
d. Ordinance No. 1785: Property Tax Substantial Need
e. Ordinance No. 1784: Low Impact Development (LID)

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 16-27: Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for the 2% Grant Applications 

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 16 for 

Windjammer Park Improvements
b. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP #10
c. 10-Inch Transmission Main Bridge Hanger Replacement - PSA Amendment with KBA, Inc.
d. Approval of Contract with McGrath Human Resources Group for Comprehensive Classification 

and Compensation Study for all Non-represented Employees

5. MAYOR, COUNCIL & STAFF COMMENTS
  a. Mayor
  b. Councilmembers
  c. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Project Update 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS

To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. Ordinance No. 1780: Model Homes
b. 2017-2018 Preliminary Biennial Budget
c. Ordinance No. 1777:  Property Tax Levy 
d. Ordinance No. 1785: Property Tax Substantial Need
e. Ordinance No. 1784: Low Impact Development (LID)

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 16-27: Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for the 2% Grant Applications 

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 16 for 

Windjammer Park Improvements
b. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP #10
c. 10-Inch Transmission Main Bridge Hanger Replacement - PSA Amendment with KBA, Inc.
d. Approval of Contract with McGrath Human Resources Group for Comprehensive Classification 

and Compensation Study for all Non-represented Employees
d. Approval of Contract with McGrath Human Resources Group for Comprehensive Classification 

and Compensation Study for all Non-represented Employees

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. Discussion of Setting Non-Represented City Employee's Annual COLA's to Consumer Price 

Index 

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

d. Approval of Contract with McGrath Human Resources Group for Comprehensive Classification 
and Compensation Study for all Non-represented Employees

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. Discussion of Setting Non-Represented City Employee's Annual COLA's to Consumer Price 

Index 

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

2



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Employee Recognition - Sgt. 
Cedric Niiro, 25 years

FROM: Kevin Dresker, Police Chief 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Recognize Cedric Niiro for 25 years of service from November 14, 1991.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
None.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2. b. i.
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Employee Recognition - Sgt. 
Cedric Niiro, 25 years

FROM: Kevin Dresker, Police Chief 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Recognize Cedric Niiro for 25 years of service from November 14, 1991.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
None.

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY
None.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
None.

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY
None.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
None.

ATTACHMENTS

3



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Presentation by Julie Langrock, 
Executive Director, Big Brothers 
Big Sisters of Island County

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A presentation will be made by Ms. Julie Langrock, Executive Director of Big Brothers Big Sisters of 
Island County. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2. c. i.
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Presentation by Julie Langrock, 
Executive Director, Big Brothers 
Big Sisters of Island County

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A presentation will be made by Ms. Julie Langrock, Executive Director of Big Brothers Big Sisters of 
Island County. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

4



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments in the November 15, 2016 
Regular Agenda.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. a.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments in the November 15, 2016 
Regular Agenda.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

-  Voucher Numbers 168451 - 168630 in the amount of 713,484.72

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 11.15.16 Vouchers A
2. 11.15.16 Vouchers B

Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

-  Voucher Numbers 168451 - 168630 in the amount of 713,484.72

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 11.15.16 Vouchers A
2. 11.15.16 Vouchers B

5

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478754509x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478754551x_at.pdf


6



10/31/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
1

 4:21:37PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168451 10/31/2016 0000490  LABOR & INDUSTRIES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF103116 LABOR & INDUSTRIES  144.86
Total :  144.86

Bank total :  144.86 1 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 144.86Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 1

1Page:
7



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
1

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168452 11/2/2016 0008451  BETHEA, JULIE ANNE MALIA Ref000238739 UB Refund Cst #00168668  3.12
Total :  3.12

 168453 11/2/2016 0008443  COLLINS, ROBERT OR NANCY Ref000238728 UB Refund Cst #00123217  143.39
Total :  143.39

 168454 11/2/2016 0008448  COOK, CARRIE Ref000238735 UB Refund Cst #00164294  144.14
Total :  144.14

 168455 11/2/2016 0008439  CURTIN, LISA OR REX Ref000238718 UB Refund Cst #00123377  48.45
Total :  48.45

 168456 11/2/2016 0001494  HOMES FOR RENT Ref000238730 UB Refund Cst #00123914  5.47
Total :  5.47

 168457 11/2/2016 0008441  HUYNH, HONG Ref000238724 UB Refund Cst #00171471  14.97
Total :  14.97

 168458 11/2/2016 0008447  JOHNSON, TAMMY Ref000238734 UB Refund Cst #00163667  151.37
Total :  151.37

 168459 11/2/2016 0000483  KOETJE AGENCY Ref000238727 UB Refund Cst #00122012  127.97
Total :  127.97

 168460 11/2/2016 0008444  MASON, RICK Ref000238729 UB Refund Cst #00123806  147.69
Total :  147.69

 168461 11/2/2016 0008440  PROKOPEC, JERRY Ref000238720 UB Refund Cst #00169529  141.95
Total :  141.95

 168462 11/2/2016 0008446  READ, DAVID Ref000238733 UB Refund Cst #00163195  195.04
Total :  195.04

 168463 11/2/2016 0008442  RHYNE, BYRON OR DEBRA Ref000238726 UB Refund Cst #00121156  16.09
Total :  16.09

 168464 11/2/2016 0008445  RILEY, CHRISTINA Ref000238732 UB Refund Cst #00158528  226.67

1Page:
8



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
2

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  226.67 168464 11/2/2016 0008445 0008445  RILEY, CHRISTINA

 168465 11/2/2016 0008450  VALLIERE, BRYAN Ref000238737 UB Refund Cst #00167989  130.82
Total :  130.82

 168466 11/2/2016 0000973  WALDRON CONSTRUCTION Ref000238719 UB Refund Cst #00169353  86.22
 106.30UB Refund Cst #00169712Ref000238721
 85.18UB Refund Cst #00169713Ref000238722

 114.20UB Refund Cst #00169714Ref000238723
 119.75UB Refund Cst #00168000Ref000238738
 142.55UB Refund Cst #00169353Ref000238740

Total :  654.20

 168467 11/2/2016 0008449  WIGHTMAN, KALI Ref000238736 UB Refund Cst #00166890  121.81
Total :  121.81

 168468 11/2/2016 0001391  WINDERMERE Ref000238725 UB Refund Cst #00120026  1.66
 100.96UB Refund Cst #00124352Ref000238731

Total :  102.62

 168469 11/7/2016 0008452  T MILLER CONSTRUCTION 4503 GRANITE CURB  986.40
Total :  986.40

 168470 11/8/2016 0008456  OAK HARBOR MAIN STREET ASSOC 110816 PROF SRV FOR REVITALIZATION OF DOWNTOWN 40,000.00
Total :  40,000.00

 168471 11/9/2016 0000001  3M SS35796 REFLECTIVE SHEETING  953.85
 1,340.28FILM/TRANSFER TAPESS35797

Total :  2,294.13

 168472 11/9/2016 0008457  502 GEAR, LLC 102516 BUSINESS LICENSE REFUND  25.00
Total :  25.00

 168473 11/9/2016 0000004  A+ AUTO GLASS & RADIATOR 46991 WINDSHIELD INSTALLATION  998.38
Total :  998.38

 168474 11/9/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 26134 OCT 2016 CLEANING SERVICES  506.55

2Page:
9



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
3

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  506.55 168474 11/9/2016 0007449 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC

 168475 11/9/2016 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 72247758 BATTERIES  47.73
Total :  47.73

 168476 11/9/2016 0001609  ALL QUALITY STITCHES 3110 SWEATSHIRTS/T-SHIRTS/HATS/FLEECE  1,221.79
Total :  1,221.79

 168477 11/9/2016 0000033  ALPINE PRODUCTS, INC TM-163008 PAVEMENT MARKERS  843.93
Total :  843.93

 168478 11/9/2016 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 OCT 2016 WATER PURCHASED  157,541.00
 338.18OCT 2016 WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01

 11,780.65OCT 2016 WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02
Total :  169,659.83

 168479 11/9/2016 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 5728 MARINA PAGE UPDATES/STIE CALENDAR UPDATE 50.00
Total :  50.00

 168480 11/9/2016 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA 102716 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00
Total :  300.00

 168481 11/9/2016 0005001  ARAMARK 1988765689 UNIFORM SERVICES  29.01
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988765690
 24.62UNIFORM SERVICES1988772025
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988772026
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988772027
 20.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988772028
 27.47UNIFORM SERVICES1988772029
 50.96UNIFORM SERVICES1988772030
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988772031
 21.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988776318
 28.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988776321
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988776322
-3.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988780872

-10.64UNIFORM SERVICES1988780873
-35.93UNIFORM SERVICES1988780874
-8.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988780875

3Page:
10



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
4

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168481 11/9/2016 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK
-8.53UNIFORM SERVICES1988780876

-18.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988780877
-19.30UNIFORM SERVICES1988780878
-15.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988780879
-4.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988780880
-6.30UNIFORM SERVICES1988780888

 24.62UNIFORM SERVICES1988783862
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988783863
 20.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988783864
 20.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988783865
 27.47UNIFORM SERVICES1988783866
 56.57UNIFORM SERVICES1988783867
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988783868
 28.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988789559
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988789560
 23.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988798051
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988798052
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988798053
 20.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988798054
 27.47UNIFORM SERVICES1988798055
 56.57UNIFORM SERVICES1988798056
 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988798057
-0.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988798076
-0.93UNIFORM SERVICES1988798077
-3.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988798078
-0.72UNIFORM SERVICES1988798079
-0.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988798080
-1.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988798081
-1.68UNIFORM SERVICES1988798082
-1.38UNIFORM SERVICES1988798083
-0.41UNIFORM SERVICES1988798084
-0.55UNIFORM SERVICES1988798092

 21.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988803668
 28.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988803671
 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988803673
 23.58UNIFORM SERVICES1988812302

4Page:
11



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
5

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168481 11/9/2016 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK
 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988812303
 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988812304
 20.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988812305
 27.47UNIFORM SERVICES1988812306
 56.57UNIFORM SERVICES1988812307
 16.89UNIFORM SERVICES1988812308
 28.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988816837
 32.76UNIFORM SERVICES1988816839

Total :  943.26

 168482 11/9/2016 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0987809-IN FUEL  6,895.47
Total :  6,895.47

 168483 11/9/2016 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X1024201 AIRCARDS  74.02
Total :  74.02

 168484 11/9/2016 0003410  BAER, DON EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  94.05
Total :  94.05

 168485 11/9/2016 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 183801 UNIT REPAIR  428.27
Total :  428.27

 168486 11/9/2016 0008455  BAUMA, LARRY 102516 CAMP FEE REFUND  50.00
Total :  50.00

 168487 11/9/2016 0008458  BAYSIDE SERVICES 101216 HYDRANT DEPOSIT REIMBURSEMENT  730.80
Total :  730.80

 168488 11/9/2016 0000083  BAZA, ALVIN 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168489 11/9/2016 0008454  BECKER, LAUREN 102616 CAMP FEE REFUND  5.00
Total :  5.00

 168490 11/9/2016 0000091  BENS CLEANER SALES, INC 276934 CHEMICAL INJECTOR REPLACEMENT  683.73
Total :  683.73

5Page:
12



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
6

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168491 11/9/2016 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 178651 ROTOR/PAD KIT  603.29
Total :  603.29

 168492 11/9/2016 0007807  BLIND ENTERPRISES 2980 NAME TAG/GLOVER  3.50
Total :  3.50

 168493 11/9/2016 0004168  BLUETARP FINANCIAL, INC 36407976 HONDA PORTABLE SMALL ENGINE  979.98
Total :  979.98

 168494 11/9/2016 0000117  BOONSTRA, MIKE EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  102.00
Total :  102.00

 168495 11/9/2016 0002551  BOS, BRYON 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168496 11/9/2016 0001558  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 82308065 INFANT/TODDLER FACE MASKS  297.27
Total :  297.27

 168497 11/9/2016 0003097  BOYER, TALLIE 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168498 11/9/2016 0008463  BRIDGE MASTERS, INC 1 PROF SVC/10-INCH PIPELINE BRIDGE HANGER 203,041.45
Total :  203,041.45

 168499 11/9/2016 0000143  CADA 2ND HALF 2016 2ND HALF 2016 CRIMINAL JUSTICE FUNDING  2,532.50
Total :  2,532.50

 168500 11/9/2016 0006939  CANDLEWOOD SUITES 3041 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS  3,293.00
Total :  3,293.00

 168501 11/9/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 1470782 SUPPLIES  320.90
Total :  320.90

 168502 11/9/2016 0008466  CARRUTH, LINDA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  12.00
Total :  12.00

 168503 11/9/2016 0006016  CARTER, MARGOT L 102116 PUBLIC DEFENSE  1,800.00
Total :  1,800.00

6Page:
13



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
7

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168504 11/9/2016 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 62337906945 NATURAL GAS/204  10.60
Total :  10.60

 168505 11/9/2016 0000157  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC FQF9757 SIERRA 2YR EXT WTY  139.13
 278.25SIERRA 2YR EXT WARRANTYFSV8014

Total :  417.38

 168506 11/9/2016 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032028 XFINITY  10.49
 87.61XFINITY8498300270103415

 251.36INTERNET8498300271046803
Total :  349.46

 168507 11/9/2016 0002357  CORRECT EQUIPMENT 34011 ANTENNA WHIP/KIT  113.05
Total :  113.05

 168508 11/9/2016 0004347  CORROSION MITIGATION, LLC OakHar(4) CORROSION SURVEY - STORAGE TANKS  750.00
Total :  750.00

 168509 11/9/2016 0000217  CUES, INC 468255 GNET CONVERSION  8,637.30
Total :  8,637.30

 168510 11/9/2016 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-27267 SENSORS  591.14
 408.71MEDIA SUBSCRIPTION010-16609

Total :  999.85

 168511 11/9/2016 0008263  CURTIS BLUE LINE INV60459 PLATES  108.70
 147.78BOOTSINV60622

Total :  256.48

 168512 11/9/2016 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-59 PORTABLES  60.00
 60.00PORTABLES1-500619-59
 60.00PORTABLES1-533144-12
 60.00PORTABLES1-535690-7

 210.00PORTABLES1-542160-2
 300.00PORTABLES1-542162-2

 2,009.86ENGINE1-544417
 90.09FILTER/PULLEY1-544637

7Page:
14



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
8

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,849.95 168512 11/9/2016 0000247 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS

 168513 11/9/2016 0008468  DISCOUNT PLAYGROUND SUPPLY 159583 CLEVIS CONNECTOR  136.87
Total :  136.87

 168514 11/9/2016 0008467  DO MY OWN PEST CONTROL 13110637 COLLAPSIBLE NET/EASY SET TRAP  187.94
Total :  187.94

 168515 11/9/2016 0008409  DRESKER, KEVIN TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  136.50
Total :  136.50

 168516 11/9/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 103116 OCT 2016 LAUNDRY SERVICES  196.21
 4.08LAUNDRY SERVICES1111

Total :  200.29

 168517 11/9/2016 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 102516 LABORATOR ACCREDITATION APPLICATION FEE  680.00
Total :  680.00

 168518 11/9/2016 0001859  ELITE 06-712670 PROLAW READY CONTRACT  1,685.58
Total :  1,685.58

 168519 11/9/2016 0008397  ELMER, ROBERT 7015 MOORAGE REFUND  221.47
Total :  221.47

 168520 11/9/2016 0000279  EMPLOYMENT SECURITY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF945052-10-7 3RD QTR 2016/UNEMPLOYMENT  6,939.27
Total :  6,939.27

 168521 11/9/2016 0008469  ENGLE-GLOVER, TAMMY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  86.21
Total :  86.21

 168522 11/9/2016 0001666  ENVIRO-CLEAN EQUIPMENT 5564471 SPRAY NOZZLE  200.00
Total :  200.00

 168523 11/9/2016 0008274  EVERETT, RICHARD 444 MOORAGE REFUND  97.92
Total :  97.92

 168524 11/9/2016 0001582  EVERGREEN PACIFIC PUBLISHING 6320 2017 TIDE GUIDE  45.44
Total :  45.44

8Page:
15



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
9

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168525 11/9/2016 0008082  EVIDENT, INC 110745A EVIDENCE BAGS/RESPIRATORS  452.36
Total :  452.36

 168526 11/9/2016 0006276  EXPRESS SERVICES, INC 17998610-4 OFFICE SERVICES SUPPORT  874.69
 1,044.40OFFICE SERVICES SUPPORT18035726-1

Total :  1,919.09

 168527 11/9/2016 0004508  FAKKEMA, RICHARD 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168528 11/9/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK24945 GLOVES  966.05
 68.97DUCT TAPEWAOAK24964
 99.86JACKET/GLOVESWAOAK24981
 17.07BOLTS/NUTSWAOAK25002
 11.29FASTENERSWAOAK25041
 25.56BOLTS/NUTSWAOAK25053

Total :  1,188.80

 168529 11/9/2016 0000308  FEDERAL EXPRESS 5-592-90456 SHIPPING  46.04
Total :  46.04

 168530 11/9/2016 0008453  FF/FL INVESTMENTS, LLC 102416 WATER PERMIT DEPOSIT REFUND  407.12
Total :  407.12

 168531 11/9/2016 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 093016 SEP 2016 ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00
Total :  2,500.00

 168532 11/9/2016 0008122  FRONDOZO, KEVIN 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168533 11/9/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 240-2350 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  606.64
 248.25CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669
 42.95CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858
 75.21CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500
 65.96CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651

9Page:
16



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
10

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168533 11/9/2016 (Continued)0000355  FRONTIER
 65.96CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 335.88CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628
 65.93CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902
 92.66CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

Total :  1,862.60

 168534 11/9/2016 0000329  GALLS 006231863 PANTS  91.24
 22.83NAMEPLATES006333192

Total :  114.07

 168535 11/9/2016 0008462  GERCHUFSY, TAMMY 110716 CAMP FEE REFUND  125.00
Total :  125.00

 168536 11/9/2016 0007998  GOOD TO GO TB-163735216 TOLL BILL  15.75
Total :  15.75

 168537 11/9/2016 0001598  GORDON D KEYES DDS, INC 101116 INMATE SERVICES  202.00
Total :  202.00

 168538 11/9/2016 0000349  GRAINGER 9251968856 SAFETY LABELS  11.98
 153.21ROADSIDE EMERGENCY KIT9265371154

 5.92FLASHLIGHTS9265371162
Total :  171.11

 168539 11/9/2016 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 30245 MARKETING GRANT  1,640.00
 8,333.34VISITOR CENTER OPERATIONS GRANT30246
 3,924.88MARKETING GRANT30247

Total :  13,898.22

 168540 11/9/2016 0008459  GUARDIAN NORTHWEST TITLE & ESC 38-001056-01 UTILITY REFUND  166.82
Total :  166.82

 168541 11/9/2016 0006590  HAFFNER, OTTO 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168542 11/9/2016 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC 49559/2 AIR GAP  121.40

10Page:
17



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
11

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  121.40 168542 11/9/2016 0005311 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC

 168543 11/9/2016 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1571282 REGULATOR  23.79
 39.19LIGHTS/STRIPING20033
 49.49SPRINGS/DRILLER2022192

 182.62BRUSHES22570
 81.49CHAINSAWS2560455
 2.27WASHERS2565709

 39.94POW PUL2571802
-33.18START VLV/FCT SUP LINE3091503
 28.20BLADES3591153
 39.21BUCKETS/BLK PL4021062
 43.30PLATE/PLUG/CONNECTOR/SCREWDRIVERS4571723

 319.58EXTENSION CORDS5023247
 5.33STRAINER571364

 20.28ANGLE/DRILL BIT6020643
 153.76SAFETY GLASSES/HARD HATS/GLOVES6591631
 184.76REFRIG/SHEARCUTTER7024451
 33.18FCT SUP LINE/STRT VLV8022840
-27.17LIGHTS84506
 24.94CARBIDE TIPPED8591476
 10.76CONCRETE9020213
 12.26SCREWS9022651

 101.74EXHAUST FAN9050022
-101.74EXHAUST FAN9092764

 32.61FILTER9120027
 116.24DUCT TAPE/WATER9560102
 26.57TOILET SEAT9572611

Total :  1,409.42

 168544 11/9/2016 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 911632 COFFEE SUPPLIES  93.22
Total :  93.22

 168545 11/9/2016 0000392  HUBBARD, SCOTT 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168546 11/9/2016 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 102416 DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTION PANEL  166.67

11Page:
18



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
12

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  166.67 168546 11/9/2016 0005872 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL

 168547 11/9/2016 0001469  INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 3111081 MEMBERSHIP/MERRILL  105.00
Total :  105.00

 168548 11/9/2016 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 103116 OCT 2016 TIPPING FEES  77,448.86
 9.00DISPOSAL1266874

Total :  77,457.86

 168549 11/9/2016 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 110116 CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION  160.94
Total :  160.94

 168550 11/9/2016 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 103116 OCT 2016 RECYCLING  4,551.90
Total :  4,551.90

 168551 11/9/2016 0008346  JENSEN, CYNDY 103116 INSTRUCTOR/CLOGGING CLASS  100.00
Total :  100.00

 168552 11/9/2016 0000454  JET CITY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 21679 DUMPING  64.84
Total :  64.84

 168553 11/9/2016 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5040030MB ASPHALT  474.24
Total :  474.24

 168554 11/9/2016 0005277  LEE, STEPHANIE 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168555 11/9/2016 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400272603 TIRES  1,651.94
 399.62TIRES41400273695
 61.14ALIGNMENT41400274688

 814.69THRUST ANGLE ALIGNMENT/SPIN BALANCE/TIRE41400274953
 438.76TIRES41400275206

Total :  3,366.15

 168556 11/9/2016 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00067507 COUPLER  91.56
 234.85COUPLER00067525

Total :  326.41

12Page:
19



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
13

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168557 11/9/2016 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  126.00
 126.00DRIVING SERVICES1
 120.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  372.00

 168558 11/9/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 124341 YARD WASTE  71.65
 143.75YARD WASTE124441
 25.50YARD WASTE124469
 10.00YARD WASTE124492
 38.05YARD WASTE124522

 182.95YARD WASTE124701
 108.75YARD WASTE124751
 129.40YARD WASTE124769
 104.20YARD WASTE124794
 10.00YARD WASTE124846

 172.10YARD WASTE124857
 5.00YARD WASTE124900

 179.45YARD WASTE124920
 15.00YARD WASTE124940

 236.50YARD WASTE125056
 132.55YARD WASTE125087
 275.70YARD WASTE125158
 90.55YARD WASTE164611

Total :  1,931.10

 168559 11/9/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 343801 GROCERIES  424.76
 148.74GROCERIES354360

Total :  573.50

 168560 11/9/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 48161 OCT 2016 MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  253.92
 425.68OCT 2016 POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICESP48161

Total :  679.60

 168561 11/9/2016 0008347  MCGEE, MARIA 110416 INSTRUCTION/YOGA  300.00
Total :  300.00

 168562 11/9/2016 0002291  MCYOUNG, MARY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  200.00

13Page:
20



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
14

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  200.00 168562 11/9/2016 0002291 0002291  MCYOUNG, MARY

 168563 11/9/2016 0000197  MILES SAND & GRAVEL COMPANY 1503825 WASHED ROCK  88.33
Total :  88.33

 168564 11/9/2016 0008465  MONSON, JANE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168565 11/9/2016 0007795  MONSON, MICHAEL 1 TRAVEL REFUND  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168566 11/9/2016 0006992  MOON, ANDREW 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168567 11/9/2016 0000587  MOTOR TRUCKS, INC MV149139 D-2 GOVERNOR  30.26
 220.57SEAL/AXLE SHAFTMV149445

Total :  250.83

 168568 11/9/2016 0008460  MOUNTAIN MIST 000929856 WATER  12.00
 7.00WATER000976982

Total :  19.00

 168569 11/9/2016 0006974  NORTH AMERICAN RESUCE, LLC IN234804 TOURNIQUETS/BANDAGES/NEEDLE DECOMPRESSIO 1,186.50
Total :  1,186.50

 168570 11/9/2016 0000610  NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 380177 HEATING ELEMENT  728.87
Total :  728.87

 168571 11/9/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 277535 DECK STAIN/PAINT  64.10
 33.13PAINT277555
 5.84BOLT/FASTENERS277591

 14.66DECK STAIN277597
 39.09MURIATIC ACID277606
 6.48FASTENERS277671
 4.88COVERS277766

 44.51GLOVES/RESCUE TAPE277772
 10.86RESCUE TAPE277782
 26.56PVC PLUGS277826

14Page:
21



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
15

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168571 11/9/2016 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE
 1.08BIT INSERT277827

 22.50HARDWARE/CABLE277838
 0.09FASTENERS277890

 79.32REPAIR KIT277895
 22.79CUTTING TOOL/CONNECTOR WIRES277901
 46.70FLOOR FLANGE/PIPES277950
 62.55AIR PLUG/GAUGE INFLATOR277988
 46.40BOLTS278011
 16.72KEY/BUTANE/FASTENERS278025
 13.02DAMP RID278094
 17.79PLUGS/SEALS278120

Total :  579.07

 168572 11/9/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-286876 BELTS  31.94
 40.80OIL FILTER001-288362
 40.80OIL FILTER001-288363
 32.61AEROSHELL FLUID001-288385
 54.84WATER PUMPS001-288600
 4.74OIL FILTER001-288604
 5.72COOLANT HOSE001-288610
 1.66WATER PUMP001-288646

-111.56WATER PUMPS001-288685
 156.32BATTERIES001-288739

 5.12FUEL VALVE001-288751
-16.31BATTERY001-288752
 20.47TAPE001-288757
 35.13FILTERS001-288969

 132.87OIL FILTERS/AIR FILTERS001-289023
 28.59HITCH BALL001-289075
 2.76BATTERY TERMINAL001-289121

 298.20TRAC-LOAD/REFLEX LT001-289325
 27.34WIPER BLADES/BEAM001-289480

 125.78FILTERS001-289484
 9.76REAR BLADES001-289492

 29.52ADAPTABLE HITCH001-289542
 29.52ADAPTABLE HITCH001-289543

15Page:
22



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
16

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168572 11/9/2016 (Continued)0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER
 16.67HEADLIGHTS001-289577
 40.80OIL FILTER001-289611

Total :  1,044.09

 168573 11/9/2016 0008456  OAK HARBOR MAIN STREET ASSOC 110316 ADVERTISING REIMBURSEMENT  3,500.00
Total :  3,500.00

 168574 11/9/2016 0000676  OAK HARBOR POLICE DEPARTMENT 103116 PETTY CASH  59.79
Total :  59.79

 168575 11/9/2016 0006007  O'REILLY AUTO PARTS 2532-390200 FAN RELAY  41.30
Total :  41.30

 168576 11/9/2016 0007027  ORSWELL EVENTS, LLC 2016129 PERFORMANCE FEE  5,062.50
Total :  5,062.50

 168577 11/9/2016 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0104320 TRUCK DISMOUNT/VALVE STEM  27.13
 514.18TIRE RETREAD0104655

 1,456.99BASE DISMOUNT/VALVE STEM/TIRES0104714
 744.53TIRE RETREAD/CASING0104715

Total :  2,742.83

 168578 11/9/2016 0000699  PATRICK & COMPANY 927070 PET LICENSE TAGS  340.01
Total :  340.01

 168579 11/9/2016 0001218  PBY MEMORIAL ASSOCIATION 102716 ADVERTISING REIMBURSEMENT  2,500.00
Total :  2,500.00

 168580 11/9/2016 0000708  PERRINE, KIM TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  99.36
Total :  99.36

 168581 11/9/2016 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168582 11/9/2016 0000732  POWERS, RICHARD S. TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  15.00
Total :  15.00

16Page:
23



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
17

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168583 11/9/2016 0004622  POWERS-RANG, LISA 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
 54.24EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

 193.24EXP REIMBEXP REIMB2
Total :  267.48

 168584 11/9/2016 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0035355-IN JACKETS  232.15
 97.69BOOTS0035490-IN

Total :  329.84

 168585 11/9/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR DISPLT  219.51
 13.77ELECTRICITY/WELL #7200003131170
 69.92ELECTRICITY/1019 SW SWANTOWN AVE200004839284
 13.77ELECTRICITY/PARKS200010549943

 1,491.45ELECTRICITY/1375 SE CITY BEACH ST220010389959
 13,948.93ELECTRCIITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421

Total :  15,757.35

 168586 11/9/2016 0006733  RH WELCH, INC 16-11-007 CEMENT PIPE REMOVAL  1,100.00
Total :  1,100.00

 168587 11/9/2016 0000789  SCHAEFER SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL PCINV028691 GARBAGE CANS  34,485.08
Total :  34,485.08

 168588 11/9/2016 0008464  SEA-TAC TIRE & BRAKE 166852 FOOT VALVE ASSY  191.14
Total :  191.14

 168589 11/9/2016 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST S6-1405784 BLADES  35.31
Total :  35.31

 168590 11/9/2016 0005085  SEVERNS, ROBERT TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  111.00
Total :  111.00

 168591 11/9/2016 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 8120928944 SHREDDING  138.72
 104.11SHREDDING8120929036

Total :  242.83

 168592 11/9/2016 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-341139 PALLET OF 20/ES SHOE BOX  364.43
-119.77ES SHOE BOX14-341449

17Page:
24



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
18

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  244.66 168592 11/9/2016 0000831 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC

 168593 11/9/2016 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 460256 HERBICIDE  65.21
 31.51EPSOM SALT460420

Total :  96.72

 168594 11/9/2016 0007890  SMARSH, INC INV00188258 ARCHIVING PLATFORM  229.50
Total :  229.50

 168595 11/9/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 7716943 RETAIL DISPLAY  629.25
 191.88PUBLIC HEARINGS 10/25WCW725514
 140.80CUP-16-03 CHRISTKNGWCW727029
 51.09CITY NOTICESWCW727390
 77.25CITY APPLICATIONSWCW728338

Total :  1,090.27

 168596 11/9/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 102116 LIFE/POCFF  358.13
Total :  358.13

 168597 11/9/2016 0007203  STANFORD, TRAVIS 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168598 11/9/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3315861713 TONER/HIGHLIGHTERS  86.63
 137.73TONER3315861714
 48.60NCR ROLLS3317198634
 13.47SHEET PROTECTORS3317198635

 146.03DISPLAY PORT3317766029
 193.64HDMI-M TO VGA3317766030
 834.82SPEAKERS3317766031
 55.58COVERS/MOP3317766032

 1,252.22LED SPEAKERS3317766037
-35.48MOP3318353408
 35.48MOP3318353409

 133.73LASER LABELS/PENS/PAPER3318353410
 30.41POLY JACKETS3318353411
 45.53ADAPTER3318353412

 146.03DISPLAYPORT3318353413
 70.70PLANNERS3318353414

18Page:
25



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
19

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168598 11/9/2016 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
 56.09DESKPAD3318353415

Total :  3,251.21

 168599 11/9/2016 0000980  STEVENS, AMY TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  343.21
Total :  343.21

 168600 11/9/2016 0006190  STOWELL, JOSEPH TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  161.50
Total :  161.50

 168601 11/9/2016 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  135.00
 96.00DRIVING SERVICES1

 108.00DRIVING SERVICES1
Total :  339.00

 168602 11/9/2016 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1130571 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79
 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1131394

Total :  119.58

 168603 11/9/2016 0001938  TECHNICAL SYSTEMS, INC 15628 PUMP STATIONS SURVEY  2,434.88
Total :  2,434.88

 168604 11/9/2016 0008154  TESCH, NICOLE TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  313.56
Total :  313.56

 168605 11/9/2016 0000996  THOMSON REUTERS WEST 834896831 SUBSCRIPTION PRODUCT CHARGES  626.65
Total :  626.65

 168606 11/9/2016 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 110116 COURT/BC FEES  7,685.09
Total :  7,685.09

 168607 11/9/2016 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W416 SHIPPING  14.45
Total :  14.45

 168608 11/9/2016 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 101816 LONG TERM CARE  338.12
Total :  338.12

 168609 11/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590100104948 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  2,361.46

19Page:
26



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
20

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,361.46 168609 11/9/2016 0004903 0004903  US BANK

 168610 11/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  2,101.45
Total :  2,101.45

 168611 11/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590002431076 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  1,251.60
Total :  1,251.60

 168612 11/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590003291289 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  828.86
Total :  828.86

 168613 11/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  777.93
Total :  777.93

 168614 11/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591001667421 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  669.62
Total :  669.62

 168615 11/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590003476542 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  591.27
Total :  591.27

 168616 11/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590003205248 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  343.77
Total :  343.77

 168617 11/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590003140486 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  225.00
Total :  225.00

 168618 11/9/2016 0006156  US POSTAL SERVICE - HASLER 102416 POSTAGE/#182677  3,000.00
Total :  3,000.00

 168619 11/9/2016 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 075765 LINE HOSE/EXTENSION HOSE  621.01
Total :  621.01

 168620 11/9/2016 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 6100182 OCT 2016 LOCATES  129.36
Total :  129.36

 168621 11/9/2016 0000937  VALLEY FREIGHTLINER, INC PC302005800:01 SHOCK ABSORBER  67.79
 63.64AIR SPRINGPC302005834:01
-67.79SHOCK ABSORBER-CMPC302006037:01

20Page:
27



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
21

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168621 11/9/2016 (Continued)0000937  VALLEY FREIGHTLINER, INC
 225.27FUEL PUMPPC302006728:01

Total :  288.91

 168622 11/9/2016 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9773337208 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  5,458.93
Total :  5,458.93

 168623 11/9/2016 0008461  WEBSTER, CHAS TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  66.53
 131.76TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  198.29

 168624 11/9/2016 0006267  WESTERN REFUSE & RECYCLING 144772 GRIPPER PAD/RELAY  220.66
Total :  220.66

 168625 11/9/2016 0003067  WHIDBEY ANIMALS' IMPROVEMENT 1304 OCT 2016 ANIMAL SHELTER  8,500.00
Total :  8,500.00

 168626 11/9/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 300363 WHEEL SCOTSEAL  71.84
 0.75COPPER GS301958
 7.83THREAD SEAL301988

Total :  80.42

 168627 11/9/2016 0001005  WHIDBEY GENERAL HOSPITAL WAE51889 INMATE SERVICES  426.70
 2,706.40INMATE SERVICESWAE52612

 599.25INMATE SERVICESWAE53747
 394.40INMATE SERVICESWAE53912

 3,644.80INMATE SERVICESWAE54236
 1,535.10INMATE SERVICESWAF00183

Total :  9,306.65

 168628 11/9/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48836 PR CHECKS  255.17
Total :  255.17

 168629 11/9/2016 0004961  WOODWARD, GREGORY 110416 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 168630 11/9/2016 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 702019695 SEP 2016 COPIER RENTAL  4,700.67

21Page:
28



11/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
22

 2:25:21PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  4,700.67 168630 11/9/2016 0001061 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION

Bank total :  713,339.86 179 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 713,339.86Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 179

22Page:
29



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Approve Minutes of the 
October 26, 2016 Special 
Meeting and November 1, 2016 
Regular Meeting

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Minutes from the October 25, 2016 Special Meeting and the November 1, 2016 Regular 
Session meeting as presented.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. b.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Approve Minutes of the 
October 26, 2016 Special 
Meeting and November 1, 2016 
Regular Meeting

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Minutes from the October 25, 2016 Special Meeting and the November 1, 2016 Regular 
Session meeting as presented.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. November 1, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
2. October 25, 2016 Special Meeting- Auditors Minutes

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. November 1, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
2. October 25, 2016 Special Meeting- Auditors Minutes

30

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478674123x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478713884x_at.pdf


Regular Meeting Minutes – November 1, 2016 
Page 1 of 4 
 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

November 1, 2016 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

   
City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns 
Mayor Pro-Tem Danny Paggao 

City Administrator Doug Merriman  
City Attorney Nikki Esparza 

Councilmember Beth Munns  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Jim Campbell City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger Police Chief Kevin Dresker   
  Development Services Director Steve Powers 
 Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk  
  
  
  
  
  

INVOCATION/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Pastor Ron Lawler, Family Bible Church provided the invocation and then Mayor Severns led 
the pledge of allegiance. 
 

EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to excuse Councilmember Hizon.  Motion seconded 
by Councilmember Servatius, unanimously approved.  
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to add item e. to the Consent agenda and then ap-
prove the Agenda as presented, seconded by Councilmember Wasinger, unanimously ap-
proved.  
 

2. PRESENTATIONS 
 

i. Lynn Murphy, Puget Sound Energy - Storm Season Preparations 
 
 
 

 

31



Regular Meeting Minutes – November 1, 2016 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Mayor Severns opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:18 p.m.  
 
Citizens Speaking 
 

 Skip Pohtilla  
 Mellissa Riker  

 
After public comments were given, the comment period was closed at 6:25 p.m. 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers  
b. Approve Minutes of the October 18, 2016 Special Meeting- Budget & Regular Meet-

ing, October 19, 2016 City Council/Planning Commission Joint Workshop Meeting 
and October 26, 2016 Workshop Meeting  

c. Relocate Gazebo from Hal Ramaley Park to Catalina Park 
d. 2016 Oak Harbor Main Street Association Professional Services Agreement  
 
Item e. Added to the Consent Agenda  
e. Appoint Amanda Zimmerman to Collector Position #3 on the Lodging Tax Advisory      

Committee  
 
Adoption of Consent Agenda  
Mayor Severns:  If there are no objections, the Consent Agenda including item e, items 
will be adopted as amended.  There were no objections. 

 
5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
5.a  Mayor 
Mayor Severns introduced the new artist displayed in Council Chambers Ladonna Everett.  
Mayor Severns then provided his respective comments and announcements. 
 
5.b  Councilmembers 
Councilmember Wasinger, Councilmember Munns, and Councilmember Servatius provided 
their respective comments and announcements. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Wasinger moved to add an item for discussion on the November 15, 
2016 agenda in regards to setting an annual Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) to a consumer 
price index for non-represented City employees, seconded by Councilmember Almberg, unani-
mously approved.  
 
5.c City Administrator 
Dr. Merriman provided the Council with a Human Resources Recruitment Dashboard to keep 
Council apprised of hiring and application statuses.   
 
Dr. Merriman announced that there will be a tour of the Clean Water Facility for the City Council 
on November 16, 2016 at 1:00 p.m.  Following the tour the regularly scheduled workshop will 
take place at 3:00 p.m.    
 

5.c.i Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff 

32



Regular Meeting Minutes – November 1, 2016 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 
City Engineer Joe Stowell introduced Project Engineer Brett Arvidson and then presented a 
PowerPoint presentation regarding the Clean Water Facility Update.  

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS 

 
None 

 
7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 

 
None 

 
8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 

 
a. Second Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College 

(ILA#1516-438) 
 
Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director provided the City Council with background on 
the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College in regards to the HVAC units.   
 
On March 15, 2016, the City Council approved an Interlocal Agreement with Skagit 
Valley College as the lead agency to design and bid for the replacement of sixteen 
(16) HVAC units at the Oak Harbor Library and Hayes Hall Building.  On September 
6, 2016, City Council approved Amendment Number 1 to the Interlocal Agreement 
with Skagit Valley College for HVAC replacement at Oak Harbor Library, increasing 
the authorized contract amount to $216,600. 
 
Dave Scott, Director of Facilities at Skagit Valley College clarified questions given 
by Councilmember Almberg.   

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the second amendment to the Interlocal 
Agreement with Skagit Valley College (SVC) for the replacement of sixteen (16) HVAC units at 
the Oak Harbor Library and Hayes Hall Building, seconded by Councilmember Munns, motion 
was unanimously approved.   

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the second amend-
ment to the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College, with the City of Oak Harbor’s share 
of the HVAC replacement project is not to exceed $228,604.85, seconded by Councilmember 
Wasinger.   

Friendly Amendment to Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to include a provision refer-
enced in the replacement project, that any expenditure over 10%, have a contingency that it 
shall be signed by the delegated signatory authority for the City of Oak Harbor, Mayor Bob 
Severns.   

The friendly amendment was accepted by Councilmember Servatius and seconded by Coun-
cilmember Wasinger, motion was unanimously approved.   

 
 

33



Regular Meeting Minutes – November 1, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

None 
 
 

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

None 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Wasinger,       
   unanimously approved.  

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:14 p.m. 
 

        _______________________________ 
 

Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk   

34



 
 
Special Meeting Minutes – October 25, 2016  
Page 1 of 1 
 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Special Meeting Minutes 

October 25, 2016 – 10:00 a.m. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
City Council Present:     Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns     City Administrator Doug Merriman  
Mayor ProTem Danny Paggao    Finance Director Patricia Soule 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger    Deputy City Clerk Nicole Tesch  
       Accountant Tallie Boyer  
       Senior Services Director Mary Anderson  
       Development Services Director Steve Powers  
       Public Works Director Cathy Rosen  
       Police Chief Kevin Dresker  
       City Attorney Nikki Esparza  
       Human Resources Director Emma House  
Washington State Auditors Present 
Deena Garza, Audit Manager  
Karyna Shapovalova, Assistant Audit Manager  
Lauren Mason, Audit Lead  
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.   Washington State Auditor’s Exit Conference for the 2015 Financial Audit 
 
Deena Garza, Audit Manager, introduced the Exit Conference of the 2015 Financial Audit of the 
City of Oak Harbor.  She summarized that the 2015 Financial Audit rendered a clean accounta-
bility audit and the State had no reportable issues or recommendations.    
 
Assistant Audit Manager Karyna Shapovalova described the items that were audited by the 
State Auditor’s Office. Lauren Mason, Audit Lead explained that the Financial Statement portion 
of the report indicates that the City’s internal controls and financial statements rendered a clean 
review. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:17 a.m. 
 

______________________________
Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

35



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Lease Agreement - Big Brothers 
Big Sisters of Island County

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize Mayor to sign a Facility Lease Agreement with Big Brothers Big Sisters

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County (BBBS) currently leases, from the City of Oak Harbor, a 
building located at 913 East Whidbey Avenue, Oak Harbor, Washington for the purpose of providing 
caring mentorship relationships to our local youth.  As evidenced by their website information, the 
Mission and goals of BBBS are:

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. c.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Lease Agreement - Big Brothers 
Big Sisters of Island County

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize Mayor to sign a Facility Lease Agreement with Big Brothers Big Sisters

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County (BBBS) currently leases, from the City of Oak Harbor, a 
building located at 913 East Whidbey Avenue, Oak Harbor, Washington for the purpose of providing 
caring mentorship relationships to our local youth.  As evidenced by their website information, the 
Mission and goals of BBBS are:Mission and goals of BBBS are:

Mission
Provide children facing adversity with strong and enduring, professionally supported one-to-one 
relationships that change their lives for the better, forever.

Goals
As a preventive program, the goal of Big Brothers Big Sisters is to reinforce positive attributes in children
helping them to become confident, caring and competent adults within their communities.  A strengthened 
sense of self worth at home, in school and in the community are often results. Children who have an older
special friend tend to be less likely to be swayed by peer pressure, perform better academically and have 
a more even-tempered attitude.  It is through this special friendship that our kids stay great!

The normal lease rate for the building is $970 per month.  However, in partnering with BBS to provide 
these services to our community, the lease agreement offers BBS the use of the 1,078 square foot 
building for no charge if they provide the following services:

Monthly Rent Exchange Basis.

3.2.1 Monthly Rent will be credited 34% per month for BBBS providing a youth services program that 
carefully screens and trains adults to be matched with eligible young people to provide mentor services in

Mission and goals of BBBS are:

Mission
Provide children facing adversity with strong and enduring, professionally supported one-to-one 
relationships that change their lives for the better, forever.

Goals
As a preventive program, the goal of Big Brothers Big Sisters is to reinforce positive attributes in children 
helping them to become confident, caring and competent adults within their communities.  A strengthened 
sense of self worth at home, in school and in the community are often results. Children who have an older 
special friend tend to be less likely to be swayed by peer pressure, perform better academically and have 
a more even-tempered attitude.  It is through this special friendship that our kids stay great!

The normal lease rate for the building is $970 per month.  However, in partnering with BBS to provide 
these services to our community, the lease agreement offers BBS the use of the 1,078 square foot 
building for no charge if they provide the following services:

Monthly Rent Exchange Basis.

3.2.1 Monthly Rent will be credited 34% per month for BBBS providing a youth services program that 
carefully screens and trains adults to be matched with eligible young people to provide mentor services in 

36



a caring and positive fashion.

3.2.2 Monthly Rent will be credited 33% per month for BBBS to coordinate its youth mentor program 
with the Oak Harbor School District, Island County Health Department, Washington State Department 
of Social Health Services, Oak Harbor Police Department and any other youth service agency operating 
in Oak Harbor.

3.2.3 Monthly Rent will be credited 33% per month for BBBS to develop and operate a support 
network and safety net for at-risk youth referred to the BBBS.

In addition, BBBS is responsible for any taxes, the repair, maintenance, and overall condition of the 
premises, including the cost of all utilities. 

The term of the lease commences on January 1, 2017 for a 5-year period ending on December 31, 
2021.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact to this action.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS

a caring and positive fashion.

3.2.2 Monthly Rent will be credited 33% per month for BBBS to coordinate its youth mentor program 
with the Oak Harbor School District, Island County Health Department, Washington State Department 
of Social Health Services, Oak Harbor Police Department and any other youth service agency operating 
in Oak Harbor.

3.2.3 Monthly Rent will be credited 33% per month for BBBS to develop and operate a support 
network and safety net for at-risk youth referred to the BBBS.

In addition, BBBS is responsible for any taxes, the repair, maintenance, and overall condition of the 
premises, including the cost of all utilities. 

The term of the lease commences on January 1, 2017 for a 5-year period ending on December 31, 
2021.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact to this action.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTSATTACHMENTS
1. Lease Agreement - Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County
ATTACHMENTS
1. Lease Agreement - Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County

37

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1477958581x_at.pdf


Lease Agreement - 1 

 

 

 
 
Return to: 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

 

GRANTOR: City of Oak Harbor 
 

GRANTEE: Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County (BBBS) 

PARCEL#: s7600-00-02-604-0-9500 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  Those premises situated at 913 East Whidbey Avenue, Oak Harbor, 
Washington. 

 
This Agreement is made and entered into on the 15th day of November, 2016, between the 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, located in 
Island County, herein referred to as "Lessor", and BIG BROTHERS BIG SISTERS OF 
ISLAND COUNTY (BBBS), herein referred to as "Lessee". 

 
In consideration of the mutual covenants herein set out, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Premises.  Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor the 

Premises described in Section 1 constituting the office building, parking lot and 
surrounding grounds commonly identified as 913 East Whidbey Ave, Oak Harbor, WA. 

 
2. Term.  The term of this lease begins on January 1, 2017 and continues for a five (5) year 

period, expiring on December 31, 2021, unless terminated earlier either by the Lessor 
with a minimum of 90 days notice to the Lessee, or with 14 days notice if written 
agreement to such termination is provided by both parties. 

 
2.1 Renewal Option.  Lessee shall have, and is hereby given an option to extend the 

term hereof for an additional period of five (5) years under the same terms and 
conditions contained in this lease PROVIDED that the city council approves and 
accepts the Lessee's exercise of its option by council action prior to the expiration 
of the initial term.  Lessor expressly reserves the right of the city council to deny 
the extension of the lease term for reasons deemed sufficient by the city council 
which include but are not limited to the City's need to use the leasehold premises 
for other purposes. 

38



Lease Agreement - 2 

 

 

Such option may be exercised by Lessee only (i) upon notice in writing to Lessor 
not earlier than one (1) year, and not later than six (6) months prior to the end of 
the preceding term; (ii) if Lessee is not then in default hereunder; and (iii) if the 
preceding term has not theretofore been terminated. 

 
3. Rent.  For purposes of rent, the parties agree that the premises at 913 East Whidbey 

Avenue consists of 1,078 square feet of building space and the current rental market rate 
for similar office space is $.90 per square foot per month, thereby commanding a monthly 
rent amount of $970. 

 
3.1 Monthly Rent.  In exchange for the rental amount of $970 per month, the City 

recognizes the contributions to the Oak Harbor community through youth services 
provided by the work of Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County as outlined in 
Section 3.2 and does agree to the exchange of BBBS services for the rental amount 
of $970 per month. 

 
3.2 Monthly Rent Exchange Basis. 

 
3.2.1 Monthly Rent will be credited 34% per month for BBBS providing a 

youth services program that carefully screens and trains adults to be 
matched with eligible young people to provide mentor services in a caring 
and positive fashion. 

3.2.2 Monthly Rent will be credited 33% per month for BBBS to coordinate its 
youth mentor program with the Oak Harbor School District, Island County 
Health Department, Washington State Department of Social Health 
Services, Oak Harbor Police Department and any other youth service 
agency operating in Oak Harbor. 

3.2.3 Monthly Rent will be credited 33% per month for BBBS to develop and 
operate a support network and safety net for at-risk youth referred to the 
BBBS. 

 
3.3 Reporting. BBBS will report directly to City Council annually no later than the 

first City Council meeting of March for the preceding calendar year of the status 
of the BBBS accomplishments as described in Section 3.2 of this agreement. 

 
4. Personal Property Taxes, Rent Taxes and Other Taxes.  Lessee shall pay all taxes, charges 

and other governmental impositions assessed against or levied upon Lessee's fixtures, 
furnishings, equipment and personal property located in the Premises prior to delinquency.  
Whenever possible, Lessee shall cause such items to be assessed and billed separately 
from Lessor's property.  In the event such items are billed with Lessor's property, Lessee 
shall pay Lessor Lessee's share of such governmental impositions within thirty (30) days 
of request by Lessor.  Lessee shall pay any rent tax, sales tax, value added tax, or other tax 
currently applicable or which becomes applicable in the future, to the Rent. 

39



Lease Agreement - 3 

4310683 02/28/2012 12:12:58 PM 
 

 

 

5. Use of Premises.
 

5.1 Permitted Use.  Lessee shall use the Premises exclusively for the purpose of 
providing youth mentorship, coordination of other youth advocacy agencies and 
providing a support network for at-risk youth.  Such use shall conform to 
applicable City ordinances and state and federal law and Lessee agrees that by 
taking possession of the Premises, Lessee has determined to its satisfaction that 
the Premises can be used for that purpose.  Lessee waives any right to terminate 
this Lease if the Premises cannot be used for that purpose.  The Premises may not 
be used for any other purpose without Lessor's prior written consent. 

 
5.2 Restrictions on Use.  Lessee may not use or occupy the Premises or the Property 

in violation of any law, ordinance, regulation or the certificate of occupancy 
issued for the Property, and may not do, bring, or keep anything in or about the 
Premises that will cause an increased premium for or the cancellation of any 
insurance covering the Property.  If Lessee does cause any such increase in 
insurance premiums, Lessee shall pay or reimburse Lessor for the entire amount 
thereof, without regard to whether Lessor elects to terminate this Lease as a 
result of Lessee's unauthorized use of the Premises. Lessee may not use the 
Premises in any manner that will constitute waste, nuisance or unreasonable 
annoyance to other Lessees in the Property, nor may Lessee do anything that will 
cause damage to the Property.  Lessee may not place any signs, symbols, drapes 
or other materials in windows or other openings or in interior hallways or on the 
exterior of the Premises without prior written approval from Lessor.  Lessee may 
not permit floor loading in excess of the pounds per square foot limitation, if any, 
which Lessor notifies Lessee is the maximum permissible for the Premises. 

 
5.3 Nondiscrimination in Use.  The Lessee will not discriminate against any recipient 

of any services or benefits provided for in this Lease Agreement on the grounds 
of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, age, 
honorably discharged veteran or military status, or the presence of any sensory, 
mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or service animal by 
a person with a disability. 

 
6. Lessee Maintenance.  By taking possession of the Premises, Lessee accepts the Premises 

as being in good and sanitary order, condition and repair.  Lessee shall, at its expense, 
clean, maintain and keep the Premises and all appurtenances, including, without  
limitation, carpet, wall coverings, signs, windows, doors, skylights, water pipes, 
electrical systems, outside area lighting, heating and air conditioning equipment, 
plumbing, fixtures, appliances, utility lines and other fixtures, equipment, improvements, 
pest control and systems utilized by Lessee, and shall keep the premises in "first class" 
condition and repair throughout the Term.  The Lessee shall maintain the immediate 
approaches and sidewalks clean and sightly (including policing the grounds), free from 
ice and snow and from fire hazard and any other nuisance.  At the expiration of the term, 
Lessee shall surrender the premises broom clean, in as good condition as the reasonable 
use thereof will permit.  All damage or injury to the leased premises not caused by fire 
and other casualty, as set forth in Paragraph 13 hereof, and all damage to glass shall be 
promptly repaired by Lessee. 

 

40



Lease Agreement - 4 

4310683 02/28/2012 12:12:58 PM 
 

 

Lessor shall keep in repair the roof, exterior walls, gutters, and downspouts of the part of 
the building leased under this Agreement, except as to damage arising from the 
negligence of Lessee which shall be the sole responsibility of the Lessee, but nothing 
herein shall be construed as requiring Lessor to repair any front doors, the interior, or 
glass in windows or doors.  Any repairs, renovations, or modifications of the building 
must be approved by the City Administrator as well as comply with applicable federal, 
state and local law.  Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining all permits required by 
law. 

 
All building repairs, alterations, additions, improvements, installation, equipment, and 
fixtures, by whomsoever installed or erected (except such equipment and fixtures 
belonging to Lessee that can be removed without damage to or leaving incomplete the 
premises or building) shall belong to Lessor and remain on and be surrendered with the 
premises as a part thereof, at the expiration of this lease or any extension thereof. 

 
All communications systems purchased and installed by Lessee shall remain property of 
the Lessee per Interlocal Agreement. 

 
7. Utilities.  Lessee shall be responsible for all utility costs to provide water, sewer, storm 

sewer and solid waste to the premises at 913 E Whidbey Avenue. 
 
8. Liens.  Lessee shall keep the Premises and the real property upon which the Premises are 

situated free from any liens arising out of any work performed, materials furnished, or 
obligations incurred by Lessee.  Lessor has the right at all reasonable times to post any 
notices on the Premises which it deems necessary for Lessor's protection from such liens. 
If any such liens are filed, Lessor may, without waiving its rights and remedies for 
breach, and without releasing Lessee from any of its obligations hereunder, require Lessee 
to post security in form and amount reasonably satisfactory to Lessor or cause such liens 
to be released by any means Lessor deems proper, including payment in satisfaction of 
the claim giving rise to the lien.  Lessee shall pay to Lessor upon demand any sum paid 
by Lessor to remove the liens, together with interest from the date of payment by Lessor, 
at the lesser of 1-1/2% per month or the maximum rate permissible by law. 

 
9. Indemnification / Hold Harmless/Insurance.  Lessee shall defend, indemnify, and hold 

harmless the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against any 
and all claims, suits, actions, or liabilities for injury or death of any person, or for loss or 
damage to property, which arises out of Lessee’s use of Premises, or from the conduct of 
Lessee’s business, or from any activity, work or thing done, permitted, or suffered by 
Lessee in or about the Premises, except only such injury or damage as shall have been 
occasioned by the sole negligence of the City. 

 
10. Insurance.  The Lessee shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, 

insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise 
from or in connection with the Lessee’s operation and use of the leased Premises. 

  
10.1 No Limitation.  Lessee’s maintenance of insurance as required by the agreement 

shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Lessee to the coverage provided 
by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available 

41



Lease Agreement - 5 

4310683 02/28/2012 12:12:58 PM 
 

 

at law or in equity. 
 

10.2 Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Lessee shall obtain insurance of the types and 
coverage described below: 

 
10.2.1.1 Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as 

broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) occurrence form CG 
00 01 and shall cover premises and contractual liability.  The 
City shall be named as additional an insured on Lessee’s 
Commercial General Liability insurance policy using ISO 
Additional Insured-Managers or Lessors of Premises Form CG 
20 11 or a substitute endorsement providing at least as broad 
coverage. 
 

10.2.1.2 Property insurance shall be written on an all risk basis. 
 

10.3 Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  Lessee shall maintain the following insurance 
limits: 
 

10.3.1.1 Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with 
limits no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 
general aggregate. 
 

10.3.1.2 Property insurance shall be written covering the full value of 
Lessee’s property and improvements with no coinsurance 
provisions. 

 
10.4 Other Insurance Provisions.  The Lessee’s Commercial General Liability 

insurance policy or policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain that they 
shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any Insurance, self-insurance, or 
self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the Lessee’s 
insurance and shall not contribute with it. 
 

10.5 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 
A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 

 
10.6 Verification of Coverage.  Lessee shall furnish the City with original certificates 

and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited 
to the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of 
the Lessee. 

 
10.7 Waiver of Subrogation.  Lessee and City hereby release and discharge each other 

from all claims, losses and liabilities arising from or caused by any hazard 
covered by property insurance on or in connection with the premises or said 
building.  This release shall apply only to the extent that such claim, loss or 
liability is covered by insurance. 

 

42



Lease Agreement - 6 

4310683 02/28/2012 12:12:58 PM 
 

 

10.8 City’s Property Insurance.  City shall purchase and maintain during the term of 
the lease all-risk property insurance covering the Building for its full replacement 
value without any coinsurance provisions. 

 
10.9 Notice of Cancellation.  The Lessee shall provide the City with written notice of 

any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 
 

10.10 Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Lessee to maintain the 
insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of lease, upon which the 
City may, after giving five business days notice to the Lessee to correct the 
breach, terminate the Lease or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance 
and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so 
expended to be repaid to the City on demand. 

 
10.11 City Full Availability of Lessee Limits.  If the Lessee maintains higher insurance 

limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall be insured for the full 
available limits of Commercial General and Excess or Umbrella liability 
maintained by the Lessee, irrespective of whether such limits maintained by the 
Lessee are greater than those required by this contract or whether any certificate 
of insurance furnished to the City evidences limits of liability lower than those 
maintained by the lessee.   

 
11. Destruction.  In the event the Premises are destroyed or injured by fire or earthquake or 

other casualty, to the extent that they are untenantable in whole or in part, then Lessor 
may, at Lessor's option, proceed with reasonable diligence to build and restore said 
Premises or such part thereof, provided that within sixty (60) days after such destruction 
or injury, Lessor shall notify Lessee in writing of Lessor's intention to do so.  During the 
period from destruction or damage to restoration, Rent will be abated in the same ratio as 
that portion of the Premises which Lessor determines is unfit for occupancy bears to the 
whole Premises. 

 
12. Assignment,  Subletting and Succession.  Lessee may not assign or sublet this Lease or 

the Premises, or any part of either, without first obtaining Lessor's written consent.  This 
Lease is not assignable by operation of law.

43



Lease Agreement - 7 

 

 

13. Defaults - Remedies.  
 

13.1 Default by Lessee.  The occurrence of any one or more of the following events 
constitutes a default under this Lease by Lessee: 

 
13.1.1 Vacation or abandonment of the Premises; 

 
13.1.2 Failure by Lessee to make any payment of Rent when due, or failure to 

make any other payment required hereunder when due when that failure 
continues for a period of five (5) days after written notice from Lessor; 

 
13.1.3 Failure by Lessee to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions 

or provisions of this Lease, other than the making of any payment, where 
that failure continues for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice 
from Lessor; provided, that if the nature of Lessee's obligation is such that 
more than thirty (30) days are reasonably required for cure, Lessee will 
not be in default if Lessee commences to cure within thirty (30) days of 
Lessor's notice and thereafter diligently pursues completion and completes 
performance within a reasonable time; 

 
13.1.4 Lessee's failure to comply with the same Lease term or covenant on three 

occasions during the Term, even if such breach is cured within the 
applicable cure period. 

 
13.2 Remedies.  In the event of any default, Lessor may at any time, without waiving 

or limiting any other right or remedy, re-enter and take possession of the 
Premises, terminate this Lease, accelerate all Rent payments due hereunder which 
payments will then become immediately due and payable, or pursue any other 
remedy allowed by law.  Lessee shall pay Lessor the costs of recovering 
possession of the Premises, the expenses of re-letting, and any other costs or 
damages arising out of Lessee's default.  Notwithstanding any re-entry or 
termination, Lessee will remain liable for all sums Lessee is obligated to pay 
hereunder for the balance of the Term, and Lessee shall compensate Lessor for 
any deficiency arising from re-letting the Premises, provided, however, that 
Lessor shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate its damages.  Unless the Lessor 
elects to accelerate the Rent owed hereunder, Lessee shall pay such deficiency 
each month as the amount thereof is ascertained by Lessor. 

 
13.3 Default by Lessor.  Lessor will not be in default unless Lessor's failure to perform 

an obligation within thirty (30) days after notice by Lessee, which notice must 
specify the alleged breach; provided, that if the nature of Lessor's obligation is 
such that more than thirty (30) days are reasonably required for cure, Lessor will 
not be in default if Lessor commences to cure within thirty (30) days of Lessee's 
notice and thereafter diligently pursues completion and completes performance 
within a reasonable time. 

44



Lease Agreement - 8 

 

 

 

14. Waiver.  Failure of Lessor to promptly enforce its rights hereunder will not waive such 
rights.  Lessor's acceptance of Rent subsequent to a Lessee breach will not waive such 
breach. 

 
15. Access.  Lessor may enter the Premises at all times to: inspect, provide Services required 

hereunder; post notices of non-responsibility; or, alter, improve or repair the Premises or 
any other portion of the Property, all without being deemed a constructive eviction. 
Lessee shall ensure that Lessor at all times has a key with which to unlock all doors and 
gates in the Premises, excluding Lessee's vaults and safes.  No re-keying of doors or gates 
may be done without Lessor's prior written approval.  Lessor has the right to use any and 
all means that Lessor deems proper to open doors and gates in an emergency in order to 
obtain entry to the Premises. 

 
16. Prior Agreements.  This Lease contains all of the agreements of the parties with respect to 

any matter covered or mentioned in the Lease, and no prior agreement, letter of intent or 
understanding pertaining to any such matter will be effective for any purpose.  No 
provisions of this Lease may be amended or added to, except by an agreement in writing 
signed by the parties or their respective successors in interest. 

 
17. Americans with Disabilities Act.  Within ten (10) days after receipt, Lessee shall advise 

Lessor in writing, and provide Lessor with copies of (as applicable)(a) any notices 
alleging violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA") relating to any 
portion of the Premises; (b) any claims made or threatened in writing regarding non- 
compliance with the ADA and relating to any portion of the Premises; or (c) any 
governmental or regulatory actions or investigations instituted or threatened regarding 
non-compliance with the ADA and relating to any portion of the Premises. 

 
18. Surrender of Premises.  The voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by Lessee, or a 

mutual cancellation thereof, will not work a merger, and will, at the option of Lessor, 
operate as an assignment to it of any or all subleases or subtenancies.  Upon the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Lessee shall peaceably surrender the 
Premises and all of the alterations and additions thereto, leave the Premises broom clean, 
in as good order, repair and condition as was provided to Lessee on the Commencement 
Date, reasonable wear and tear excepted, and Lessee shall comply with the provisions of 
Sections 9 and 10.  The delivery of keys to any employee of Lessor or to Lessor's agent 
or any employee thereof shall not be sufficient to constitute a termination of this Lease or 
a surrender of the Premises. 

 
19. Severability.  Any provision of this Lease which proves to be invalid, void or illegal will 

in no way affect, impair, or invalidate any other provision hereof, and such other 
provisions will remain in full force and effect. 

45



Lease Agreement - 9 

 

 

20. Governing Law; Venue.  This Lease is to be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Washington.  Lessor and Lessee hereby agree that venue of 
any action between parties relating to this Lease will be in Island County, Washington. 

 
21.  Hazardous Substances.  Lessee shall not generate, handle, store, or dispose of any 

Hazardous Substance on, under, or in the Premises, the Property, or the real property 
upon which the premises are situated.  As used herein, the term "Hazardous Substance" 
means any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous substance, waste, or material, which is or 
becomes regulated under any federal, state or local statute, ordinance, rule, regulation, or 
other law now or hereafter in effect pertaining to environmental protection, 
contamination, or cleanup.  Lessee agrees to hold harmless, protect, indemnify, and 
defend Lessor from and against any damage, loss, claim, or liability resulting from any 
breach of this covenant, including any attorneys' fees and costs incurred.  This 
indemnity will survive the termination of this Lease, whether by expiration of the Term 
or otherwise. 

 
 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 

By:  ______________________________________ 
       Robert Severns, Mayor 

STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF ISLAND ) 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this ____day of October, 2016,before me, the undersigned, a 
notary public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally 
appeared Jim Slowik, to me known to be the Mayor of the City of Oak Harbor, that executed the 
within and foregoing instrument, and acknowledged said instrument to be the free and voluntary 
act and deed of the City of Oak Harbor for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath 
stated that said individual was authorized to execute said instrument. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal the day and year in this certificate first above written 
 

 
Print____________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for  

                   the State of Washington residing in _____________ 
    Commission expires: ______________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46



Lease Agreement -  10 

 

 

 
BIG BROTHERS BIG SISTERS 

 
 
 

 
By:  ______________________________________ 

        
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

) ss: 
COUNTY OF ISLAND ) 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this ____day of October, 2016,before me, the undersigned, a 
notary public in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally 
appeared Jim Slowik, to me known to be the Mayor of the City of Oak Harbor, that executed the 
within and foregoing instrument, and acknowledged said instrument to be the free and voluntary 
act and deed of the City of Oak Harbor for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on oath 
stated that said individual was authorized to execute said instrument. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal the day and year in this certificate first above written 
 

 
Print____________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for  

          the State of Washington residing in _____________ 
  Commission expires: ______________ 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________      
City Clerk 
 
 

47



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Special Event Permit to Serve 
Alcohol at Fort Nugent Park ~ 
Whidbey Island Bicycle Club

FROM: Kevin Dresker, Chief of Police

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
City Council review of the enclosed documents, accept or amend the proposed conditions and authorize 
the Mayor or City Administrator to sign the permit.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On November 1, 2016 Brad Nelson of the Whidbey Island Bicycle Club submitted a Special Event 
Permit for their annual "Thanks Given'Er" event. The event is sponsored by the Washington State Bicycle 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. d.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Special Event Permit to Serve 
Alcohol at Fort Nugent Park ~ 
Whidbey Island Bicycle Club

FROM: Kevin Dresker, Chief of Police

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
City Council review of the enclosed documents, accept or amend the proposed conditions and authorize 
the Mayor or City Administrator to sign the permit.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On November 1, 2016 Brad Nelson of the Whidbey Island Bicycle Club submitted a Special Event 
Permit for their annual "Thanks Given'Er" event. The event is sponsored by the Washington State Bicycle Permit for their annual "Thanks Given'Er" event. The event is sponsored by the Washington State Bicycle 
Association and brings in cyclist from across the state. The event will take place December 10 - 11, 
2016 from 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. each day. This year they are applying to have a Beer Garden in Fort 
Nugent Park to accommodate 150 - 200 people, run by Flyers Restaurant and Brewery.

Evergreen Mountain Bike Alliance has applied for a Washington State Liquor Control Board License 
allowing service of alcohol at this event which on Saturday December 10th from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.

Positively Linked has applied for a Washington State Liquor Control Board License allowing service of
alcohol at this event which on Sunday December 11th from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.

Fort Nugent Park is a public park. The applicant understands that they cannot close the park to public 
access, and that they are restricted in service of alcohol to event attendees of the legal drinking age.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Per the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, Section 6.12.080(1) this permit must be approved by the City 
Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

Permit for their annual "Thanks Given'Er" event. The event is sponsored by the Washington State Bicycle 
Association and brings in cyclist from across the state. The event will take place December 10 - 11, 
2016 from 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. each day. This year they are applying to have a Beer Garden in Fort 
Nugent Park to accommodate 150 - 200 people, run by Flyers Restaurant and Brewery.

Evergreen Mountain Bike Alliance has applied for a Washington State Liquor Control Board License 
allowing service of alcohol at this event which on Saturday December 10th from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.

Positively Linked has applied for a Washington State Liquor Control Board License allowing service of 
alcohol at this event which on Sunday December 11th from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.

Fort Nugent Park is a public park. The applicant understands that they cannot close the park to public 
access, and that they are restricted in service of alcohol to event attendees of the legal drinking age.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Per the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, Section 6.12.080(1) this permit must be approved by the City 
Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

48



N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. Thanks Given'er - Special Event Permit Application
2. Thanks Given'er - Permit Conditions
3. Thanks Given'er - Insurance Certificate
4. Thanks Given'er - Liquor License App - EMBA
5. Thanks Given'er - Liquor License App - PL
6. Thanks Given'er - Parks Reservation
7. Thanks Given'er - Electronic Sign Application

N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. Thanks Given'er - Special Event Permit Application
2. Thanks Given'er - Permit Conditions
3. Thanks Given'er - Insurance Certificate
4. Thanks Given'er - Liquor License App - EMBA
5. Thanks Given'er - Liquor License App - PL
6. Thanks Given'er - Parks Reservation
7. Thanks Given'er - Electronic Sign Application

49

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478720320x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478720926x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478721193x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478721342x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478721453x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478721852x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478721942x_at.pdf


50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: 10-inch Transmission Main 
Bridge Hanger Replacement -
Contract Management Reserve 
Fund

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director & Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the City Engineer to administratively approve changes to the construction contract with Bridge 
Masters, Inc. totaling not more than $65,000.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Bridge Masters, Inc. was awarded a contract in the amount of $685,617.59 on August 24, 2016 to 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. e.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: 10-inch Transmission Main 
Bridge Hanger Replacement -
Contract Management Reserve 
Fund

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director & Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the City Engineer to administratively approve changes to the construction contract with Bridge 
Masters, Inc. totaling not more than $65,000.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Bridge Masters, Inc. was awarded a contract in the amount of $685,617.59 on August 24, 2016 to Bridge Masters, Inc. was awarded a contract in the amount of $685,617.59 on August 24, 2016 to 
replace the hangers which suspend the 10-Inch water transmission main from the Deception and Canoe 
Pass Bridges. City construction contract authorizations typically include a contingency or management 
reserve amount to assist timely resolution to relatively minor construction issues that often arise during the 
course of constructing or repairing public infrastructure. Through an oversight in the agenda bill, the 
recommended action to award the project to Bridge Masters did not include a management reserve 
amount.

 The 10-Inch pipeline suspended from the bridges was encapsulated with insulation for freeze protection. 
The pipe insulation was removed to allow pipe hanger replacement. There are pipe couplings at 90 foot
intervals and at each bridge abutment on both bridges. Removing the pipe insulation revealed that most of
the couplings are corroded and in need of replacement. We are working with Bridge Masters and Gray
& Osborne, the design engineer, to determine the extent of the work necessary to replace the couplings. 
Gray & Osborne has provided a design and specification for coupling replacement but there some 
conditions of the work will not be known until an old coupling is cut off and replaced with a new one. 
Authorizing the management reserve will allow payment to the Contractor for the additional work of 
replacing one coupling under time and materials (force account). With the replacement of one coupling it
is anticipated that we will be better able to determine if the remaining couplings need to be replaced and 
level of effort required to replace the remaining couplings. If the remaining couplings need to be replaced, 
a change order for replacement of the remaining couplings will be presented to the Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

Bridge Masters, Inc. was awarded a contract in the amount of $685,617.59 on August 24, 2016 to 
replace the hangers which suspend the 10-Inch water transmission main from the Deception and Canoe 
Pass Bridges. City construction contract authorizations typically include a contingency or management 
reserve amount to assist timely resolution to relatively minor construction issues that often arise during the 
course of constructing or repairing public infrastructure. Through an oversight in the agenda bill, the 
recommended action to award the project to Bridge Masters did not include a management reserve 
amount.

 The 10-Inch pipeline suspended from the bridges was encapsulated with insulation for freeze protection. 
The pipe insulation was removed to allow pipe hanger replacement. There are pipe couplings at 90 foot 
intervals and at each bridge abutment on both bridges. Removing the pipe insulation revealed that most of 
the couplings are corroded and in need of replacement. We are working with Bridge Masters and Gray 
& Osborne, the design engineer, to determine the extent of the work necessary to replace the couplings. 
Gray & Osborne has provided a design and specification for coupling replacement but there some 
conditions of the work will not be known until an old coupling is cut off and replaced with a new one. 
Authorizing the management reserve will allow payment to the Contractor for the additional work of 
replacing one coupling under time and materials (force account). With the replacement of one coupling it 
is anticipated that we will be better able to determine if the remaining couplings need to be replaced and 
level of effort required to replace the remaining couplings. If the remaining couplings need to be replaced, 
a change order for replacement of the remaining couplings will be presented to the Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

67



LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:__$65,000

Appropriation Source:__Water Fund_401

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL/BOARD/CITIZEN IMPUT/CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

 

October 28, 2015 - The hanger replacement project was presented at the Council Workshop

 

July 27, 2016 – The hanger replacement project was presented at the Council Workshop

 

August 24, 2016 – Construction bid results for hanger replacement was presented at the Special Council 
Workshop.

 

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:__$65,000

Appropriation Source:__Water Fund_401

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL/BOARD/CITIZEN IMPUT/CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

 

October 28, 2015 - The hanger replacement project was presented at the Council Workshop

 

July 27, 2016 – The hanger replacement project was presented at the Council Workshop

 

August 24, 2016 – Construction bid results for hanger replacement was presented at the Special Council 
Workshop.

 

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONSCITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 17, 2015 - Approved the professional Services Agreement With Gray & Osborne, Inc. to 
conduct Structural Inspections on the water mains suspended from the Deception Pass and Canoe Pass 
bridges in an amount not to exceed $17,300.

 

April 7, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for Structural Inspection Services related to the 
Deception and Canoe Pass Bridge Water Line Inspection and Assessment in the amount of $4,160 
increasing the total contract amount from $17,300 to $21,490.

 

December 1, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with 
Gray & Osborne, Inc. for the for design of the replacement hanger system for an amount not to exceed 
$60,000.00 and a management reserve of $6,000.00 (10%) to allow the City Engineer the ability to 
authorize minor contract changes.

June 15, 2016 - City Council authorized staff to solicit construction bids for replacement of the hangers 

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 17, 2015 - Approved the professional Services Agreement With Gray & Osborne, Inc. to 
conduct Structural Inspections on the water mains suspended from the Deception Pass and Canoe Pass 
bridges in an amount not to exceed $17,300.

 

April 7, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for Structural Inspection Services related to the 
Deception and Canoe Pass Bridge Water Line Inspection and Assessment in the amount of $4,160 
increasing the total contract amount from $17,300 to $21,490.

 

December 1, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with 
Gray & Osborne, Inc. for the for design of the replacement hanger system for an amount not to exceed 
$60,000.00 and a management reserve of $6,000.00 (10%) to allow the City Engineer the ability to 
authorize minor contract changes.

June 15, 2016 - City Council authorized staff to solicit construction bids for replacement of the hangers 

68



used to attach the 10-Inch Transmission Main to the Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges.

 

August 24, 2016 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign construction contract for replacement of 
the hangers used to attach the 10-Inch Transmission Main to the Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges to 
Bridge Masters, Inc. in the not to exceed amount of $685,617.59.

ATTACHMENTS

used to attach the 10-Inch Transmission Main to the Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges.

 

August 24, 2016 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign construction contract for replacement of 
the hangers used to attach the 10-Inch Transmission Main to the Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges to 
Bridge Masters, Inc. in the not to exceed amount of $685,617.59.

ATTACHMENTS

69



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Amendment to WQC-2016-
OakHar-00240 - SRF Loan 
Financing

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the City Administrator to sign Amendment No. 1 to agreement No. WQC-2016-OakHar-
00240 between the State of Washington Department of Ecology and the City of Oak Harbor.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Previously, the City of Oak Harbor issued applications to the Washington Department of Ecology (DOE) 
to obtain State Revolving Fund financing for the Clean Water Facility in each of the last three years 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. f.
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Amendment to WQC-2016-
OakHar-00240 - SRF Loan 
Financing

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the City Administrator to sign Amendment No. 1 to agreement No. WQC-2016-OakHar-
00240 between the State of Washington Department of Ecology and the City of Oak Harbor.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Previously, the City of Oak Harbor issued applications to the Washington Department of Ecology (DOE) 
to obtain State Revolving Fund financing for the Clean Water Facility in each of the last three years to obtain State Revolving Fund financing for the Clean Water Facility in each of the last three years 
including one for 2015, 2016 and one for 2017.  When multiple year applications  are made in this 
manner, DOE will consolidate the annual awards into one Master Agreement upon final approval of each
year's award. 

Previously, the City and DOE established Agreement WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 for the purpose of 
establishing the City's 2016 SRF award in the amount of $20,882,311.00.  Now that the City is being 
awarded a subsequent SRF loan package for 2017, the next step is to consolidate the City's 2017 SRF 
award, in the amount of $44,766,854.00, into the 2016 Agreement by using this proposed amendment.  
The resulting consolidated agreement will now reflect the combined total of $65,649,165.00 - the sum of
the two packages referred to above.

The attached agreement breaks down the scope of work into tasks of Project 
Administration/Management, Construction Management, and Construction.  The Amendment further 
establishes the two 20-year loans to be amortized separately and simultaneously, using the awarded 
interest rates for each individual loan package.  The Amendment will be effective July 1, 2016 the official
date of the award.

While the City did apply for and receive funding in the 2015 SRF cycle, the 2016 SRF and 2017 SRF 
packages are the only ones being consolidated due to the similar construction nature of the two packages.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

to obtain State Revolving Fund financing for the Clean Water Facility in each of the last three years 
including one for 2015, 2016 and one for 2017.  When multiple year applications  are made in this 
manner, DOE will consolidate the annual awards into one Master Agreement upon final approval of each 
year's award. 

Previously, the City and DOE established Agreement WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 for the purpose of 
establishing the City's 2016 SRF award in the amount of $20,882,311.00.  Now that the City is being 
awarded a subsequent SRF loan package for 2017, the next step is to consolidate the City's 2017 SRF 
award, in the amount of $44,766,854.00, into the 2016 Agreement by using this proposed amendment.  
The resulting consolidated agreement will now reflect the combined total of $65,649,165.00 - the sum of 
the two packages referred to above.

The attached agreement breaks down the scope of work into tasks of Project 
Administration/Management, Construction Management, and Construction.  The Amendment further 
establishes the two 20-year loans to be amortized separately and simultaneously, using the awarded 
interest rates for each individual loan package.  The Amendment will be effective July 1, 2016 the official 
date of the award.

While the City did apply for and receive funding in the 2015 SRF cycle, the 2016 SRF and 2017 SRF 
packages are the only ones being consolidated due to the similar construction nature of the two packages.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

70



LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
This Amendment establishes the contractual obligation of the City to accept the additional 
$44,766,854.00 in SRF funding at an interest rate of 1.6% for a 20-year term.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Amendment to Agreement WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
This Amendment establishes the contractual obligation of the City to accept the additional 
$44,766,854.00 in SRF funding at an interest rate of 1.6% for a 20-year term.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Amendment to Agreement WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

71

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1477961347x_at.pdf


AMENDMENT NO. 1

TO AGREEMENT NO. WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

BETWEEN

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY

AND

CITY OF OAK HARBOR

PURPOSE:  To amend the above-referenced agreement (AGREEMENT) between the state of Washington Department  

of Ecology (ECOLOGY) and City of Oak Harbor (RECIPIENT) for the City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 

Plant (PROJECT). 

 

This amendment is needed to add in additional funds to the budget based on the FY2017 new award of $44,766,854 for 

application/agreement number WQC-2017-OakHar-00081. The scope of work will remain the same, only the task 

amounts will change. The agreement will have two amortization schedules, one for FY2016 funds and one for FY2017 

funds.

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED that the AGREEMENT is amended as follows:

Total Eligible Cost:

Original:  20,882,311.00   Amended:  65,649,165.00

CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 1 Task Cost: $360,000.00

Task Title: Project Administration/Management

Task Description:

A. The RECIPIENT shall carry out all work necessary to meet ECOLOGY grant or loan administration requirements. 

Responsibilities include, but are not limited to:  maintenance of project records; submittal of requests for 

reimbursement and corresponding backup documentation; progress reports; and a recipient closeout report (including 

photos).    

 

B.  The RECIPIENT shall maintain documentation demonstrating compliance with applicable procurement, 

contracting, and interlocal agreement requirements; application for, receipt of, and compliance with all required 

permits, licenses, easements, or property rights necessary for the project; and submittal of required performance items.

C. The RECIPIENT shall manage the project.  Efforts include, but are not limited to:  conducting, coordinating, and 

scheduling project activities and assuring quality control.  Every effort will be made to maintain effective 

communication with the RECIPIENT's designees; ECOLOGY; all affected local, state, or federal jurisdictions; and any 

interested individuals or groups.  The RECIPIENT shall carry out this project in accordance with any completion dates 

outlined in this agreement.

Version 10/30/2015

72



Page 2 of 8State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Oak Harbor

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Project

Agreement No. WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

Amendment No. 1

Task Goal Statement:

Properly managed and fully documented project that meets ECOLOGY’s grant or loan administrative requirements.

Task Expected Outcome:

* Timely and complete submittal of requests for reimbursement, quarterly progress reports, and RECIPIENT closeout 

report.

* Properly maintained project documentation

Recipient Task Coordinator:    Joe Stowell, P.E., Oak Harbor City Engineer

Deliverables

Due DateDescriptionNumber

1.1 Progress Reports

1.2 Recipient Closeout Report

1.3 Project Outcome Summary Report

CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK

Task Number: 2 Task Cost: $6,533,879.00

Task Title: Construction Management

Task Description:

A. The RECIPIENT will provide adequate and competent construction management and inspection for the project.  

This may involve procuring professional services.  If procuring professional services, the RECIPIENT will procure 

them in accordance with state law.  The RECIPIENT will include ECOLOGY’s specification insert in the contract 

document.  The RECIPIENT must submit all contracts for construction management services before ECOLOGY will 

provide reimbursement for work performed under this task.

B. The RECIPIENT will develop a detailed Construction Quality Assurance Plan as required by WAC 173-240-075 

and submit it to ECOLOGY for review.  This plan must describe the activities which the RECIPIENT will undertake 

to achieve adequate and competent oversight of all construction work.  

C.  The RECIPIENT will provide a plan of interim operation for the Diversion Pump Station to document how this 

system will remain in continuous operation during construction.

D. The RECIPIENT will ensure construction progresses according to a timely schedule developed to meet completion 

dates indicated in the construction contract.  The RECIPIENT will revise or update the schedule whenever major 

changes occur and resubmit to ECOLOGY.  In the absence of major changes, the RECIPIENT will describe progress 

of the construction in quarterly progress reports.

E. The RECIPIENT will prepare a facility Operations and Maintenance Manual as required by WAC 173-240-080 and 

as generally described in section G1-4.4 of ECOLOGY’s Criteria for Sewage Works Design (Orange Book).  The 
Version 10/30/2015

73



Page 3 of 8State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Oak Harbor

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Project

Agreement No. WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

Amendment No. 1

RECIPIENT must provide a complete draft of the O&M manual to ECOLOGY for review prior to start-up testing of 

the facility.

F.  Upon completion of construction, the RECIPIENT will provide ECOLOGY’s Project Manager with a set of 

"as-built" plans (i.e., record construction drawings which reflect changes, modifications, or other significant revisions 

made to the project during construction)

G.  Upon project completion, the RECIPIENT will submit the Declaration of Construction Completion form to 

ECOLOGY in accordance with WAC 173-240-090.  The form, when signed by a professional engineer, indicates that 

the project was completed in accordance with the plans and specifications and major change orders approved by the 

ECOLOGY, and is accurately shown on the as-built plans.

Task Goal Statement:

Ensure construction contractor completes construction of a new wastewater treatment facility in Oak Harbor consistent 

with the requirements of the approved plans, specifications and change orders in a timely manner.

Task Expected Outcome:

* Wastewater treatment facility construction completed according to approved plans, specifications and change orders.

* Construction completed within scheduled timeline specified in the construction contract.

* Development of an operations and maintenance manual for the new facility and outfall (funded separately by 

ECOLOGY).

Recipient Task Coordinator:    Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer

Deliverables

Due DateDescriptionNumber

2.1 A copy of all executed contracts for engineering services and 

construction management work to be performed under this task.

2.2 Construction Quality Assurance Plan and, if necessary, plan updates.

2.3 Plan of Interim Operation for the Diversion Pump Station.

2.4 Construction schedule and periodic schedule updates.

2.5 Draft facility Operations and Maintenance Manual.

2.6 One electronic copy (in PDF) of “as-built” plans.  If the 

RECIPIENT is unable to generate an electronic copy of the 

“as-built” plans, they may substitute one paper copy formatted as 

half-size drawings.

2.7 Declaration of Construction Completion form to be provided by 

ECOLOGY.

CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK

Version 10/30/2015

74



Page 4 of 8State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Oak Harbor

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Project

Agreement No. WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

Amendment No. 1

Task Number: 3 Task Cost: $58,755,286.00

Task Title: Construction

Task Description:

A.  The RECIPIENT will execute a contract for GC/CM services for the construction of a new wastewater treatment 

plant according to the rules and restrictions in Chapter 39.10 RCW and as authorized by the Capital Projects Advisory 

Review Board.  The GC/CM contract must include ECOLOGY’s specification inserts and the RECIPIENT must 

ensure that all requests for bids issued by the GC/CM contractor for the project include Ecology’s specification inserts.

B.  The RECIPIENT will complete construction of the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility, designed under agreement 

WQC-2015-OakHar-00021, in accordance with plans (drawings) and specifications approved by ECOLOGY.  The 

Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility will include, but not be limited to:  wastewater screening, girt removal, membrane 

bioreactor treatment, UV disinfection, odor control, biosolids handling, on-site laboratory, and support buildings for 

administrative and maintenance activities.

The project includes the following items that meet the EPA green project reserve criteria:

1. Treatment and storage systems to allow use of effluent as non-potable water supply.

2. Incorporation of bioswales into exterior landscaping to manage stormwater runoff from the facility . 

C.  The RECIPIENT will conduct a pre-construction conference and invite ECOLOGY staff to participate.

D. As a condition of receiving this funding, the RECIPIENT will prepare a fiscal sustainability plan.  The RECIPIENT 

will certify that a plan that contains at least the minimum required elements listed above has been developed and is 

being implemented.  The plan must include the following elements

1. An inventory of critical assets that belong to the utility. 

2. An evaluation of the condition and performance of the critical assets.

3. A plan to maintain, repair, and replace the critical assets and to fund those activities. 

4. A process to evaluate and implement water and energy conservation efforts as part of the plan.

E.  The RECIPIENT will negotiate all change orders to the construction contract necessary for successful completion 

of the PROJECT.   The RECIPIENT will submit the change orders to ECOLOGY for approval.  Change orders that are 

a significant deviation from the approved plans/specifications must be submitted for approval, prior to execution.  All 

other change orders must be submitted within 30 days after execution.  “Significant deviation” means any change that 

may result in modifying the approved design details related to treatment process components and strategies.  .

Task Goal Statement:

Construct a new wastewater treatment plant in Oak Harbor in accordance with the approved plans and specifications 

developed under WQC-2015-OakHar-00021.

Task Expected Outcome:

*Complete installation of a new wastewater treatment plant in Oak Harbor.

Recipient Task Coordinator:    Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer

Version 10/30/2015

75



Page 5 of 8State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Oak Harbor

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Project

Agreement No. WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

Amendment No. 1

Deliverables

Due DateDescriptionNumber

3.1 Copy of each Request for Bid package developed and issued by the 

GC/CM contractor for project construction components.

3.2 Copy of each Guaranteed Maximum Price amendment negotiated 

with the GC/CM contractor for the project, including details 

demonstrating how the maximum cost was established and 

describing the process for selecting sub-contractors.

3.3 Copy of the Notice to Proceed for each project package.

3.4 Minutes of the pre-construction meeting.

3.5 Documentation of the project elements that meet the EPA green 

project reserve criteria.

3.6 Copy of approved change orders.

3.7 Copy of the Notice of Substantial Completion.

3.8 Certification that the Financial Sustainability Plan has been 

developed and is being implemented.

CHANGES TO THE BUDGET

Funding Distribution EL170038

Funding Title: SRF Loan FY2017

Title: CWSRF - SFY17

Type: Federal

100%

Clean Water State Revolving Fund-This grant will provide additional capital for 

Washington's Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund.  This capital will be used to 

offer low interest loans to projects that will address the state's high priority water 

quality needs.  The projects receiving financial assistance will generally protect and 

restore water quality and aquatic habitat.

Funding Source %:

Description:

Funding Effective Date:

Funding Source:

Funding Expiration Date:07/01/2016 12/31/2018

Funding Type: Loan

Version 10/30/2015

76



Page 6 of 8State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Oak Harbor

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Project

Agreement No. WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

Amendment No. 1

Federal Awarding Agency: 

Federal Awarding Agency Contact: 

Federal Awarding Agency Phone: 

Federal Awarding Agency Email: 

Federal Awarding Agency Address: 

                  

CFDA Catalog Name: 

CFDA Number: 

FAIN: 

Research Grant: 

Federal Award Date: 

Total Federal Award Amount: 

Federal Funds Obligated To Recipient: 

           

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Edward H. Chu

206-553-0850

Chu.Ed@epa.gov

66.458

53000116

No

08/12/2014

$27,882,000.00

$44,766,900.00

Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Fund

EPA Region 10, Mail Code: OMP-173, 1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 

900, Seattle WA 98101

Approved Indirect Costs Rate:

Recipient Match %:  

InKind Interlocal Allowed:

InKind Other Allowed:

Is this Funding Distribution used to match a federal grant?   

Approved State Indirect: 25%

0%

No

No

No

Effective Interest Rate: 1.6%   Interest Rate: 0.6%   Admin Charge: 1%

Terms: 20 years   

Project Start Date:  07/01/2014 Project Completion Date:  12/31/2018  

Estimated Initiation of Operation date:      

Loan Security: 

Final Accrued Interest:  

Final Loan Amount:  

Repayment Schedule Number:

07/01/2018

Revenue Secure Lien Obligation of the Recipient

$

$

2320

SRF Loan FY2017 Task Total

Construction Management $ 4,656,854.00

Construction $ 40,000,000.0

Project Administration/Management $ 110,000.00

Total:  44,766,854.0$

Version 10/30/2015

77



Page 7 of 8State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Oak Harbor

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Project

Agreement No. WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

Amendment No. 1

Funding Distribution Summary

Recipient / Ecology Share

Funding Distribution Name Recipient Match % Recipient Share Ecology Share Total

SRF Forgivable Principle 0 % $ $ $0.00 463,154.00 463,154.00

Centennial 0 % $ $ $0.00 4,586,846.00 4,586,846.00

SRF Loan 0 % $ $ $0.00 15,832,311.0 15,832,311.0

SRF Loan FY2017 0 % $ $ $0.00 44,766,854.0 44,766,854.0

Total 0.00 65,649,165.0 65,649,165.0$$$

Version 10/30/2015

78



Page 8 of 8State of Washington Department of Ecology

City of Oak Harbor

City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Project

Agreement No. WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

Amendment No. 1

Washington State

Department of Ecology

Date Date

Water Quality

Heather R. Bartlett Douglas Arthur Merriman

City of Oak Harbor

AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES

All other terms and conditions of the original Agreement including any Amendments remain in full force and effect, 

except as expressly provided by this Amendment.

The signatories to this Amendment represent that they have the authority to execute this Amendment and bind their 

respective organizations to this Amendment.

This amendment will be effective 07/01/2016.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: the parties hereto, having read this Amendment in its entirety, including all attachments, do 

agree in each and every particular and have thus set their hands hereunto.

City Administrator

By: By:

Program Manager

Template Approved to Form by

Attorney General's Office

Version 10/30/2015

79



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update 

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review Clean Water Facility Project Update attached

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
City Council.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5. c. i.
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update 

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review Clean Water Facility Project Update attached

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
City Council.City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. CWF Update

City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. CWF Update

80

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478563268x_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  November 15, 2016 
1 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – November 15, 2016     
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  
 
RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 

• GMP #7 & #8-Self Perform Concrete 
• 37 of 63 concrete pours completed 

• Design 
• The Process Building and Non-Process 100% documents have been completed. 

• Process Structures 
• GMP #9 was approved at the October 4, 2016 Council Meeting  
• Work underway for GMP #9 

• Complete installing outfall pipe in City Beach St. 
• Advertised for bid the non-process structures. (GMP#11) 
• Prepared Windjammer Park Design Contract Amendment with Carollo for Council approval 
• Prepared SRF Loan Agreement Amendment for Council approval. 
• Prepared Self-Perform GMP #10 for Council Approval 

 
 

ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 
• Windjammer Park Integration Plan 

• Begin design activities upon Council approval 
• Self-Perform Concrete (Buildings 20 and 30) 

• Continue concrete installation 
• Process Structures Mechanical/Electrical 

• Initiated GMP #9 tasks 
• Present GMP#11Non-Porcess Structures to City Council for approval 
• Continue RBC Plant demolition 

 
 
 
 
CLEAN WATER FACILITY DESIGN STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design – 
Process Structures 

Carollo Engineers has completed the design drawings for 
the process structures associated with the treatment plant. 

100% 

Facility Design – 
Biosolids Building 

Design of the Biosolids building is complete. 100% 

Facility Design – 
Admin/Maintenance 

Design of the Admin and Maintenance facilities are 
complete. 

100% 

 
  

81



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  November 15, 2016 
2 

 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 
Pending Permits Description 

• Building permits 
 
 

• The Deep Foundation GMP permit has been issued 
• A building permit for the process facilities has been issued 
• A permit application for the non-process facilities has been applied 

for. 
 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 
Item Description Estimated Completion 
GMP #2 (Outfall Construction) The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 

are currently finalizing the paperwork for this 
phase of work. 

Final Closeout 

GMP #3 (Site Preparation A) The subcontractor has completed their work and 
the contract is being closed out. 

Completed 

GMP #4 (Site Preparation B) Sheet piles and tie-backs have been installed.  
Deep excavation has been completed.  A few 
miscellaneous tasks remain. 

July 2016 

GMP #6 (Site Preparation C) Micropile installation mostly completed.  
Miscellaneous closeout tasks underway. 

July 2016 

GMP #7 (Deep Foundation 
Concrete) 

Started installation of rebar and placement of 
concrete. 

May  2017 

GMP #8 (Building 20 and 30 
Concrete) 

Started installation of rebar and placement of 
concrete. 

October  2017 

GMP #9 (Process Mechanical 
and Electrical) 

Started installation of mechanical and electrical 
systems. 

August  2018 

 
 
 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 
GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 
Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 - Includes Membrane 
Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection equipment procurement 
and design support.  Does not include installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 - Construction of a new 
outfall from approximately the waterfront trail out into Oak 
Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15 - Preliminary site excavation 
and archaeological investigation.  Preliminary results indicate 
this work will come in under budget or be delayed until Site 
Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council on 10/20/15 - Site Preparation 
Package B will include utility relocates, minor demolition at the 
existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, sheet pile 
installation and deep excavation. 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

$2,028,222 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council on 10/20/15 - Resolution and GMP 
#5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved   

82



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  November 15, 2016 
3 

 

GMP #6 (Site Prep C) $4,311,589 
(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package C will includes installation of micro-
piles, preparation for a tower crane and extension of the outfall 
to the site. 

GMP #7 (Deep 
Foundation) 

$10,169,937 
(includes sales tax) 

The Deep Foundation package includes the concrete 
construction to bring the Membrane building to grade and 
other construction activities. 

GMP #8 (Self 
Performed Concrete) 

$11,766,510 
(includes sales tax) 

Contract awarded by Council on 9/4/16.  The self-performed 
concrete work will complete the subsurface membrane and 
aeration structures.  

GMP #9 (Mechanical 
Electrical packages) 

$38,159,69 
(includes sales tax) 

Contract awarded by Council on 10/4/16.  GMP #9 includes the 
mechanical/electrical systems associated with the wastewater 
treatment plant. 

GMP #10 (Building 70 
Self Perform Concrete) 

TBD Design complete, preparing a self-perform cost proposal 

GMP #11 (Non 
Process Structures) 

TBD Design complete and work is out for bid. 

GMP #12 (Site 
Restoration/Mitigation) 

TBD Windjammer Park Integration Plan Phase 1 design contract 
presented to Council for approval. 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

On June 21, 2016 we received a formal offer from the Department of Ecology for 
a $44,766,854 State Revolving Fund Loan at a rate of 1.6% for a term of 20 
years.  DOE prepared a contract amendment our existing funding agreement.  
This agreement will be presented to Council for approval on November 15, 2016. 

2018 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

On October 21, 2016 the city applied for the 2018 funding cycle to complete 
funding for the project.  Results will be announced in the spring of 2017. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant has also been 
obtained.  

2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant  

The City has received a $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program.  The city received the grant reimbursement. 

Bond Anticipation Note  This note has been repaid with proceeds from the bond sale. 

Bonds The City released $25 million in bonds and secured a rate of 3.43%.  The city 
closed on the bond sale 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

Rates Ordinance 1760 was passed by City Council on March 15, 2016.  Staff will 
continue to evaluate rates as the project progresses. 

 

83



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  November 15, 2016 
4 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 
Upcoming activities or 
In-Progress activities Description 

Project communications 
plan 

The project team continues to implement the project communications plan 
through weekly e-mail updates, drop-in times at the construction site, project 
signage and regular mailers at major milestones.  A project mailer will be 
distributed November 15. 

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

Staff is working to implement the plan approved by City Council on June 7th. 

 
  

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 

 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 
 
Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 
 
Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org  
 
 

 
  

84

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  November 15, 2016 
5 

 

 

    

We are here  

85



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1780: Model 
Homes

FROM: Steve Powers, AICP, Director, Development Services Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1780, ‘AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL 
CODE TITLE 21 “SUBDIVISIONS”, ADDING CHAPTER 21.100 ENTITLED “MODEL 
HOMES”’.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to introduce a draft of the proposed zoning regulations allowing for up to 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6. a.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1780: Model 
Homes

FROM: Steve Powers, AICP, Director, Development Services Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1780, ‘AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL 
CODE TITLE 21 “SUBDIVISIONS”, ADDING CHAPTER 21.100 ENTITLED “MODEL 
HOMES”’.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to introduce a draft of the proposed zoning regulations allowing for up to The purpose of this report is to introduce a draft of the proposed zoning regulations allowing for up to 
nine model homes to be constructed prior to final plat approval in new subdivisions.  Standards are set 
forth in the proposed ordinance to require that the homes be constructed to approved plans, include 
stormwater facilities, access to the homes for fire equipment and utility connections.

BACKGROUND

This change was based on a request by a local developer to allow for construction to begin before 
improvements were completed, to allow for earlier showing of homes to prospective buyers and gauge 
interest in home designs and other details.  Currently, the Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) limits 
single-family development of just one home per parcel.  In the case of a developing subdivision, there is 
typically only one lot until the time at which the final plat is recorded, which means additional homes 
cannot be started until after the final plat is recorded.  This leads to difficulties in being able to show 
differing floor plans and home types to prospective buyers.

Staff reviewed the request to determine how an ordinance could be structured that would allow a 
developer the flexibility to construct homes before the final plat approval, but protect the City’s interests 
in case of unforeseen circumstances that would interrupt the construction process or other issues.  The 
draft code as proposed is based on a similar code in Mt. Vernon.

The purpose of this report is to introduce a draft of the proposed zoning regulations allowing for up to 
nine model homes to be constructed prior to final plat approval in new subdivisions.  Standards are set 
forth in the proposed ordinance to require that the homes be constructed to approved plans, include 
stormwater facilities, access to the homes for fire equipment and utility connections.

BACKGROUND

This change was based on a request by a local developer to allow for construction to begin before 
improvements were completed, to allow for earlier showing of homes to prospective buyers and gauge 
interest in home designs and other details.  Currently, the Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) limits 
single-family development of just one home per parcel.  In the case of a developing subdivision, there is 
typically only one lot until the time at which the final plat is recorded, which means additional homes 
cannot be started until after the final plat is recorded.  This leads to difficulties in being able to show 
differing floor plans and home types to prospective buyers.

Staff reviewed the request to determine how an ordinance could be structured that would allow a 
developer the flexibility to construct homes before the final plat approval, but protect the City’s interests 
in case of unforeseen circumstances that would interrupt the construction process or other issues.  The 
draft code as proposed is based on a similar code in Mt. Vernon.

86



DISCUSSION

The draft subdivision regulations touch on a number of concerns brought forth by City staff regarding 
potential benefits and detriments caused by such an ordinance.

 The number of homes that would be allowed to be constructed was capped at nine – which is the 
same number of lots that could be created by a Short Plat process.  If for some reason the 
subdivision process were to stall or not be recorded, a Short Plat could be used to create the 
necessary lots to keep the homes at a one home per one lot ratio.

 A developer may apply for a building permit for individual model home(s), which are to meet the 
criteria set forth in the proposed code and meet all other OHMC sections regarding density 
standards such as setbacks and building height.  There would be no difference between a home 
built under the provisions of this proposed ordinance and one constructed as a single home on an 
individual lot.

 Stormwater facilities shall be in place and approved prior to construction of any homes.  This 
restriction will protect neighboring properties from runoff and sedimentation created by the 
construction of the subdivision and homes themselves.  It also means that those stormwater 
facilities are in place in case of the aforementioned failure of the subdivision recording process, if a 
Short Plat must be utilized.

 Road improvements must be made up to the point where access is provided as required by the 
Fire Department and to the standards that are set forth by Engineering and approved in the 
Preliminary Plat.  Access therefore is provided for life safety needs as well as the ability to show 
the homes to the public.  Frontage improvements that meet all applicable standards to subdivisions 
in the OHMC will also be required to be completed.

 Water and sewer connections will be required to the homes to provide them with proper 
sanitation. 

DISCUSSION

The draft subdivision regulations touch on a number of concerns brought forth by City staff regarding 
potential benefits and detriments caused by such an ordinance.

 The number of homes that would be allowed to be constructed was capped at nine – which is the 
same number of lots that could be created by a Short Plat process.  If for some reason the 
subdivision process were to stall or not be recorded, a Short Plat could be used to create the 
necessary lots to keep the homes at a one home per one lot ratio.

 A developer may apply for a building permit for individual model home(s), which are to meet the 
criteria set forth in the proposed code and meet all other OHMC sections regarding density 
standards such as setbacks and building height.  There would be no difference between a home 
built under the provisions of this proposed ordinance and one constructed as a single home on an 
individual lot.

 Stormwater facilities shall be in place and approved prior to construction of any homes.  This 
restriction will protect neighboring properties from runoff and sedimentation created by the 
construction of the subdivision and homes themselves.  It also means that those stormwater 
facilities are in place in case of the aforementioned failure of the subdivision recording process, if a 
Short Plat must be utilized.

 Road improvements must be made up to the point where access is provided as required by the 
Fire Department and to the standards that are set forth by Engineering and approved in the 
Preliminary Plat.  Access therefore is provided for life safety needs as well as the ability to show 
the homes to the public.  Frontage improvements that meet all applicable standards to subdivisions 
in the OHMC will also be required to be completed.

 Water and sewer connections will be required to the homes to provide them with proper 
sanitation. sanitation. 

 The builder and developer will be on notice that the model home(s) are subject to removal if final 
plat approval is not granted or the preliminary plat approval period expires. 

 Financial securities will be required of the developer in the amount of 150% of the contractor’s 
estimated cost to restore the site to its previous condition in the event of a failure to meet the 
conditions set forth in the proposed and the subdivision ordinances as well as any applicable 
regulations.

 The application for a model home will be subject to a model home fee to cover the additional review and 
approval for said homes.  All other fees for plat improvements and building permit fees are to be paid 
before construction of model homes commence.  Impact fees for the homes shall be paid at that time as 
well unless a deferral is granted by the City Engineer per OHMC 3.63.075.

After model home construction is completed and before final plat approval, as-built plans will be required 
to be submitted to the City that shows the locations of the completed structures, setback dimensions, 
utility locations and other details.  After final plat approval, the homes may then be sold to private owners 
or, used as model homes until the sale of the remaining homes within the subdivision.

In the event that the preliminary plat approval has expired and no extension is granted, or if the 
subdivision is denied final plat approval or the approval period has expired, the City may cause the homes 
to be removed, using funds collected as part of the 150% bond noted above.

Development of the remainder of the subdivision would be carried out as normal, with lots being sold off 

sanitation. 
 The builder and developer will be on notice that the model home(s) are subject to removal if final 

plat approval is not granted or the preliminary plat approval period expires. 
 Financial securities will be required of the developer in the amount of 150% of the contractor’s 

estimated cost to restore the site to its previous condition in the event of a failure to meet the 
conditions set forth in the proposed and the subdivision ordinances as well as any applicable 
regulations.

 The application for a model home will be subject to a model home fee to cover the additional review and 
approval for said homes.  All other fees for plat improvements and building permit fees are to be paid 
before construction of model homes commence.  Impact fees for the homes shall be paid at that time as 
well unless a deferral is granted by the City Engineer per OHMC 3.63.075.

After model home construction is completed and before final plat approval, as-built plans will be required 
to be submitted to the City that shows the locations of the completed structures, setback dimensions, 
utility locations and other details.  After final plat approval, the homes may then be sold to private owners 
or, used as model homes until the sale of the remaining homes within the subdivision.

In the event that the preliminary plat approval has expired and no extension is granted, or if the 
subdivision is denied final plat approval or the approval period has expired, the City may cause the homes 
to be removed, using funds collected as part of the 150% bond noted above.

Development of the remainder of the subdivision would be carried out as normal, with lots being sold off 

87



Development of the remainder of the subdivision would be carried out as normal, with lots being sold off 
to individual buyers or homes constructed by the developer then sold.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The process by which amendments are made to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code are governed by 
OHMC 19.80.  Two criteria are considered for amendments:

(a) The amendment must be consistent with the Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan;

(b) The amendment must substantially promote the public health, safety and welfare.

Staff determined that both of the above criteria have been met in this text amendment.  The proposed 
amendment does not contravene any aspect of the Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan.  This proposed 
change will simply allow property owners to utilize a different process to develop single-family residential 
subdivisions.  The amendment also promotes the public health, safety and welfare by being compliant with 
all other life safety provisions of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code.  Based on the two criteria and the 
positive aspects of the proposed code listed in the discussion section above, staff recommends approval 
of the new code section as written in Attachment 1.

FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Planning Commission 

Development of the remainder of the subdivision would be carried out as normal, with lots being sold off 
to individual buyers or homes constructed by the developer then sold.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The process by which amendments are made to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code are governed by 
OHMC 19.80.  Two criteria are considered for amendments:

(a) The amendment must be consistent with the Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan;

(b) The amendment must substantially promote the public health, safety and welfare.

Staff determined that both of the above criteria have been met in this text amendment.  The proposed 
amendment does not contravene any aspect of the Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan.  This proposed 
change will simply allow property owners to utilize a different process to develop single-family residential 
subdivisions.  The amendment also promotes the public health, safety and welfare by being compliant with 
all other life safety provisions of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code.  Based on the two criteria and the 
positive aspects of the proposed code listed in the discussion section above, staff recommends approval 
of the new code section as written in Attachment 1.

FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Planning Commission Planning Commission 

The Planning Commission reviewed the code amendments and held a Public Hearing on October 25, 
2016; after which they recommended approval of the code amendments. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Ordinance No. 1780, 'AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL 
CODE TITLE 21 "SUBDIVISIONS", ADDING CHAPTER 21.100 ENTITLED "MODEL HOMES"'

Planning Commission 

The Planning Commission reviewed the code amendments and held a Public Hearing on October 25, 
2016; after which they recommended approval of the code amendments. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Ordinance No. 1780, 'AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL 
CODE TITLE 21 "SUBDIVISIONS", ADDING CHAPTER 21.100 ENTITLED "MODEL HOMES"'

88

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1477085341x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1477085341x_at.pdf


Ordinance No. 1780 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR 
MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 21 “SUBDIVISIONS”, ADDING CHAPTER 
21.100 ENTITLED “MODEL HOMES” 
Page 1 of 5 

ORDINANCE NO. 1780 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 21 “SUBDIVISIONS”, 
ADDING CHAPTER 21.100 ENTITLED “MODEL HOMES” 
 
WHEREAS, Subdivision development from beginning to construction of new homes can be a time-consuming 
process; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Land developers have asked for a streamlined process by which model homes may be constructed 
and shown to the home-buying public; and, 
 
WHEREAS, City staff has determined that such a streamlined process may be accommodated by a change in 
the Oak Harbor Municipal Code that is in the best interest of developers and residents; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on the 25th day of October, 2016, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing 
related to the proposed amendment to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code set forth in the proposed ordinance; and,   
 
WHEREAS, after due process outlined by the Oak Harbor Municipal Code, the City Council approved the 
amendment to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code on ___ day of November, 2016, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 
 
Section One.  There is hereby added a new Chapter 21.100 entitled, “Model Homes” to Title 21 “Subdivisions” 
of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
 
  

89



Ordinance No. 1780 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR 
MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 21 “SUBDIVISIONS”, ADDING CHAPTER 
21.100 ENTITLED “MODEL HOMES” 
Page 2 of 5 

CHAPTER 21.100 
MODEL HOMES 

 

Sections: 
21.100.010 Purpose 
21.100.020 Number of model home permits authorized 
21.100.030  Eligibility for a model home permit 
21.100.040 Application requirements 
21.100.050  Model homes – Occupancy 
21.100.060 Model homes as built – Submittal 
21.100.070 Removal 
21.100.080 Permitted 
 

21.100.010 Purpose.  Permit a limited number of model homes to be constructed in an approved preliminary 
subdivision prior to final plat approval and recording in accordance with Chapters 21.20 and 21.40 OHMC. 
This chapter shall not be construed to supersede or amend the purpose and intent of the city of Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code regarding the requirements for subdivision approval.  

21.100.020 Number of model home permits authorized.  Building permit applications for model homes may 
be accepted for a maximum of nine lots. The number of homes permitted for each subdivision shall be no 
greater than 20 percent of the approved lots within the preliminary plat, not to exceed a total of nine homes. In 
the event that calculation of the number of lots equal to 20 percent of the total number of preliminary lots 
creates a fractional lot, the number of permitted lots for model homes shall be rounded up, not to exceed the 
maximum allowed.  

21.100.030 Eligibility for a model home permit.  Any applicant who has received preliminary plat approval 
may apply for a building permit or building permits for model homes, up to nine lots authorized under OHMC 
21.100.020, if the following criteria are met: 

(1) The applicant for the model home building permit, if different than the owners and applicant for the 
approved preliminary plat, shall provide a signed and notarized document by the owner demonstrating 
that the applicant has real or possessory interest in the property described in the legal description of the 
approved preliminary plat; 

(2) The applicant has submitted and received approval of public improvement construction plans required 
pursuant to OHMC 21.30; 

(3) Stormwater facilities that serve the model home lots shall be in place; 

(4) Any road improvement required as a condition of preliminary plat approval which is designed to provide 
access to the model home from an existing public right-of-way shall be approved for final alignment and 
subgrade, and the driveway(s) for the model home(s) shall be approved in accordance with the adopted 
standards and specifications established by OHMC 21.60. Lot corners shall be staked by a professional 
registered land surveyor; 

90



Ordinance No. 1780 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR 
MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 21 “SUBDIVISIONS”, ADDING CHAPTER 
21.100 ENTITLED “MODEL HOMES” 
Page 3 of 5 

(5)  All areas of the subdivision serving the model home(s) have installed frontage improvements as 
required by the preliminary plat approval. Said improvements shall meet all ADA requirements; 

(6) Water and sewer are installed to each lot proposed for model homes, as per approved construction plans; 

(7) All proposed streets serving the model homes are adequately marked with street signs, to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works and Fire Departments; 

(8) All impact fees which are required to be paid prior to building permit issuance shall have been paid prior 
to the issuance of a building permit for the model home(s), unless impact fee deferral has been approved 
pursuant to OHMC 3.63.075; 

(9) The approved preliminary plat shall not expire within 60 days from the date of building permit 
application for the model home(s); 

(10) Fire protection must be available to any lot proposed for construction of a model home;  

(11) An instrument recorded against the parcels containing the model home(s) stating, “Model home(s) are 
subject to removal should the preliminary plat not receive final plat approval or the approval period has 
expired, consistent with OHMC 21.100.070.” This instrument shall remain in effect until the plat is 
recorded or the home(s) are removed. 

21.100.040 Application requirements.  Each residential building permit application for a model home shall 
include the following submittals: 

(1) Title certificate demonstrating ownership interest in the legal description of the approved preliminary 
plat, or if the model home permit applicant is different that the owners or applicant for the preliminary 
plat, provide a signed and notarized document by the owner demonstrating that the model home permit 
applicant has real or possessory interest in the property; 

(2) Copy of adopting resolution approving the preliminary plat; 

(3) Building plot plan(s) showing the location(s) of the proposed model home(s) with distances indicated 
from the proposed final plat lot lines and consistency with density and setback requirements of the 
underlying zone district; 

(4) Overall site plan showing the location of proposed temporary improvements specific to the model 
home(s) uses such as the location of signage, flags, banners, fencing, landscaping, and impervious 
surfaces such as parking areas and sidewalks; 

(5) One dark line print of the proposed final plat; 

(6) A statement signed by the applicant in which the applicant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
city of Oak Harbor, its employees, agents, representatives, and elected and appointed officials from any 
and all claims made against them arising from the construction or occupancy of the model home(s) prior 
to recording the final plat; 

91



Ordinance No. 1780 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR 
MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 21 “SUBDIVISIONS”, ADDING CHAPTER 
21.100 ENTITLED “MODEL HOMES” 
Page 4 of 5 

(7) Submittal of financial securities at 150 percent of a contractor’s cost estimate, approved by the city, 
necessary to restore the site to conditions existing prior to the construction of the model home(s) and all 
associated structures and improvements;  

(8) In addition to the residential building permit fees for plan check, permit and building permit, a model 
home base fee of $300.00 per model home shall be required. All other applicable fees shall be paid for 
the proposed plat improvements and building permit fees prior to individual model home building 
permit issuance.  

21.100.050 Model homes – Occupancy.  The applicant may request final inspection and occupancy as a 
residence for only one model home prior to final subdivision approval and recording. Additional model homes 
constructed in the same preliminary subdivision in compliance with this chapter shall be used for display and 
marketing purposes only and shall not be occupied prior to final subdivision approval and recording. Occupancy 
as a model home/sales office prior to final plat recording is subject to meeting the life/safety requirements and 
approval of the development services director. Water and sewer services are required prior to occupancy. 

21.100.060 Model homes as built – Submittal.  Prior to final subdivision approval, the applicant shall submit 
two copies of a plot plan delineating the as-built location of the model home on the lot. The corners of the lot 
shall be set by a registered professional land surveyor prior to commencement of construction. The plot plan 
shall be included in both the building permit record and the subdivision file record. 

21.100.070 Removal.  The model home(s) and all associated improvements, including parking lot shall be 
removed within six months of the following occurrences: 

(1) Preliminary plat approval has expired and no extension has been granted. 

(2) The subdivision was denied final plat approval and/or required substantial improvements not consistent 
with the design of the preliminary approved plat in the opinion of the development services department. 

(3) The approval period has expired, consistent with OHMC 21.20. 

21.100.080 Permitted.  The model home(s) may be used for no longer than the expiration of the preliminary 
plat approval. Upon final plat approval, model homes may be used until the sale of all homes within the 
approved subdivision.    

  

92



Ordinance No. 1780 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR 
MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 21 “SUBDIVISIONS”, ADDING CHAPTER 
21.100 ENTITLED “MODEL HOMES” 
Page 5 of 5 

Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance 
is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the provision to other persons or 
circumstances is not affected. 
 
Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after publication. 
 
 
PASSED by the City Council this ___ day of November, 2016. 
  

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
   Veto   (     ) 
   Approve (     ) 
       By       
        Robert Severns, Mayor 
 
       Dated:        
 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Published:        
      

93



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: 2017-2018 Preliminary Biennial 
Budget

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Informative meeting for council as no decisions are to be made with this draft budget

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Bring forward Draft Biennial budget for Council to review and have time to receive additional information
for Ordinance decision needed on 12/6/2016.

Information will be provided at the meeting.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6. b.
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: 2017-2018 Preliminary Biennial 
Budget

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Informative meeting for council as no decisions are to be made with this draft budget

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Bring forward Draft Biennial budget for Council to review and have time to receive additional information 
for Ordinance decision needed on 12/6/2016.

Information will be provided at the meeting.Information will be provided at the meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

Information will be provided at the meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

94



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1777:  Property 
Tax Levy 

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1777 to increase property tax by 1%. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Under RCW 84.55 the City of Oak Harbor is required to address its annual property tax levy. After 
holding a public hearing on projected 2016 revenues, the city must adopt by Ordinance any proposed 
change to its regular property tax levy.

The City may make a base adjustment to its regular property tax levy in an amount equal to the lower of

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6. c.
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1777:  Property 
Tax Levy 

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1777 to increase property tax by 1%. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Under RCW 84.55 the City of Oak Harbor is required to address its annual property tax levy. After 
holding a public hearing on projected 2016 revenues, the city must adopt by Ordinance any proposed 
change to its regular property tax levy.

The City may make a base adjustment to its regular property tax levy in an amount equal to the lower ofThe City may make a base adjustment to its regular property tax levy in an amount equal to the lower of
1% or the rate of inflation. Inflation is measured by the change for the (12) twelve month period ending 
July 2016 as measured by the change in the Implicit Price Deflator (IPD) published by the Bureau of 
Economic Analysis. For 2016, the change is calculated at .953 percent (.953%).

With the IPD being below 1%, the process for establishing the city's regular levy is more complicated 
than during years where the IPD is 1% or higher. In years, such as 2016, where the rate of inflation per 
the IPD is less than (1%) one percent, the city is authorized to make an adjustment so they can levy the 
full 1% if a finding of substantial need is made by City Council. Accordingly, City Council, after holding a 
public hearing, has the following options when considering an increase in the regular property tax levy for 
2017.

1) Make no change. This action would require one Ordinance (Ordinance No. 1777) stating the City 
has addressed this issue and is leaving the regular property tax levy at the same dollar amount as 2016.
There would be no increase in revenues from this action. The City would be required to cut 
approximately $40,000 from the 2017 General Fund budget.

2) Increase the regular levy by the .953% IPD increase. This action would require one Ordinance 
(Ordinance 1777) increasing the levy by the .953% IPD rate. There would be an increase in revenues of
approximately $39,430 from this action. Even so, the City would be required to cut approximately 

The City may make a base adjustment to its regular property tax levy in an amount equal to the lower of 
1% or the rate of inflation. Inflation is measured by the change for the (12) twelve month period ending 
July 2016 as measured by the change in the Implicit Price Deflator (IPD) published by the Bureau of 
Economic Analysis. For 2016, the change is calculated at .953 percent (.953%).

With the IPD being below 1%, the process for establishing the city's regular levy is more complicated 
than during years where the IPD is 1% or higher. In years, such as 2016, where the rate of inflation per 
the IPD is less than (1%) one percent, the city is authorized to make an adjustment so they can levy the 
full 1% if a finding of substantial need is made by City Council. Accordingly, City Council, after holding a 
public hearing, has the following options when considering an increase in the regular property tax levy for 
2017.

1) Make no change. This action would require one Ordinance (Ordinance No. 1777) stating the City
has addressed this issue and is leaving the regular property tax levy at the same dollar amount as 2016.
There would be no increase in revenues from this action. The City would be required to cut 
approximately $40,000 from the 2017 General Fund budget.

2) Increase the regular levy by the .953% IPD increase. This action would require one Ordinance
(Ordinance 1777) increasing the levy by the .953% IPD rate. There would be an increase in revenues of 
approximately $39,430 from this action. Even so, the City would be required to cut approximately 

95



$2,370 from the General Fund budget.

3) Increase the regular property tax levy by 1%. This action would require (2) two Ordinances: 1) 
Ordinance No. 1777 to increase the regular levy to 1% and 2) Ordinance No. 1785 noticing a finding of 
substantial need and increasing the limit to the maximum allowed of 1%. The combination of both 
ordinance would increase revenues approximately $41,800.

4) Increase the regular levy by the .954% IPD and, after noticing a finding of substantial need, 
'bank' the remaining .047% in tax capacity to be used by City Council at a date to be 
determined if substantial need was found by Council. This action would be identical to 3) above, 
however additional language would need to be added to Ordinance No. 1777 reflecting City Council's 
intention to bank the excess capacity. City staff would then notify the County through the County's levy 
certification process to bank the .047%. the combination of this action would increase revenues by 
approximately $39,430. No taxes would be collected from the public for the banked portion. The City 
would be required to cut approximately $2,370 from the 2017 General Fund budget.

The 2017-2018 Biennial Budget adopted by City Council incorporates a 1% increase for both 2017 and 
2018. Accordingly, the staff recommendation is to adopt both Ordinance as outlined in option 3.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Per RCW 84.55, the City of Oak Harbor is required to address its annual property tax levy. Under 
current law, the City may levy taxes in an amount no more than the limit factor multiplied by the highest 
levy of the most recent three years plus additional amounts resulting from new construction and 
improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, and any increase in the value of stated 
assessed utility property.

Per RCW 84.55.0101, upon a finding of substantial need, the legislative authority of a taxing district other 

$2,370 from the General Fund budget.

3) Increase the regular property tax levy by 1%. This action would require (2) two Ordinances: 1) 
Ordinance No. 1777 to increase the regular levy to 1% and 2) Ordinance No. 1785 noticing a finding of 
substantial need and increasing the limit to the maximum allowed of 1%. The combination of both 
ordinance would increase revenues approximately $41,800.

4) Increase the regular levy by the .954% IPD and, after noticing a finding of substantial need, 
'bank' the remaining .047% in tax capacity to be used by City Council at a date to be 
determined if substantial need was found by Council. This action would be identical to 3) above, 
however additional language would need to be added to Ordinance No. 1777 reflecting City Council's 
intention to bank the excess capacity. City staff would then notify the County through the County's levy 
certification process to bank the .047%. the combination of this action would increase revenues by 
approximately $39,430. No taxes would be collected from the public for the banked portion. The City 
would be required to cut approximately $2,370 from the 2017 General Fund budget.

The 2017-2018 Biennial Budget adopted by City Council incorporates a 1% increase for both 2017 and 
2018. Accordingly, the staff recommendation is to adopt both Ordinance as outlined in option 3.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Per RCW 84.55, the City of Oak Harbor is required to address its annual property tax levy. Under 
current law, the City may levy taxes in an amount no more than the limit factor multiplied by the highest 
levy of the most recent three years plus additional amounts resulting from new construction and 
improvements to property, newly constructed wind turbines, and any increase in the value of stated 
assessed utility property.

Per RCW 84.55.0101, upon a finding of substantial need, the legislative authority of a taxing district other Per RCW 84.55.0101, upon a finding of substantial need, the legislative authority of a taxing district other 
than the state may provide for the use of a limit factor under this chapter of one hundred one percent or 
less. In districts with legislative authorities of four members or less, two-thirds of the members must 
approve an ordinance or resolution under this section. In districts with more than four members, a 
majority plus one vote must approve an ordinance or resolution under this section. The new limit 
factor shall be effective for taxes collected in the following year only.

FISCAL IMPACT
The possible fiscal impacts of this action is outlined in the summary statement above. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Regular Property Tax Ordinance No 1777

Per RCW 84.55.0101, upon a finding of substantial need, the legislative authority of a taxing district other 
than the state may provide for the use of a limit factor under this chapter of one hundred one percent or 
less. In districts with legislative authorities of four members or less, two-thirds of the members must 
approve an ordinance or resolution under this section. In districts with more than four members, a 
majority plus one vote must approve an ordinance or resolution under this section. The new limit 
factor shall be effective for taxes collected in the following year only.

FISCAL IMPACT
The possible fiscal impacts of this action is outlined in the summary statement above. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Regular Property Tax Ordinance No 1777

96

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478794796x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO 1777 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, LEVYING THE GENERAL 
PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING 
JANUARY 1, 2017, ON ALL PROPERTY, BOTH REAL AND PERSONAL WHICH IS SUBJECT TO 
TAXATION FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING SUFFICIENT REVENUE TO CARRY ON THE 
OPERATIONS OF THE CITY FOR THE ENSUING YEAR. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, has met and considered the City's 
anticipated budgeted financial requirements for the calendar year 2017; and 

WHEREAS, the population of the City is more than 10,000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, 
HEREBY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section one:  That an increase in the regular property tax levy is hereby authorized for the levy to be 
collected in the 2017 tax year.  The dollar amount of the increase over the actual levy amount from the 
previous year shall be $41,807.00 which is a percentage increase of 101% from the previous year.  This 
increase is exclusive of additional revenue resulting from new construction, improvements to property, 
newly constructed wind turbines, solar, biomass, and geothermal facilities, and any increase in the value 
of state assessed property, any annexations that have occurred and refunds made.   

Section two: The City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington gives authorization for the Mayor 
to sign and certify the Island County Property Tax Levy form. 
 

Section three: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after 
publication. 

PASSED by the City Council this 15th day of November, 2016. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
   Veto   (    ) 
   Approve (     ) 
       By       
        Robert Severns, Mayor 
        

Dated:        
Attest: 
 
       
Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

97



 
Published:        
 
 

98



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1785: Property 
Tax Substantial Need

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1785 for Substantial Need

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Areas of increased cost to the General Fund for council to use to determine substantial need.

The 2017-2018 Biennial Budget includes an increase to General Fund #001:

1) An increased subsidy to the Senior Center in 2017 of $34,935 and $24,558 in 2018.  This increase is 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6. d.
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1785: Property 
Tax Substantial Need

FROM: Patricia Soule, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1785 for Substantial Need

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Areas of increased cost to the General Fund for council to use to determine substantial need.

The 2017-2018 Biennial Budget includes an increase to General Fund #001:

1) An increased subsidy to the Senior Center in 2017 of $34,935 and $24,558 in 2018.  This increase is1) An increased subsidy to the Senior Center in 2017 of $34,935 and $24,558 in 2018.  This increase is 
budgeted to allow the Senior Center to continue their operations.

2) Increase to the Judicial portion of the budget for the Montoya Public Defender contract that was a
result of the ACLU court case with the City of Mount Vernon.  Also increased costs for the City's share 
of the Island County Court for Public Defender and Interpreter fees.  The approximate increase for both
2017 and 2018 is $140,000 each year compared to 2015 actual expenditures.

3) The State of WA required city contribution to PERS/LEOFF increase.  PERS is set to increase by
1.34% and LEOFF is set to increase .02%.  The estimated increase based on historical payroll is 
approximately $80,000 for the City's required match.

There are the largest increases to the General Fund for sustainability needs or mandated requirements.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Per RCW 84.55, the City of Oak Harbor is required to address its annual property tax levy.  If the IPD
is lower that 1% then a Ordinance finding substantial need must be passed to increase the levy to 1%.

FISCAL IMPACT

1) An increased subsidy to the Senior Center in 2017 of $34,935 and $24,558 in 2018.  This increase is
budgeted to allow the Senior Center to continue their operations.

2) Increase to the Judicial portion of the budget for the Montoya Public Defender contract that was a
result of the ACLU court case with the City of Mount Vernon.  Also increased costs for the City's share 
of the Island County Court for Public Defender and Interpreter fees.  The approximate increase for both 
2017 and 2018 is $140,000 each year compared to 2015 actual expenditures.

3) The State of WA required city contribution to PERS/LEOFF increase.  PERS is set to increase by
1.34% and LEOFF is set to increase .02%.  The estimated increase based on historical payroll is 
approximately $80,000 for the City's required match.

There are the largest increases to the General Fund for sustainability needs or mandated requirements.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Per RCW 84.55, the City of Oak Harbor is required to address its annual property tax levy.  If the IPD 
is lower that 1% then a Ordinance finding substantial need must be passed to increase the levy to 1%.

FISCAL IMPACT

99



The possible fiscal impacts of this action are outlined in the Ordinance 1777 agenda bill.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Property Tax Substantial Need Ordinance No 1785

The possible fiscal impacts of this action are outlined in the Ordinance 1777 agenda bill.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Property Tax Substantial Need Ordinance No 1785

100

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478794861x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO 1785 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, INCREASING THE 
REGULAR PROPERTY TAX LIMIT FACTOR ABOVE THE RATE OF INFLATION DUE TO 
INCREASES FOR SUBSTANTIAL NEED FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JANUARY 1, 
2017. 
  
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington has met and has considered that due 
to 1) an increased subsidy needed to meet the operational needs of the Oak Harbor Senior Center of, and  
2) to fund the increased contractual requirements of public defense services as a result of Wilbur vs. The 
City of Mount Vernon, and 3) to fund the approximately $80,000 of mandated annual contribution increases 
in the Washington State Public Retirement System, the City Council finds there is a substantial need to 
increase the regular property tax limit factor above the rate of inflation. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington gives authorization for the Mayor to 
sign and certify the Island County Substantial Need form. 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON HEREBY ORDAINS AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
Section one.  The limit factor for the property tax year 2017 shall be one hundred and one percent (101%). 
 
Section two: Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after 
publication. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this 15th day of November, 2016. 
 
        

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
   Veto   (    ) 
   Approve (     ) 
       By       
        Robert Severns, Mayor 
 
       Dated:        
Attest: 
 
 
       
Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Published:        

101



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1784: Low 
Impact Development (LID)

FROM: Stever Powers, AICP, Director, Development Services

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
City Council Options:

1) Hold a public hearing followed by a motion for adoption of Ordinance No. 1784; or,

2) Continue the hearing to the December 6, 2016 meeting.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor, a Phase II jurisdiction under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6. e.
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1784: Low 
Impact Development (LID)

FROM: Stever Powers, AICP, Director, Development Services

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
City Council Options:

1) Hold a public hearing followed by a motion for adoption of Ordinance No. 1784; or,

2) Continue the hearing to the December 6, 2016 meeting.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City of Oak Harbor, a Phase II jurisdiction under the National Pollutant Discharge EliminationThe City of Oak Harbor, a Phase II jurisdiction under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES), is required to review, revise and make effective code amendments to incorporate and 
require LID best management practices (BMPs) and principles.

The proposed amendments, distributed at the October 19th joint workshop, include input from 
stakeholder groups and staff. The Washington Department of Ecology guidance toolkit provided LID 
topics and considerations which we utilized to identify possible gaps in our existing code and strategies to 
fill those gaps. Attachment 1 is a spreadsheet identifying the 12 major topics, sub-topics and 
considerations for each topic. The spreadsheet further identifies how the considerations were addressed, 
whether by existing code, proposing code amendments or not addressing the gap due to conflicts with 
other City adopted regulations.

Attachment 2 identifies recommended revisions to the proposed amendments resulting from additional 
refinement. It is important to note that, due to the broad reach of these amendments and the dramatic shift
in how we deal with stormwater, subsequent “fine-tune” amendments may be necessary once the code is 
tested by development proposals.

Attachment 3 is proposed Ordinance No. 1784 which incorporates the revisions identified in Attachment
2.

at this meeting, while Option 2 is available if there are concerns or questions staff would need to address. 

The City of Oak Harbor, a Phase II jurisdiction under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES), is required to review, revise and make effective code amendments to incorporate and 
require LID best management practices (BMPs) and principles.

The proposed amendments, distributed at the October 19th joint workshop, include input from 
stakeholder groups and staff. The Washington Department of Ecology guidance toolkit provided LID 
topics and considerations which we utilized to identify possible gaps in our existing code and strategies to 
fill those gaps. Attachment 1 is a spreadsheet identifying the 12 major topics, sub-topics and 
considerations for each topic. The spreadsheet further identifies how the considerations were addressed, 
whether by existing code, proposing code amendments or not addressing the gap due to conflicts with 
other City adopted regulations.

Attachment 2 identifies recommended revisions to the proposed amendments resulting from additional 
refinement. It is important to note that, due to the broad reach of these amendments and the dramatic shift 
in how we deal with stormwater, subsequent “fine-tune” amendments may be necessary once the code is 
tested by development proposals.

Attachment 3 is proposed Ordinance No. 1784 which incorporates the revisions identified in Attachment 
2.

at this meeting, while Option 2 is available if there are concerns or questions staff would need to address. 

102



Staff has provided two options for the recommended action. Option 1 provides for Ordinance adoption 
at this meeting, while Option 2 is available if there are concerns or questions staff would need to address. 
Staff response would be scheduled for the December 6, 2016 meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The City has the authority to regulate its internal affairs under RCW 35A.21. As was previously noted, 
the City’s NPDES Phase II permit requires adoption of code amendments incorporating low impact 
development best management practices and principles.

FISCAL IMPACT
Implementation of these new regulations may require financial resources for additional staff and equipment 
and may require re-allocation of existing staff responsibilities. The approximate fiscal impact has not been 
calculated at this time.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
November 9, 2016 – Planning Commission closes public hearing and unanimously recommends    
approval to the City Council.

October 25, 2016 – Planning Commission opens public hearing.

October 19, 2016 – Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop.

September 12, 2016 – City Council Special Workshop.

August 23, 2016 – Planning Commission Meeting: Public Meeting.

Staff has provided two options for the recommended action. Option 1 provides for Ordinance adoption 
at this meeting, while Option 2 is available if there are concerns or questions staff would need to address. 
Staff response would be scheduled for the December 6, 2016 meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The City has the authority to regulate its internal affairs under RCW 35A.21. As was previously noted, 
the City’s NPDES Phase II permit requires adoption of code amendments incorporating low impact 
development best management practices and principles.

FISCAL IMPACT
Implementation of these new regulations may require financial resources for additional staff and equipment 
and may require re-allocation of existing staff responsibilities. The approximate fiscal impact has not been 
calculated at this time.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
November 9, 2016 – Planning Commission closes public hearing and unanimously recommends    
approval to the City Council.

October 25, 2016 – Planning Commission opens public hearing.

October 19, 2016 – Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop.

September 12, 2016 – City Council Special Workshop.

August 23, 2016 – Planning Commission Meeting: Public Meeting.August 23, 2016 – Planning Commission Meeting: Public Meeting.

Public Stakeholder Meetings from March – June 2016.

January 26, 2016 – Planning Commission Meeting: Public Meeting.

July 7, 2015 – City Council Workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Department of Ecology consistency matrix.
2. Minor revisions since October 19, 2016.
3. Draft Ordinance No. 1784.

August 23, 2016 – Planning Commission Meeting: Public Meeting.

Public Stakeholder Meetings from March – June 2016.

January 26, 2016 – Planning Commission Meeting: Public Meeting.

July 7, 2015 – City Council Workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Department of Ecology consistency matrix.
2. Minor revisions since October 19, 2016.
3. Draft Ordinance No. 1784.

103

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478809552x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478808721x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478808471x_at.pdf


WA DOE Consistency Matrix

1

Topic: Site Planning & Assessment
Building locations
Locate buildings away from critical areas and preserve soils with Provides density, lot size, and setback flexibility for 
good infiltration. No OHMC1 20.12.080(1)(a-c); 20.12.150. No change parcels impacted by critical areas.
Parking area locations
Encourage positioning parking areas near the entrance to the site 
to reduce long driveways. Yes DR&G2 1(i)(4) No change Conflicting guidance in a locally adopted document.
Incentives to developers to provide parking within garages rather than
surface parking lots? No DR&G 1(iv)(6) No change Parking reductions allowed for parking structures.
Stormwater treatment/flow control BMP/facility locations
Require infiltrating LID facilities in good potential areas. Yes SMP3 4D(9)(c)(8); OHMC 19.48.032(4); Amend code Early submittal of engineering reports and identification

19.48.035(2)(n) and dimensions of stormwater treatment, flow control,
and LID facilities/BMPs.

Topic: Healthy Soils
Protecting & restoring healthy soil. 
Soils management plan in place? Yes OHMC 12.30.525 Amend code Amendment requires conformance with 2012/14

manual for SWPPP requirements. 
Protection areas required to be fenced? No OHMC 19.47.065(6); 20.12.140(2); No change Sufficiently addressed in existing code.
Compost Amendments
Require amendment of disturbed soils. No OHMC 19.46.140(4)(f) No change Require soil amendment in accordance with BMP

T5.13 of the manual.
Could compost be provided to incentivize small projects. Yes No change Cost analysis not prepared for this incentive.
Compaction
Inclusion of clearing & grading equipment reducing soil compaction. Yes OHMC 12.30.525(5)(g) Amend code Minimizes compaction in accordance with manual.
Minimize/restrict clearing & grading outside of building footprint. Yes OHMC 19.48.054(2); 12.30.525(1)(a & b) Amend code Limits construction vehicle access.
Require contractors to reestablish soils permeability. Yes OHMC 12.30.525(5) Amend code Establishes soil stabilization.
Topic: Landscaping, Native Vegetation, & Street Landscaping
Tree preservation  
Regulatory controls over tree clearance & removal No OHMC 19.46.140(3)(a & b); 19.46.140(4)(a);

19.46.140(8); 19.46.100(2)(b)(i). No change Amended as part of LID Tech. Ass. Grant (2011)
Greater emphasis on preservation of conifers. No OHMC 19.46.030(4)(b); 19.46.040(1)(a)

19.46.140(4)(e); 19.46.140(2)(a) No change Amended as part of LID Tech. Ass. Grant (2011)
Strategies to orient retained veg. and open space to disconnect
impervious surfaces. No N/A No change No change proposed.
Screening
Screening requirements to include native vegetation retention. No OHMC 19.46.035(3)(c); No change Amended as part of LID Tech. Ass. Grant (2011)
Veg. within LID facilities count towards open space of landscape 
requirement. No OHMC 19.44.130(5) No change Amended as part of LID Tech. Ass. Grant (2011)
Landscape req. for street frontages. 
Include other landscaping between sidewalk and street. No OHMC 21.60.070(1)(c); 21.60.190(1)(f) No change Amended as part of LID Tech. Ass. Grant (2011)
Veg. within LID facilities count towards open space of landscape No OHMC 21.60.070(1)(c); 21.60.190(1)(f) No change Amended as part of LID Tech. Ass. Grant (2011)
Landscape req. for parking lots.
Minimum tree canopy or vegetation requirements. No OHMC 19.44.130(5); 19.46.030(5)(a & b) No change Amended as part of LID Tech. Ass. Grant (2011)

NotesTopic/Sub Topic Conflict/Gap Where Addressed Steps Taken

104



WA DOE Consistency Matrix

2

Topic: Hard & Impervious Surfaces
Maximum impervious surface allowances.
Maximum impervious surface limits for different land use types. No OHMC 19.20.180(9); 19.20215(9); 19.20.250(8) Amend code Percent of impervious surface/lot in R-1 & 2; C-1,3,4,5;

11.17.040(3). CBD 1 or 2; PBP; PIP; I; PF; OS; Maritime.
Can max impervious be reduced in residential. Yes OHMC 19.28.030 Amend code Addition of 10' in height for LID.
Can portion of impervious be designated non-pollution generating.
Shared driveways.
Are shared driveways for MF and/or comm. allowed? No OHMC 21.60.130(2-4) No change Code amended in 2010.
Can shared driveways for up to 4-6 houses be incorporated? No OHMC 21.60.130(2-4) No change Shared driveways for up to four du's.
Minimum driveway width.
Is minimum driveway width specified? No Not specified in code No change Parking space width of 9' is used as "rule of thumb".
Can minimum driveway width be reduced to 9' (1), 18' (2)
Use permeable pavement for driveways. Yes OHMC 19.44.130(2) Amend code Allows alternative surfaces in accordance with manual.
Are alternative surfaces allowed? No OHMC 11.17.110(1) No Change Allows alternative surfaces for sidewalks.
Can permeable pavements in driveways be incentivized? Yes OHMC Title 12 Amend code Permeable pavements will become required as feasible.
Two-track driveway. No Not addressed in code. No change No barriers to this design. 
Bulk & Dimensional
Building setbacks.
Can setbacks be minimized? No OHMC 19.66.090(1)(a) No change Administrative variance for up to 5% of setbacks.
Can frontage areas be reduced? No OHMC 19.66.090(1)(a) No change Administrative variance for up to 5% of setbacks.
Are irregular lot shapes allowed? Yes Code silent to irregular lot shapes. No change Lot width and depth is regulated.
Height limits.
Can maximum building height be increased? Yes OHMC 19.28.030 Amend code Up to 10 additional feet for MF & commercial 

projects in accordance with LID BMPs.
Max square footage.
Are minimizing bldg footprints incentivized? Yes Not addressed in code. No change Incentives are not proposed for reducing bldg footprint. 
Clustering.
Are cluster developments allowed? Yes OHMC 21.60.040 Amend code Clustering and lot densification used to incorporate LID.
Are cluster developments allowed by right?
Are flexible site design criteria available? No OHMC 19.31.090(2)(a&b); 20.12.080 No change Building design and site layout flexibility.
Clearing & Grading
Protecting existing infiltration.
Do regs. minimize site disturbance & protect native veg.? No OHMC 19.46.140(9) No change Protect native veg. during/after development.
Conserving native veg/soils.
Ord preserving native veg.? No OHMC 19.47.060(2) No change
Is wholesale clearing limited/prohibited? No OHMC 19.47.060(2), OHSMP Chap. 3(8)(c)(1) No change No more than 5% clearing under minor clearing permit.
Are developments required to set aside a portion of site?
Are there native veg. retention standards? No OHMC 19.47.065(1&3) No change Requires natural features and vegetation retention.
Any incentives to conserve open space? No OHMC 19.31.090(1) No change PRD allows additional density for greater % of open space
Native veg. definitions include: min. tree density, retention reqs. Etc. No OHMC 19.46.140(3) No change Requires tree density & native veg. retention/protection.
Construction sequencing
Are there methods to minimze site disturbance? Yes All clearing & grading activity and construction Amend code 2014 manual adopted by city.
Do street standards outline construction sequencing? No sequencing must be in conformance with
Can code be amended to limit clearing? No 2014 SWMMWW.

Topic/Sub Topic Conflict/Gap Steps Taken NotesWhere Addressed

105



WA DOE Consistency Matrix

3

Streets & Roads
Travel lane widths.
What is min. travel lane widths based on classification. No OHMC 21.60.060 No change Allows variation from street design standards.
Is travel lane wider than required by fire or emergency responders?
Can street width be reduced for local access streets? No OHMC 11.17.080
Are narrower pavement widths allowed where there are no houses,
building, or intersections?
Are queuing lanes allowed? No Street Design Standards. Drive-thrus need queuine lanes, streets need turn lanes.
R-O-W widths
Can min. ROW width be reduced or include flexibility for LID? No OHMC 21.50.050(4) No change Street, sidewalk, ROW flexibility for LID facilities.
Can sidewalks be placed on one side of the street? No OHMC 21.50.050(6), 21.60.070(1) No change Sidewalks on one side with LID facilities.
Can alternate pedestrian networks be substituted for sidewalks?
Use of permeable pavement for streets & roads. 
Can permeable pavement be used for road shoulders, parking lanes,
and emergency parking areas? No OHMC 11.17.040(3), OHSMP Chap. 4D(10)(c)(8) No change Require LID BMPs & pervious pavement when feasible.
Does code require or encourage permeable pavement for future
resurfacing projects? Yes OHMC 11.17.040(3) Amend code Require LID BMPs when feasible.
Placement of utilities under paved areas in the R-O-W.
Does code allow utilities to be placed under paved section of ROW? No Public Works engineering standards No change Water and sewer lines and storm facilities.
Required turnaround area.
Is min. street section necessary for safe access & emergency 
response being used? Yes OHMC 11.17.080; 21.50.070 No change Int. Fire Code also regulates.
Sidewalk widths.
What is min. sidewalk width allowed? No OHMC 11.17.110(1); 21.60.070(1)(a) No change Sidewalk flexibilities with LID.
Can sidewalk widths be reduced in areas where LID BMPs are present? No OHMC 21.50.050(6) No change Allows alternative sidewalk design w/LID.
Sidewalk slope.
Does the code contain sidewalk slope direction requirements? No Street Design Standards. No change
Use of permeable pavement for sidewalks.
Is permeable pavement allowed for sidewalks? No OHMC 21.60.070(1) No change Sidewalks may be pervious concrete.
Minimum cul-de-sac radius.
What is min. cul-de-sac radius? No Fire Code min. 96' radius. No change
Can landscape island be placed in cul-de-sac? No OHMC 21.60.110(3) No change Alternative designs encouraged, sw impacts addressed.
Alternatives to cul-de-sacs.
Can hammerhead or loop roads be used instead of standard cds.? No OHMC 21.60.110(3) No change Alternative designs & less surface area encouraged.
Parking
Min. parking ratios.
What is min. parking for:
          Professional office No OHMC 19.44.100
          Shopping center No OHMC 19.44.100
          SF residence No OHMC 19.44.100
Can required parking spaces be reduced due to shared parking,
proximity to transit, car sharing, etc.? No OHMC 19.44.080 No change Code addresses joint use parking.
Max. parking ratios.
Are parking requirements set as max or median? No OHMC 19.44.105 No change Max. 250% of minimum allowed.

Notes

1/400 ft2 of gross floor area, + employee parking.
(gfa 30k+) 4 1/2 spcs/1k gfa, not to exceed 5 spcs/1k of gfa.
2/du

Topic/Sub Topic Conflict/Gap Where Addressed Steps Taken

106



WA DOE Consistency Matrix

4

Can max. spaces be specified? No OHMC 19.44.105 No change Max. 250% of minimum allowed.

Permeable paving use.
Can permeable pavement be used? No OHMC 19.44.105(2); 19.44.130(2) Amend code Added Portland cement concrete as optional material.
Can permeable pavement be incentivized for spillover? No OHMC Title 12 Amend code Title 12 will require permeable pavement in extra prkng.
Parking stall dimensions.
What is min. stall length and width? No change
Can standard stall be reduced? Yes OHMC 19.44.110(1) Amend code Reduce length to 18' w/curb or wheel stops = overhang.
Are a fixed percent assigned to compact cars? Yes OHMC 19.44.110(2) Amend code Increase % from 40% to 50% of parking lot.
Driving aisle dimensions.
Is driving aisle wider than required by fire or emergency responders?
Can one-way aisles be used in conjunction with angled parking? No OHMC 19.44.110(2) No change Code currently allows one-way drive aisles.
Off-street parking regulations.
Can mechanisms be integrated to reduce parking requirements? No OHMC 19.46.140(6)(c) No change Allows 10% space reduction for native veg. preserve.
Can structured or tuck-under parking be incentivized? ?
Design Guidelines & Standards
Trees and bioretention.
Are specific tree species included in design guidelines? No OHMC 21.60.160 No change Code identifies acceptable tree species list.
Can flexibility be incorporated to allow alternative tree species that
are compatible with bioretention & can meet aesthetic requirements? Yes OHMC 21.60.160 Will review Will need to provide flexibility.
Continuous curb requirements.
Are conventional curb & gutter required? No Street Design Standards No change Standard curb & gutter identified.
Can curb and gutter requirements be eliminated or adjusted? No Public Works engineering standards No change Adjustments allowed by City Engineer.
Curb radii.
Are min. curb radii requirements specified? Street Design Standards
Can curb radii requirements be reduced to provide additional space No
for LID BMPs? Only at intersectionsOHMC 21.60.080 No change Flexibility provided in code.
Stormwater Management & Maintenance
Maintenance provisions.
Does adopted stormwater manual outline maintenance? Yes OHMC 12.30.310 Amend code City adopts 2012 DOE manual as amended in Dec 2014.
Inspection access (covenants, easements).
Does code allow access to inspect, maintain, and repair facility if a 
private property owner fails to maintain? Yes OHMC 12.30.525(12)(b) Amend code Inspect & monitor all BMPs as needed.
Enforcement.
Does code include mechanisms to ensure reimbursement for any
maintenance activities conducted? No OHMC 12.40.075(5) No change
Are public easements, maintenance covenants, or other legal Protective mechanism for native vegetation inspection 
agreements required? No OHMC 19.46.140(8); 12.20.070(2) No change program and authority.
Are incentives provided for private property owners that meet their
maintenance requirements? Yes Not addressed No change Incentives are not proposed at this time.
Subdivision and Planned Unit Development (PUD)
Individual open space requirements.
Does a min. % of open space have to be managed in a natural
condition? No OHMC 19.31.120(1) No change < 50% of PRD open space must be passive/natural.

Topic/Sub Topic Conflict/Gap Where Addressed Steps Taken Notes

At 90o parking stall standards is 9' x 20'

107



WA DOE Consistency Matrix

5

Can the open space requirement be increased? Yes Not specifically defined.

Are open space areas required to be consolidated into larger units? Yes Not addressed No change Natural corridors are supported when possible.

Passive vs. active open space requirements.
Are allowable & prohibited uses for open space defined? No OHMC 19.31.110; 19.31.120 No change Uses are defined.
Can LID BMPs count towards passive open space requirements? Yes OHMC 19.31.120 Amend code Passive areas may include native vegetation.
Are native veg. areas that integrate pervious passive recreation areas,
stormwater dispersion facilities, or restoration projects allowed? Yes OHMC 19.31.120 Amend code PRD intent to integrate natural features w/passive areas.
Opportunities for performance based designs/PUDs.
Are PUDs required for high density areas such as city centers? No OHMC 19.31 No change PRDs not required, but likely to be common with built-in

flexibilities needed for bulk & dimensional & nat. features
Are native veg. & max. impervious surface standards for PUDs and high
density dwellings specified? No OHMC 19.20 No change Max. lot & min impervious surface in R-2,3,4 R-O.
Critical Areas & Shoreline Management
Allowance of LID BMPs in critical areas/shorelines when compatible.
Are allowable or prohibited uses of buffers defined? No OHMC 20.24.030(6); 20.25.040(6) No change Wetland & fish & wildlife allowed uses in buffers.
Are LID BMPs allowed within or adjacent to critical areas/shoreline/
sensitive area/wetland buffers? No OHMC 20.24.030(6) No change LID BMPs allowed in outer 25% of buffer.
Can native veg. associated with LID BMPs be used to meet buffer
enhancement requirements? No OHMC 19.46.140(4)(e) No change Allows native veg. (25%) to meet buffer requirements.

1 OHMC = Oak Harbor Municipal Code
2 DR & G = Design Regulations & Guidelines
3 SMP = Shoreline Master Program

Topic/Sub Topic Conflict/Gap Where Addressed Steps Taken Notes

Increased open space requirement will be problematic for smaller lots looking to
utilize PRD flexibilities under OHMC 19.31.

108



LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT 
MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENT 
Revision/Refinement Summary (11/10/16) 

The following list identifies proposed changes and refinements to the document distributed at the 
joint City Council/Planning Commission workshop October 19, 2016.  

1) Chapter 11.08 (Excavations) will not be amended as part of this effort. Public Works will 
 incorporate low impact development revisions into their broader review of this Chapter. 

2) Chapter 12.20.050: added wording to require covenants and easements for maintenance 
 and inspection purposes. 

3) Chapter 12.30.525(12)(a): Wording refined. 

4) Chapter 12.30.650 was added. 

5) Chapter 12.40.030(2): revised stormwater rate wording. 

6) Chapter 17.26: corrected typo. 

7) Chapter 19.44.110: Revised table to reflect smaller parking space geometry. 

8) Chapter 20.16: Added this section to establish parameter for Oak Tree protections. 

9) Chapter 21.50.050(3)(c): Added requirement to be in conformance with manual.  

10) Chapter 21.50.050(4): Added e) to provide parking flexibility within 10-lot+ subdivisions. 

11) Chapter 19.08.222: Removed definition of “creek” due to state (WDOE & WDFW) 
 conflicts. (PC 11/9) 

109



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 1 of 76 

ORDINANCE NO. 1784 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 11, STREETS AND SIDEWALKS; TITLE 
12, STORMWATER; TITLE 17, BUILDINGS; TITLE 19, ZONING; TITLE 20, 
ENVIRONMENT; AND, TITLE 21 SUBDIVISIONS TO INCORPORATE AND 
REQUIRE LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES AND BEST 
MANAGEMENT PRACTICES, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Washington Department of Ecology has been authorized by the US 
Environmental Protection Agency to administer the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) in Washington State; and, 
 
WHEREAS, under the NPDES, a Western Washington Phase II Municipal Stormwater Permit 
(Permit) is issued authorizing the discharge of stormwater runoff from small and medium 
municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s) into the state’s surface waters (i.e., streams, 
rivers, lakes, sounds, wetlands, etc.) and groundwater as long as municipalities implement 
Permit-specified actions and activities known as Best Management Practices (BMPs) to protect 
these receiving waters; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor, as operator of a MS4s system is included in the Phase II 
Permit requirements; and, 
 
WHEREAS, under the re-issuance of the Phase II Permit issued in August 2012 (effective from 
August 1, 2013 through July 31, 2018), specific requirements are established for five Permit 
components: 

• Public Education and Outreach 
• Public Involvement and Participation 
• Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination (IDDE) 
• Controlling Runoff from New Development, Redevelopment, and Construction Sites, 

and, 
• Municipal Operations and Maintenance (O&M); and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Controlling Runoff from New Development, Redevelopment, and Construction 
Sites component requires all Phase II jurisdictions to review, revise and make effective their 
local development-related codes, rules, standards, or other enforceable documents to incorporate 
and require Low Impact Development (LID) principles and Best Management Practices as the 
preferred and commonly-used approach to site development; and, 
 
WHEREAS, LID seeks to minimize impervious surfaces, native vegetation loss, and stormwater 
runoff in all types of development situations; and, 
 
WHEREAS, all revisions and amendments to local development-related codes, rules, standards, 
or other enforceable documents must be in effect no later than December 31, 2016; and, 
 

110



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 2 of 76 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has taken the necessary steps to complete this effort by 
establishing a work program addressing the six steps to LID code integration as provided by the 
Washington Department of Ecology in their July 2014, Low Impact Development – Code Update 
and Integration Toolkit (toolkit) document; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a City Project Team was assembled (Step 1) with representation from the 
Administration, Public Works, Development Services Departments which provided oversight 
and guidance for this effort; and, 
 
WHEREAS, input was sought through a series of meetings with an Internal Stakeholder group 
(Step 1) representing building, planning, engineering, emergency services, solid waste, legal, 
stormwater, and parks; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Step 1 was further implemented through a series of meetings with an External 
Stakeholders group with representation from a local engineer, realtor, developer, builders 
association, conservation district, and school district; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the aforementioned groups were involved in discussions to understand the general 
topics, subtopics and considerations to address as identified in the toolkit (Step 2); and, 
 
WHEREAS, staff engaged in an extensive review of existing codes, rules, and standards to 
identify where the topics, subtopics, and considerations were addressed and determine where 
gaps and barriers existed (Step 3); and, 
 
WHEREAS, several areas of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) were amended to fill the 
gaps and remove barriers (Step 4); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission was presented with periodic updates 
on the progress of this project on January 26, 2016; August, 23, 2016; September 27, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor City Council was presented with periodic project updates 
on July 7, 2015 and September 12, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendment package was presented at a joint special workshop with 
the City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission and City Council on October 19, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) Determination of Non-Significance was 
issued on October 24, 2016 in conformance with OHMC Chapter 20.04; and, 
 
WHEREAS, procedural requirements have been met by requesting an expedited notice of intent 
to adopt development regulations with the Washington State Department of Commerce; and, 
 
WHEREAS, in conformance with  OHMC 18.20.270, a public hearing was held with the 
Planning Commission on October 25, 2016 with this public hearing continued to November 9, 
2016; and, 
 

111



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 3 of 76 

WHEREAS, on November 9, 2016 the Planning Commission closed the public hearing and 
forwarded a recommendation of approval to the City Council; and, 
 
WHEREAS, exercising the option under review process V (OHMC 18.20.270) the City Council 
held a public hearing on November 15, 2016 to consider this Ordinance; and, 
 
WHEREAS, nothing in this Ordinance is intended, nor shall be construed, to authorize or 
approve violation of federal or state law; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington do ordain as 
follows: 

 
Section One.  OHMC Section 11.17.040(3) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
(3) Low impact development (LID) best management practices, such as permeable surfacing alternatives and 
on-site stormwater management facilities, are encouraged  shall be required for street improvements where 
site and soil conditions make LID feasible. Permeable surfacing and LID stormwater management facilities 
shall be constructed in accordance with the LID Technical Guidance Manual for Puget Sound (January 2005  
most current edition) and the manufacturer’s recommendations. Permeable surfacing includes, but is not 
limited to: paving blocks, turf block, pervious concrete, porous asphalt, and other similar approved materials. 
Alternative surfacing methods may be approved for parking areas, emergency parking areas, private roads, 
road shoulders, bike paths, walkways, patios, driveways, and easement service roads unless site constraints 
make use of such materials detrimental to water quality. Use of permeable surfacing methods shall meet the 
imposed load requirements for fire apparatus, and shall be subject to review and approval by the Oak Harbor 
public works department (engineering division) and the fire chief. 
 
Section Two. OHMC Table 11.17-2 Required Street Improvements is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Table 11.17-2 Required Street Improvements 
  

Street Type Right-of-
Way 
Width* 

Face of Curb to Face of 
Curb Width 

Sidewalk 
Width 
Each Side 

Landscape Strip Width Each 
Side 

Bike 
Lane 
Width 
Each 
Side 

Principal 
Arterial, 4-
Lane 

97 – 105 
feet 

52 feet without bike lanes, 60 
feet with bike lanes. 
Landscaped median is 12 
feet. 

8 feet 12 feet 4 feet 

Minor Arterial, 
2-Lane 

80 feet 47 feet, with 11-foot center 
turn-lane 

5 feet 10.5 feet 5 feet 

Minor Arterial, 
Industrial 

60 feet 38 feet None 6 feet (bioswale) 4 feet 

Collector 
w/Bike Lanes 

66 feet 48 feet 5 feet 3 feet 5 feet 

Collector, 
Industrial 

50 feet 26 feet None 6 feet (bioswale) 4 feet, 
one side 

Local 
Residential, 
Narrow 

50 feet 28 feet with one parkin g lane. 
Or 28 feet including two 4-foot 
bike lanes and no parking. 

5 feet 5 feet 4 feet, 
optional 

112



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 4 of 76 

Table 11.17-2 Required Street Improvements 
  

Street Type Right-of-
Way 
Width* 

Face of Curb to Face of 
Curb Width 

Sidewalk 
Width 
Each Side 

Landscape Strip Width Each 
Side 

Bike 
Lane 
Width 
Each 
Side 

Local 
Residential, 
Wide 

60 feet 36 feet parking on both sides. 
Or 36 feet with parking on one 
side and 4-foot bike lanes on 
both sides. 

5 feet 5 feet 4 feet, 
optional 

Local LID 
Street #1 

50 feet 20 feet (two 10-foot travel 
lanes) 

5 feet 8-foot planter strip on elevated 
side. 10-foot utility corridor on 
basin side. Bioretention outside 
of right-of-way. 

None 

Local LID 
Street #2 

60 feet 28.5 feet, with one 8.5-foot 
parking parking lane on basin 
side of street 

5 feet 9.5-foot planter strip on 
elevated side. 10-foot utility 
strip on basin side. Bioretention 
outside of right-of-way. 

None 

Alley 20 feet 19 feet** None None None 

*All street types include a six-inch strip at the outside edge of the physical improvements, but within the 
right-of-way, with the exception of the “Minor Arterial, Industrial” which has a one-foot strip on the outside 
edge of right-of-way, the “Collector, Industrial” which has a four-foot strip on the outside edge of right-of-
way, and the “Local LID Street #2” which has a one-foot strip on the outside edge of right-of-way. 

**Sixteen-foot width pavement sections may be used as approved on alleys by the city engineer. 

Note: All streets include six-inch curbs not shown in the dimensions above, with the exception of alleys 
which do not have curbs. 

 
Section Three. OHMC Chapter 12.10, Storm and Surface Water Utility Code – General 
Provisions is hereby amended to add Section 12.10.025 as follows: 

 
12.10.025 Definitions. 
(1) “Administrator” means the local government official(s) authorized to make decisions in regard to Adjustments 
and Exceptions/Variances. 
 
(12) “American Public Works Association” or “APWA” means the Washington State Chapter of the American Public 
Works Association. 
 
(23) “Approval” means the proposed work or completed work conforms to this chapter in the opinion of the director. 
 
(34) “Arterial” means a road or street primarily for through traffic. A major arterial connects an interstate highway to 
cities  
and counties. A minor arterial connects major arterials to collectors. A collector connects an arterial to a 
neighborhood. A collector is not an arterial. A local access road connects individual homes to a collector.  
 
(45) “As-graded” means the extent of surface conditions on completion of grading. 
 
(56) “Basin plan” means a plan and all implementing regulations and procedures including, but not limited to, land 
use management adopted by ordinance for managing surface and storm water management facilities and features 
within individual subbasins. that assesses, evaluates, and proposes solutions to existing and potential future 
impacts to the beneficial uses of, and the physical, chemical, and biological properties of waters of the state within a 

113



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 5 of 76 

basin. Basins typically range in size from 1 to 50 square miles. A plan should include but not be limited to 
recommendations for: 
• Stormwater requirements for new development and redevelopment; 
• Capital improvement projects; 
• Land Use management through identification and protection of critical areas, comprehensive land use and 
transportation plans, zoning regulations, site development standards, and conservation areas; 
• Source control activities including public education and involvement, and business programs; 
• Other targeted stormwater programs and activities, such as maintenance, inspections and enforcement; 
• Monitoring; and 
• An implementation schedule and funding strategy.  
 
A plan that is “adopted and implemented” must have the following characteristics: 
 
• It must be adopted by legislative or regulatory action of jurisdictions with responsibilities under the plan; 
• Ordinances, regulations, programs, and procedures recommended by the plan should be in effect or on 
schedule to be in effect; and, 
• An implementation schedule and funding strategy that are in progress. 
 
(67) “Bedrock” means the more or less solid rock in place either on or beneath the surface of the earth. It may be 
soft, medium, or hard and have a smooth or irregular surface. 
 
(78) “Bench” means a relatively level step excavated into earth material on which fill is to be placed. 
 
(89) “Best management practice” or “BMP” means physical, structural, and/or managerial practices that, when used 
singly or in combination, prevent or reduce pollution of water. BMPs are listed and described in the manual.  
the schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, maintenance procedures, and structural and/or managerial 
practices, that when used singly or in combination, prevent or reduce the release of pollutants and other adverse 
impacts to waters of Washington State. 
 
(10) “Billing year” means the calendar year that bills are sent. 
 
(11) “City” means the city of Oak Harbor. 
 
(912) “Civil engineer” means a professional engineer licensed in the state of Washington in civil engineering who is 
experienced and knowledgeable in the practice of civil engineering. 
 
(103) “Civil engineering” means the application of the knowledge of the forces of nature, principles of mechanics 
and the properties of materials to the evaluation, design and construction of civil works for the beneficial uses of 
mankind. 
 
(114) “Certified erosion and sediment control lead (CESCL)” means an individual who has current certification 
through an approved erosion and sediment control training program that meets the minimum training standards 
established by the Washington State Department of Ecology (see BMP C160 of Volume II in the Storm Water 
Management Manual for Western Washington (2005)). A CESCL is knowledgeable in the principles and practices 
of erosion and sediment control. The CESCL must have the skills to assess site conditions and construction 
activities that could impact the quality of storm water and the effectiveness of erosion and sediment control 
measures used to control the quality of storm water discharges. Certification is obtained through an Ecology 
approved erosion and sediment control class. Course listings are provided online at Ecology’s website. 
 
(125) “Clearing” means the destruction and removal of vegetation by manual, mechanical, or chemical methods. 
 
(136) “Commercial agriculture” means those activities conducted on lands defined in RCW 84.34.020(2), and 
activities involved in the production of crops or livestock for commercial wholesale trade. An activity ceases to be 
considered commercial agriculture when the area on which it is conducted is proposed for conversion to a 
nonagricultural use or has lain idle for more than five years, unless the idle land is registered in a federal or state 
soils conservation program, or unless the activity is maintenance of irrigation ditches, laterals, canals, or drainage 
ditches related to an existing and ongoing agricultural activity. 
 
(147) “Compaction” means the densification, of a fill by mechanical means.  

114

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=84.34.020


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 6 of 76 

settlement, or packing of soil in such a way that permeability of the soil is reduced. Compaction effectively shifts the 
performance of a hydrologic group to a lower permeability hydrologic group. For example, a group B hydrologic soil 
can be compacted and be effectively converted to a group C hydrologic soil in the way it performs in regard to 
runoff. Compaction may also refer to the densification of a fill by mechanical means.  
 
(18) “Condominium” means the ownership of single units or apartments in a building containing two or more units or 
two or more buildings each containing one or more units with common areas and facilities as provided in 
Chapter 64.32 RCW and permitted pursuant to OHMC 21.80.025. 
 
(159) “Critical areas” means, at a minimum, areas which include wetlands, areas with a critical recharging effect on 
aquifers used for potable water, fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas, frequently flooded areas, geologically 
hazardous areas, including unstable slopes, and associated areas and ecosystems. 
 
(1620) “Design storm” means a prescribed hyetograph and total precipitation amount (for a specific duration 
recurrence frequency) used to estimate runoff for a hypothetical storm of interest or concern for the purposes of 
analyzing existing drainage, designing new drainage facilities or assessing other impacts of a proposed project on 
the flow of surface water. (A hyetograph is a graph of percentages of total precipitation for a series of time steps 
representing the total time during which the precipitation occurs.) 
 
(1721) “Detention” means the release of storm water runoff from the site at a slower rate than it is collected by the 
storm water facility system, the difference being held in temporary storage. 
 
(1822) “Detention facility” means an above or below ground facility, such as a pond or tank, that temporarily stores 
storm water runoff and subsequently releases it at a slower rate than it is collected by the drainage facility system. 
There is little or no infiltration of stored storm water. 
 
(23) “Developed parcel” means any parcel altered from the natural state by the construction, creation, or addition of  
impervious hard surfaces. 
 
(1924) “Drainage basin” means a geographic and hydrologic subunit of a water shed. 
 
(25)“Drainage service charge” and “storm water system service charge” means the fee imposed by the city upon all 
parcels of real property, except exempted properties, located within the boundaries of the city. 
 
(206) “Earth material” means any rock, natural soil or fill and/or any combination thereof. Earth material shall not be 
considered topsoil used for landscape purposes. Topsoil used for landscaped purposes shall comply with ASTM D 
5268 specifications. Engineered soil/landscape systems are also defined independently.  
 
(217) “Ecology” means the Washington State Department of Ecology. 
 
(228) “Effective impervious surface” means those impervious surfaces that are connected via sheet flow or discrete 
conveyance to a drainage system. Impervious surfaces on residential development sites are considered ineffective 
if: 

1) the runoff is dispersed through at least 100 feet of native vegetation in accordance with BMP T5.30 – 
“Full Dispersion” as described in Chapter 5 of Volume V;  
2) residential roof runoff is infiltrated in accordance with Downspout Full Infiltration Systems in BMP 5.10A 
Volume III; or  

 3) approved continuous runoff modeling methods indicate that the entire runoff file is infiltrated. 
 
(239) “Engineering geologist” means a geologist experienced and knowledgeable in engineering geology. 
 
(2430) “Engineering geology” means the application of geologic knowledge and principles in the investigation and 
evaluation of naturally occurring rock and soil for use in the design of civil works. 
 
(31) “Environmentally sensitive areas” means parcels identified pursuant to Chapter 20.12 OHMC and parcels with 
trees protected under Chapter 20.16 OHMC. 
 
(32) “Equivalent residential unit (ERU)” means a configuration of development or hard impervious surfaces 
estimated to contribute an amount of runoff to the city’s storm water drainage system which is approximately equal 

115

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=64.32
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2180.html#21.80.025
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor20/OakHarbor2012.html#20.12
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor20/OakHarbor2016.html#20.16


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 7 of 76 

to that created by the average single-family residential parcel. One ERU is equal to 3,300 square feet of impervious 
surface area or any portion thereof. 
 
(2533) “Erosion” means the wearing away of the land surface by running water, wind, ice, or other geological 
agents, including such processes as gravitational creep. Detachment and movement of soil or rock fragments by 
water, wind, ice, or gravity. those impervious surfaces that are connected via sheet flow or discrete conveyance to a 
drainage system. Impervious surfaces are considered ineffective if: 

1) the runoff is dispersed through at least one hundred feet of native vegetation in accordance with BMP 
T5.30 – “Full Dispersion” as described in Chapter 5 of Volume V; 
2) residential roof runoff is infiltrated in accordance with Downspout Full Infiltration Systems in BMP 5.10A 
Volume III; or 
3) approved continuous runoff modeling methods indicate that the entire runoff file is infiltrated. 

 
(2634) “Excavation” means the mechanical removal of earth material. 
 
(2735) “Existing site conditions” means: 
(a) For developed sites with storm water facilities that have been constructed to meet the standards in the minimum 
requirements of this chapter, “existing site conditions” shall mean the existing conditions on the site. 
(b) For developed sites that do not have storm water facilities that meet the minimum requirements, “existing site 
conditions” shall mean the conditions that existed prior to local government adoption of a storm water management 
program. If in question, the existing site conditions shall be documented by aerial photograph records or other 
appropriate means. 
 
(2836) “Experimental BMP” means a BMP that has not been tested and evaluated by the Department of Ecology in 
collaboration with local governments and technical experts. 
 
(2937) “Fill” means a deposit of earth material placed by artificial means. 
 
(308) “Forest practice” means any activity conducted on or directly pertaining to forest land and relating to growing, 
harvesting, or processing timber including, but not limited to: 
(a) Road and trail construction; 
(b) Harvesting, final and intermediate; 
(c) Precommercial thinning; 
(d) Reforestation; 
(e) Fertilization; 
(f) Prevention and suppression of diseases and insects; 
(g) Salvage of trees; 
(h) Brush control. 
 
(319) “Frequently flooded areas” means the 100-year flood plain designations of the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency and the National Flood Insurance Program or as defined by the local government. 
 
(3240) “Full stabilization” means concrete or asphalt paving; quarry spalls used as ditch lining; or the use of rolled 
erosion products, a bonded fiber matrix product, or vegetative cover in a manner that will fully prevent soil erosion. 
 
(3341) “Geologically hazardous areas” means areas that because of their susceptibility to erosion, sliding, 
earthquake or other geological events are not suited to the siting of commercial, residential or industrial 
development consistent with public health or safety concerns. 
 
(3442) “Grade” means the slope of a road, channel, or natural ground. The finished surface of a canal bed, road 
bed, top of embankment, or bottom of excavation; any surface prepared for the support of construction such as 
paving or the laying of a conduit. 
(a) “Existing grade” means the grade prior to grading. 
(b) “Rough grade” means the stage at which the grade approximately conforms to the approved plan. 
(c) “Finish grade” means the final grade of the site which conforms to the approved plan. 
 
(3543) “Gradient terrace” means an earth embankment or a ridge and channel constructed with suitable spacing 
and an acceptable grade to reduce erosion damage by intercepting surface runoff and conducting it to a stable 
outlet at a stable nonerosive velocity. 
 

116



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 8 of 76 

(3644) To “grade” means to finish the surface of a canal bed, road bed, top of embankment or bottom of 
excavation. 
 
(3745) “Ground water” means water in a saturated zone or stratum beneath the surface of land or a surface water 
body. 
 
(46) “Hard surface” means an impervious surface, a permeable pavement, or a vegetated roof. 
 
(3847) “Highway” means a main public road connecting towns and cities. 
 
(3948)  “Hydroperiod” means the seasonable occurrence of flooding and/or soil saturation; it encompasses depth, 
frequency, duration, and seasonal pattern of inundation. 
 
(4049) “Impervious surface” means a hard surface area that either prevents or retards the entry of water into the 
soil mantle as under natural conditions prior to development or a hard surface area which causes water to run off 
the surface in greater quantities or at an increased rate of flow from the flow present under natural conditions prior 
to development. Common impervious surfaces include, but are not limited to, roof tops, walkways, patios, 
driveways, parking lots or storage areas, concrete or asphalt paving, gravel roads, packed earthen materials, and 
oiled, macadam or other surfaces which similarly impede the natural infiltration of storm water. Open, uncovered 
retention/detention facilities shall not be considered as impervious surfaces for the purposes of determining whether 
the thresholds for application of minimum requirements are exceeded. Open, uncovered retention/detention 
facilities shall be considered impervious surfaces for purposes of runoff modeling.  non-vegetated surface area 
which either prevents or retards the entry of water into the soil mantle as under natural conditions prior to 
development. A non-vegetated surface area which causes water to run off the surface in greater quantities or at an 
increased rate of flow from the flow present under natural conditions prior to development. Common impervious 
surfaces include, but are not limited to, roof tops, walkways, patios, driveways, parking lots or storage areas, 
concrete or asphalt paving, gravel roads, packed earthen materials, and oiled, macadam or other surfaces which 
similarly impede the natural infiltration of stormwater. Open, uncovered retention/detention facilities shall not be 
considered as impervious surfaces for the purposes of determining whether the thresholds for application of 
minimum requirements are exceeded. Open, uncovered retention/detention facilities shall be considered impervious 
surfaces for purposes of runoff modeling. 
 
(4150) “Illicit discharge” means all non-storm water discharges to storm water drainage systems that cause or 
contribute to a violation of state water quality, sediment quality or ground water quality standards, including but not 
limited to sanitary sewer connections, industrial process water, interior floor drains, car washing and greaywater 
systems. 
 
(4251) “Interflow” means that portion of rainfall that infiltrates into the soil and moves laterally through the upper soil 
horizons until intercepted by a stream channel or until it returns to the surface, for example, in a wetland, spring or 
seep. Interflow is a function of the soil system depth, permeability, and water-holding capacity. 
 
(4352) “Land-disturbing activity” means any activity that results in movement of earth, or a change in the existing 
soil cover (both vegetative and nonvegetative) and/or the existing soil topography. Land-disturbing activities 
include, but are not limited to, clearing, grading, filling and excavation. Compaction that is associated with 
stabilization of structures and road construction shall also be considered a land-disturbing activity. Vegetation 
maintenance practices, including landscape maintenance and gardening, are not considered land-disturbing 
activity. Stormwater facility maintenance is not considered land disturbing activity if conducted according to 
established standards and procedures. 
 
(4453) “Large parcel erosion and sediment control plan” or “large parcel ESC plan” means a plan to implement 
BMPs to control pollution generated during land-disturbing activity. 
 
(4554) “Low impact development” means a storm water and land use management and land development strategy 
that strives to mimic pre-disturbance hydrologic processes of infiltration, filtration, storage, evaporation and 
transpiration by emphasizing conservation, use of on-site natural features, site planning, and distributed stormwater 
management practices that are integrated into a project design. applied at the parcel and subdivision scale that 
emphasizes conservation and use of on-site natural features integrated with engineered, small-scale hydrologic 
controls to more closely mimic pre-development hydrologic functions.  
 

117



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 9 of 76 

(4655) “Maintenance” means activities or repairs conducted on currently serviceable structures, facilities, and 
equipment that involves no expansion or use beyond that previously existing and results in no significant adverse 
hydrologic impact. It includes those usual activities taken to prevent a decline, lapse, or cessation in the use of 
structures and systems. Those usual activities may include replacement of dysfunctional facilities, including cases 
where environmental permits require replacing an existing structure with a different type structure, as long as the 
functioning characteristics of the original structure are not changed. 
 
(4756) “Mitigation” means, in the following order of preference: 
(a) Avoiding the impact altogether by not taking a certain action or part of an action; 
(b) Minimizing impacts by limiting the degree or magnitude of the action and its implementation, by using 
appropriate technology, or by taking affirmative steps to avoid or reduce impacts; 
(c) Rectifying the impact by repairing, rehabilitating or restoring the affected environment; 
(d) Reducing or eliminating the impact over time by preservation and maintenance operations during the life of the 
action; and 
(e) Compensation for the impact by replacing, enhancing, or providing substitute resources or environments. 
 
(57) “NPDES” means the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System under the federal Clean Water Act, the 
national program for issuing, modifying, revoking, and reissuing, terminating, monitoring, and enforcing permits, and 
imposing and enforcing pretreatment requirements, under Sections 307, 402, 318, and 405 of the federal Clean 
Water Act, for the discharge of pollutants to surface waters of the state from point sources. These permits are 
referred to as NPDES permits and in Washington State are administered by the Department of Ecology.  
 
(58) “NPDES Phase II municipal storm water permit” means the permit issued by the Department of Ecology 
pursuant to the federal Clean Water Act whose requirements are applicable to the city. 
 
(4859) “Native vegetation” means vegetation comprised of plant species, other than noxious weeds, that are 
indigenous to the coastal region of the Pacific Northwest and which reasonably could have been expected to 
naturally occur on the site. Examples include trees such as Douglas fir, western hemlock, western red cedar, alder, 
big-leaf maple, and vine maple; shrubs such as willow, elderberry, salmonberry, and salal; and herbaceous plants 
such as sword fern, foam flower, and fireweed. 
 
(4960) “Natural location” means the location of those channels, swales, and other nonmanmade conveyance 
systems as defined by the first documented topographic contours existing for the subject property, either from maps 
or photographs, or such other means as appropriate. In the case of outwash soils with relatively flat terrain, no 
natural location of surface discharge may exist. 
 
(5061) “New development” means the following activities: land-disturbing activities, including class IV – general 
forest practices that are conversions from timber land to other uses, structural development, including construction, 
or installation or expansion of a building or other structure; creation of hard impervious surfaces; Class IV general 
forest practices that are conversions from timber land to other uses; and subdivision and short subdivision of land 
and binding site plans as defined in RCW 58.17.020. Projects meeting the definition of redevelopment shall be 
considered new development All other forest practices and commercial agriculture are not considered new 
development. 
 
(62) “Non-single-family residential properties or parcels” means properties or parcels which contain two or more 
residential dwelling units and institutional, commercial or industrial properties. 
 
(63) “Parcel” means the smallest separately segregated unit or plot of land having an identified owner(s), 
boundaries, and area as defined by the Island County assessor and recorded in the Island County assessor real 
property file or in the Island County assessor maps. 
 
(5164) “Permanent storm water quality control (PSQC) plan” means a plan which includes permanent BMPs for the 
control of pollution from storm water runoff after construction and/or land-disturbing activity has been completed. 
For small sites, this requirement is met by implementing a small parcel erosion and sediment control plan. 
Guidance on preparing a PSQC plan is contained in the manual. 
 
(5265) “Person” means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, organization, cooperative, public or 
municipal corporation, agency of the state, or local government unit, however designated. 
 

118

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=58.17.020


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 10 of 76 

(5366) “Pollution” means contamination or other alteration of the physical, chemical, or biological properties of 
waters of the state, including change in temperature, taste, color, turbidity, or odor of the waters, or such discharge 
of any liquid, gaseous, solid, radioactive or other substance into any waters of the state as will or is likely to create a 
nuisance or render such waters harmful, detrimental or injurious to the public health, safety or welfare, or to 
domestic, commercial, industrial, agricultural, recreational, or other legitimate beneficial uses, or to livestock, wild 
animals, birds, fish or other aquatic life. 
 
(5467) “Pollution-generating impervious surface (PGIS)” means those impervious surfaces considered to be a 
significant source of pollutants in storm water runoff. Such surfaces include those which are subject to: vehicular 
use; industrial activities (as further defined in the glossary); or storage of erodible or leachable materials, wastes, or 
chemicals, and which receive direct rainfall or the run-on or blow-in of rainfall, . Erodible or leachable materials, 
wastes, or chemicals are those substances which, when exposed to rainfall, measurably alter the physical or 
chemical characteristics of the rainfall runoff. Examples include erodible soils that are stockpiled, uncovered 
process wastes, manure, fertilizers, oily substances, ashes, kiln dust, and garbage dumpster leakage. mMetal roofs 
are also considered to be PGIS unless they are coated with an inert, nonleachable material (e.g., baked-on enamel 
coating) , or roofs that are subject to venting significant amounts of dusts, mists, or fumes from manufacturing, 
commercial, or other indoor activities. 
A surface, whether paved or not, shall be considered subject to vehicular use if it is regularly used by motor 
vehicles. The following are considered regularly used surfaces: roads, unvegetated road shoulders, bike lanes 
within the traveled lane of a roadway, driveways, parking lots, unfenced fire lanes, vehicular equipment storage 
yards, and airport runways. 
The following are not considered regularly used surfaces: paved bicycle pathways separated from and not subject 
to drainage from roads for motor vehicles, fenced fire lanes, and infrequently used maintenance access roads. 
 
(5568) “Pollution-generating pervious surfaces (PGPS)” means any non-impervious surface subject to vehicular 
use, industrial activities (as further defined in this glossary); or storage of erodible or leachable materials, wastes or 
chemicals, and that receive direct rainfall or run-on or blow-in of rainfall, use of pesticides and fertilizers, or loss of 
soil. Typical PGPS include permeable pavement subject to vehicular use, lawns and landscaped areas including: 
golf courses, parks, cemeteries, and sports fields (natural and artificial turf). use of pesticides and fertilizers or loss 
of soil. Typical PGPS include lawns, landscaped areas, golf courses, parks, cemeteries, and sports fields.  
 
(5669) “Predeveloped condition” means the native vegetation and soils that existed at a site prior to the influence of 
Euro-American settlement. The predeveloped condition shall be assumed to be a forested land cover unless 
reasonable, historic information is provided that indicates the site was prairie prior to settlement. 
 
(5770) “Project site” means that portion of a property, properties, or right-of-way subject to land-disturbing activities, 
new hard impervious surfaces, or replaced hard impervious surfaces. 
 
(71) “Property owner of record” shall be the person or persons recorded by the Island County assessor to be the 
owner(s) of property and to whom property tax statements are directed.  
 
(72) “Public benefit nonprofit corporation” means a corporation that complies with the provisions of the Washington 
Nonprofit Corporation Act, Chapter 24.03 RCW, and that holds a current tax exempt status as provided 
under 26 USC 501(c)(3) or is not required to apply for its tax exempt status under 26 USC 501(c)(3) as defined in 
RCW 24.03.490. No property may be designated as a public benefit nonprofit corporation until proof of public 
benefit nonprofit corporation status pursuant to RCW 24.03.490 is filed with the administrator. 
 
(73) “Rate category” means the classification of properties, based upon the estimated percentage of impervious 
surface on the parcel, for purposes of establishing drainage service charges. 
 
(5874) “Redevelopment” means, on an already substantially developed (i.e., has 35 percent or more of existing 
hard impervious surface coverage) site, the creation or addition of hard impervious surfaces, the expansion of a 
building footprint or addition or replacement of a structure, structural development including construction, 
installation or expansion of a building or other structure, and/or replacement of hard impervious surface that is not 
part of a routine maintenance activity, and land-disturbing activities associated with structural or impervious 
redevelopment. 
 
(5975) “Regional retention/detention system” means a storm water quantity control structure designed to correct 
existing excess surface water runoff problems of a basin or subbasin. The area downstream has been previously 
identified as having existing or predicated significant and regional flooding and/or erosion problems. This term is 

119

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=24.03
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=24.03.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=24.03.490


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 11 of 76 

also used when a detention facility is used to detain storm water runoff from a number of new developments 
different businesses, developments or areas within a catchment. 
 
(6076) “Replaced hard impervious surface” means, for structures, the removal and replacement of hard any exterior 
impervious surfaces down to or foundation. For other hard impervious surfaces, the removal down to bare soil or 
base course and replacement. 
 
(77) “Residence” means a building or structure, or portion thereof, designed to be used as a place of abode for 
human beings and not used for any other purpose. The term “residence” includes the terms “residential,” 
“residential unit,” and “dwelling unit” as referring to the type or intended use of a building or structure.  
 
(6178) “Retention/detention facility (R/D)” means a type of drainage facility designed either to hold water for a 
considerable length of time and then release it by evaporation, plant transpiration, and/or infiltration into the ground; 
or to hold surface and storm water runoff for a short period of time and then release it to the surface and storm 
water management system. 
 
(79) “Single-family residential property or parcel” means any property or parcel which contains one residential 
dwelling unit. 
 
(6280) “Site” means the area defined by the legal boundaries of a parcel or parcels of land that is (are) subject to 
new development or redevelopment. For road projects, the length of the project site and the right-of-way 
boundaries define the site. 
 
(6381) “Slope” means the degree of deviation of a surface from the horizontal, measured as a numerical ratio, 
percent, or in degrees. Expressed as a ratio, the first number is the horizontal distance (run) and the second is the 
vertical distance (rise), as 2:1. A 2:1 slope is a 50 percent slope. Expressed in degrees, the slope is the angle from 
the horizontal plane, with a 90-degree slope being vertical (maximum) and 45 degrees being a 1:1 or 100 percent 
slope. 
 
(6482) “Small parcel erosion and sediment control plan” or “small parcel ESC plan” means a plan for small sites to 
implement temporary BMPs to control pollution generated during the construction phase only, primarily erosion and 
sediment. Guidance for preparing a small parcel ESC plan is contained in the manual. 
 
(6583) “Soil” means the unconsolidated mineral and organic material on the immediate surface of the earth that 
serves as a natural medium for the growth of land plants. 
 
(6684) “Source control BMP” means a structure or operation that is intended to prevent pollutants from coming into 
contact with storm water through physical separation of areas or careful management of activities that are sources 
of pollutants. This manual separates source control BMPs into two types. Structural source control BMPs are 
physical, structural, or mechanical devices, or facilities that are intended to prevent pollutants from entering storm 
water. Operational BMPs are nonstructural practices that prevent or reduce pollutants from entering storm water. 
 
(6785) “Storm water” means that portion of precipitation that does not naturally percolate into the ground or 
evaporate, but flows via overland flow, interflow, channels or pipes and other features of a stormwater drainage 
system into a defined surface waterbody channel, or a constructed infiltration facility. 
 
(6886) “Storm water drainage system” means constructed and natural features which function together as a system 
to collect, convey, channel, hold, inhibit, retain, detain, infiltrate, divert, treat or filter storm water. the entire system 
of flood protection and storm and surface water drainage facilities owned or leased by the city or over which the city 
has right of use for the movement and control of storm and surface water runoff, including both naturally occurring 
and manmade facilities. The definition also includes the conveyance or storage of storm and surface waters that 
flow through, under, or over lands, land forms, watercourses, sloughs, streams, ponds, rivers, lakes and wetlands, 
beginning at a point where storm or surface waters enter the city system and ending at a point where such storm or 
surface waters exit from the city’s storm and surface water system, and in width to the full extent of inundation 
caused by storm or flood conditions. 
Throughout this chapter, the term “drainage facilities” is used to refer to the storm and surface water drainage 
facilities.  
 
(6987) “Storm water facility” means a constructed component of a storm water drainage system, designed or 
constructed to perform a particular function, or multiple functions. Storm water facilities include, but are not limited 

120



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 12 of 76 

to, pipes, swales, ditches, culverts, street gutters, detention ponds basins, retention ponds basins, constructed 
wetlands, infiltration devices, catch basins, oil/water separators, and biofiltration swales sediment basins and 
modular pavement. 
 
(7088) “Storm Water Management Manual” or “manual” means the Washington State Department of Ecology 
201205 Storm Water Management Manual for Western Washington, as amended in December 2014. 
 
(7189) “Storm water site plan” means the comprehensive report containing all of the technical information and 
analysis necessary for regulatory agencies to evaluate a proposed new development or redevelopment project for 
compliance with stormwater requirements. Contents of the Stormwater Site Plan will vary with the type and size of 
the project, and individual site characteristics. It includes a Construction Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 
(Construction SWPPP) and a Permanent Stormwater Control Plan (PSC Plan). Guidance on preparing a 
Stormwater Site Plan is contained in Chapter 3 of Volume I. a plan which includes an erosion and sediment control 
(ESC) plan and/or a permanent storm water quality control plan (PSQCP). For small sites, this plan is the 
equivalent of a small parcel erosion and sediment control plan. Guidance on preparing a storm water site plan is 
contained in the manual.  
 
(7290) “Threshold discharge area” means an on-site area draining to a single natural discharge location or multiple 
natural discharge locations that combine within one-quarter mile downstream (as determined by the shortest 
flowpath). 
 
(7391) “Toe of slope” means a point or line of slope in an excavation or cut where the lower surface changes to 
horizontal or meets the existing ground slope. 
 
(7492) “Top of slope” means a point or line on the upper surface of a slope where it changes to horizontal or meets 
the original surface. 
 
(7593) “Treatment BMP” means a BMP that is intended to remove pollutants from storm water. A few examples of 
treatment BMPs are wetponds detention ponds, oil/water separators, biofiltration swales and constructed wetlands. 
 
(94) “Undeveloped parcel” means any parcel which has not been altered from its natural state by the construction, 
creation or addition of any impervious hard surfaces. 
 
(7695) “Unstable slopes” means those sloping areas of land which have in the past exhibited, are currently 
exhibiting, or will likely in the future exhibit mass movement of earth. 
 
(96) “Utility” means the city of Oak Harbor storm water drainage system utility. In this title the term “storm water” is 
often used to refer to both storm and surface water. (Ord. 1602 § 2, 2011; Ord. 1582 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1128 § 1, 
1998; Ord. 1123, 1998; Ord. 1084 § 2, 1997). 
 
(7797) “Water body” means surface waters including rivers, streams, lakes, marine waters, estuaries, and wetlands. 
 
(7898) “Watershed” means a geographic region within which water drains into a particular river, stream, or body of 
water as identified and numbered by the state of Washington water resource inventory areas (WRIAs) as defined in 
Chapter 173-500 WAC. 
 
(7999) “Wetlands” means those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or ground water at a frequency 
and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation 
typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs, and 
similar areas. Wetlands do not include those artificial wetlands intentionally created from nonwetland sites 
including, but not limited to, irrigation and drainage ditches, grass-lined swales, canals, detention facilities, 
wastewater treatment facilities, farm ponds, and landscape amenities or those wetlands created after July 1, 1990, 
that were unintentionally created as a result of the construction of a road, street, or highway. Wetlands may include 
those artificial wetlands intentionally created from nonwetland areas to mitigate the conversion of wetlands. 
 
(80100) “Vegetation” means all organic plant life growing on the surface of the earth. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; 
Ord. 1537 § 2, 2008; Ord.1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Four. OHMC Section 12.10.115(1) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

121

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1602.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-500
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 13 of 76 

 
12.10.115 Facility ownership. 
(1) The utility owns all elements of the storm drainage system in public right-of-way and in easements or tracts 
dedicated to and accepted by the utility, except to the extent private ownership and/or maintenance 
responsibility is indicated as a matter of record. 
 
Section Five. OHMC Section 12.20.020 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.20.020 Definitions. 
For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply: 
 
(1) “Best management practice” or “BMP” means  physical, structural, and/or managerial practices, that when used 
singly or in combination, prevent or reduce pollution of water. BMPs are listed and described in the storm water 
management manual. 
 
(2) “Person” means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, organization, cooperative, public or 
municipal corporation, agency of the state, or local government unit, however designated. 
 
(3) “Storm water” means that portion of precipitation that does not naturally percolate into the ground or evaporate, 
but flows via overland flow, interflow, channels or pipes into a defined surface water channel or a constructed 
infiltration facility. 
 
(4) “Storm water drainage system” means constructed and natural features which function together as a system to 
collect, convey, channel, hold, inhibit, retain, detain, infiltrate, divert, treat or filter storm water. 
 
(5) “Storm water facility” means a constructed component of a storm water drainage system, designed or 
constructed to perform a particular function, or multiple functions. Storm water facilities include, but are not limited 
to, pipes, swales, ditches, culverts, street gutters, detention basins, retention basins, constructed wetlands, 
infiltration devices, catch basins, oil/water separators, sediment basins and modular pavement. Storm water 
facilities are described in the manual. 
 
(6) “Storm water management manual” or “manual” means the Washington State Department of Ecology’s 2005 
Storm Water Management Manual for Western Washington. (Ord. 1537 § 11, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 1, 1997; Ord. 998, 
1995). 
 
Section Six. OHMC Section 12.20.050 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.20.050 General requirements. 
(1) Maintenance Required. All storm water facilities shall be maintained in accordance with this chapter and the 
storm water management manual and the Oak Harbor storm water plan. Systematic, routine preventative 
maintenance is preferred. 
 
(2) Minimum Standards. The following are the minimum standards for the maintenance of storm water facilities: 

(a) Covenants and easements for maintenance and inspection purposes are required for privately owned or 
maintained facilities/BMPs. 
(ab) Facilities shall be inspected annually and cleared of debris, sediment and vegetation when they affect the 
functioning and/or design capacity of the facility. 
(bc) Grassy swales and other biofilters shall be inspected monthly and mowed or replanted as necessary. 
Clippings are to be removed and properly disposed of. 
(cd) Maintenance shall be in accordance with the approved operations and maintenance program for the 
stormwater facility and/or the manual. The City has authority to require a stricter operations and maintenance 
program. 
(c)(e) Where lack of maintenance is causing or contributing to a water quality problem, immediate action shall 
be taken to correct the problem. Within one month, the public works superintendent or his or her designee shall 
revisit the facility to assure that it is being maintained. 

 
(3) Disposal of Waste from Maintenance Activities. Disposal of waste from maintenance activities shall be 
conducted in accordance with the minimum Functional Standards for Solid Waste Handling, Chapter 173-304 WAC, 

122

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-304


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 14 of 76 

guidelines for disposal of waste materials from storm water maintenance activities, and where appropriate, the 
Dangerous Waste Regulations, Chapter 173-303WAC. 
 
(4) Compliance. Property owners are responsible for the maintenance, operation or repair of storm water drainage 
systems and BMPs. Property owners shall maintain, operate and repair these facilities in compliance with the 
requirements of this chapter and the storm water management manual. (Ord. 1537 § 11, 2008; Ord. 1166 § 6, 
1999; Ord. 1086 § 1, 1997; Ord. 998, 1995). 
 
Section Seven. OHMC Section 12.20.055 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.20.055 Operation and Maintenance Manual Required 
(1) Projects which are required to be in conformance with Minimum Requirements #1 through #5, as identified in 
OHMC 12.30.510 and 12.30.520, shall submit an operation and maintenance manual in accordance with City 
standards as established by the city engineer.  

 
(2) Projects which are required to be in conformance with Minimum Requirements #1 through #9, as identified 
in the manual, shall submit an operation and maintenance manual in accordance with City standards as 
established by the city engineer. 
 
Section Eight. OHMC Section 12.20.070(3) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
(3) Inspection Schedule. The administrator shall establish a master inspection and maintenance schedule to 
inspect appropriate storm water facilities that are not owned by the city. Inspections shall be no less frequent 
than annual. Critical sStorm water facilities/BMP’s may require a more frequent inspection schedule. 
 
Section Nine. OHMC Section 12.30.010(4) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
(4) Storm water quality and quantity controls can be achieved when land is developed or redeveloped by 
implementing appropriate best management practices (BMPs) including low impact development which 
emphasizes: 

(a) minimization of impervious surfaces; 
(b) reduction in native vegetation loss; 
(c) use of on-site natural features; and 
(d) integration of stormwater management into project design.   

 
Section Ten. OHMC Section 12.30.020 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.30.020 Need. 
The city finds that this chapter is necessary in order to: 
 
(1) Minimize or eliminate water quality degradation; 
 
(2) Prevent erosion and sedimentation in creeks, streams, ponds, lakes and other water bodies; 
 
(3) Protect property owners adjacent to existing and developing lands from increased runoff rates which could 
cause erosion of abutting property; 
 
(4) Preserve and enhance the suitability of waters for contact recreation, fishing, and other beneficial uses; 
 
(5) Preserve and enhance the aesthetic quality of the water; 
 
(6) Promote sound development policies which respect and preserve city surface water, ground water and 
sediment; 
 
(7) Ensure the safety of city roads and rights-of-way; 
 
(8) Decrease storm water-related damage to public and private property from existing and future runoff; 

123

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-303


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 15 of 76 

 
(9) Provide groundwater recharge; 
 
(910) Protect the health, safety and welfare of the inhabitants of Oak Harbor; and 
 
(101) Comply with the requirements and minimum standards contained in the NPDES Phase II municipal storm 
water permit for control of storm water for review and permitting of all development, and related activities, 
inside city limits. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 2, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Eleven. OHMC Section 12.30.040 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
12.30.040 Definitions.  
For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply: 
 
(1) “American Public Works Association” or “APWA” means the Washington State Chapter of the American Public 
Works Association. 
 
(2) “Approval” means the proposed work or completed work conforms to this chapter in the opinion of the director. 
 
(3) “Arterial” means a road or street primarily for through traffic. A major arterial connects an interstate highway to 
cities  
and counties. A minor arterial connects major arterials to collectors. A collector connects an arterial to a 
neighborhood. A collector is not an arterial. A local access road connects individual homes to a collector.  
 
(4) “As-graded” means the extent of surface conditions on completion of grading. 
 
(5) “Basin plan” means a plan and all implementing regulations and procedures including, but not limited to, land 
use management adopted by ordinance for managing surface and storm water management facilities and features 
within individual subbasins.  
 
(6) “Bedrock” means the more or less solid rock in place either on or beneath the surface of the earth. It may be 
soft, medium, or hard and have a smooth or irregular surface. 
 
(7) “Bench” means a relatively level step excavated into earth material on which fill is to be placed. 
 
(8) “Best management practice” or “BMP” means physical, structural, and/or managerial practices that, when used 
singly or in combination, prevent or reduce pollution of water. BMPs are listed and described in the manual.  
 
 
(9) “Civil engineer” means a professional engineer licensed in the state of Washington in civil engineering who is 
experienced and knowledgeable in the practice of civil engineering. 
 
(10) “Civil engineering” means the application of the knowledge of the forces of nature, principles of mechanics and 
the properties of materials to the evaluation, design and construction of civil works for the beneficial uses of 
mankind. 
 
(11) “Certified erosion and sediment control lead (CESCL)” means an individual who has current certification 
through an approved erosion and sediment control training program that meets the minimum training standards 
established by the Washington State Department of Ecology (see BMP C160 of in the Storm Water Management 
Manual for Western Washington (2005)). A CESCL is knowledgeable in the principles and practices of erosion and 
sediment control. The CESCL must have the skills to assess site conditions and construction activities that could 
impact the quality of storm water and the effectiveness of erosion and sediment control measures used to control 
the quality of storm water discharges.  
 
(12) “Clearing” means the destruction and removal of vegetation by manual, mechanical, or chemical methods. 
 
(13) “Commercial agriculture” means those activities conducted on lands defined in RCW 84.34.020(2), and 
activities involved in the production of crops or livestock for wholesale trade. An activity ceases to be considered 
commercial agriculture when the area on which it is conducted is proposed for conversion to a nonagricultural use 

124

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=84.34.020


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 16 of 76 

or has lain idle for more than five years, unless the idle land is registered in a federal or state soils conservation 
program, or unless the activity is maintenance of irrigation ditches, laterals, canals, or drainage ditches related to an 
existing and ongoing agricultural activity. 
 
(14) “Compaction” means densification of a fill by mechanical means.  
 
(15) “Critical areas” means, at a minimum, areas which include wetlands, areas with a critical recharging effect on 
aquifers used for potable water, fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas, frequently flooded areas, geologically 
hazardous areas, including unstable slopes, and associated areas and ecosystems. 
 
(16) “Design storm” means a prescribed hyetograph and total precipitation amount (for a specific duration 
recurrence frequency) used to estimate runoff for a hypothetical storm of interest or concern for the purposes of 
analyzing existing drainage, designing new drainage facilities or assessing other impacts of a proposed project on 
the flow of surface water. (A hyetograph is a graph of percentages of total precipitation for a series of time steps 
representing the total time during which the precipitation occurs.) 
 
(17) “Detention” means the release of storm water runoff from the site at a slower rate than it is collected by the 
storm water facility system, the difference being held in temporary storage. 
 
(18) “Detention facility” means an above or below ground facility, such as a pond or tank, that temporarily stores 
storm water runoff and subsequently releases it at a slower rate than it is collected by the drainage facility system. 
There is little or no infiltration of stored storm water. 
 
(19) “Drainage basin” means a geographic and hydrologic subunit of a water shed. 
 
(20) “Earth material” means any rock, natural soil or fill and/or any combination thereof.  
 
(21) “Ecology” means the Washington State Department of Ecology. 
 
(22) “Effective impervious surface” means those impervious surfaces that are connected via sheet flow or discrete 
conveyance to a drainage system. Impervious surfaces on residential development sites are considered ineffective 
if the runoff is dispersed through at least 100 feet of native vegetation.  
 
(23) “Engineering geologist” means a geologist experienced and knowledgeable in engineering geology. 
 
(24) “Engineering geology” means the application of geologic knowledge and principles in the investigation and 
evaluation of naturally occurring rock and soil for use in the design of civil works. 
 
(25) “Erosion” means the wearing away of the land surface by running water, wind, ice, or other geological agents, 
including such processes as gravitational creep. Detachment and movement of soil or rock fragments by water, 
wind, ice, or gravity. 
 
(26) “Excavation” means the mechanical removal of earth material. 
 
(27) “Existing site conditions” means: 
(a) For developed sites with storm water facilities that have been constructed to meet the standards in the minimum 
requirements of this chapter, “existing site conditions” shall mean the existing conditions on the site. 
(b) For developed sites that do not have storm water facilities that meet the minimum requirements, “existing site 
conditions” shall mean the conditions that existed prior to local government adoption of a storm water management 
program. If in question, the existing site conditions shall be documented by aerial photograph records or other 
appropriate means. 
 
(28) “Experimental BMP” means a BMP that has not been tested and evaluated by the Department of Ecology in 
collaboration with local governments and technical experts. 
 
(29) “Fill” means a deposit of earth material placed by artificial means. 
(30) “Forest practice” means any activity conducted on or directly pertaining to forest land and relating to growing, 
harvesting, or processing timber including, but not limited to: 
(a) Road and trail construction; 
(b) Harvesting, final and intermediate; 

125



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 17 of 76 

(c) Precommercial thinning; 
(d) Reforestation; 
(e) Fertilization; 
(f) Prevention and suppression of diseases and insects; 
(g) Salvage of trees; 
(h) Brush control. 
 
(31) “Frequently flooded areas” means the 100-year flood plain designations of the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency and the National Flood Insurance Program. 
 
(32) “Full stabilization” means concrete or asphalt paving; quarry spalls used as ditch lining; or the use of rolled 
erosion products, a bonded fiber matrix product, or vegetative cover in a manner that will fully prevent soil erosion. 
 
(33) “Geologically hazardous areas” means areas that because of their susceptibility to erosion, sliding, earthquake 
or other geological events are not suited to the siting of commercial, residential or industrial development consistent 
with public health or safety concerns. 
 
(34) “Grade” means the slope of a road, channel, or natural ground. The finished surface of a canal bed, road bed, 
top of embankment, or bottom of excavation; any surface prepared for the support of construction such as paving or 
the laying of a conduit. 
(a) “Existing grade” means the grade prior to grading. 
(b) “Rough grade” means the stage at which the grade approximately conforms to the approved plan. 
(c) “Finish grade” means the final grade of the site which conforms to the approved plan. 
 
(35) “Gradient terrace” means an earth embankment or a ridge and channel constructed with suitable spacing and 
an acceptable grade to reduce erosion damage by intercepting surface runoff and conducting it to a stable outlet at 
a stable nonerosive velocity. 
 
(36) To “grade” means to finish the surface of a canal bed, road bed, top of embankment or bottom of excavation. 
 
(37) “Ground water” means water in a saturated zone or stratum beneath the surface of land or a surface water 
body. 
 
(38) “Highway” means a main public road connecting towns and cities. 
 
(39) “Hydroperiod” means the seasonable occurrence of flooding and/or soil saturation; it encompasses depth, 
frequency, duration, and seasonal pattern of inundation. 
 
(40) “Impervious surface” means a hard surface area that either prevents or retards the entry of water into the soil 
mantle as under natural conditions prior to development or a hard surface area which causes water to run off the 
surface in greater quantities or at an increased rate of flow from the flow present under natural conditions prior to 
development. Common impervious surfaces include, but are not limited to, roof tops, walkways, patios, driveways, 
parking lots or storage areas, concrete or asphalt paving, gravel roads, packed earthen materials, and oiled, 
macadam or other surfaces which similarly impede the natural infiltration of storm water. Open, uncovered 
retention/detention facilities shall not be considered as impervious surfaces for the purposes of determining whether 
the thresholds for application of minimum requirements are exceeded. Open, uncovered retention/detention 
facilities shall be considered impervious surfaces for purposes of runoff modeling.   
 
(41) “Illicit discharge” means all non-storm water discharges to storm water drainage systems that cause or 
contribute to a violation of state water quality, sediment quality or ground water quality standards, including but not 
limited to sanitary sewer connections, industrial process water, interior floor drains, car washing and greaywater 
systems. 
 
(42) “Interflow” means that portion of rainfall that infiltrates into the soil and moves laterally through the upper soil 
horizons until intercepted by a stream channel or until it returns to the surface, for example, in a wetland, spring or 
seep.  
 
(43) “Land-disturbing activity” means any activity that results in movement of earth, or a change in the existing soil 
cover (both vegetative and nonvegetative) and/or the existing soil topography. Land-disturbing activities include, but 
are not limited to, clearing, grading, filling and excavation. Compaction that is associated with stabilization of 

126



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 18 of 76 

structures and road construction shall also be considered a land-disturbing activity. Vegetation maintenance 
practices 
are not considered land-disturbing activity.  
 
(44) “Large parcel erosion and sediment control plan” or “large parcel ESC plan” means a plan to implement BMPs 
to control pollution generated during land-disturbing activity. 
 
(45) “Low impact development” means a storm water management and land development strategy applied at the 
parcel and subdivision scale that emphasizes conservation and use of on-site natural features integrated with 
engineered, small-scale hydrologic controls to more closely mimic pre-development hydrologic functions.  
 
(46) “Maintenance” means activities or repairs conducted on currently serviceable structures, facilities, and 
equipment that involves no expansion or use beyond that previously existing and results in no significant adverse 
hydrologic impact. It includes those usual activities taken to prevent a decline, lapse, or cessation in the use of 
structures and systems. Those usual activities may include replacement of dysfunctional facilities, including cases 
where environmental permits require replacing an existing structure with a different type structure, as long as the 
functioning characteristics of the original structure are not changed. 
 
(47) “Mitigation” means, in the following order of preference: 
(a) Avoiding the impact altogether by not taking a certain action or part of an action; 
(b) Minimizing impacts by limiting the degree or magnitude of the action and its implementation, by using 
appropriate technology, or by taking affirmative steps to avoid or reduce impacts; 
(c) Rectifying the impact by repairing, rehabilitating or restoring the affected environment; 
(d) Reducing or eliminating the impact over time by preservation and maintenance operations during the life of the 
action; and 
(e) Compensation for the impact by replacing, enhancing, or providing substitute resources or environments. 
 
(48) “Native vegetation” means vegetation comprised of plant species, other than noxious weeds, that are 
indigenous to the coastal region of the Pacific Northwest and which reasonably could have been expected to 
naturally occur on the site. Examples include trees such as Douglas fir, western hemlock, western red cedar, alder, 
big-leaf maple, and vine maple; shrubs such as willow, elderberry, salmonberry, and salal; and herbaceous plants 
such as sword fern, foam flower, and fireweed. 
 
(49) “Natural location” means the location of those channels, swales, and other nonmanmade conveyance systems 
as defined by the first documented topographic contours existing for the subject property, either from maps or 
photographs, or such other means as appropriate.  
 
(50) “New development” means the following activities: land-disturbing activities, structural development, including 
construction, installation or expansion of a building or other structure; creation of impervious surfaces; Class IV 
general forest practices that are conversions from timber land to other uses; and subdivision and short subdivision 
of land and binding site plans as defined in RCW58.17.020. All other forest practices and commercial agriculture 
are not considered new development. 
 
(51) “Permanent storm water quality control (PSQC) plan” means a plan which includes permanent BMPs for the 
control of pollution from storm water runoff after construction and/or land-disturbing activity has been completed. 
For small sites, this requirement is met by implementing a small parcel erosion and sediment control plan. 
Guidance on preparing a PSQC plan is contained in the manual. 
 
(52) “Person” means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, organization, cooperative, public or 
municipal corporation, agency of the state, or local government unit, however designated. 
 
(53) “Pollution” means contamination or other alteration of the physical, chemical, or biological properties of waters 
of the state, including change in temperature, taste, color, turbidity, or odor of the waters, or such discharge of any 
liquid, gaseous, solid, radioactive or other substance into any waters of the state as will or is likely to create a 
nuisance or render such waters harmful, detrimental or injurious to the public health, safety or welfare, or to 
domestic, commercial, industrial, agricultural, recreational, or other legitimate beneficial uses, or to livestock, wild 
animals, birds, fish or other aquatic life. 
 
(54) “Pollution-generating impervious surface (PGIS)” means those impervious surfaces considered to be a 
significant source of pollutants in storm water runoff. Such surfaces include those which are subject to: vehicular 

127

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=58.17.020


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 19 of 76 

use; industrial activities (as further defined in the glossary); or storage of erodible or leachable materials, wastes, or 
chemicals, and which receive direct rainfall or the run-on or blow-in of rainfall, . Erodible or leachable materials, 
wastes, or chemicals are those substances which, when exposed to rainfall, measurably alter the physical or 
chemical characteristics of the rainfall runoff. Examples include erodible soils that are stockpiled, uncovered 
process wastes, manure, fertilizers, oily substances, ashes, kiln dust, and garbage dumpster leakage. Metal roofs 
are also considered to be PGIS unless they are coated with an inert, nonleachable material (e.g., baked-on enamel 
coating). 
 
A surface, whether paved or not, shall be considered subject to vehicular use if it is regularly used by motor 
vehicles. The following are considered regularly used surfaces: roads, unvegetated road shoulders, bike lanes 
within the traveled lane of a roadway, driveways, parking lots, unfenced fire lanes, vehicular equipment storage 
yards, and airport runways. 
The following are not considered regularly used surfaces: paved bicycle pathways separated from and not subject 
to drainage from roads for motor vehicles, fenced fire lanes, and infrequently used maintenance access roads. 
 
(55) “Pollution-generating pervious surfaces (PGPS)” means any non-impervious surface subject to use of 
pesticides and fertilizers or loss of soil. Typical PGPS include lawns, landscaped areas, golf courses, parks, 
cemeteries, and sports fields.  
 
(56) “Predeveloped condition” means the native vegetation and soils that existed at a site prior to the influence of 
Euro-American settlement. The predeveloped condition shall be assumed to be a forested land cover unless 
reasonable, historic information is provided that indicates the site was prairie prior to settlement. 
 
(57) “Project site” means that portion of a property, properties, or right-of-way subject to land-disturbing activities, 
new impervious surfaces, or replaced impervious surfaces. 
 
(58) “Redevelopment” means, on an already substantially developed (i.e., has 35 percent or more of existing 
impervious surface coverage) site, the creation or addition of impervious surfaces, tructural development including 
construction, installation or expansion of a building or other structure, and/or replacement of impervious surface that 
is not part of a routine maintenance activity, and land-disturbing activities associated with structural or impervious 
redevelopment. 
 
(59) “Regional retention/detention system” means a storm water quantity control structure designed to correct 
existing excess surface water runoff problems of a basin or subbasin. The area downstream has been previously 
identified as having existing or predicated significant and regional flooding and/or erosion problems. This term is 
also used when a detention facility is used to detain storm water runoff from a number of different businesses, 
developments or areas within a catchment. 
 
(60) “Replaced impervious surface” means, for structures, the removal and replacement of any exterior impervious 
surfaces or foundation. For other impervious surfaces, the removal down to bare soil or base course and 
replacement. 
 
(61) “Retention/detention facility (R/D)” means a type of drainage facility designed either to hold water for a 
considerable length of time and then release it by evaporation, plant transpiration, and/or infiltration into the ground; 
or to hold surface and storm water runoff for a short period of time and then release it to the surface and storm 
water management system. 
 
(62) “Site” means the area defined by the legal boundaries of a parcel or parcels of land that is (are) subject to new 
development or redevelopment. For road projects, the length of the project site and the right-of-way boundaries 
define the site. 
 
(63) “Slope” means the degree of deviation of a surface from the horizontal, measured as a numerical ratio, 
percent, or in degrees. Expressed as a ratio, the first number is the horizontal distance (run) and the second is the 
vertical distance (rise), as 2:1. A 2:1 slope is a 50 percent slope. Expressed in degrees, the slope is the angle from 
the horizontal plane, with a 90-degree slope being vertical (maximum) and 45 degrees being a 1:1 or 100 percent 
slope. 
 
(64) “Small parcel erosion and sediment control plan” or “small parcel ESC plan” means a plan for small sites to 
implement temporary BMPs to control pollution generated during the construction phase only, primarily erosion and 
sediment. Guidance for preparing a small parcel ESC plan is contained in the manual. 

128



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 20 of 76 

 
(65) “Soil” means the unconsolidated mineral and organic material on the immediate surface of the earth that 
serves as a natural medium for the growth of land plants. 
 
(66) “Source control BMP” means a structure or operation that is intended to prevent pollutants from coming into 
contact with storm water through physical separation of areas or careful management of activities that are sources 
of pollutants. This manual separates source control BMPs into two types. Structural source control BMPs are 
physical, structural, or mechanical devices, or facilities that are intended to prevent pollutants from entering storm 
water. Operational BMPs are nonstructural practices that prevent or reduce pollutants from entering storm water. 
 
(67) “Storm water” means that portion of precipitation that does not naturally percolate into the ground or evaporate, 
but flows via overland flow, interflow, channels or pipes into a defined surface water channel, or a constructed 
infiltration facility. 
 
(68) “Storm water drainage system” means constructed and natural features which function together as a system to 
collect, convey, channel, hold, inhibit, retain, detain, infiltrate, divert, treat or filter storm water. 
 
(69) “Storm water facility” means a constructed component of a storm water drainage system, designed or 
constructed to perform a particular function, or multiple functions. Storm water facilities include, but are not limited 
to, pipes, swales, ditches, culverts, street gutters, detention basins, retention basins, constructed wetlands, 
infiltration devices, catch basins, oil/water separators, sediment basins and modular pavement. 
 
(70) “Storm Water Management Manual” or “manual” means the Washington State Department of Ecology 2005 
Storm Water Management Manual for Western Washington. 
 
(71) “Storm water site plan” means a plan which includes an erosion and sediment control (ESC) plan and/or a 
permanent storm water quality control plan (PSQCP). For small sites, this plan is the equivalent of a small parcel 
erosion and sediment control plan. Guidance on preparing a storm water site plan is contained in the manual.  
 
(72) “Threshold discharge area” means an on-site area draining to a single natural discharge location or multiple 
natural discharge locations that combine within one-quarter mile downstream (as determined by the shortest 
flowpath). 
 
(73) “Toe of slope” means a point or line of slope in an excavation or cut where the lower surface changes to 
horizontal or meets the existing ground slope. 
 
(74) “Top of slope” means a point or line on the upper surface of a slope where it changes to horizontal or meets 
the original surface. 
 
(75) “Treatment BMP” means a BMP that is intended to remove pollutants from storm water. A few examples of 
treatment BMPs are detention ponds, oil/water separators, biofiltration swales and constructed wetlands. 
 
(76) “Unstable slopes” means those sloping areas of land which have in the past exhibited, are currently exhibiting, 
or will likely in the future exhibit mass movement of earth. 
 
(77) “Water body” means surface waters including rivers, streams, lakes, marine waters, estuaries, and wetlands. 
(78) “Watershed” means a geographic region within which water drains into a particular river, stream, or body of 
water as identified and numbered by the state of Washington water resource inventory areas (WRIAs) as defined in 
Chapter 173-500 WAC. 
 
(79) “Wetlands” means those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or ground water at a frequency and 
duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation typically 
adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar areas. 
Wetlands do not include those artificial wetlands intentionally created from nonwetland sites including, but not 
limited to, irrigation and drainage ditches, grass-lined swales, canals, detention facilities, wastewater treatment 
facilities, farm ponds, and landscape amenities or those wetlands created after July 1, 1990, that were 
unintentionally created as a result of the construction of a road, street, or highway. Wetlands may include those 
artificial wetlands intentionally created from nonwetland areas to mitigate the conversion of wetlands. 
 

129

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-500


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 21 of 76 

(80) “Vegetation” means all organic plant life growing on the surface of the earth. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; 
Ord. 1537 § 2, 2008; Ord.1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Twelve. OHMC Section 12.30.210 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.30.210 Regulated activities. 
Consistent with the 9 minimum requirements as identified in Chapter 2, Volume I of the manual contained in this 
chapter, the director shall approve or disapprove the following activities, unless exempted in OHMC 12.30.220: 
(1) New Development. 

(a) Land disturbing activities, including Class IV – general forest practices that are conversions from timber land 
to other uses; 
(b) Structural development, including construction, or installation or expansion of a building or other structure; 
(c) Creation or of replacement of impervious hard surfaces; 
(d) Class IV general forest practices that are conversions from timber land to other uses; 
(e) Subdivision, short subdivision and binding site plans, as defined and applied in RCW 58.17.020. 

 
(2) Redevelopment. On an already substantially developed site (i.e. has 35% or more of existing hard surface 
coverage), the creation or addition of hard impervious surfaces, the expansion of a building footprint or addition 
or replacement of a structure, structural development including construction, installation or expansion of a 
building or other structure, land-disturbing activity, and/or replacement of hard impervious surface that is not 
part of a routine maintenance activity, and land-disturbing activities associated with structural or impervious 
redevelopment. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 4, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Thirteen. OHMC Section 12.30.220 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.30.220 Exemptions. 
(1) Commercial agriculture, and forest practices involving working the land for production are generally exempt. 
However, the conversion from timberland to agriculture, and the construction of impervious surfaces are not 
exempt. regulated under WAC Title 222, except for Class IV general forest practices that are conversions from 
timber land to other uses, are exempt from the provisions of this chapter. 
 
(2) The following pavement maintenance practices are exempt: Road maintenance activities, including pothole and 
square cut patching, overlaying existing asphalt or concrete pavements with asphalt or concrete without expanding 
the area of coverage, shoulder grading, reshaping/regrading drainage systems, crack sealing, resurfacing with in-
kind material (including bituminous surface treatments over existing asphalt) without expanding the road prism, 
pavement preservation activities that do not expand the road prism, and vegetation maintenance managements are 
exempt from the provisions of this chapter. 
 
The following pavement maintenance practices are not categorically exempt. The extent to which the manual 
applies is explained for each circumstance. 

• Removing and replacing a paved surface to base course or lower, or repairing the pavement base: If 
impervious surfaces are not expanded, Minimum Requirements #1 - #5 apply. 

• Extending the pavement edge without increasing the size of the road prism, or paving graveled shoulders: 
These are considered new impervious surfaces and are subject to the minimum requirements that are 
triggered when the thresholds identified for new or redevelopment projects are met. 

• Resurfacing by upgrading from dirt to gravel, asphalt, or concrete; upgrading from gravel to asphalt, or 
concrete; or upgrading from a bituminous surface treatment (“chip seal”) to asphalt or concrete: These are 
considered new impervious surfaces and are subject to the minimum requirements that are triggered when 
the thresholds identified for new or redevelopment projects are met.  

 
(3) Development undertaken by the Washington State Department of Transportation in state highway rights-of-way 
is regulated by Chapter 173-270 WAC, the Puget Sound Highway Runoff Program. Forest practices regulated 
under Title 222 WAC, except for Class IV General forest practices that are conversions from timber land to other 
uses, are exempt from the provisions of the minimum requirements. 
 

130

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor12/OakHarbor1230.html#12.30.220
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=58.17.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=222
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-270


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 22 of 76 

(4) Underground utility projects that replace the ground surface with in-kind material or materials with similar runoff 
characteristics are exempt from the provisions of this chapter except for Minimum Requirement #2, Construction 
Storm Water Pollution Prevention. 
 
All other new development and redevelopment is subject to the minimum requirements identified in the manual of 
this chapter. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord.1537 § 4, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Fourteen. OHMC Section 12.30.310 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.30.310 Stormwater Management Manual for Western Washington adopted. 
The 201205 Stormwater Manual for Western Washington, as amended in December 2014 issued by the 
Washington State Department of Ecology is hereby adopted by reference and is hereinafter referred to as “the 
manual,” a copy of which is filed with the city clerk. The director shall maintain a copy of the manual in his/her 
office. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 5, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Fifteen. OHMC Section 12.30.320 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
12.30.320 Storm water best management practices (BMPs)/Low impact development. 
(1) General. BMPs shall be used to control stormwater, pollution from storm water, and provide flow control as 
required by this Chapter. BMPs shall be used to comply with the standards in this chapter. BMPs are in the manual; 
provided, that if there is a conflict with the Oak Harbor storm water plan, the provision with the greatest 
environmental protection shall apply. 
 
(2) Experimental BMPs. The standards and specifications for BMP’s identified in the manual are not intended to 
limit any innovative or creative effort to effectively control erosion and sedimentation. Construction SWPPPs can 
contain experimental BMPs or make minor modifications to standard BMPs. However, the City must approve such 
practices before use. All experimental BMPs and modified BMPs must achieve the same or better performance 
than the BMPs listed in the manual. In those instances where appropriate BMPs are not in the manual, 
experimental BMPs should be considered. Experimental BMPs are encouraged as a means of solving problems in 
a manner not addressed by the manual in an effort to improve storm water quality technology. Experimental BMPs 
must be approved in accordance with the approval process outlined in the manual. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; 
Ord. 1537 § 5, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996).  
 
(3) Low impact development. It is the policy of the city to fully implement the requirements of the manual which 
includes technical requirements, site planning, design considerations, and low impact development stormwater 
management techniques. 
 
Section Sixteen. OHMC Section 12.30.510 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.30.510 New development. 
(1) All new development shall be required to comply with Minimum Requirement #2. 
 
(2) The following new development shall comply with Minimum Requirements #1 through #5 for the new and 
replaced hard impervious surfaces and the land disturbed: 

(a) Creates or adds Results in 2,000 square feet, or greater, of new, replaced, or new plus replaced hard 
impervious surface area; or 
(b) Has land-disturbing activity of 7,000 square feet or greater. 

 
(3) The following new development shall comply with Minimum Requirements #1 through #9 10 for the new and 
replaced hard impervious surfaces and the converted vegetation areas pervious surfaces: 

(a) Results in Creates or adds 5,000 square feet, or more, of new plus replaced hard impervious surface area; 
or 
(b) Converts three-quarters of an acre, or more, of native vegetation to lawn or landscaped areas; or 
(c) Converts two and one-half acres, or more, of native vegetation to pasture. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; 
Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008; Ord.1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 

131

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 23 of 76 

Section Seventeen. OHMC Section 12.30.515 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.30.515 Redevelopment. 
(1) All redevelopment shall be required to comply with Minimum Requirement #2. In addition, all redevelopment that 
exceeds certain thresholds shall be required to comply with additional minimum requirements as follows. 
 
(2) The following redevelopment shall comply with Minimum Requirements #1 through #5 for the new and replaced 
hard impervious surfaces and the land disturbed: 

(a) The new,plus replaced, or total of new plus replaced impervious hard surfaces results in is 2,000 square 
feet or more; or 
(b) Seven thousand square feet or more of land-disturbing activities. 

 
(3) The following redevelopment shall comply with Minimum Requirements #1 through #9 12 for the new hard 
impervious surfaces and converted pervious areas: 

(a) Adds 5,000 square feet or more of new hard impervious surfaces; or 
(b) Converts three-quarters of an acre, or more, of native vegetation to lawn or landscaped areas; or 
(c) Converts two and one-half acres, or more, of native vegetation to pasture. 

 
(4) If the runoff from the new impervious surfaces and converted pervious surfaces is not separated from runoff 
from other surfaces on the project site, the storm water treatment facilities must be sized for the entire flow that is 
directed to them. 

 
(54) The director may allow the minimum requirements to be met for an equivalent (flow and pollution 
characteristics) area within the same site. For public roads’ projects, the equivalent area does not have to be within 
the project limits, but must drain to the same receiving water. 
 
(65) Additional requirements for the project site 

(a) For road-related projects, runoff from the replaced and new impervious surfaces (including pavement, 
shoulders, curbs, and sidewalks) and the converted vegetated areas shall meet all the minimum requirements if 
the new hard impervious surfaces total 5,000 square feet or more and total 50 percent or more of the existing 
hard impervious surfaces within the project limits. The project limits shall be defined by the length of the project 
and the width of the right-of-way. 
 
(7b) Other types of redevelopment projects shall comply with all the minimum requirements #1 through #9 for 
the new and replaced hard impervious surfaces and the converted vegetated areas if the total of new plus 
replaced hard impervious surfaces is 5,000 square feet or more, and the valuation of proposed improvements, 
including interior improvements, exceeds 50 percent of the assessed value of the existing site improvements. 
(Ord.1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 

 
(c) The City may exempt or institute a stop-loss provision for redevelopment projects from compliance with 
Minimum Requirements #5 On-site Stormwater Management, Minimum Requirement #6 Runoff Treatment, 
Minimum Requirement #7 Flow Control, and/or Minimum Requirement #8 Wetlands Protection as applied to 
the replaced hard surfaces if the City has adopted a plan and a schedule that fulfills those requirements in 
regional facilities. 
 
(d) The City may grant a variance/exception to the application of the flow control requirements to replaced 
impervious surfaces if such application imposes a severe economic hardship. 

 
Section Eighteen. OHMC Section 12.30.525 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.30.525 Minimum Requirement #2 – Construction storm water pollution prevention 
(SWPP). 
All new development and redevelopment projects are responsible for preventing erosion and discharge of sediment 
and other pollutants into receiving waters. All new development and redevelopment shall comply with Construction 
SWPP Elements #1 through #12 below. 

 

132

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 24 of 76 

Projects in which result in the new, replaced, or new plus replaced impervious surfaces total 2,000 square feet of 
new plus replaced hard surface area, or more, or disturb 7,000 square feet or more of land must prepare a 
construction storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) as part of the storm water site plan. 
 
Projects that result in add or replace less than 2,000 square feet of new plus replaced hard surface area, or disturb 
less than 7,000 square feet of land are not required to prepare a construction SWPPP, but must consider all of the 
12 3 elements of construction storm water pollution prevention and develop controls for all elements that pertain to 
the project site. 

 
 

General Requirements 
The SWPPP shall include a narrative and drawings. All BMPs shall be clearly referenced in the narrative and 
marked on the drawings. The SWPPP narrative shall include documentation to explain and justify the pollution 
prevention decisions made for the project. Sediment and erosion control BMPs shall be consistent with the BMPs 
contained in Chapters 3 and 4 of Volume II of the manual, and/or other equivalent BMPs contained in technical 
manuals approved by Ecology. Each of the 123 elements must be considered and included in the construction 
SWPPP unless site conditions render the element unnecessary and the exemption from that element is clearly 
justified in the narrative of the SWPPP. 
 
Projects that add or replace less than 2,000 square feet of impervious surface or disturb less than 7,000 square feet 
of land are not required to prepare a construction SWPPP, but must consider all of the 12 elements of construction 
storm water pollution prevention and develop controls for all elements that pertain to the project site. 
 
Clearing and grading activities for developments shall be permitted only if conducted pursuant to an approved site 
development plan (e.g., subdivision approval) that establishes permitted areas of clearing, grading, cutting, and 
filling. These permitted clearing and grading areas and any other areas required to preserve critical or sensitive 
areas, buffers, native growth protection easements, or tree retention areas shall be delineated on the site plans and 
the development site. 
 
The SWPPP shall be implemented beginning with initial land disturbance and until final stabilization. Sediment and 
Erosion control BMPs shall be consistent with the BMPs contained in Chapters 3 and 4 of Volume II of the manual. 
 
Seasonal Work Limitations - From October 1 through April 30, clearing, grading, and other soil disturbing activities 
shall only be permitted if shown to the satisfaction of the city engineer that silt-laden runoff will be prevented from 
leaving the site through a combination of the following: 

 
(1) Site conditions including existing vegetative coverage, slope, soil type and proximity to receiving waters. 
 
(2) Limitations on activities and the extent of disturbed areas. 
 
(3) Proposed erosion and sediment control measures. 

 
The following activities are exempt from the seasonal clearing and grading limitations: 
 
(1) Routine maintenance and necessary repair of erosion and sediment control BMPs. 
 
(2) Routine maintenance of public facilities or existing utility structures that do not expose the soil or result in the 
removal of the vegetative cover to soil. 
 
(3) Activities where there is one hundred percent infiltration of surface water runoff within the site in approved and 
installed erosion and sediment control facilities.  

 
Project Requirements – Construction SWPPP Elements 
 
(1) Element #1: Preserve Vegetation/Mark Clearing Limits. 

(a) Prior to beginning land-disturbing activities, including clearing and grading, all clearing limits, sensitive areas 
and their buffers, and trees that are to be preserved within the construction area shall be clearly marked, both 
in the field and on the plans, to prevent damage and off-site impacts. 
 
(b) Plastic, metal, or stake wire fence may be used to mark the clearing limits. 

133



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 25 of 76 

 
(cb) Retain tThe duff layer, native top soil, and natural vegetation shall be retained in an undisturbed state to 
the maximum extent practicable. If it is not practicable to retain the duff layer in place, it should be stockpiled on 
site, covered to prevent erosion, and replaced immediately upon completion of the ground-disturbing activities. 

 
(2) Element #2: Establish Construction Access. 

(a) Limit cConstruction vehicle access and exit shall be limited to one route, if possible, or two for linear 
projects such as roadways where more than one access is necessary for large equipment maneuvering. 

 
(b) Access points shall be stabilized with a pad of quarry spalls, or crushed rock, or other equivalent BMPs, 
prior to traffic leaving the construction site to minimize the tracking of sediment onto public roads. 
 
(c) Wheel wash or tire baths should be located on site if the stabilized construction entrance is not effective in 
preventing sediment from being tracked onto public roads. 
 
(d) If sediment is tracked off site, public roads shall be cleaned thoroughly at the end of each day, or more 
frequently during wet weather, if necessary, to prevent sediment from entering waters of the state. Sediment 
shall be removed from roads by shoveling or pickup sweeping and shall be transported to a controlled sediment 
disposal area. Street washing will be allowed only after sediment is removed in this manner. 
 
(e) Street wash wastewater shall be controlled by pumping back on site, or otherwise be prevented from 
discharging into systems tributary to state surface waters. 

 
(3) Element #3: Control Flow Rates. 

(a) Properties and waterways downstream from development sites shall be protected from erosion due to 
increases in the volume, velocity, and peak volumetric flow rate of storm water runoff from the project site, as 
required by local plan approval authority. 
 
(b) Downstream analysis is necessary if changes in flows could impair or alter conveyance systems, stream 
banks, bed sediment or aquatic habitat. 
 
(c) Where necessary to comply with the bullet above, construct storm water retention or detention facilities as 
one of the first steps in grading. Assure that detention facilities function properly before constructing site 
improvements (e.g., impervious surfaces) Minimum Requirement #7, storm water retention/detention facilities 
shall be constructed as one of the first steps in grading. Detention facilities shall be functional prior to 
construction of site improvements (e.g., impervious surfaces). 
 
(d) The director may require pond designs that provide additional or different storm water flow control if 
necessary to address local conditions or to protect properties and waterways downstream from erosion due to 
increases in the volume, velocity, and peak flow rate of storm water runoff from the project site. 

 
(ec) If permanent infiltration ponds are used for flow control during construction, these facilities should be 
protected from siltation during the construction phase. 

 
(4) Element #4: Install Sediment Controls. 

(a) Prior to leaving a construction site, or prior to discharge to an infiltration facility, storm water runoff from 
disturbed areas shall pass through a sediment pond or other appropriate sediment removal BMP. Runoff from 
fully stabilized areas may be discharged without a sediment removal BMP, but must meet the flow control 
performance standard of Element #3. The director shall inspect and approve areas stabilized by means other 
than pavement or quarry spalls. Design, install, and maintain effective erosion controls and sediment controls 
to minimize the discharge of pollutants. 
 
(b) Construct sediment control BMPs (sSediment ponds, traps, vegetated buffer strips, sediment barriers or 
filters, etc.) dikes, and other BMPs intended to trap sediment on-site shall be constructed as one of the first 
steps in grading. These BMPs shall be functional before other land-disturbing activities take place. 
 
(c) Minimize sediment discharges from the site. The design, installation and maintenance of erosion and 
sediment controls must address factors such as the amount, frequency, intensity and duration of precipitation, 
the nature of resulting stormwater runoff, and soil characteristics, including the range of soil particle sizes 

134



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 26 of 76 

expected to be present on the site. Earthen structures such as dams, dikes, and diversions shall be seeded 
and mulched according to the timing indicated in Element #5. 
 
(d) Direct stormwater runoff from disturbed areas through a sediment pond or other appropriate sediment 
removal BMP, before the runoff leaves a construction site or before discharge to an infiltration facility. Runoff 
from fully stabilized areas may be discharged without a sediment removal BMP, but must meet the flow control 
performance standard in Element #3(a). 

 
(de) Locate BMPs intended to trap sediment on-site must be located in a manner to avoid interference with the 
movement of juvenile salmonids attempting to enter off-channel areas or drainages, often during nonstorm 
events, in response to rain event changes in stream elevation or wetted area. 
 
(f) Where feasible, design outlet structures that withdraw impounded stormwater from the surface to avoid 
discharging sediment that is still suspended lower in the water column. 

 
(5) Element #5: Stabilize Soils. 

(a) All exposed and unworked soils shall be stabilized by application of effective BMPs that prevent erosion 
protect the soil from the erosive forces of raindrop impact and flowing water, and wind erosion. Applicable 
BMPs include, but are not limited to: temporary and permanent seeding, sodding, mulching, plastic covering, 
erosion control fabrics and matting, soil application of polyacrylamide (PAM), the early application of gravel 
base early on areas to be paved, and dust control. 
 
(b) Control stormwater volume and velocity within the site to minimize soil erosion. From October 1st through 
April 30th, no soils shall remain exposed and unworked for more than two days. From May 1st to September 
30th, no soils shall remain exposed and unworked for more than seven days. This condition applies to all soils 
on site, whether at final grade or not. These time limits may be adjusted by the local permitting authority if it can 
be shown that the average time between storm events justifies a different standard. 
 
(c) Control stormwater discharges, including both peak flow rates and total stormwater volume, to minimize 
erosion at outlets and to minimize downstream channel and stream bank erosion. Soils shall be stabilized at 
the end of the shift before a holiday or weekend if needed based on the weather forecast. 
 
(d) Soils must not remain exposed and unworked for more than the time periods set forth below to prevent 
erosion:  • During the dry season (May 1 - Sept. 30): 7 days  
 • During the wet season (October 1 - April 30): 2 days  
Applicable practices include, but are not limited to, temporary and permanent seeding, sodding, mulching, 
plastic covering, soil application of polyacrylamide (PAM), the early application of gravel base on areas to be 
paved, and dust control. 
 
(e) Stabilize soils at the end of the shift before a holiday or weekend if needed based on the weather forecast. 
Soil stabilization measures selected should be appropriate for the time of year, site conditions, estimated 
duration of use, and potential water quality impacts that stabilization agents may have on downstream waters 
or ground water. 
 
(f) Soil stockpiles must be stabilized from erosion, protected with sediment trapping measures, and, when 
possible, be located away from storm drain inlets, waterways and drainage channels. 
 
(g) Minimize the amount of soil exposed during construction activity, the disturbance of steep slopes, and 
minimize soil compaction and, unless infeasible, preserve topsoil. Linear construction activities, including right-
of-way and easement clearing, roadway development, pipelines, and trenching for utilities, shall be conducted 
to meet the soil stabilization requirement. Contractors shall install the bedding materials, roadbeds, structures, 
pipelines, or utilities and restabilize the disturbed soils so that: 

(i) From October 1st through April 30th, no soils shall remain exposed and unworked for more than two 
days; and 
(ii) From May 1st to September 30th, no soils shall remain exposed and unworked for more than seven 
days. 

 
(6) Element #6: Protect Slopes. 

(a) Design and construct cut-and-fill slopes in a manner to minimize erosion. Applicable practices include, but 
are not limited to, reducing continuous length of slope with terracing and diversions, reducing slope steepness, 

135



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 27 of 76 

and roughening slope surfaces (for example, track walking).  Cut and fill slopes shall be designed and 
constructed in a manner that will minimize erosion. 
 
(b) Divert off-site stormwater (run-on) or ground water away from slopes and disturbed areas with interceptor 
dikes, pipes and/or swales. Off-site stormwater should be managed separately from stormwater generated on 
the site. Consider soil type and its potential for erosion. 
 
(c) Reduce slope runoff velocities by reducing the continuous length of slope with terracing and diversions, 
reduce slope steepness, and roughen slope surface. 
 
(d) Off-site storm water (run-on) shall be diverted away from slopes and disturbed areas with interceptor dikes 
and/or swales. Off-site storm water should be managed separately from storm water generated on the site. 
 
(e) At the top of slopes, collect drainage in pipe slope drains or protected channels to prevent erosion. 
Temporary pipe slope drains shall handle the peak volumetric flow rate calculated using a 10-minute time step 
from a Type 1A, from a 10-year, 24-hour frequency storm for the event assuming a Type 1A rainfall distribution 
to the developed condition. Alternatively, the 10-year and 25-year, one-hour flow rates predicted indicated by 
an approved continuous runoff model, increased by a factor of 1.6, may be used. The hydrologic analysis shall 
use the existing land cover condition for predicting flow rates from tributary areas outside the project limits. For 
tributary areas on the project site, the analysis shall use the temporary or permanent project land cover 
condition, whichever will produce the highest flow rates. If using the Western Washington Hydrology Model to 
predict flows, bare soil areas should be modeled as landscaped area. 
 
(f) Provide drainage to remove ground water intersecting the slope surface of exposed soil areas. 
 
(f)  (g) Excavated material shall be placed on the uphill side of trenches, consistent with safety and space 
considerations. 
 
(g) (h) Check dams shall be placed at regular intervals within constructed channels that are cut down a slope. 
 
(i) Stabilize soils on slopes, as specified in Element #5. 

 
(7) Element #7: Protect Drain Inlets. 

(a) All storm drain inlets made operable during construction shall be protected so that storm water runoff shall 
not enter the conveyance system without first being filtered or treated to remove sediment. 
 
(b) All approach roads shall be kept clean. 
 
(b) (c) Inlets should be inspected weekly at a minimum and daily during storm events. Inlet protection devices 
should be cleaned or removed and replaced when sediment has filled one-third of the available storage (unless 
a different standard is specified by the product manufacturer). 

 
(8) Element #8: Stabilize Channels and Outlets. 

(a) Design, construct, and stabilize all on-site conveyance channels to prevent erosion from the following 
expected peak flows:  
 Channels must handle the peak volumetric flow rate calculated using a 10-minute time step from a Type 
 1A, 10- year, 24-hour frequency storm for the developed condition. Alternatively, the 10-year, 1-hour flow 
 rate indicated by an approved continuous runoff model, increased by a factor of 1.6, may be used. The 
 hydrologic analysis must use the existing land cover condition for predicting flow rates from tributary areas 
 outside the project limits. For tributary areas on the project site, the analysis must use the temporary or 
 permanent project land cover condition, whichever will produce the highest flow rates. If using the Western 
 Washington Hydrology Model (WWHM) to predict flows, bare soil areas should be modeled as "landscaped 
 area. 
 
All temporary on-site conveyance channels shall be designed, constructed and stabilized to prevent erosion 
from the expected peak 10-minute velocity of flow from a Type 1A, 10-year, 24-hour frequency storm for the 
developed condition. Alternatively, the 10-year, one-hour flow rate indicated by an approved continuous runoff 
model, increased by a factor of 1.6, may be used. 
 

136



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 28 of 76 

(b) Stabilization, including armoring material, adequate to prevent erosion of outlets, adjacent stream banks, 
slopes and downstream reaches shall be provided at the outlets of all conveyance systems. 

 
(9) Element #9: Control Pollutants. 

(a) Design, install, implement and maintain effective pollution prevention measures to minimize the discharge of 
pollutants. 
 
(b) Handle and dispose of all pollutants, including waste materials and demolition debris that occur on-site in a 
manner that does not cause contamination of stormwater.All pollutants, including waste materials and 
demolition debris, that occur on site shall be handled and disposed of in a manner that does not cause 
contamination of storm water. Woody debris may be chopped and spread on site. 
 
(b) Cover, containment, and protection from vandalism shall be provided for all chemicals, liquid products, 
petroleum products, and non-inert wastes present on the site (see Chapter 173-304 WAC for the definition of 
inert waste). On-site fueling tanks shall include secondary containment. 
 
(c) Provide cover, containment, and protection from vandalism for all chemicals, liquid products, petroleum 
products, and other materials that have the potential to pose a threat to human health or the environment. On-
site fueling tanks must include secondary containment. Secondary containment means placing tanks or 
containers within an impervious structure capable of containing 110% of the volume contained in the largest 
take within the containment structure. Double-walled tanks do not require additional secondary containment. 
 
(c) (d) Conduct maintenance, fueling, and repair of heavy equipment and vehicles using spill prevention and 
control measures. Clean contaminated surfaces immediately following any spill incident. Maintenance and 
repair of heavy equipment and vehicles involving oil changes, hydraulic system drain-down, solvent and 
degreasing cleaning operations, fuel tank drain-down and removal, and other activities which may result in 
discharge or spillage of pollutants to the ground or into storm water runoff must be conducted using spill 
prevention measures, such as drip pans. Contaminated surfaces shall be cleaned immediately following any 
discharge or spill incident. Emergency repairs may be performed on site using temporary plastic placed 
beneath and, if raining, over the vehicle. 
 
(d) (e)  Wheel wash or tire bath wastewater shall be discharged to a separate on-site treatment system that 
prevents discharge to surface water, such as closed-loop recirculation or upland application, or to the sanitary 
sewer, with local sewer district approval. or to the sanitary sewer. 
 
(f) (e) Application of agricultural chemicals, including fertilizers and pesticides, shall be conducted in a manner 
and at application rates that will not result in loss of chemical to storm water runoff. Manufacturers’ 
recommendations for application rates and procedures shall be followed. 
 
(g) (f) BMPs shall be used to prevent or treat contamination of storm water runoff by pH-modifying sources. 
These sources include, but are not limited to, bulk cement, cement kiln dust, fly ash, new concrete washing and 
curing waters, waste streams generated from concrete grinding and sawing, exposed aggregate processes, 
dewatering concrete vaults, concrete pumping and mixer washout waters.  and concrete pumping and mixer 
washout waters. Storm water discharges shall not cause or contribute to a violation of the water quality 
standard for pH in the receiving water. 
 
(g) Construction sites with significant concrete work shall adjust the pH of storm water if necessary to prevent 
violations of water quality standards. Construction site operators shall obtain written approval from Ecology 
prior to using chemical treatment, other than CO2 or dry ice, to adjust pH. 
 
(h) Adjust the pH of stormwater if necessary to prevent violations of water quality standards. 
 
(i) Assure that washout of concrete trucks is performed off-site or in designated concrete washout areas only. 
Do not wash out concrete trucks onto the ground, or into storm drains, open ditches, streets, or streams. Do not 
dump excess concrete on-site, except in designated concrete washout areas. Concrete spillage or concrete 
discharge to surface waters of the State is prohibited. 
 
(j) Obtain written approval from Ecology before using chemical treatment other than CO2 or dry ice to adjust 
pH. 

 

137

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-304


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 29 of 76 

(10) Element #10: Control De-Watering. 
(a) Foundation, vault, and trench de-watering water, which has similar characteristics to storm water runoff at 
the site, shall be discharged into a controlled conveyance system prior to discharge to a sediment trap or 
sediment pond. Channels must be stabilized, as specified in Element #8. 
 
(b) Clean, nonturbid de-watering water, such as well-point ground water, can be discharged to systems 
tributary to or directly into state surface waters, as specified in Element #8, provided the de-watering flow does 
not cause erosion or flooding of receiving waters. These clean waters should not be routed through a storm 
water sediment pond. Note that “surface waters of the State” may exist on a construction site as well as off site; 
for example, a creek running through a site. 
 
(c) Highly turbid or otherwise contaminated de-watering water, such as from construction equipment operation, 
clamshell digging, concrete tremie pour, or work inside a cofferdam, shall be handled separately from storm 
water. 
 
(d) Other treatment or disposal options may include:, depending on site constraints, may include: (i) infiltration, 
(ii) transport off site in a vehicle, such as a vacuum flush truck, for legal disposal in a manner that does not 
pollute state waters, (iii) Ecology-approved on-site chemical treatment or other suitable treatment technologies, 
(iv) sanitary or combined sewer discharge with local sewer district approval, if there is no other option, or (v) 
use of a sedimentation bag that discharges to a ditch or swale with outfall to a ditch or swale for small volumes 
of localized de-watering. 

 
(11) Element #11: Maintain BMPs. 

(a) All temporary and permanent erosion and sediment control BMPs shall be maintained and repaired as 
needed to assure continued performance of their intended function. All maintenance and repair shall be 
conducted in accordance with BMP specifications. 
 
(b) All temporary erosion and sediment control BMPs shall be removed within 30 days after final site 
stabilization is achieved or after the temporary BMPs are no longer needed. Trapped sediment shall be 
removed or stabilized on site. Disturbed soil areas resulting from removal of BMPs or vegetation shall be 
permanently stabilized. 

 
(12) Element #12: Manage the Project. 

(a) Phaseing of Construction. dDevelopment projects shall be phased where feasible in order to prevent soil 
erosion and, to the maximum degree extent practicable and take into account seasonal work limitations.  
 
(b) Inspection and monitoring – Inspect, maintain and repair all BMPs as needed to assure continued 
performance of their intended function. Projects regulated under the Construction Stormwater General Permit 
must conduct site inspections and monitoring in accordance with Special Condition S4 of the Construction 
Stormwater General Permit. For construction sites one acre or larger that discharge storm water to surface 
waters of the state, a CESCL specialist shall be identified in the construction SWPPP and shall be on site or on 
call at all times. Certification may be obtained through an approved training program that meets the erosion and 
sediment control training standards established by Ecology. 
 
(c) Maintaining an updated construction SWPPP – Maintain, update, and implement the SWPPP. Whenever 
inspection and/or monitoring reveals that the BMPs identified in the construction SWPPP are inadequate, due 
to the actual discharge of or potential to discharge a significant amount of any pollutant, appropriate BMPs or 
design changes shall be implemented as soon as possible. 
 
(d) Projects that disturb one or more acres must have site inspections conducted by a Certified Erosion and 
Sediment Control Lead (CESCL). Project sites disturbing less than one acre may have a CESCL or a person 
without CESCL certification conduct inspections. By the initiation of construction, the SWPPP must identify the 
CESCL or inspector, who must be present on-site or on-call at all times. The construction SWPPP shall be 
retained on site or within reasonable access to the site. 
 
(e) The CESCL or inspector (project sites less than one acre) must have the skills to assess the:  

 • Site conditions and construction activities that could impact the quality of stormwater. 
 • Effectiveness of erosion and sediment control measures used to control the quality of stormwater 
 discharges The SWPPP shall be modified whenever there is a significant change in the design, 

138



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 30 of 76 

construction, operation, or maintenance at the construction site that has, or could have, a significant effect 
on the discharge of pollutants to waters of the state. 
 

(f) The CESCL or inspector must examine stormwater visually for the presence of suspended sediment, 
turbidity, discoloration, and oil sheen. They must evaluate the effectiveness of BMPs and determine if it is 
necessary to install, maintain, or repair BMPs to improve the quality of stormwater discharges. Based on the 
results of the inspection, construction site operators must correct the problems identified by: 

 • Reviewing the SWPPP for compliance with the 13 construction SWPPP elements and making 
 appropriate revisions within 7 days of the inspection. 
 • Immediately beginning the process of fully implementing and maintaining appropriate source control 
 and/or treatment BMPs as soon as possible, addressing the problems not later than within 10 days of the 
 inspection. If installation of necessary treatment BMPs is not feasible within 10 days, the construction site 
 operator may request an extension within the initial 10-day response period. 

• Documenting BMP implementation and maintenance in the site log book (sites larger than 1 acre). The 
SWPPP shall be modified if, during inspections or investigations conducted by the owner/operator, or the 
director, it is determined that the SWPPP is ineffective in eliminating or significantly minimizing pollutants in 
storm water discharges from the site. The SWPPP shall be modified as necessary to include additional or 
modified BMPs designed to correct problems identified. Revisions to the SWPPP shall be completed within 
seven calendar days following the inspection. 

  
(g) The CESCL or inspector must inspect all areas disturbed by construction activities, all BMPs, and all 
stormwater discharge points at least once every calendar week and within 24 hours of any discharge from the 
site. (For purposes of this condition, individual discharge events that last more than one day do not require 
daily inspections. For example, if a stormwater pond discharges continuously over the course of a week, only 
one inspection is required that week.) The CESCL or inspector may reduce the inspection frequency for 
temporary stabilized, inactive sites to once every calendar month. 

 
(13) Element #13: Protect Low Impact Development BMPs. 

(a) Protect all Bioretention and Rain Garden BMPs from sedimentation through installation and maintenance of 
erosion and sediment control BMPs on portions of the site that drain into the Bioretention and/or Rain Garden 
the  removed soils with soils meeting the design specification. 
  
(b) Prevent compacting Bioretention and rain garden BMPs by excluding construction equipment and foot 
traffic. Protect completed lawn and landscaped areas from compaction due to construction equipment. 
  
(c) Control erosion and avoid introducing sediment from surrounding land uses onto permeable pavements. Do 
not allow sediment-laden runoff onto permeable pavements or base materials. 
  
(d) Pavement fouled with sediments or no longer passing an initial infiltration test must be cleaned using 
procedures in accordance with this manual or the manufacturer’s procedures. 

  
(e) Keep all heavy equipment off existing soils under LID facilities that have been excavated to final grade to 
retain the infiltration rate of the soils. 

 
(134) Supplemental Guidelines. If a Construction SWPPP is found to be inadequate (with respect to erosion and 
sediment control requirements), then the city engineer should require that other BMPs be implemented, as 
appropriate. 
 
The city engineer may allow development of generic Construction SWPPP’s that apply to commonly conducted 
public road activities, such as road surface replacement, that trigger this minimum requirement. They may also 
develop an abbreviated SWPPP format for project sites that will disturb less than 1 acre. 
 
Clearing and grading activities for developments shall be permitted only if conducted pursuant to an approved site 
development plan (e.g., subdivision approval) that establishes permitted areas of clearing, grading, cutting, and 
filling. When establishing these permitted clearing and grading areas, consideration should be given to minimizing 
removal of existing trees and minimizing disturbance/compaction of native soils except as needed for building 
purposes. These permitted clearing and grading areas and any other areas required to preserve critical or sensitive 
areas, buffers, native growth protection easements, or tree retention areas shall be delineated on the site plans and 
the development site. 
 

139



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 31 of 76 

(14) Seasonal Work Limitations. From October 1st through April 30th, clearing, grading, and other soil-disturbing 
activities shall only be permitted if shown to the satisfaction of the director that silt-laden runoff will be prevented 
from leaving the site through a combination of the following: 

(a) Site conditions including existing vegetative coverage, slope, soil type and proximity to receiving waters; 
and 
 
(b) Limitations on activities and the extent of disturbed areas; and 
 
(c) Proposed erosion and sediment control measures. 

 
(15) Based on the information provided and/or local weather conditions, the director city engineer may expand or 
restrict the seasonal limitation on site disturbance. The director city engineer shall take enforcement action, such as 
a notice of violation, administrative order, penalty, or stop work order, under the following circumstances: 

(a) If, during the course of any construction activity or soil disturbance during the seasonal limitation period, 
sediment leaves the construction site causing a violation of the surface water quality standard; or 
 
(b) If clearing and grading limits or erosion and sediment control measures shown in the approved plan are not 
maintained. 

 
(16) The following activities are exempt from the seasonal clearing and grading limitations: 

(a) Routine maintenance and necessary repair of erosion and sediment control BMPs; 
 
(b) Routine maintenance of public facilities or existing utility structures that do not expose the soil or result in 
the removal of the vegetative cover to soil; and 
 
(c) Activities where there is 100 percent infiltration of surface water runoff within the site in approved and 
installed erosion and sediment control facilities. 

 
(1716) (a) Coordination with Utilities and Other Contractors. The primary project proponent shall evaluate, with 
input from utilities and other contractors, the storm water management requirements for the entire project, 
including the utilities, when preparing the construction SWPPP. 
(b) Inspection and Monitoring. All BMPs shall be inspected, maintained, and repaired as needed to assure 
continued performance of their intended function. Site inspections shall be conducted by a person who is 
knowledgeable in the principles and practices of erosion and sediment control. The person must have the skills 
to 

(i) assess the site conditions and construction activities that could impact the quality of storm water, and  
(ii) assess the effectiveness of erosion and sediment control measures used to control the quality of 
storm water discharges. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008; Ord. 1086§ 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 
1996). 

 
Section Nineteen. OHMC Section 12.30.527 is amended as follows: 
 
12.30.527 Minimum Requirement #3 – Source control of pollution. 
All known, available and reasonable source control BMPs shall be applied to all projects. Source control BMPs 
shall be selected, designed, and maintained according to the manual. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 7, 
2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Twenty. OHMC Section 12.30.530 is amended as follows: 
 
12.30.530 Minimum Requirement #4 – Preservation of natural drainage systems and outfalls. 
Natural drainage patterns shall be maintained, and discharges from the project site shall occur at the natural 
location, to the maximum extent practicable. The manner by which runoff is discharged from the project site must 
not cause a significant adverse impact to downstream receiving waters and down-gradient properties. All outfalls 
require energy dissipation. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Twenty-One. OHMC Section 12.30.535 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

140

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 32 of 76 

12.30.535 Minimum Requirement #5 – On-site storm water management. 
Projects shall employ on-site storm water management BMPs to infiltrate, disperse, and retain storm water 
runoff on site to the maximum extent feasible without causing flooding or erosion impacts. Roof downspout 
control BMPs, functionally equivalent to those described in the manual, and dispersion and soil quality BMPs, 
functionally equivalent to those in Chapter 5 of Volume V of the manual, shall be required to reduce the 
hydrologic disruption of developed sites. Use of low impact development practices and BMPs is encouraged 
and is consistent with the manual. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord.1044, 
1996). 
 
Section Twenty-Two. OHMC Section 12.30.540 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
12.30.540 Minimum Requirement #6 – Runoff treatment. 
(1) The following require construction of storm water treatment facilities: 

(a) Projects in which the total of effective, pollution-generating impervious surface (PGIS) is 5,000 square feet 
or more in a threshold discharge area of the project; or 
(b) Projects in which the total of pollution-generating pervious surfaces (PGPS) is three-quarters of an acre or 
more in a threshold discharge area, and from which there is a surface discharge in a natural or manmade 
conveyance system from the site. 

 
(2) Treatment-Type Thresholds. 

(a) Oil Control. Treatment to achieve oil control applies to projects that have high-use sites. High-use sites are 
those that typically generate high concentrations of oil due to high traffic turnover or the frequent transfer of oil. 
High-use sites include: 

(i) An area of a commercial or industrial site subject to an expected average daily traffic (ADT) count equal 
to or greater than 100 vehicles per 1,000 square feet of gross building area; 
(ii) An area of a commercial or industrial site subject to petroleum storage and transfer in excess of 1,500 
gallons per year, not including routinely delivered heating oil; 
(iii) An area of a commercial or industrial site subject to parking, storage or maintenance of 25 or more 
vehicles that are over 10 tons gross weight (trucks, buses, trains, heavy equipment, etc.); 
(iv) A road intersection with a measured ADT count of 25,000 vehicles or more on the main roadway and 
15,000 vehicles or more on any intersecting roadway, excluding projects proposing primarily pedestrian or 
bicycle use improvements. 

(b) Basic Treatment. Basic treatment generally applies to: 
(i) Project sites that discharge to the ground, unless: 

(A) The soil suitability criteria for infiltration treatment are met (see Chapter 3 of Volume III of the 
manual for soil suitability criteria); or 
(B) The project uses infiltration strictly for flow control, not treatment, and the discharge is within one-
quarter mile of a phosphorus-sensitive lake (use a phosphorus treatment facility), or within one-quarter 
mile of a fish-bearing stream or a lake (use an enhanced treatment facility). 

(ii) Residential projects not otherwise needing phosphorus control as designated by USEPA, Ecology, or by 
the city of Oak Harbor; and 
(iii) Project sites discharging directly to salt waters, river segments, and lakes listed in Appendix I-C of the 
manual; and 
(iv) Project sites that drain to streams that are not fish-bearing, or to waters not tributary to fish-bearing 
streams; and 
(v) Landscaped areas of industrial, commercial, and multifamily project sites, and parking lots of industrial 
and commercial project sites that do not involve pollution-generating sources (e.g., industrial activities, 
customer parking, storage of erodible or leachable material, wastes or chemicals) other than parking of 
employees’ private vehicles. For developments with a mix of land use types, the basic treatment 
requirement shall apply when the runoff from the areas subject to the basic treatment requirement 
comprise 50 percent or more of the total runoff within a threshold discharge area. 

(3) Treatment Facility Sizing – Water Quality Design Storm Volume. The volume of runoff predicted from a 24-hour 
storm with a six-month return frequency (a.k.a., six-month, 24-hour storm). Wetpool facilities are sized based upon 
the volume of runoff predicted through use of the Natural Resource Conservation Service curve number equations 
in the manual for the six-month, 24-hour storm. Alternatively, the ninety-first percentile, 24-hour runoff volume 
indicated by an approved continuous runoff model may be used. 

 
(4) Water Quality Design Flow Rate. 

141

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 33 of 76 

(a) Preceding Detention Facilities or When Detention Facilities Are Not Required. The flow rate at or below 
which 91 percent of the runoff volume, as estimated by an approved continuous runoff model, will be treated. 
Design criteria for treatment facilities are assigned to achieve the applicable performance goal at the water 
quality design flow rate (e.g., 80 percent TSS removal). 
(b) Downstream of Detention Facilities. The full two-year release rate from the detention facility. 
Alternative methods can be used if they identify volumes and flow rates that are at least equivalent. 
That portion of any development project in which the above PGIS or PGPS thresholds are not exceeded in a 
threshold discharge area shall apply on-site storm water management BMPs in accordance with Minimum 
Requirement #5. 

 
(5) Treatment Facility Selection, Design, and Maintenance. Storm water treatment facilities shall be: 

(a) Selected in accordance with the process identified in the manual; 
(b) Designed in accordance with the design criteria in the manual or the Low Impact Development Technical 
Guidance Manual for Puget Sound; and 
(c) Maintained in accordance with the maintenance schedule in the manual or the Low Impact Development 
Technical Guidance Manual for Puget Sound. 

 
(6) Additional Requirements. Direct discharge of untreated storm water from pollution-generating impervious 
surfaces to ground water is prohibited, except for the discharge achieved by infiltration or dispersion of runoff 
from residential sites through use of on-site storm water management BMPs. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; 
Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Twenty-Three. OHMC Section 12.30.545 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
 12.30.545 Minimum Requirement #7 – Flow control. 
(1) Applicability. Projects shall provide flow control to reduce the impacts of storm water runoff from impervious 
surfaces and land cover conversions. The requirements of this section apply to projects that discharge storm water 
directly, or indirectly through a conveyance system, into a fresh water, except for projects that discharge to a water 
in the manual, Appendix I-E – Flow Control-Exempt Receiving Waters, in accordance with the following restrictions: 

(a) Direct discharge to the exempt receiving water does not result in the diversion of drainage from any 
perennial stream classified as Type 1, 2, 3, or 4 in the State of Washington Interim Water Typing System, or 
Type S, F, or Np in the Permanent Water Typing System, or from any Category I, II, or III wetland; and 
(b) Flow-splitting devices or drainage BMPs are applied to route natural runoff volumes from the project site to 
any downstream Type 5 stream or Category IV wetland: 

(i) Design of flow-splitting devices or drainage BMPs will be based on continuous hydrologic modeling 
analysis. The design will assure that flows delivered to Type 5 stream reaches will approximate, but in no 
case exceed, durations ranging from 50 percent of the two-year to the 50-year peak flow; 
(ii) Flow-splitting devices or drainage BMPs that deliver flow to Category IV wetlands will also be designed 
using continuous hydrologic modeling to preserve preproject wetland hydrologic conditions unless 
specifically waived or exempted by regulatory agencies with permitting jurisdiction; and 

(c) The project site must be drained by a conveyance system that is comprised entirely of manmade 
conveyance elements (e.g., pipes, ditches, outfall protection, etc.) and extends to the ordinary high water line of 
the exempt receiving water; and 
(d) The conveyance system between the project site and the exempt receiving water shall have sufficient 
hydraulic capacity to convey discharges from future build-out conditions (under current zoning) of the site, and 
the existing condition from nonproject areas from which runoff is or will be collected; and 
(e) Any erodible elements of the manmade conveyance system must be adequately stabilized to prevent 
erosion under the conditions noted above. 

 
(2) If the discharge is to a stream that leads to a wetland, or to a wetland that has an outflow to a stream, both this 
requirement and Minimum Requirement #8 apply. 
 
(3) Thresholds. The following require construction of flow control facilities and/or land use management BMPs that 
will achieve the standard requirement for Western Washington: 

(a) Projects in which the total of effective impervious surfaces is 10,000 square feet or more in a threshold 
discharge area; or 
(b) Projects that convert three-quarters of an acre or more of native vegetation to lawn or landscape, or convert 
two and one-half acres or more of native vegetation to pasture in a threshold discharge area, and from which 
there is a surface discharge in a natural or manmade conveyance system from the site; or 

142

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 34 of 76 

(c) Projects that, through a combination of effective impervious surfaces and converted pervious surfaces, 
cause a 0.1 cubic feet per second increase in the 100-year flow frequency from a threshold discharge area as 
estimated using the Western Washington Hydrology Model or other approved model. 

 
(4) That portion of any development project in which the above thresholds are not exceeded in a threshold 
discharge area shall apply on-site storm water management BMPs in accordance with Minimum Requirement #5. 
 
(5) Standard Requirement. Storm water discharges shall match developed discharge durations to predeveloped 
durations for the range of predeveloped discharge rates from 50 percent of the two-year peak flow up to the full 50-
year peak flow. The predeveloped condition to be matched shall be a forested land cover unless: 

(a) Reasonable, historic information is provided that indicates the site was prairie prior to settlement (modeled 
as “pasture” in the Western Washington Hydrology Model); or 
(b) The drainage area of the immediate stream and all subsequent downstream basins have had at least 40 
percent total impervious area since 1985. In this case, the pre-developed condition to be matched shall be the 
existing land cover condition. Where basin-specific studies determine a stream channel to be unstable, even 
though the above criterion is met, the pre-developed condition assumption shall be the “historic” land cover 
condition, or a land cover condition commensurate with achieving a target flow regime identified by an 
approved basin study. 
This standard requirement is waived for sites that will reliably infiltrate all the runoff from impervious surfaces 
and converted pervious surfaces. 

 
(6) Engineering Analysis Modeling Requirement. Storm water runoff volumes and rates shall be determined using 
the Department of Ecology Western Washington Hydrology Model as required by the manual or an equivalent 
continuous runoff model approved for use by the director. A discrete runoff model, such as the Santa Barbara 
Urban Hydrograph, may be authorized for use by the director when all of the runoff is conveyed to an exempt water 
body without affecting a wetland, classified stream or other critical area. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008; 
Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Twenty-Four. OHMC Section 12.30.550 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
12.30.550 Minimum Requirement #8 – Wetlands protection. 
(1) Applicability. The requirements below apply only to projects whose storm water discharges into a wetland, either 
directly or indirectly through a conveyance system. These requirements must be met in addition to meeting 
Minimum Requirement #6, Runoff treatment. 
(2) Thresholds. The thresholds identified in Minimum Requirement #6, Runoff treatment, and Minimum 
Requirement #7, Flow control, shall also be applied for discharges to wetlands. 

 
(3) Standard Requirement. Discharges to wetlands shall maintain the hydrologic conditions, hydrophytic vegetation, 
and substrate characteristics necessary to support existing and designated uses. The hydrologic analysis shall use 
the existing land cover condition to determine the existing hydrologic conditions unless directed otherwise by a 
regulatory agency with jurisdiction. A wetland can be considered for hydrologic modification and/or storm water 
treatment in accordance with the guidance of the manual. 

 
(4) Additional Requirements. The standard requirement does not excuse any discharge from the obligation to apply 
whatever technology is necessary to comply with state water quality standards, Chapter 173-201A WAC, or state 
ground water standards, Chapter 173-200 WAC. Additional treatment requirements to meet those standards may 
be required by federal, state, or local governments. Storm water treatment and flow control facilities shall not be 
built within a natural vegetated buffer, except for: 

(a) Necessary conveyance systems as approved by the local government; or 
(b) As allowed in wetlands approved for hydrologic modification and/or treatment in accordance with 
Guidesheet 1B. 

 
An adopted and implemented basin plan (Minimum Requirement #9), or a total maximum daily load (TMDL, also 
known as a water clean-up plan) may be used to develop requirements for wetlands that are tailored to a specific 
basin. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord.1537 § 7, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Twenty-Five. OHMC Section 12.30.555 is hereby amended as follows: 
 

143

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-201A
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-200
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 35 of 76 

12.30.555 Minimum Requirement #9 – Basin/watershed planning. 
(1) Projects may be subject to equivalent or more stringent minimum requirements for erosion control, source 
control, treatment, and operation and maintenance, and alternative requirements for flow control and wetlands 
hydrologic control as identified in basin/watershed plans. Basin planning may be used to support alternative 
treatment, flow control, and/or wetland protection requirements to those contained in this chapter, the manual or the 
requirements of the city of Oak Harbor NPDES Phase II storm water permit. Basin planning may also be used to 
demonstrate an equivalent level of treatment, flow control, and/or wetland protection through the construction and 
use of regional storm water facilities. 

 
(2) In order for a basin plan to serve as a means of modifying the minimum requirements, the following conditions 
must be met: 

(a) The plan must be formally adopted by all jurisdictions with responsibilities under the plan; and 
(b) All ordinances or regulations called for by the plan must be in effect; and 
(c) The basin plan must be reviewed and approved by Ecology. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008; 
Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 

 
Section Twenty-Six. OHMC Section 12.30.560 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
12.30.560 Minimum Requirement #10 – Operation and maintenance. 
An operation and maintenance manual consistent with the provisions in the manual shall be provided for all 
proposed storm water facilities and BMPs. The party (or parties) responsible for maintenance and operation shall 
be identified. At private facilities, a copy of the manual shall be retained on site or within reasonable access to the 
site, and shall be transferred with the property to the new owner. A record or log of all maintenance activities shall 
be kept and be available for inspection by the city. Operation and maintenance of all public and private storm water 
facilities shall be in accordance with Chapter 12.20 OHMC. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 
2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Twenty-Seven. OHMC Section 12.30.565 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
12.30.565 Minimum Requirement #11 – Financial liability. 
Performance bonding in the amount of 112 percent of the cost to construct, or other performance surety 
acceptable to the director, may be required by the director for projects to ensure compliance with these 
standards. When required by the director, performance sureties shall be posted prior to issuance of the 
development permit. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008; Ord. 1086 § 2, 1997; Ord. 1044, 1996). 
 
Section Twenty-Eight. OHMC Section 12.30.570 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
12.30.570 Minimum Requirement #12 – Off-site analysis and mitigation. 
Development projects that discharge storm water off site shall submit an off-site analysis report that assesses the 
potential off-site water quality, erosion, slope stability, and drainage impacts associated with the project and that 
proposes appropriate mitigation of those impacts. An initial qualitative analysis shall extend downstream for the 
entire flow path from the project site to the receiving water or up to one mile, whichever is less. If a receiving water 
is within one-quarter mile, the analysis shall extend within the receiving water to one-quarter mile from the project 
site. The analysis shall extend one-quarter mile beyond any improvements proposed as mitigation. The analysis 
must extend upstream to a point where any backwater effects created by the project cease. Upon review of the 
qualitative analysis, the local director may require that a quantitative analysis be performed. 
 
The existing or potential impacts to be evaluated and mitigated shall include: conveyance system capacity 
problems, localized flooding and upland erosion impacts, including landslide hazards. (Ord. 1576 § 1, 2010; 
Ord. 1537 § 7, 2008). 
 
Section Twenty-Nine. OHMC Section 12.30.650 is hereby added to Title 12, Stormwater, and  
reads as follows: 
 
12.30.650 Additional Standards 

144

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor12/OakHarbor1220.html#12.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1086.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1044.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1576.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1537.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 36 of 76 

The city engineer may set standards for construction of private and public stormwater facilities/BMPs. Such 
standards may include criteria such as locations, access requirements, setbacks, slopes, geometry, sizes, 

delineation, the types of approved materials to be used along with the and nature of easement acceptable for 
use in locating, maintaining, and inspecting stormwater facilities/BMPs. Such standards may be in excess of 
those specified in this and other chapters of the Oak Harbor Municipal Code so long as these standards are 
consistent with good engineering practice and are needed to protect the public health, safety and welfare.   
 
Section Thirty. Section 12.40.010 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
12.40.010 Definitions. 
For purposes of this chapter, the words or phrases below shall have the following meanings: 
 
(1) “Administrator” is the person designated by the mayor to manage the utility. 
 
(2) “Billing year” means the calendar year that bills are sent. 
 
(3) “City” means the city of Oak Harbor. 
 
(4) “Condominium” means the ownership of single units or apartments in a building containing two or more units or 
two or more buildings each containing one or more units with common areas and facilities as provided in 
Chapter 64.32 RCW and permitted pursuant to OHMC 21.80.025. 
 
(5) “Developed parcel” means any parcel altered from the natural state by the construction, creation, or addition of  
impervious surfaces. 
 
(6) “Drainage service charge” and “storm water system service charge” means the fee imposed by the city upon all 
parcels of real property, except exempted properties, located within the boundaries of the city. 
 
(7) “Environmentally sensitive areas” means parcels identified pursuant to Chapter 20.12 OHMC and parcels with 
trees protected under Chapter 20.16 OHMC. 
 
(8) “Equivalent residential unit (ERU)” means a configuration of development or hard impervious surfaces estimated 
to contribute an amount of runoff to the city’s storm water drainage system which is approximately equal to that 
created by the average single-family residential parcel. One ERU is equal to 3,300 square feet of impervious 
surface area or any portion thereof. 
 
(9) “Impervious surface” or “impervious ground cover” means those hard areas which prevent or retard the entry of 
water into the soil in the manner that such water entered the soil under natural conditions pre-existent to 
development, or which cause water to run off the surface in greater quantities or at an increased rate of flow than 
that present under natural conditions pre-existent to development including, but not limited to, such surfaces as 
rooftops, asphalt or concrete paving, driveways, parking lots, walkways, patio areas, storage areas, hardpan, 
compacted surfaces, or other surfaces which similarly affect the natural infiltration or runoff patterns existing prior to 
development. 
 
(10) “NPDES” means the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System under the federal Clean Water Act, the 
national program for issuing, modifying, revoking, and reissuing, terminating, monitoring, and enforcing permits, and 
imposing and enforcing pretreatment requirements, under Sections 307, 402, 318, and 405 of the federal Clean 
Water Act, for the discharge of pollutants to surface waters of the state from point sources. These permits are 
referred to as NPDES permits and in Washington State are administered by the Department of Ecology. 
(11) “NPDES Phase II municipal storm water permit” means the permit issued by the Department of Ecology 
pursuant to the federal Clean Water Act whose requirements are applicable to the city. 
 
(12) “Non-single-family residential properties or parcels” means properties or parcels which contain two or more 
residential dwelling units and institutional, commercial or industrial properties. 
 
(13) “Parcel” means the smallest separately segregated unit or plot of land having an identified owner(s), 
boundaries, and area as defined by the Island County assessor and recorded in the Island County assessor real 
property file or in the Island County assessor maps. 
 

145

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=64.32
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2180.html#21.80.025
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor20/OakHarbor2012.html#20.12
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor20/OakHarbor2016.html#20.16


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 37 of 76 

(14) “Property owner of record” shall be the person or persons recorded by the Island County assessor to be the 
owner(s) of property and to whom property tax statements are directed. 
 
(15) “Public benefit nonprofit corporation” means a corporation that complies with the provisions of the Washington 
Nonprofit Corporation Act, Chapter 24.03 RCW, and that holds a current tax exempt status as provided 
under 26 USC 501(c)(3) or is not required to apply for its tax exempt status under 26 USC 501(c)(3) as defined in 
RCW 24.03.490. No property may be designated as a public benefit nonprofit corporation until proof of public 
benefit nonprofit corporation status pursuant to RCW 24.03.490 is filed with the administrator. 
 
(16) “Rate category” means the classification of properties, based upon the estimated percentage of impervious 
surface on the parcel, for purposes of establishing drainage service charges. 
 
(17) “Residence” means a building or structure, or portion thereof, designed to be used as a place of abode for 
human beings and not used for any other purpose. The term “residence” includes the terms “residential,” 
“residential unit,” and “dwelling unit” as referring to the type or intended use of a building or structure. 
 
(18) “Single-family residential property or parcel” means any property or parcel which contains one residential 
dwelling unit. 
 
(19) “System” or “storm water drainage system” means the entire system of flood protection and storm and surface 
water drainage facilities owned or leased by the city or over which the city has right of use for the movement and 
control of storm and surface water runoff, including both naturally occurring and manmade facilities. The definition 
also includes the conveyance or storage of storm and surface waters that flow through, under, or over lands, land 
forms, watercourses, sloughs, streams, ponds, rivers, lakes and wetlands, beginning at a point where storm or 
surface waters enter the city system and ending at a point where such storm or surface waters exit from the city’s 
storm and surface water system, and in width to the full extent of inundation caused by storm or flood conditions. 
Throughout this chapter, the term “drainage facilities” is used to refer to the storm and surface water drainage 
facilities.  
 
(20) “Undeveloped parcel” means any parcel which has not been altered from its natural state by the construction, 
creation or addition of any impervious surfaces. 
 
(21) “Utility” means the city of Oak Harbor storm water drainage system utility. In this title the term “storm 
water” is often used to refer to both storm and surface water. (Ord. 1602 § 2, 2011; Ord. 1582 § 1, 2010; Ord. 
1128 § 1, 1998; Ord. 1123, 1998; Ord. 1084 § 2, 1997). 
 
Section Thirty-One. Section 12.40.025 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
12.40.025 Criteria established. 
The council finds that the existence of hard impervious surfaces on real property within the city limits 
contributes to and burdens the city’s storm water drainage system. The council further finds that the amount of 
hard impervious surfaces, as reasonably determined for a class or parcel of property, shall be the basis for the 
imposition of a storm water system service charge. (Ord. 1602 § 2, 2011; Ord. 1582 § 1, 2010). 
 
Section Thirty-Two. Section 12.40.030(2 & 3) are hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
(2) The storm water system service charge established herein shall be based upon the contribution of increased 
storm water runoff from a parcel to the system due to hard impervious surfaces on that a parcel. Single-family 
residential parcels are grouped together in one rate category based on an estimated city-wide average contribution 
of storm water runoff from single-family residential parcels. The amount of contribution for other properties is 
measured by the estimated square footage of hard impervious surface area on the parcel. 

 
(3) Storm water system service charge rate categories shall be as follows: 

(a) Single-Family Residential Rates. The single-family residential flat charge shall be based upon the average 
parcel size and average percentage of hard impervious surfaces on single-family residential parcels in the city 
limits. The average hard impervious surface area attributable to a single-family residence shall be 3,300 square 
feet. 
 

146

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=24.03
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=24.03.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=24.03.490
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1602.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1602.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 38 of 76 

(b) North Whidbey Enterprise Area Rates. To assist in the transition from county jurisdiction outside the scope 
of the NPDES Phase II permit, to city jurisdiction within the NPDES Phase II permit, the North Whidbey 
Enterprise Area rates shall be graduated over time from a rate approximate to the existing county rate to the 
city rate over a period of five years. 
 
(bc) All other properties shall pay a rate based on the amount of hard impervious surface area to be calculated 
by multiplying the rate for single-family residential properties by a quotient derived from dividing the total 
number of square feet of hard impervious surface area by 3,300. The quotient shall be rounded to the nearest 
tenth. 
 
(cd) For condominiums, the drainage service charge shall be based on the amount of hard impervious 
surface of the entire parcel; provided, that all of the units in the condominium are served by a single meter. 
Each condominium unit shall be responsible for an equal proportional amount of the total hard impervious 
surface on the parcel served by its assigned meter. In the event that a condominium is served by multiple 
meters, each meter shall be assigned a proportional amount of the total hard impervious surface based on 
land use code, site visits, and other information to estimate the measurement of impervious area. 

 
Section Thirty-Three. Chapter 17.26 is hereby added to OHMC Tilte 17, Buildings, and reads 
as follows: 
 

Chapter 17.26 
LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

Sections: 
17.26.010    Title. 
17.26.100    Purpose. 
17.26.105    Scope. 
17.26.110    Application to Properties – New and existing structures – Change of use. 
17.26.115    Details for plans and specifications. 
17.26.120    Fees for plan review and inspection. 
17.26.130    Design requirements. 
17.26.210    Liability limitations. 
17.26.220    Penalties. 
17.26.230    Severability. 
17.26.240    Hearing examiner to function as appeals board. 

 
17.26.010 Title. 
This chapter shall be known as the Low Impact Development building standards of the city of Oak Harbor. 

17.26.100 Purpose. 
The purpose of this chapter is to safeguard life, health, property and public welfare by ensuring compatibility 
between the stormwater management practices as outlined in OHMC Title 12, Chapter 12.30 and the 
provisions of Title 17. 

17.26.105 Scope. 
The provisions of this chapter shall apply to all properties and all buildings or structures constructed or placed 
in use for human occupancy on sites as regulated under OHMC Chapter 12.30. This chapter is intended to 
supplement the provisions of the International Building Code, International Residential Code, and the 
International Property Maintenance Code. In the case of conflict between this chapter and any other applicable 
codes the more restrictive requirements shall be met. 
 
17.26.110 Application to Properties – New and Existing Structures – Changes of Use 
Consistent with the minimum requirements contained in OHMC Chapter 12.30.210, the building official shall 
provide comments to the City Engineer for approval or disapproval regarding the following activities, unless 
exempted in OHMC 12.30.220: 

147

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.100
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor17/OakHarbor1722.html#17.22.120


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 39 of 76 

(1)  New development. 
(a)  Land disturbing activities; 
  
(b)  Structural development, including construction, installation or expansion of a building or other structure; 
 
(c) Creation or replacement of impervious surfaces. 

(2)  Redevelopment, on an already developed site. Refer to thresholds in OHMC Chapter 12.30.515 

17.26.115 Details for plans and specifications. 
The plans and specifications provided for review shall show in sufficient detail all pertinent data and features of 
the property, buildings and appurtenant improvements as herein governed, including, but not limited to, types, 
sizes, quantities, systems, controls, plantings, surfaces, porosity and other pertinent data to indicate 
conformance with the requirements herein. 
 
17.26.120 Fees for Plan Review and Inspection. 
The building official is authorized to collect fees for plan review, construction inspection and property 
maintenance inspection for low impact development activities. These fees shall be established by resolution of 
the City Council International Property Maintenance Code shall be administered and enforced by the city 
building official. 
 
17.26.210 Liability limitations. 
Nothing contained in this chapter or in the International Existing Building Code is intended to be, nor shall be, 
construed to create or form the basis for any liability on the part of the city or its officers, employees or agents, 
for any injury or damage resulting from the failure of a property or structure to conform to the provisions of the 
Low Impact Development Standards. 
 
17.26.220 Penalties. 
(1) It shall be unlawful for a person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, improve, 
remove, convert or demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building, structure or building service 
equipment or cause or permit the same to be done in violation of this chapter or the technical codes. 
 
(2) Civil Violation. Except as provided in subsections (4) and (5) of this section, any violation of any of the 
provisions of this chapter or of the technical codes constitutes a Class 1 infraction as defined in 
Chapter 1.28 OHMC. 
 
(3) Criminal Penalty. In addition to or as an alternative to any other penalty provided in this chapter or by law, 
any person who intentionally or knowingly violates any of the provisions of this chapter or the technical codes 
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punishable by a fine of up to $1,000 or a jail 
sentence of up to 90 days in jail, or both such fine and jail time. 
 
(4) Violations of Orders under This Chapter. Any person constructing, repairing, operating, maintaining, 
changing an occupancy, occupying or moving a building, structure, occupancy, or premises contrary to the 
provisions of this chapter who continues to construct, repair, operate, maintain, change occupancy, occupy or 
move such building, structure, occupancy or premises when ordered by the building official to desist from 
violating a provision or provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of up to 
$1,000 or a jail sentence of up to 90 days, or both such fine and jail time. 
 
(5) Separate Offense. Each day or portion thereof upon which a violation occurs constitutes a separate offense 
under subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) of this section. 
 
(6) Destruction of Notice. It shall be unlawful for any person to remove, mutilate, destroy or conceal any notice 
issued and posted by the building official pursuant to the provisions of this chapter or the building code, which 
violations shall be a Class 1 infraction as defined in Chapter 1.28 OHMC. 
 
17.26.230 Severability. 
Should any section, paragraph, sentence or word of this chapter or codes hereby adopted be declared for any 
reason to be invalid, it is the intent of the city council that it would have passed all other portions of this chapter 

148

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor01/OakHarbor0128.html#1.28
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor01/OakHarbor0128.html#1.28


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 40 of 76 

and of the codes hereby adopted independent of the elimination herefrom of any such portions as may be 
declared invalid and accordingly such declaration of invalidity shall not affect the validity of this chapter as a 
whole nor any part hereof other than the part so declared to be invalid. 
 
17.26.240 Hearing examiner to function as appeals board. 
All references to the term “board of appeal(s)” shall deem to mean the hearing examiner as per 
OHMC 18.40.180. Permits under this chapter shall be Type I review process as per OHMC 18.20.230. Appeals 
of decisions of applicable codes adopted under this chapter shall be to the hearing examiner. 
 
Section Thirty-Four. Section 19.08.067 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.067 Best Management Practices. 
“Best Management Practices” or BMP’s means the schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, 
maintenance procedures, and structural and/or managerial practices, that when used singly or in combination, 
prevent or reduce the release of pollutants and other adverse impacts to waters of Washington State. 
 
Section Thirty-Five. Section 19.08.147 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.147 Caliper. 
“Caliper” means the diameter of any tree trunk as measured at a height of four feet above the ground on the 
upslope side of the tree. 
 
Section Thirty-Six. Section 19.08.182 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 
 
19.08.182 Clearing. 
“Clearing” means the act of cutting and/or removing vegetation. This definition shall include grubbing 
vegetation. 
 
Section Thirty-Seven. Section 19.08.184 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.184 Clearing and Grading Permit. 
“Clearing and grading permit” shall mean the written approval of the city of Oak Harbor to proceed with the act 
of clearing property within the city limits of Oak Harbor. The clearing and grading permit includes the 
associated approved plans and any conditions of approval as well as the permit form itself. 
 
Section Thirty-Eight. Section 19.08.187 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.187 Clustering. 
“Clustering” means a type of development where buildings are organized together into compact groupings that 
allow for portions of the development site to remain in open space top preserve natural and cultural features, 
provide recreation, preserve rural character, and produce more affordable housing. 
 
Section Thirty-Nine. Section 19.08.224 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.224 Critical Area. 
“Critical area” means any area designated as a critical area pursuant to RCW 36.70A.170 and 
Chapter 20.02 OHMC. 

149

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor18/OakHarbor1840.html#18.40.180
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor18/OakHarbor1820.html#18.20.230
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=36.70A.170
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor20/OakHarbor2002.html#20.02


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 41 of 76 

 
Section Forty. Section 19.08.251 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 

 
19.08.251 Development. 
“Development” means any activity that requires federal, state, or local approval for the use or modification of 
land or its resource. These activities include, but are not limited to, subdivisions and short subdivisions; binding 
site plans; planned residential developments; variances; shoreline substantial development; clearing activity; 
excavation; embankment; fill and grade work; converting fallow land or undeveloped land to agricultural 
purposes; activity conditionally allowed; building or construction; and septic approval. 
 
Section Forty-One. Section 19.08.257 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 
 
19.08.257 Dry Season. 
“Dry season” means the months of May through September. 
 
Section Forty-Two. Section 19.08.272 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 
 
19.08.272 Ecology. 
“Ecology” means the Washington State Department of Ecology. 
 
Section Forty-Three. Section 19.08.277 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.277 Erosion. 
“Erosion” means the wearing away of the land surface by running water, wind, ice, or other geological agents, 
including such processes as gravitational creep. Also, the detachment and movement of soil or rock fragments 
by water, wind, ice, or gravity. The following terms are used to describe different types of water erosion: 

Geologic erosion means the normal or natural erosion caused by geological processes acting overlong 
geologic periods and resulting in the wearing away of mountains, building up of floodplains, coastal plains, 
etc. Synonymous with natural erosion. 
Natural erosion means wearing away of the earth’s surface by water, ice, or other natural agents under 
natural environmental conditions of climate, vegetation, etc., undisturbed by humans. Synonymous with 
geological erosion. 

 
Section Forty-Four. Section 19.08.292 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.292 Excavation. 
“Excavation” means the removal of material such as earth, sand, gravel, rock, or asphalt from a parcel, tract, or 
lot of land. 
 
Section Forty-Five. Section 19.08.309 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 
 
19.08.309 Fill. 
“Fill” means earth, sand, gravel, rock, asphalt, or other solid material used to increase the ground surface 
elevation or to replace excavated material. 
 
Section Forty-Six. Section 19.08.332 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 
 
19.08.332 Geotechnical engineer. 
“Geotechnical engineer” means a professional engineer currently registered in the state of Washington, 
qualified by reason of experience and education in the practice of geotechnical engineering, and designated by 
the owner as the geotechnical engineer of record for the project. 

150



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 42 of 76 

 
Section Forty-Seven. Section 19.08.337 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.337 Grading. 
“Grading” means the movement of earth material through mechanical or other means to create the finished 
surface and contour of a project site. 
 
Section Forty-Eight. Section 19.08.337 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.352 Grubbing. 
“Grubbing” means the act of removing vegetation by the roots. 
 
Section Forty-Nine. Section 19.08.437 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.437 Land disturbing activity. 
“Land-disturbing activity” means any activity that results in a change in the existing soil cover (both vegetative 
and nonvegetative) and/or the existing soil topography. Land-disturbing activities include, but are not limited to, 
clearing, grading, filling and excavation. Compaction that is associated with stabilization of structures and road 
construction shall also be considered a land-disturbing activity. Vegetation maintenance practices, including 
landscape maintenance and gardening, are not considered land-disturbing activity. Stormwater facility 
maintenance is not considered land disturbing activity if conducted according to established standards and 
procedures. 
 
Section Fifty. Section 19.08.542 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 
19.08.542 Low Impact Development. 
“Low impact development” or LID means a stormwater and land use management strategy that strives to mimic 
pre-disturbance hydrologic processes of infiltration, filtration, storage, evaporation and transpiration by 
emphasizing conservation, use of on-site natural features, site planning, and distributed stormwater 
management practices that are integrated into a project design. 
 
Section Fifty-One. Section 19.08.642 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 
 
19.08.642 Partially developed lot. 
“Partially developed lot” shall mean a lot or parcel of land upon which a structure (refer to OHMC 19.08.885 for 
the definition of a structure) is located and which is of sufficient area so as to be capable of accommodating 
additional development pursuant to the Oak Harbor zoning code; or which may be subdivided in accordance 
with the city of Oak Harbor subdivision chapter. 

Section Fifty-Two. Section 19.08.707 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 
 
19.08.707 Removal. 
“Removal” means the actual destruction or causing the effective destruction through damaging, poisoning or 
other direct or indirect actions resulting in the death of a tree or ground cover. 
 
Section Fifty-Three. Section 19.08.707 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as 
follows: 
 
19.08.712 Runoff. 
“Runoff” means water from rain, melted snow, or irrigation that flows over the land surface. 
 

151

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1908.html#19.08.885


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 43 of 76 

Section Fifty-Four. Section 19.08.732 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 
 
19.08.732 Sedimentation. 
“Sedimentation” means the process of gravity-induced settling and deposition of fragmented rock, soil, or 
organic particles displaced, transported, and deposited by erosive water-based processes. 
 
Section Fifty-Five. Section 19.08.982 is hereby added to Title 19, Zoning, and reads as follows: 
 
19.08.982 Wet season. 
“Wet season” means the period of the year between October 1st and April 30th. 
 
Section Fifty-Six. Section 19.28.030 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.28.030 Height limits – Exceptions. 
Buildings and structures shall not exceed the height limitations as specified for the use district in which they are 
located unless specifically excepted as set out in OHMC 19.28.040 and 19.28.050. Additional height, not to 
exceed 10 feet, may be used for multi-family and commercial uses permitted in the underlying zone for projects 
that are in accordance with low impact development (LID) through the implementation of the LID performance 
standards or on-site stormwater BMP lists.  . (Ord. 1555 § 11, 2009). 

Section Fifty-Seven. Section 19.31.090(1) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.31.090 Density. 
Density in a PRD is regulated by the density standards of the underlying zone. Density bonuses may be 
permitted under the provisions laid out in this section: 

(1) Increases in density as defined for each of the following may be permitted, up to a maximum of 30 percent 
over that permitted in the underlying zone. Bonus densities are intended to provide the incentive to encourage 
the development of affordable housing, provide additional public amenities or preserve valuable natural or 
cultural resources and features. The satisfaction of any of the bonus density criteria specified is considered to 
be in the public interest and worthy of a bonus density: 

(a) Additional Open Space. One percent increase in density for each one percent increase in open space 
over the minimum required under OHMC 19.31.100. Open space design must conform to the requirements 
of OHMC 19.31.110 and 19.31.120. 

(b) Provision of qualified affordable housing units as defined in OHMC 19.08.695, or lots dedicated for use 
in affordable housing projects. For every one unit of affordable housing provided, applicants are allowed 
five additional units of market-rate housing. For purposes of density bonuses pursuant to this section, the 
total of market-rate and affordable units may not exceed 30 percent of the density otherwise allowed in the 
zone. The continued affordability of the units must be secured through registration of restrictive covenants 
on title, or other permanent measure. 

(c) The following example is offered to show how the density bonus for affordable housing is calculated. 

(i) A project which is five acres in size and is zoned R-1 (maximum of six units per gross acre) is 
allowed a total of 30 units under the R-1 zone; 

(ii) This same project proposes that six of the 30 units are affordable units with the remaining 24 being 
market-rate units; 

(iii) Density bonus for affordable housing equals number of affordable units multiplied by five, or six 
affordable units times five, which equals 30 additional market-rate units, except that the total density 
bonus cannot exceed 30 percent of the maximum base density, or nine additional units; 

152

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1928.html#19.28.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1928.html#19.28.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1931.html#19.31.100
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1931.html#19.31.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1931.html#19.31.120
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1908.html#19.08.695


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 44 of 76 

(iv) Total units allowed with density bonus equals maximum density allowed by zone (30 units) plus 
density bonus (nine additional market-rate units), which equals 39 units; 

(d) Preservation of a scenic vista corridor within and off the site – up to 10 percent increase; 

(e) Public access to common open space, or natural water bodies – up to 20 percent increase; 

(f) Use of low impact development techniques. The density bonus shall be proportional to the ratio of total 
stormwater runoff from the site which is treated by LID techniques, up to a maximum of 20 percent. 

Section Fifty-Eight. Section 19.31.120 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.31.120 Open space – Passive areas. 
Passive open space is nonactive open space which preserves natural areas, native vegetation and provides 
scenic amenities to a PRD. Passive open space shall meet the following minimum requirements: 

(1) Passive open space may be no more than 50 percent of the total required open space in PRDs. 

(2) Preserved natural areas, such as wetlands, streams, and woodlands, may count as passive open space. 

(3) Passive open space may include open fields and landscaped areas which are held in common by the 
homeowners’ association, but which do not contain any other improvements. 

(4) Passive open spaces shall be maintained in conformance with OHMC 19.31.130. (Ord. 1567 § 2, 2010). 

Section Fifty-Nine. Section 19.31.130 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.31.130 Dedication and maintenance of common facilities. 
Whenever private open space, including private parks, or playgrounds, or commonly held stormwater 
facilities/BMPs is to be provided, the city council shall require that an association of owners or tenants of the 
PRD, or other parties responsible for maintenance as approved by the City, be organized under the laws of the 
state of Washington, which shall adopt such articles of incorporation and bylaws and adopt, impose and record 
such declaration of covenants and restrictions on such open space and/or common areas that are acceptable 
to the city. 

Said association shall be formed and continued for the purpose of maintaining such open space. Such an 
association, if required, may undertake other functions. It shall be created in such a manner that owners of 
property shall automatically be members and shall be subject to assessments levied to adequately maintain 
said open space for the purposes intended. The period of existence of such association shall be not less than 
20 years and it shall continue thereafter and until the members terminate it. Provisions shall be made by the 
association for the maintenance or disposition of such open space upon any termination of the arrangement 
hereinabove provided for. If the association of homeowners subsequently disbands, the property owners within 
the boundaries of the originally approved PRD are responsible for maintenance of all common facilities. (Ord. 
1567 § 2, 2010). 
 
Section Sixty. Section 19.31.170(7) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.31.170(7) PRD review criteria. 
(7) Applicants must meet either subsection (7)(a) or (b) of this section: 

(a) Enhanced design which includes one or more of the following on each building within the development: 

(i) A variety of exterior building materials such as brick, stucco, stone, and wood used as primary 
siding or as accent materials on front facades; or 

153

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1931.html#19.31.130


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 45 of 76 

(ii) Building articulation (offsetting walls, inclusion of windows, changes in material types) on side and 
rear walls of buildings; or 

(iii) Side- or rear-loaded garages; or 

(iv) Other applicant-proposed building design enhancements. 

(b) Optional site design elements which includes one or more of the following: 

(i) Low impact development stormwater techniques are employed on the site. 

(ii i) Ten percent or more of units within the development are qualified affordable housing as defined by 
OHMC 19.08.695. 

(iii ii) Inclusion of a mix of residential and nonresidential uses within the development. 

(iv iii) Fifteen percent or more of the gross area is open space. 

(v iv) The project will not only preserve but enhance or rehabilitate the functions and values of a critical 
area of the site, such as significant woodlands, wildlife habitats, streams or wetlands, subject to the 
recommendations in an approved critical areas report. (Ord. 1567 § 2, 2010). 

Section Sixty-One. Section 19.31.180 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.31.180 PRD development plan – Filing requirements. 
The applicant shall file with the director a PRD development plan. If an application for subdivision is submitted 
concurrently, the plat document required as part of subdivision shall be a separate plan sheet from the PRD 
development plan and shall include the requirements in OHMC Title 21. The PRD development plan shall 
include the following: 

(1) A legal description of the site and plot plan indicating location of all existing and proposed adjacent streets, 
private rights-of-way and easements; 

(2) Ten copies of the proposed site plan and/or drawings. Additional copies of the application may be required 
at the time the PRD development plan is routed to planning commission or city council for review. The PRD 
development plan shall include the following information: 

(a) Individual trees over 12 inches in trunk diameter measured four feet above the base of the trunk in 
areas to be developed or otherwise disturbed; 

(b) Proposed finished grades of the property with all drainage features; 

(c) Location of all proposed structures together with the usage to be contained therein and approximate 
location of all entrances thereto and heights, and gross floor area thereof; 

(d) Code-required side, rear and front building setbacks; 

(e) The building envelope for each lot, which is the portion of the lot excluding the building setbacks; 

(f) Location and nature of vehicular, pedestrian and bicycle circulation features within the site and adjacent 
streets and alleys; 

(g) The extent, location, arrangement, and proposed improvements of all off-street parking and loading 
facilities; 

(h) The extent, location, arrangement and proposed improvements of all open space, landscaping, fences 
and walls; 

154

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1908.html#19.08.695
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor21.html#21


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 46 of 76 

(i) Architectural elevation drawings of all building types (single-family, multifamily, rowhouses, etc.) and all 
subtypes (single-family model 1, single-family model 2, etc.) and sketches demonstrating the planning and 
character of the proposed development; 

(j) Number of units proposed by type; 

(k) Proposed lot, tract and easement boundaries; 

(l) Open space calculations for all areas which are proposed to meet the 10 percent common open space 
requirement. Calculations shall be divided between active and passive open space. Open spaces which 
are proposed to be included in the open space calculations must be denoted on the plan; 

(m) low impact development site analysis requirements including: 
 
(i)   a soils report prepared by a licensed geotechnical engineer or geologist; 
(ii)  preliminary stormwater site plan consistent with the threshold requirements found in OHMC 
Chapter 12.30.500. 

   
(m n) Density calculations for the property including any bonuses requested by the applicant; and 
 
(n o) All other calculations or information as applicable based on the PRD review criteria; 

Section Sixty-Two. Section 19.44.105 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.44.105 Maximum parking space standards. 
Impervious parking areas generate stormwater runoff, with negative impacts to water quality, wildlife habitat, 
and municipal budgets. The following maximum parking space standards are designed to limit the total 
impervious area resulting from large, off-street parking lots, reducing negative water quality impacts, while at 
the same time providing sufficient parking for land uses within Oak Harbor. 

(1) Applicability. The standards in this section shall apply to all new development and redevelopment which 
meets both of the following criteria: 

(a) All new development, as well as building remodels, site retrofits, and redevelopment which exceeds 60 
percent of the total assessed value for the property; and 

(b) Off-street parking lots with 100 or more spaces proposed or required. 

(2) Pervious Requirement. Each additional parking space over 150 percent of the minimum number of required 
spaces must have a pervious surface approved by the city engineer wherever soil conditions make infiltration 
feasible. The pervious area may be provided at any location within the parking lot, including drive aisles, as 
long as its size is equivalent to the area of parking stalls exceeding 150 percent. 

(a) Other LID techniques may be proposed in place of the pervious area requirement in subsection (2) of 
this section, as approved by the city engineer and in compliance with the Low Impact Development 
Technical Guidance Manual for Puget Sound (current edition). 

(32) In no case shall more than 250 percent of the required minimum number of parking spaces be approved. 
(Ord. 1614 § 1, 2011). 
 
Section Sixty-Three. Section 19.44.110 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.44.110 Parking space size and access requirements. 
(1) Standard Parking Spaces. All standard parking spaces shall meet the minimum criteria outlined in the table 
and figure below. 

155

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1614.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 47 of 76 

(2) Compact Parking Spaces. Up to 450 percent of required parking spaces may be provided as compact 
spaces. The aisle widths required for standard spaces shall be applied to compact spaces. Parking space 
width, parking space depth and row width shall be as shown in the following table. The minimum parking space 
depth shall be 16 feet and the minimum parking space width shall be eight feet. Compact parking spaces shall 
be clearly marked by painting the word “compact” on the parking space(s). 

Required Parking Dimensions 

Parking Angle Stall Width Stall Depth Row Depth Aisle Width 
(One Way) 

Aisle Width 
(Two Way) 

0° 
Standard: 9' 
Compact: 8' 

Standard: 23' 
Compact: 19' 

Standard: 9' 
Compact: 8' 

10' 18' 

30° 
Standard: 9' 
Compact: 8' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

Standard: 18' 
Compact: 15' 

12' 20' 

40° 
Standard: 9' 
Compact: 8' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

12' 20' 

45° 
Standard: 9' 
Compact: 8' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

Standard: 21' 
Compact: 17' 

12' 20' 

50° 
Standard: 9' 
Compact: 8' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

15' 20' 

60° 
Standard: 9' 
Compact: 8' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

17' 20' 

70° 
Standard: 9' 
Compact: 8' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

20' 20' 

80° 
Standard: 9' 
Compact: 8' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

243' 243' 

90°1 
Standard: 9' 
Compact: 8' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

Standard: 20' 
Compact: 16' 

243' 243' 

1 Parking space length may be reduced by up to 2 feet through administrative approval to allow for vehicle overhang 
when curb or wheel stops are used along vegetated planters at least 5’ in width, as measured between hard 
surfaces.  

PARKING PLAN LAYOUT  

156



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 48 of 76 

 (Ord. 1614 § 1, 2011; Ord. 1555 § 19, 2009). 

 

 
Section Sixty-Four. Section 19.44.130 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.44.130 Plans. 
The plan of the proposed parking area shall be submitted to the development services department at the time 
of the application for the building for which the parking area is required. The plan shall clearly indicate the 
proposed development, including location, size, shape, design, curb cuts, lighting, landscaping, construction 
details and other features and appurtenances required. The illustrations provided at the end of this chapter 
shall serve as a guide and illustrate the minimum requirements for parking stall configurations. 

A legal description of the property is required and a parking area designated and recorded. 

(1) Parking areas shall be designed in conformance with the Oak Harbor design guidelines. 

(2) All traffic-control devices such as parking strips designating car stalls, directional arrows or signs, bull rails, 
curbs, and other developments, shall be installed and maintained as shown on the approved plans. Hard-
surfaced parking areas shall use paint or similar devices to delineate car stalls and directional arrows. All 
driveways, off-street parking areas and public off-street parking areas shall be hard surfaced with a minimum of 
two inches of asphalt concrete or Portland Cement concrete slab at appropriate depths. Alternative surfaces, 
including low impact development practices, may be allowed in compliance with OHMC Title 12 the LID 
Technical Guidance Manual for Puget Sound (current edition) or as approved by the city engineer. 

(3) Minimum dimensions of off-street parking areas shall be not less than stated in this chapter. 

(4) Screen all parking lots from view of adjoining residential district or use through use of sight-obscuring 
fences, earth berms or landscaped planting strips, to a height of not less than six feet. 

(5) At least 15 percent of every parking lot shall be landscaped. In all cases, landscaping shall be distributed 
throughout the parking area. LID stormwater management facilities are encouraged to be incorporated into the 
required landscaping as much as possible, unless site or soil conditions make LID stormwater management 
facilities infeasible. Parking lot landscaping shall conform to OHMC 19.46.030(5) with a preference for native 
species. For computation of required landscape area, allow 30 square feet per parking space. The landscaping 
shall consist of deciduous or coniferous plant material and may include turf, shrubs and flowers. 

(6) Lighting of areas provided for off-street parking shall be so arranged to not constitute a nuisance or hazard 
to passing traffic and where said lots share a common boundary with any “R” classified property, the 
illuminating devices shall be so shaded and directed to play their light away from “R” classified property. 

(7) Maintenance of all areas provided for off-street parking shall include removal and replacement of dead and 
dying trees, grass and shrubs, removal of trash and weeds, and repair of traffic control devices, signs, light 
standards, fences, walls, surfacing material, curbs and railings. Maintenance of LID stormwater management 
facilities/BMP’s shall be in conformance with OHMC Title 12 shall be completed in accordance with the LID 
Technical Guidance Manual for Puget Sound (current edition), the city’s public works maintenance standards 
and an approved operating and maintenance agreement. (Ord. 1614 § 1, 2011; Ord. 1555 § 19, 2009). 
 
Section Sixty-Five. Section 19.46.140(4) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
19.46.140(4) Native vegetation standards. 
(4) General Provisions. Native vegetation areas shall meet the following additional standards: 

(a) Trees shall be retained in stands or clusters. A professional forester, arborist, or landscape architect 
shall prepare the landscape plan to ensure that retained vegetation is not susceptible to windthrow. See 
OHMC 19.46.100 for landscape plan requirements. 

157

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1614.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1946.html#19.46.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1614.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1946.html#19.46.100


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 49 of 76 

(b) Native vegetation may be accommodated within perimeter landscaping or other required landscaped 
areas. 

(c) The minimum native vegetation retention may be decreased to five percent for nonresidential uses 
(e.g., churches, schools, etc.) that are permitted outright or conditionally in residential zones. 

(d) The calculation of the native vegetation retention area for public school sites shall be based upon the 
total acreage of the school site minus the areas set aside for playfields in the school site plan; provided, 
that for the purposes of the calculation, such playfield areas shall not exceed 30 percent of the gross site 
area. 

(e) Critical areas and their buffers may be counted towards this standard so long as they contain existing 
native vegetation (e.g., a steep slope with Douglas fir may be counted while one with Himalayan blackberry 
may not). Critical areas and their buffers that will be counted towards native vegetation shall not have to 
comply with the replanting standards within this chapter. Land below an ordinary high water mark shall not 
be counted towards the required native vegetation. 

(f) Any soils disturbed through the site development process that are to be counted toward the native 
vegetation requirements shall be amended in accordance with the “Post Construction  Guidelines for 
Implementing Soil Quality and Depth” (BMP T5.13 in Volume V of the DOE Stormwater Management 
Manual for Western Washington 2005). 

 
Section Sixty-Six. Section 19.46.150 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.46.150 Tree species.  
The following table provides information on selected species of native and non-native trees suitable for 
replanting. All species listed are suited to the climate conditions found in the Pacific Northwest. The list is for 
guidance only and is not intended to be all-inclusive. Other tree species may be utilized where appropriate 
when recommended by a professional forester, certified arborist, licensed landscape architect, or as approved 
by the director. Species availability and quantity may be limited in some cases. It is best to coordinate in 
advance with nurseries specializing in native plants. For bioretention areas, a complete list of appropriate 
plants can be found in Appendix 3 of the LID Technical Guidance Manual for Puget Sound (2005). 
 
Section Sixty-Seven. Section 19.47.025 is hereby amended as follows: 

19.47.025 Definitions. 
(1) “Caliper” shall mean the diameter of any tree trunk as measured at a height of four feet above the ground 
on the upslope side of the tree. 

(2) “Creek” shall mean those areas where surface waters flow sufficiently to produce a defined channel or bed. 
A defined channel or bed is indicated by hydraulically sorted sediments or the removal of vegetative litter or 
loosely rooted vegetation by the action of moving water. The channel or bed need not contain water year 
around. This definition is not meant to include storm water runoff devices or other entirely artificial watercourses 
unless they are used to store and/or convey pass-through stream flows naturally occurring prior to construction. 

(3) “Clearing” shall mean the act of cutting and/or removing vegetation. This definition shall include grubbing 
vegetation. 

(4) “Clearing and grading permit” shall mean the written approval of the city of Oak Harbor to proceed with the 
act of clearing property within the city limits of Oak Harbor. The clearing and grading permit includes the 
associated approved plans and any conditions of approval as well as the permit form itself. 

(5) “Critical area” shall mean any area designated as a critical area pursuant to RCW 36.70A.170 and 
Chapter 20.02 OHMC. 

(6) “Development” shall mean any activity that requires federal, state, or local approval for the use or 
modification of land or its resource. These activities include, but are not limited to, subdivisions and short 

158

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=36.70A.170
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor20/OakHarbor2002.html#20.02


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 50 of 76 

subdivisions; binding site plans; planned residential developments; variances; shoreline substantial 
development; clearing activity; excavation; embankment; fill and grade work; converting fallow land or 
undeveloped land to agricultural purposes; activity conditionally allowed; building or construction; and septic 
approval. 

(7) “Dry season” shall mean the months of May through September. 

(8) “Ecology” shall mean Washington State Department of Ecology. 

(9) “Erosion” shall mean the wearing away of the land surface by running water, wind, ice, or other geological 
agents, including such processes as gravitational creep. Also, the detachment and movement of soil or rock 
fragments by water, wind, ice, or gravity. The following terms are used to describe different types of water 
erosion: 

(10) “Geological erosion” means the normal or natural erosion caused by geological processes acting over long 
geologic periods and resulting in the wearing away of mountains, building up of floodplains, coastal plains, etc. 
Synonymous with natural erosion. 

(11) “Natural erosion” means wearing away of the earth’s surface by water, ice, or other natural agents under 
natural environmental conditions of climate, vegetation, etc., undisturbed by humans. Synonymous with 
geological erosion. 

(12) “Excavation” shall mean the removal of material such as earth, sand, gravel, rock, or asphalt from a parcel, 
tract, or lot of land. 

(13) “Fill” shall mean earth, sand, gravel, rock, asphalt, or other solid material used to increase the ground 
surface elevation or to replace excavated material. 

(14) “Geotechnical engineer” shall mean a professional engineer currently registered in the state of 
Washington, qualified by reason of experience and education in the practice of geotechnical engineering, and 
designated by the owner as the geotechnical engineer of record for the project. 

(15) “Grading” shall mean the movement of earth material through mechanical or other means to create the 
finished surface and contour of a project site. 

(16) “Grubbing” shall mean the act of removing vegetation by the roots. 

(17) “Ground cover” shall mean a dense covering of small plants such as salal, ivy, ferns, mosses, grasses, or 
other types of vegetation which normally cover the ground. 

(18) “Land disturbance activity” shall mean any activity that results in movement of earth, or a change in the 
existing soil cover and/or the existing soil topography. Land disturbing activities include, but are not limited to, 
clearing, grading, filling, and excavation. 

(19) “Low impact development (LID)” shall mean a stormwater management strategy that emphasizes 
conservation and use of existing natural site features integrated with distributed, small-scale stormwater 
controls to more closely mimic natural hydrologic patterns in residential, commercial, and industrial settings. 

(20) “Partially developed lot” shall mean a lot or parcel of land upon which a structure (refer to 
OHMC 19.08.885 for the definition of a structure) is located and which is of sufficient area so as to be capable 
of accommodating additional development pursuant to the Oak Harbor zoning code; or which may be 
subdivided in accordance with the city of Oak Harbor subdivision chapter. 

(21) “Permit” shall mean, unless otherwise noted, the clearing and grading permit; see “Clearing and grading 
permit.” 

(22) “Removal” shall mean the actual destruction or causing the effective destruction through damaging, 
poisoning or other direct or indirect actions resulting in the death of a tree or ground cover. 

159

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1908.html#19.08.885


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 51 of 76 

(23) “Runoff” shall mean water from rain, melted snow, or irrigation that flows over the land surface. 

(24) “Sedimentation” shall mean the process of gravity-induced settling and deposition of fragmented rock, soil, 
or organic particles displaced, transported, and deposited by erosive water-based processes. 

(25) “Wet season” shall mean the period of the year between October 1st and April 30th. (Ord. 1616 § 1, 2011). 

Section Sixty-Eight. Section 19.47.065(6) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.47.065(6) Performance standards. 
(6) Native Soil Protection and Amendment. The duff layer and native topsoil should shall be retained in an 
undisturbed state to the maximum extent practicable. In areas requiring grading, remove and stockpile the duff 
layer and topsoil on site in a designated, controlled area, not adjacent to public resources and critical areas, to 
be reapplied to other portions of the site where feasible. 
 
Section Sixty-Nine. Section 19.47.065(10) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
19.47.065(10) Performance standards. 
(10) Slash Removal. Slash from clearing should shall preferably be chipped and used in native vegetation 
areas on the site within one year of project completion. 
 
Section Seventy. Section 19.48.010 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.48.010 Purpose and intent. 
The purpose of site plan approval shall be to assure that the site plan of proposed uses is compatible with 
existing and potential uses and complies with development regulations and the comprehensive plan of the city 
of Oak Harbor. Site plan elements subject to this section include, but are not limited to, site layout, building 
orientation, pedestrian and vehicular access, signage, landscaping, natural features of the site, integration of 
stormwater management techniques, screening and buffering, parking and loading arrangements, and 
illumination. Site planning is the horizontal and vertical arrangement of these elements so as to be compatible 
with the physical characteristics of a site and with the surrounding area. Site plan review may include design 
review, which addresses the aesthetic considerations of architectural style, exterior treatment and colors. Site 
plan review should occur at an early stage in the development of a project, when the scale, intensity and layout 
of a project are known. The intent of the site plan approval shall be to: 

(1) Promote integrated project review of various city codes concerned with development; 

(2) Assure consistency with development regulations and plans; 

(3) Protect neighboring owners and uses by assuring that reasonable provisions have been made for such 
matters as sound and sign buffers, light and air, and those other aspects of site plans which may have 
substantial effects on neighboring land uses; 

(4) Promote the orderliness of community growth, protect and enhance property values and minimize 
discordant and undesirable impacts of development both on site and off site; 

(5) Promote coordination of public or quasi-public elements, such as walkways, driveways, paths, and 
landscaping within segments of larger developments and between individual developments; 

(6) Ensure convenience and safety of vehicular and pedestrian movement within the site and in relation to 
adjacent areas; 

(7) Protect the desirable aspects of the natural landscape and environmental features of the city by minimizing 
the undesirable impacts of proposed developments on the physical environment; 

(8) Minimize conflicts that might otherwise be created by a mix of uses within allowed zones; and 

160

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1616.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 52 of 76 

(9) Promote the creation of campus-like settings in appropriate zones. (Ord. 1555 § 22, 2009). 
 
Section Seventy-One. Section 19.48.032(4) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
19.48.032(4) Requirements for application submittal. 
(4) Three copies of the following: 

(a) A preliminary storm water report. If the project involves the addition or redevelopment of 2,000 square 
feet or more of impervious hard surfacing, storm water review will be required for the project and other 
related engineering reports as required by OHMC Title 12; 

(b) A traffic impact study, if applicable, indicating the number of additional average daily trips the proposal 
could be expected to generate, prepared by a professional engineer certified to practice in Washington 
State; 

(c) Any other environmental studies required; 
 
Section Seventy-Two. Section 19.48.035(2) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
19.48.035(2) Requirements for the site plan map. 
(2) Site Information. 

(a) Location of property lines, indicating exterior lines with bold solid lines and interior property lines with 
long dashed lines; 

(b) Topographic contour lines showing both existing and proposed elevations, at no more than five-foot 
intervals, extending a minimum of 10 feet beyond the property line. The interval should be such that the 
existing and proposed slopes of the property can be determined on the drawing. Proposed contours shall 
show ties to existing contours and show spot elevations as needed; 

(c) Easements showing all existing, proposed, public and private easements; 

(d) Building setbacks indicating the front, rear and side building setbacks with clear dimensions; 

(e) Distance to adjacent structures on site, if applicable; 

(f) Proposed building(s), including dimensions; 

(g) Sizes and locations of solid waste containers showing details of any site screening fences or structures 
and screening of dumpsters, etc.; 

(h) Location of existing and proposed signs including elevation, size, material, color, design and method of 
illumination; 

(i) Locations and dimensions of off-street parking, including handicap parking, how parking is designated 
per unit if applicable, lot striping, wheel stops and curbing, include turning radii in the circulation pattern; 

(j) Locations and sizes/widths of existing and proposed driveways, traffic flow, and parking lot circulation 
and maneuvering; 

(k) Locations and dimensions of existing and proposed rights-of-way, streets, curbs, gutters, and street 
centerlines, including pavement edges; 

(l) Dimensions and locations of sidewalks and wheelchair ramps; 

(m) Limits of the paved areas. 

161

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1555.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 53 of 76 

(n) Locations and dimensions of stormwater treatment, flow control, and LID facilities/BMP’s. 

Section Seventy-Three. Section 19.48.039(2) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
19.48.039(2) Timing of certain actions in site plan approval, reviewed development. 
(2) Actions that need to be taken, fees that need to be paid and plans that need to be submitted before the 
building permit will issue. All items can be provided concurrent with site plan application: 

 Action Actions That Need to Be 
Taken Before the Building 

Permit Will Be Issued 

Impact fees for 
park and 
transportation. 

Fee to be paid before building 
permit will issue. 

System 
development 
charges for water 
and sewer. 

Fee to be paid before building 
permit will issue. 

Latecomer’s 
agreement. 

Fee to be paid and agreement 
filed, before building permit will 
issue. 

Engineering plans 
and reports. 

Approved before building 
permit will issue. 

Landscape plan. Approved before building 
permit will issue. 

Installation of 
streets. 

Before building permit will 
issue or when bonded for as 
provided in 
Chapter19.90 OHMC. 

Installation of 
public water utility 
improvements. 

Before building permit will 
issue or when bonded for as 
provided in 
Chapter19.90 OHMC. 

Installation of 
public sewer 
improvements. 

Before building permit will 
issue or when bonded for as 
provided in 
Chapter19.90 OHMC. 

Installation of 
surface water 
management 
facilities. 

Before building permit will 
issue or when bonded for as 
provided in OHMC12.30.565. 

 
 
 
Section Seventy-Four. Section 19.48.050 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

19.48.050 Decision criteria for site plan review. 
The reviewing authority shall review and act upon site plans based upon comprehensive planning 
considerations and the following criteria in this section. These criteria are objectives of good site plans to be 
aimed for in development within the city of Oak Harbor. However, strict compliance with any one or more 
particular criterion may not be necessary or reasonable. These criteria also provide a frame of reference for the 

162

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1990.html#19.90
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1990.html#19.90
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1990.html#19.90
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor12/OakHarbor1230.html#12.30.565


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 54 of 76 

applicant in developing a site, but are not intended to be inflexible standards or to discourage creativity and 
innovation. The site plan review criteria include the following: 

(1) Consistency as determined under Chapter 18.20 OHMC; 

(2) Mitigation of impacts to surrounding properties and uses; 

(3) Mitigation of environmental impacts of the proposed site plan to the site; 

(4) Conservation of area-wide property values; 

(5) Safety and efficiency of vehicle and pedestrian circulation; 

(6) Provision of adequate light and air; 

(7) Mitigation of noise, odors and other harmful or unhealthy conditions; 

(8) Availability of public services and facilities to accommodate the proposed use; 

(9) Prevention of neighborhood deterioration and blight. 

(10) Incorporation of stormwater management (Ord. 1555 § 22, 2009). 

Section Seventy-Five. Section 20.02.020 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
20.02.020 Definitions. 
(1) “Alteration” means any human-induced change in an existing condition of a critical area or its buffer. 
Alterations include, but are not limited to, grading, filling, channelizing, dredging, clearing (vegetation), 
construction, compaction, excavation, or any other activity that changes the character of the critical area. 

(2) “Anadromous fish” means fish that spawn and rear in freshwater and mature in the marine environment. 

(3) “Applicant” means a person who files an application for a critical areas permit and who is either the owner of 
the land on which that proposed activity would be located, a contract purchaser, or the authorized agent of 
such a person. 

(4) “Aquifer” means a geological formation, group of formations, or part of a formation that is capable of yielding 
a significant amount of water to a well or spring. 

(5) “Aquifer recharge areas” means areas that, due to the presence of certain soils, geology, and surface water, 
act to recharge ground water by percolation. 

(6) “Best available science” means current scientific information used in the process to designate, protect, or 
restore critical areas, that is derived from a valid scientific process as defined by WAC 365-195-
900 through 365-195-925. Examples of best available science are included in “Citations of Recommended 
Sources of Best Available Science for Designating and Protecting Critical Areas,” published by the Washington 
State Department of Community, Trade and Economic Development. 

(7) “Best management practices (BMPs)” means the schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, 
maintenance procedures, and structural and/or managerial practices, that when used singly or in combination, 
prevent or reduce the release of pollutants and other adverse impacts to waters of Washington State. 
conservation practices or systems of practices and management measures that: 

(a) Control soil loss and reduce water quality degradation caused by high concentrations of nutrients, 
animal waste, toxics, or sediment; 

163

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor18/OakHarbor1820.html#18.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1555.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=365-195-900
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=365-195-900
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=365-195-925


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 55 of 76 

(b) Minimize adverse impacts to surface water and ground water flow and circulation patterns and to the 
chemical, physical, and biological characteristics of wetlands; 

(c) Protect trees, vegetation and soils designated to be retained during and following site construction and 
use native plant species appropriate to the site for revegetation of disturbed areas; and 

(d) Provide standards for proper use of chemical herbicides within critical areas. 

(8) “Bog” means a low nutrient, acidic wetland with organic soils, which is sensitive to disturbance and 
impossible to re-create through compensatory mitigation. 

(9) “Buffer” or “buffer zone” means the zone an area that is contiguous with a sensitive area that to and protects 
a critical area, which is required for the continued maintenance, functioning, and/or structural stability of a 
critical area. The critical functions of a riparian buffer (those associated with an aquatic system) include 
shading, input of organic debris and coarse sediments, uptake of nutrients, stabilization of banks, interception 
of fine sediments, overflow during high water events, protection from disturbance by humans and domestic 
animals, maintenance of wildlife habitat, and room for variation of aquatic system boundaries over time due to 
hydrologic or climatic effects. The critical functions of terrestrial buffers include protection of slope stability, 
attenuation of surface water flows from stormwater runoff and precipitation, and erosion control. 

(10) “Critical aquifer recharge area” means as defined in OHMC 20.32.010. 

(11) “Critical areas” include at a minimum any of the following areas or ecosystems: which include wetlands, 
areas with a critical recharging effect on aquifers used for potable water, critical aquifer recharge areas, fish 
and wildlife habitat conservation areas, frequently flooded areas, geologically hazardous areas, including 
unstable slopes, and associated areas and ecosystems. wetlands, as defined in Chapter 36.70A RCW and this 
title. 

(12) “Cumulative impacts or effects” means the combined, incremental effects of human activity on ecological 
or critical areas functions and values. Cumulative impacts result when the effects of an action are added to or 
interact with the effects of other actions in a particular place and within a particular time. It is the combination of 
these effects, and any resulting environmental degradation, that should be the focus of cumulative impact 
analysis and changes to policies and permitting decisions. 

(13) “Developable area” means a site or portion of a site that may be utilized as the location of development, in 
accordance with the rules of this title. 

(14) “Development” means a land use consisting of the construction or exterior alteration of structures; grading, 
dredging, drilling, or dumping; filling; removal of sand, gravel, or minerals; bulk heading; driving of pilings; or 
any project of a temporary or permanent nature which modifies structures, land, or shorelines and which does 
not fall within the allowable exemptions contained in the Oak Harbor Municipal Code. 

(15) “Director” means the director of the city of Oak Harbor department of development services, or other city 
staff granted the authority to act on behalf of the director. 

(16) “Drip line” means a line projected to the ground delineating the outermost extent of a tree’s foliage in all 
directions. 

(17) “Fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas” means as defined in OHMC 20.25.010. 

(18) “Forage fish” means small fish that consume plankton, which are consumed by other fish higher in the food 
chain, such as salmon. 

(19) “Functions and values” means the beneficial roles served by critical areas including, but not limited to, 
water quality protection and enhancement; fish and wildlife habitat; food chain support; flood storage, 
conveyance and attenuation; ground water recharge and discharge; erosion control; wave attenuation; 
protection from hazards; historical, archaeological, and aesthetic value protection; educational opportunities; 
and recreation. 

164

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor20/OakHarbor2032.html#20.32.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=36.70A
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor20/OakHarbor2025.html#20.25.010


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 56 of 76 

(20) “Geologically sensitive areas” means as defined in OHMC 20.28.010. 

(21) “Ground water” means water in a saturated zone or stratum beneath the surface of land or a surface water 
body. 

(22) “Growth Management Act” means Chapters 36.70A and 36.70B RCW, as amended. 

(23) “Habitat conservation areas” means areas designated as fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas. 

(24) “Hard surface” means an impervious surface, a permeable pavement, or a vegetated roof. 

(245) “Hazardous substances” means any liquid, solid, gas, or sludge, including any material, substance, 
product, commodity, or waste, regardless of quantity, that exhibits any of the physical, chemical, or biological 
properties described in WAC 173-303-090 or173-303-100. 

(256) “Historic condition” means a condition of the land, including flora, fauna, soil, topography, and hydrology, 
that existed before the area and vicinity were developed or altered by human activity. 

(267) “Impervious surface” means a non-vegetated hard surface area that either prevents or retards the entry 
of water into the soil mantle, as under natural conditions prior to development., A non-vegetated surface area 
or that causes water to run off the surface in greater quantities or at an increased rate of flow from the flow 
present under natural conditions prior to development. Common impervious surfaces include, but are not 
limited to, rooftops, walkways, patios, driveways, parking lots or storage areas, concrete or asphalt paving, 
gravel roads, packed earthen materials, and oiled macadam or other surfaces which similarly impede the 
natural infiltration of stormwater. Open, uncovered retention/detention facilities shall not be considered as 
impervious surfaces for the purposes of determining whether the thresholds for application of minimum 
requirements are exceeded. Open, uncovered retention/detention facilities shall be considered impervious 
surfaces for purposes of runoff modeling. 

(278) “Infiltration” means the downward movement entry of water from into the immediate surface to the of  
subsoil. 

(289) “In-kind compensation” means to replace critical areas with substitute areas whose characteristics and 
functions closely approximate those destroyed or degraded by a regulated activity. 

(2930) “Isolated wetlands” means those wetlands that are outside of and not contiguous to any 100-year 
floodplain of a lake, river, or stream and have no contiguous hydric soil or hydrophytic vegetation between the 
wetland and any surface water, including other wetlands. 

(301) “Landslide hazard areas” means areas that are potentially subject to risk of mass movement due to a 
combination of geologic, topographic, and hydrologic factors, including: bedrock, soil, slope gradient, slope 
aspect, geologic structure, ground water, or other factors. 

(312) “Mature forested wetland” means a wetland with at least 30 percent of the surface area covered by 
woody vegetation greater than 20 feet in height, which is at least partially rooted within the wetland, where the 
largest trees are at least 80 years old or are greater than 21 inches in diameter at breast height. 

(323) “Mitigation” means avoiding, minimizing, or compensating for adverse critical areas impacts. Mitigation, in 
the following sequential order of preference, is: 

(a) Avoiding the impact altogether by not taking a certain action or parts of an action; 

(b) Minimizing impacts by limiting the degree or magnitude of the action and its implementation, by using 
appropriate technology, or by taking affirmative steps, such as project redesign, relocation, or timing, to 
avoid or reduce impacts; 

165

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor20/OakHarbor2028.html#20.28.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=36.70A
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=36.70B
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-303-090
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-303-100


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 57 of 76 

(c) Rectifying the impact to wetlands, critical aquifer recharge areas, and habitat conservation areas by 
repairing, rehabilitating, or restoring the affected environment to the conditions existing at the time of the 
initiation of the project; 

(d) Minimizing or eliminating a hazard by restoring or stabilizing the hazard area through engineered or 
other methods; 

(ed) Reducing or eliminating the impact or hazard over time by preservation and maintenance operations 
during the life of the action; and, 

(fe) Compensating for the impact to wetlands, critical aquifer recharge areas, and habitat conservation 
areas by replacing, enhancing, or providing substitute resources or environments; and. 

(g) Monitoring the hazard or other required mitigation and taking remedial action when necessary. 

Mitigation for individual actions may include a combination of the above measures. 

(334) “Monitoring” means evaluating the impacts of development proposals on the biological, hydrological, and 
geological elements of such systems, and assessing the performance of required mitigation measures through 
the collection and analysis of data by various methods for the purposes of understanding and documenting 
changes in natural ecosystems and features, evaluating the impacts of development proposals on such 
systems, and assessing the performance of required mitigation measures imposed as conditions of 
development. including gathering baseline data. 

(345) “Native growth protection area (NGPA)” means an area where native vegetation is preserved for the 
purpose of preventing harm to property and the environment, including, but not limited to, controlling surface 
water runoff and erosion, maintaining slope stability, buffering, and protecting plants and animal habitat. 

(356) “Native vegetation” means vegetation comprised of plant species, other than noxious weeds, that are 
indigenous to the coastal region of the Pacific Northwest and which reasonably could have been expected to 
naturally occur on the site. Examples include trees such as Douglas fir, Western Hemlock, Western Red Cedar, 
Alder, Big-leaf Maple, and Vine Maple; shrubs such as willow, elderberry, salmonberry and salal; and 
herbaceous plants such as sword fern, foam flower, and fireweed. plant species that are indigenous to the area 
in question. 

(367) “Oak tree” means a Garry Oak (Quercus garryana, also known as Oregon White Oak) tree more than six 
feet tall. “Oak tree” shall not apply to any tree grown or held for sale in a licensed nursery, nor to the first 
removal or transplanting of a tree pursuant to the operation of a licensed nursery business. 

(378) “Off-site compensation” means to replace critical areas away from the site on which a critical area has 
been impacted. 

(389) “On-site compensation” means to replace critical areas at or adjacent to the site on which a critical area 
has been impacted. 

(3940) “Ordinary high water mark” means the line on the shore established by the fluctuations of water and 
indicated by physical characteristics such as a clear, natural line impressed on the bank; shelving; changes in 
the character of soil destruction on terrestrial vegetation, or the presence of litter and debris; or other 
appropriate means that consider the characteristics of the surrounding area.  

The ordinary high water mark will be found by examining the bed and banks of a stream and ascertaining 
where the presence and action of waters are so common and usual, and so long maintained in all ordinary 
years, as to mark upon the soil a character distinct from that of the abutting upland, in respect to vegetation. In 
any area where the ordinary high water mark cannot be found, the line of mean high water shall substitute. In 
any area where neither can be found, the channel bank shall be substituted. In braided channels and alluvial 
fans, the ordinary high water mark or substitute shall be measured so as to include the entire stream feature. 
that mark which is found by examining the bed and banks and ascertaining where the presence and action of 
waters are so common and usual, and so long continued in all ordinary years, that the soil has a character 
distinct from that of the abutting upland in respect to vegetation. 

166



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 58 of 76 

(401) “Permeability” means the capacity of an aquifer or confining bed to transmit water. It is a property of the 
aquifer or confining bed and is independent of the force causing movement. 

(412) “Person” means any person, individual, partnership, public or private corporation, firm, association, 
organization, cooperative, public or municipal corporation, agency of the state or local government unit, 
however designated  joint venture, partnership, owner, lessee, tenant, or any other entity whatsoever or any 
combination of such, jointly or severally. 

(423) “Pesticide” means a general term used to describe any substance - usually chemical - used to destroy or 
control organisms; includes herbicides, insecticides, algicides, fungicides, and others. Many of these 
substances are manufactured and are not naturally found in the environment. Others, such as pyrethrum, are 
natural toxins that are extracted from plants and animals. chemical used to kill pests, including herbicides, 
insecticides and fungicides. 

(434) “Porous soil types” means soils, as identified by the National Resources Conservation Service, U.S. 
Department of Agriculture, that contain voids, pores, interstices, or other openings which allow the passing of 
water. High permeable soils in Oak Harbor include: Hoypus gravelly loamy sand, Snakelum Course sandy 
loam, Keystone loamy sand and Norma loam. Moderate permeable soils include: Coastal Beach, Made Land, 
Whidbey gravelly sandy loam, Townsend sand loam, and Swantown gravelly sandy loam. 

(445) “Potable water” means water that is safe and palatable for human consumption. 

(456) “Practical alternative” means an alternative that is available and capable of being carried out after taking 
into consideration cost, existing technology, and logistics in light of overall project purposes, and has less 
impacts to critical areas. 

(467) “Primary association area” means the area used on a regular basis by, that is in close association with, or 
is necessary for the proper functioning of the habitat of a species protected under the critical areas regulations 
of this title. “Regular basis” means that the habitat area is normally, or usually, known to contain the species, or 
it is likely to contain the species based on its known habitat requirements. Regular basis is species and 
population dependent. Species that exist in low numbers may be present infrequently yet rely on certain habitat 
types. 

(478) “Priority habitat” means habitat type or elements with unique or significant value to one or more species 
as classified by the State Department of Fish and Wildlife. A priority habitat may consist of a unique vegetation 
type or dominant plant species, a described successional stage, or a specific structural element, as identified in 
WAC 173-26-020. 

(489) “Project area” means all areas within 50 feet of the area proposed to be disturbed, altered, or used by the 
proposed activity or the construction of any proposed structures. When the action binds the land, such as a 
subdivision, short subdivision, binding site plan, planned unit development, or rezone, the project area shall 
include the entire parcel, at a minimum. 

(4950) “Qualified professional” means a person with experience and training in the pertinent scientific 
discipline, and who is a qualified scientific expert with expertise appropriate for the relevant critical area subject 
in accordance with WAC 365-195-905. A qualified professional must have obtained a B.S. or B.A. or equivalent 
degree in biology, engineering, environmental studies, fisheries, geomorphology, or a related field, and have at 
least five years of related work experience. 

(a) A qualified professional for habitats or wetlands must have a degree in biology and professional 
experience related to the subject species. 

(b) A qualified professional for a geological hazard must be a professional engineer or geologist, licensed 
in the state of Washington. 

(c) A qualified professional for critical aquifer recharge areas means a hydrogeologist, geologist, engineer, 
or other scientist with experience in preparing hydrogeologic assessments. 

167

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=173-26-020
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/wac.pl?cite=365-195-905


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 59 of 76 

(501) “Recharge” means the addition water to the zone of saturation process involved in the absorption and 
addition of water to ground water. 

(512) “Repair or maintenance” means an activity that restores the character, scope, size, and design of a 
serviceable area, structure, or land use to its previously authorized and undamaged condition. Activities that 
change the character, size, or scope of a project beyond the original design and drain, dredge, fill, flood, or 
otherwise alter critical areas are not included in this definition. 

(523) “Restoration” means actions performed to reestablish wetland functional characteristics and processes 
that have been lost by alterations, activities, or catastrophic events in an area that no longer meets the 
definition of a wetland. measures taken to restore an altered or damaged natural feature, including: 

(a) Active steps taken to restore damaged wetlands, streams, protected habitat, or their buffers to the 
functioning condition that existed prior to an unauthorized alteration; and 

(b) Actions performed to reestablish structural and functional characteristics of the critical area that have 
been lost by alteration, past management activities, or catastrophic events. 

(534) “Riparian habitat” means areas adjacent to aquatic systems that contain elements of both aquatic and 
terrestrial ecosystems that mutually influence each other. 

(545) “Salmonids” means members of the Salmonidae family of fishes, including regionally important species 
such as salmon, steelhead, and trout. 

(556) “Seeps” means spots where water oozes from the earth, often forming the source of a small stream. 

(567) “Seismic hazard areas” means areas that are subject to severe risk of damage as a result of earthquake-
induced ground shaking, slope failure, settlement, or soil liquefaction. 

(578) “SEPA” means Washington State Environmental Policy Act, Chapter 43.21C RCW. 

(589) “Significant portion of its range” means that portion of a species range likely to be essential to the long-
term survival of the population in Washington. 

(5960) “Significant tree” means a healthy evergreen or deciduous tree 12 inches or more in diameter measured 
four feet above existing grade. 

(601) “Soil survey” means the most recent soil survey for the local area or county by the National Resources 
Conservation Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture. 

(612) “Species” means any group of animals classified as a species or subspecies as commonly accepted by 
the scientific community. 

(623) “Species, endangered” means any fish or wildlife species that is threatened with extinction throughout all 
or a significant portion of its range and is listed by the state or federal government as an endangered species. 

(634) “Species of local importance” means those species of local concern designated by the city of Oak Harbor 
due to their population status or their sensitivity to habitat manipulation, or that are game species. 

(645) “Species, priority” means any fish or wildlife species requiring protective measures and/or management 
guidelines to ensure their persistence at genetically viable population levels as classified by the Washington 
State Department of Fish and Wildlife, including endangered, threatened, sensitive, candidate and monitor 
species, and those of recreational, commercial, or tribal importance. 

(656) “Species, threatened” means any fish or wildlife species that is likely to become an endangered species 
within the foreseeable future throughout a significant portion of its range without cooperative management or 
removal of threats, and is listed by the state or federal government as a threatened species. 

168

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=43.21C


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 60 of 76 

(667) “Steep slope” means slopes of 40 percent gradient or steeper within a vertical elevation change of at 
least ten feet. A slope is delineated by establishing its toe and top, and is measured by averaging the 
inclination over at least ten feet of vertical relief. For the purpose of this definition:  

The toe of a slope is a distinct topographic break in slope that separates slopes inclined at less than 40% from 
slopes 40% or steeper. Where no distinct break exists, the toe of a steep slope is the lowermost limit of the 
area where the ground surface drops ten feet or more vertically within a horizontal distance of 25 feet; AND 
The top of a slope is a distinct topographic break in slope that separates slopes inclined at less than 40% from 
slopes 40% or steeper. Where no distinct break exists, the top of a steep slope is the uppermost limit of the 
area where the ground surface drops ten feet or more vertically within a horizontal distance of 25 feet. 

naturally occurring slopes that rise 10 feet or more for every 25 feet horizontal, with a total vertical relief greater 
than 10 feet. A slope is delineated by establishing its toe and top. Existing slopes modified with engineering 
oversight or in accordance with standard construction industry techniques are not considered steep slopes. 

(68)“Storm Water Management Manual” or “manual” means the Washington State Department of Ecology 2012 
Storm Water Management Manual for Western Washington, as amended in December 2014. 

(679) “Stream” means an area where open surface water produces a defined channel or bed, not including 
irrigation ditches, canals, storm or surface water runoff devices or other entirely artificial watercourses, unless 
they are used by salmonids or are used to convey a watercourse naturally occurring prior to construction. A 
channel or bed need not contain water year-round, provided there is evidence of at least intermittent flow 
during years of normal rainfall. 

(6870) “Topping, tree” means the severing of the main stem of a tree in order to reduce its overall height; 
provided, that no more than 40 percent of the live crown shall be removed. 

(6971) “Trimming, tree” means the pruning or removal of limbs; provided, that the main stem is not severed and 
no more than 40 percent of the live crown is removed. 

(702) “Unavoidable” means adverse impacts that remain after all appropriate and practicable avoidance and 
minimization has been achieved. 

(713) “Unstable slope” means a naturally occurring slope with a gradient between 15 and 39 percent (dividing 
the vertical rise by the horizontal extent), with a total vertical relief greater than 10 feet, where springs or ground 
water seepage is present on the slope. Existing slopes modified with engineering oversight or in accordance 
with standard construction industry techniques are not considered unstable slopes. 

(724) “Wetlands” means those areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or ground water at a frequency 
and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation 
typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs, and 
similar areas. Wetlands do not include those artificial wetlands intentionally created from nonwetland sites, 
including, but not limited to, irrigation and drainage ditches, grass-lined swales, canals, detention facilities, 
wastewater treatment facilities, farm ponds, and landscape amenities, or those wetlands created after July 1, 
1990, that were unintentionally created as a result of the construction of a road, street, or highway. Wetlands 
may include those artificial wetlands intentionally created from nonwetland areas to mitigate the conversion of 
wetlands. 

(735) “Wetland mitigation bank” means a site where wetlands are restored, created, enhanced, or in 
exceptional circumstances, preserved expressly for the purpose of providing advance mitigation to compensate 
for future, permitted impacts to similar resources. 

(746) “Wetland mosaic” means an area with a concentration of multiple small wetlands, in which each patch of 
wetland is less than one acre; on average, patches are less than 100 feet from each other; and areas 
delineated as vegetated wetland are more than 50 percent of the total area of the entire mosaic, including 
uplands and open water. (Ord. 1440 § 1, 2005). 
 
Section Seventy-Six. Section 20.16.010 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

169



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 61 of 76 

 
20.16.010 Harm prohibited. 

(1) No person shall remove, top, damage, destroy, break, injure, mutilate or kill any oak tree or permit any 
animal under his control to do so or to permit any toxic chemicals to seep, drain or empty onto or about any oak 
tree, except as allowed by this chapter. 

(2) During building or construction operations, suitable protective barriers shall be erected around oak trees 
and shrubs which may be subject to injury. 

(3) No paving or hard surface area shall be allowed within the drip line of an oak tree to the maximum extent 
possible. An administrative variance may allow paving or hard surface on up to 25 percent of the area within 
the drip line when there is no practical alternative. (Ord. 1441 § 1, 2005). 

Section Seventy-Seven. Section 20.28.020(1)(c) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

(c) Grading and Erosion Control Plan. The plan shall be prepared by a qualified professional and shall 
include: 

(i) A schedule showing when each stage of the project will be completed, and estimate starting and 
completion dates, limiting the time that soil is exposed and unprotected to the shortest possible period. 

(ii) Measures to be taken for slope stabilization and erosion control, using best management practices 
as contained in the Washington State Department of Ecology’s 2005 Stormwater Management Manual 
for Western Washington manual: Volume II, Construction Stormwater Pollution Prevention (Publication 
No. 05-10-032 14-10-055), or future updated publications or other methodology as approved by the 
director. 
 

Section Seventy-Eight. Section 20.28.040 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

20.28.040 Modifications and flexibility. 
Minor alterations on steep or unstable slopes or associated setbacks may be allowed by the director where all 
of the following standards have been met: 

(1) A site assessment has been submitted showing that the proposal will have no adverse impact on the 
stability or erosion susceptibility of the slope; 

(2) The impacted area totals no more than 20 percent of the entire site; 

(3) The modification will not increase surface water discharge or sedimentation to adjacent properties or critical 
areas beyond predevelopment conditions; 

(4) The activity will not adversely impact other critical areas; 

(5) The development will not decrease slope stability on adjacent properties; and 

(6) Stormwater runoff from any new impervious surface shall be collected in a detention system and directed to 
an enclosed drainage system. Where minor additions of less than 1,000 square feet of new impervious areas 
are proposed to existing developed properties that do not have detention facilities, the stormwater runoff shall 
be directed to the city’s storm drainage system or be designed for natural infiltration or dispersion. At no time 
shall concentrated stormwater runoff be allowed to flow directly over a steep or unstable slope or impact a 
neighboring property. (Ord. 1440 § 5, 2005). 

Section Seventy-Nine. Section 20.28.060 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

20.28.060 Seasonal restriction and best management practices. 

170



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 62 of 76 

Clearing and grading within the wet weather months (October through April) shall be allowed in or adjacent to 
geologically sensitive areas only with the approval of the director. The developer shall fully implement a wet 
weather construction plan using at a minimum the current best management practices as contained in the 
Washington State Department of Ecology’s 2005 Stormwater Management Manual for Western Washington 
manual: Volume II, Construction Stormwater Pollution Prevention (Publication No. 05-10-032 14-10-055), or 
future updated publication. If the wet weather construction plan is not implemented or turbid water leaves the 
site, construction shall be stopped immediately until proper erosion control devices are implemented and 
established. Best management practices include, but are not limited to: 

(1) Exposed soils shall be protected from the forces of rain and flowing water within two days during the winter 
season and seven days during the summer season. 

(2) Erosion control devices shall include as appropriate silt fences, straw mats, bay bails, filter fabrics, plastic 
sheeting, mulch, retention of vegetative buffers, and soil stabilization plant materials. 

(3) Development shall be phased to limit the area of exposed soils to no more than two acres at a time. 

(4) Water flows shall be directed away from steep or unstable slopes. At no time shall water be allowed to flow 
freely over steep or unstable slopes. 

(5) Vegetation removal or planting on steep slopes shall be conducted by hand or by nonimpacting procedures 
as approved by the director. Heavy equipment shall not be allowed on steep or unstable slopes. (Ord. 1440 
§ 5, 2005). 
 
Section Eighty. Section 20.32.030 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
20.32.030 Critical areas report. 
(1) For all regulated activities, the applicant shall submit a report describing the best management practices to 
be used to minimize the risk of aquifer contamination. At a minimum, these practices shall include those 
recommended by the Washington State Department of Ecology in its 2005 Stormwater Management Manual 
for Western Washington manual: Volume IV, Source Control BMPs (Publication No. 05-10-032 14-10-055) or 
future updated publications, as applicable, and shall comply with requirements in the Washington 
Administrative Code for the proposed activity. 
 
Section Eighty-One. Section 21.10.010 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

21.10.010 Purpose. 
This title shall be known as the “subdivision ordinance of the city of Oak Harbor, Washington.” The purpose of 
this title is to regulate the subdivision of land and to promote the public health, safety and general welfare in 
accordance with the standards established by the state in Chapter 58.17 RCW as now or hereafter amended 
and the city and to: 

(1) Provide for the expeditious review and approval of proposed land divisions which comply with this title, the 
Oak Harbor zoning ordinance, other city plans, policies and land use controls, and Chapter 58.17 RCW; 

(2) Promote safe and convenient traffic circulation; 

(3) Facilitate adequate provision for water, sewerage, drainage, parks and recreational areas, sites for schools 
and school grounds, and other public requirements; 

(4) Provide for proper ingress and egress; 

(5) Adequately provide for the housing and commercial needs of the citizens of the state and city; 

(6) Require uniform monumenting of land divisions and conveyance by accurate legal description; 

171

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=58.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=58.17


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 63 of 76 

(7) Provide for convenient and safe pedestrian and bicycle movement; 

(8) Promote the integration of new residential neighborhoods with developed areas of the community; 

(9) Encourage Require, where feasible, environmentally sound low impact development techniques to manage 
stormwater; 

(10) Facilitate development that is aesthetically appealing and appropriate for the community; and 

(11) Implement the goals, objectives and policies of the Oak Harbor comprehensive plan. (Ord. 1617 § 1, 2011; 
Ord. 1568 § 3, 2010). 
 
Section Eighty-Two. Section 21.10.070 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.10.070 Definitions. 
Words used in the present tense shall include the future tense; the future tense shall include the present tense. 
The singular shall include the plural; the plural shall include the singular. The words “may” and “should” are 
permissive; “shall” is mandatory. 

(1) “Alley” means a public or private right-of-way, a minimum of 20 feet in width, which affords a secondary 
access to abutting property. 

(2) “Block” means a group of lots, tracts, or parcels surrounded by public rights-of-way or easements for 
pedestrian/bike travel. 

(3) “Block length” means the perimeter distance around a block, divided by two. 

(4) “Binding site plan” means a drawing to a scale specified by Chapter 21.80 OHMC which: 

(a) Identifies and shows the areas and locations of all streets, roads, improvements, utilities, open spaces, 
and any other matters specified by local regulations; 

(b) Contains inscriptions or attachments setting forth such appropriate limitations and conditions for the use 
of the land as are established by the city; and 

(c) Contains provisions requiring development to be in conformity with the site plan. 

(5) “Building” means any structure used or intended for supporting or sheltering a continuous use. 

(6) “Building setback line” means a line parallel to the front property line in front of which no structure shall be 
erected. The location of such line shall be determined from the regulations of the zoning ordinance of the city. 

(7) “City” means the city of Oak Harbor. 

(8) “City engineer” means the duly appointed engineer for the city. 

(9) “City finance director” means the duly appointed treasurer and finance director for the city. 

(10) “Comprehensive plan” means the coordinated land use policy statement of the city adopted pursuant to 
RCW 36.70A.030(4). 

(11) “Controlling corner” means all angle points of the perimeter of a subdivision or separate divisions of a 
subdivision. 

(12) “Council” means the city council of the city. 

(13) “County assessor” means the duly elected county assessor for the county. 

172

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1617.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2180.html#21.80
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=36.70A.030


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 64 of 76 

(14) “County auditor” means the duly elected county auditor for the county. 

(15) “County engineer” means the duly appointed county engineer for the county. 

(16) “County treasurer” means the duly elected county treasurer for the county. 

(17) “Dedication” means the deliberate appropriation of land by an owner for any general and public use, 
reserving to him/her no other rights than such as are compatible with the full exercise and enjoyment of the 
public uses to which the property has been devoted. The intention to dedicate shall be evidenced by the owner 
by the presentment for filing of a final or short plat showing the dedication thereon and the acceptance by the 
public shall be evidenced by the approval of such plat for filing by the city. 

(18) “Director” means the duly appointed director of development services for the city. 

(19) “Engineer” means a registered professional engineer licensed to practice engineering in the state of 
Washington. 

(20) “Grid street pattern” means a street layout characterized by rectangular blocks and four-way intersections 
with streets meeting at right angles. This street pattern is also characterized by no or very few dead ends. 

(21) “Modified grid street pattern” means a street layout characterized by rectangular blocks. This street pattern 
is distinguished from a grid street pattern by a mix of three-way and four-way intersections with streets meeting 
at right angles. 

(22) “Health department” means the county department of health. 

(23) “Low impact development” or “LID” means a stormwater management and land development strategy 
applied at the parcel and subdivision scale that emphasizes conservation and use of on-site existing natural 
site features integrated with engineered, small hydrologic distributed, small-scale stormwater controls to more 
closely mimic pre-development hydrologic functions natural hydrologic patterns in residential, commercial, and 
industrial settings. 

(24) “Lot” means a fractional part of subdivided land having fixed boundaries being of sufficient area and 
dimension to meet minimum zoning requirements for width and area. The term shall include “plots” and 
“parcels.” 

(a) “Corner lot” means a lot which abuts on two or more intersecting streets; 

(b) “Interior lot” means a lot which has frontage on one street only; 

(c) “Through lot” means a lot other than a corner lot abutting more than one street. 

(25) “Metes and bounds” means a description of real property which starts at a known point of beginning and 
describes the bearings and distances of the lines forming the boundaries of the property, and is completed 
when the description returns to the point of beginning. 

(26) “Mid-block connection” is a thoroughfare connecting two sides of a residential block, usually located near 
the middle of said block and intended for pedestrian and bicycle use. 

(27) “Monument” means an object used to permanently mark a surveyed location. The size, shape and design 
of the monument is to be in accordance with standards specified by the city engineer. 

(28) “Open space” means a portion of land excluding building sites and parking areas which is designated and 
maintained as an area for leisure, recreation and other activities normally carried on outdoors. Open space may 
include greenbelt and recreational areas. 

(29) “Pavement width” means the actual paved surface measured from edge to edge of streets or alley road 
surface. 

173



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 65 of 76 

(30) “Pipe stem lot,” also called a “panhandle” lot, is defined as a parcel of land which resembles a rectangle 
with a lot taken out of a corner or corners leaving the remainder with considerably less width on the front lot line 
than the width at the rear of the parcel. 

(31) “Planning commission,” also referred to as the “commission,” means the appointed planning commission 
of the city. 

(32) “Plat” means a map or representation of a subdivision, showing thereon the division of a tract or parcel of 
land into lots, blocks, streets and alleys or other divisions and dedications. 

(a) “Preliminary plat” means a neat and accurately scaled drawing of a proposed subdivision showing the 
general layout of streets and alleys, lots, blocks, and other elements, which shall furnish a basis for the 
approval or disapproval of the subdivision. 

(b) “Final plat” means the final drawing of the subdivision and dedication prepared for recording with the 
county auditor and containing all elements and requirements in Chapter 58.17 RCW and the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code. 

(c) “Redivision” means a map or representation of a subdivision showing thereon the division of a tract or 
parcel of platted land into two or more lots, blocks, streets, and alleys or other divisions and dedications. 

(d) “Short plat” means the map or representation of a short subdivision. 

(33) “Plat certificate” means a title report by a title insurance company certifying the ownership, deed 
restrictions, covenants, etc., of the land being subdivided. 

(34) “Right-of-way” or “R/W” means a strip of land deeded or dedicated to the city for street, utility and/or 
drainage purposes. 

(35) “Short subdivision” means the division or redivision of land into nine or less lots, tracts, parcels, or 
divisions for the purpose of sale or lease. 

(36) “Storm Water Management Manual” or “manual” means the Washington State Department of Ecology 
2012 Storm Water Management Manual for Western Washington, as amended in December 2014. 

(367) “Street” means a dedicated and accepted public right-of-way for vehicular traffic. The word “street” 
includes the words “road,” “drive,” “boulevard” or “way.” 

(a) “Arterial street” means an existing or proposed roadway designated as a “principal” or “minor” arterial 
within the transportation element of the comprehensive plan. 

(b) “Collector street” means an existing or proposed roadway designated as a “collector” or “collector, 
industrial” in the transportation element of the comprehensive plan. 

(c) “Cul-de-sac” means a turnaround at the termination of a dead-end street designed in such a manner as 
to provide for the safe and convenient reversal of traffic movement. 

(d) “Dead-end street” means a local street whose continuation is not required by the city for access to 
adjoining properties. For the purposes of this title, eyebrow or crescent turnarounds are not considered to 
be dead ends. 

(e) “Local or minor access street” means a street providing vehicular access to abutting properties. 

(f) “Private street” means a privately owned right-of-way which provides access for up to nine residential 
units and meets the requirements of this title. 

(g) “Shared drive” means a privately owned right-of-way for vehicular access for a maximum of four 
residential units and meets the requirements of this title. 

174

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=58.17


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 66 of 76 

(378) “Street and utility standards of the city” shall consist of the requirements contained in the standard 
drawings and documents as specified by the city engineer which are on file with the city clerk. 

(389) “Subdivider” means any person, firm or corporation who subdivides or develops any land deemed to be a 
subdivision. 

(3940) “Subdivision” means the division or redivision of land into 10 or more lots, tracts, parcels, sites or 
divisions for the purpose of sale or lease and includes all resubdivision of land. 

(401) “Surveyor” means a registered professional land surveyor licensed to practice surveying in the state of 
Washington. 

(412) “Tract” is a nonbuildable unit of land created by a subdivision, short subdivision, deed, or other instrument 
recorded with the appropriate county recorder. Tracts are usually held in common by the owners of an 
organization, such as a homeowners’ association, for common benefit and are not required to meet minimum 
lot size and dimensional requirements of the applicable zone. (Ord. 1617 § 1, 2011; Ord. 1568 § 3, 2010). 

 
 
Section Eighty-Three. Section 21.20.020 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
21.20.020 Application and submission requirements. 

(1) The preliminary plat shall be prepared, stamped and signed by a licensed land surveyor. 

(2) The preparer shall, by placing his or her signature and seal upon the face of the plat, certify that all 
information is portrayed accurately and that the proposed subdivision complies with the standards and 
requirements of this title, the Oak Harbor zoning ordinance, and any other applicable land use and 
development controls. 

(3) The preliminary plat must be prepared in accordance with the following minimum requirements: 

(a) The preliminary plat shall be reproducible; 

(b) All geographic information portrayed by the preliminary plat shall be accurate, legible, and drawn to an 
engineering (decimal) scale; 

(c) The horizontal scale of a preliminary plat shall be 100 feet or fewer to the inch, except that the vicinity 
sketch and typical street cross sections may be drawn to any other appropriate scale; and 

(d) A preliminary plat shall be 24 inches by 36 inches in size, and if more than one sheet is needed, each 
sheet shall be numbered consecutively and an index sheet showing the entire property and orienting the 
other sheets, at any appropriate scale, shall be provided. 

(4) The preliminary plat must include the following information: 

(a) Name of proposed plat; 

(b) Name, address and phone number of the subdivider (owner) and the name, address and phone 
number and seal of the surveyor preparing the plat; 

(c) An accurate and complete legal description of the area being platted; 

(d) All parcels of land intended to be dedicated or temporarily reserved for public use and the conditions 
attached thereto shall be accurately indicated; 

(e) The lines and names of all streets and other public ways, pedestrian/bicycle connections, parks, 
playgrounds and easements intended to be dedicated for public use and/or common areas granted for use 
of inhabitants of the subdivision; 

175

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1617.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 67 of 76 

(f) There shall be a vicinity sketch at a scale of not more than 800 feet to the inch showing the proposed 
plat in relation to surrounding land. All platted or public rights-of-way for a distance of at least a quarter mile 
shall be shown, and additional area shall be illustrated, if necessary, to show connecting streets or 
arterials; 

(g) Monuments found and established during the preliminary survey; 

(h) Names and addresses of all land owners contiguous to the proposed plat; 

(i) Present zoning classification on and adjacent to the proposed plat; 

(j) Date, scale, north arrow and lot lines; and 

(k) All mapped information shall be prepared in a neat and legible manner. 

(5) On a separate sheet of paper from the preliminary plat map, a site plan showing the following: 

(a) Name of plat; 

(b) Topography of the area with maximum five-foot contour intervals; 

(c) City datum shall be used; 

(d) Location of all utilities and sizing of existing and proposed public utilities, including but not limited to fire 
hydrants, water, sewer, storm drains, electricity, gas, telephone and cablevision lines, mail boxes; and 

(e) Existing structures and natural features and all proposed and existing improvements within and 
adjoining the proposed subdivision as required by the design standards contained in 
Chapters 21.50 and 21.60 OHMC. 

 (6) A landscape plan showing all of the following: 

(a) All buffers, screening, native vegetation and/or tree retention areas, fences and hedges required by 
Chapter 19.46 OHMC; 

(b) Landscaping around stormwater ponds as required by this title; 

(c) Any landscaping required in the public right-of-way or pedestrian/bicycle connections, including 
location, type and spacing of street trees; and 

(d) Locations of light fixtures in pedestrian/bicycle connections and along all streets. 

(7) An environmental checklist and review fee shall be required in accordance with city ordinance upon the 
submittal of a preliminary plat. 

(8) A copy of any deed restrictions or protective covenants existing or proposed. 

(9) Low impact development (LID) site analysis. The site analysis shall include: 

(a) a soils report prepared by a licensed geotechnical engineer or licensed engineering geologist; 

(b) preliminary drainage report in conformance with OHMC Title 12; and,   

(c) description of the proposed complete LID project including: 

(i) Project narrative showing how the project will fulfill the requirement for on-site management of 
stormwater to the maximum extent feasible; 

(ii) Total area of designated development area; 

176

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2150.html#21.50
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2160.html#21.60
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1946.html#19.46


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 68 of 76 

(iii) Listing and extent of each LID BMP to be used. Explanation and documentation for any 
determination that an LID BMP was considered infeasible for the site, or a statement that the site will 
achieve the LID performance standard; 

(iv) Maximum hard surfaces proposed for the development; 

(v) Total area of hard surface and effective hard surface and how proposed drainage plan reduces (to 
the maximum extent) or eliminates effective impervious area. 

(910) Any additional materials, supporting documentation, and fees necessary to fulfill the requirements of 
other applicable municipal standards defined in the Oak Harbor Municipal Code. (Ord. 1617 § 2, 2011; Ord. 
1568 § 4, 2010). 

Section Eighty-Four. Section 21.30.010 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
21.30.010 Purpose and applicability. 
The purpose of construction plans is to document that the specific construction details for all public and private 
improvements such as, but not limited to, streets, sewer, water, storm sewer and stormwater facilities, 
pedestrian/bicycle connections, landscape strips, and sidewalks, required as part of preliminary plat or short 
subdivision approval, and ensure that they will be built according to city standards. 

Construction plans are required of all projects which seek to divide land and create parcels, tracts, or lots 
through the subdivision or short subdivision process. (Ord. 1568 § 5, 2010). 
 
Section Eighty-Five. Section 21.30.020(3)(a) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
21.30.020 Construction plans – Engineering review. 
(3) After the city engineer has approved the construction plans and specifications, the subdivider may then 
proceed as follows: 

(a) Prior to the submission of a final plat for approval, all streets, alleys, sidewalks, pedestrian/bike 
connections, landscaping, storm management facilities drainage, utilities, monumentation, street lights, 
trees, and any other improvements specified in this title shall be installed and completed by the subdivider 
to the satisfaction of the city engineer and in conformance with this chapter; 

 
Section Eighty-Six. Section 21.40.030 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.40.030 Application requirements. 
(1) The application for the final plat shall include all of the following: 

(a) A reasonable application processing fee in accordance with RCW 82.02.020 to cover the cost of 
processing the application as set out in the city’s comprehensive permit fee list. 

(b) The final plat map meeting the requirements of Chapter 58.17 RCW, including certifications, 
dedications and title reports. Every plat containing a dedication filed for record must be accompanied by a 
title report confirming that the title of the lands as described and shown on said plat is in the name of the 
owners signing the certificate or instrument of dedication. 

(c) A recordable survey and surveyor’s signature meeting the requirements of Chapter 58.09 RCW and 
RCW 58.17.250. 

(d) The subdivider’s engineer shall provide cost information for construction and installation of all 
improvements including but not limited to the following: 

(i) Water Mains and Appurtenances. Total cost by size and number of feet and the cost of any other 
associated improvement by item, including water services; 

177

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1617.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=82.02.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=58.17
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=58.09
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=58.17.250


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 69 of 76 

(ii) Storm Drains and management facilities. Total cost by size and number of feet; Total cost of low 
impact development BMP’s; 

(iii) Sanitary Sewer. Total cost by size and number of feet; 

(iv) Streets. Total cost by size and number of feet; 

(v) Pedestrian/bike connections. Total cost by size and number of feet; 

(vi) Landscaping, including street trees. Total cost; 

(vii) Other on- or off-site improvements as required. 

(2) The application and number of prints as set forth on the application of the final plat shall be submitted to the 
director along with the original signed by the owner and registered land surveyor. (Ord. 1568 § 6, 2010). 

Section Eighty-Seven. Section 21.40.040(2) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
21.40.040(2) Prescribed form. 
(2) Specific Requirements. The final plat shall clearly show the following information: 

(a) The lines and names of all streets and other public ways, pedestrian/bike connections, parks, 
playgrounds and easements intended to be dedicated for public use and/or common areas granted for use 
of inhabitants of the subdivision; 

(b) The lines and names of all existing or platted streets or other public ways, pedestrian/bike connections, 
parks, playgrounds and easements adjacent to the subdivision, including municipal boundaries, township 
lines, and section lines; 

(c) The lengths and bearings of all straight lines, curve radii, curve delta, arcs and semitangents (where 
appropriate) of all curves; 

(d) All bearings and dimensions along the lines of each lot together with any other data necessary for the 
location of any lot lines in the field. All bearings shall be referenced to the Washington Coordinate 
Systems, North Zone; 

(e) All easements and associated restrictions and maintenance provisions; 

(f) Building setbacks; 

(g) Tracts or areas set aside for environmental protection, tree and native vegetation retention and 
protection, community open space, common stormwater infiltration areas, common access or any other 
restricted use with associated restrictions and maintenance provisions clearly defined; 

(h) The area of all lots and tracts expressed in square feet; 

(i) Suitable primary control points, approved by the city engineer, on descriptions and ties to such control 
points, to which all dimensions, angles, bearings and similar data given on the plat shall be referred; 

(j) The location of all permanent monuments; 

(k) The names of all subdivisions immediately adjacent thereto; 

(l) The date, north arrow, scale, datum plane, and date of survey; 

(m) The boundary of the tract with the courses and distances marked thereon as determined by a field 
survey made by a registered land surveyor of the state; 

178



Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 70 of 76 

(n) A vicinity sketch map of approximately 800 feet to the inch; 

(o) Street names; and 

(p) The stamp and signature of a surveyor licensed in the state of Washington. 
 
Section Eighty-Eight. Section 21.40.040(6)(a) is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
21.40.040(6)(a) Prescribed form. 
(6) Document Forms. All final plats shall contain the elements listed in RCW 58.17.160. In addition, the final 
plat shall contain the legal description of the subdivision and easement provision, a dedication, 
acknowledgments, and other statements, in substantially the form as follows: 

(a) Easements (Sample Utility Easement). 

An easement is reserved for and granted to (the names of all the utilities, public and private, serving the area) and 
their respective successors and assigns under and upon the exterior ten (10) feet of front boundary lines of all lots 
and tracts, in which to install, lay, construct, renew, operate, maintain and remove utility and stormwater systems, 
lines, fixtures and appurtenances attached thereto, for the purpose of providing utility services to the subdivision and 
other property, together with the right to enter upon the lots and tracts at all times for the purposes stated, with the 
understanding that any grantee shall be responsible for all unnecessary damage it causes to any real property owner 
in the subdivision by exercise of rights and privileges herein granted. 
 
Section Eighty-Nine. Section 21.50.040(1) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.50.040 Waiver of requirements – Procedure. 
(1) Any subdivider can make application for a waiver from one or more of the design standards contained in 
this chapter, provided the request is received concurrently with the proposed subdivision, short subdivision, 
binding site plan or dedication. In addition, the waiver process described in this section may be used to vary 
from the residential design standards in Chapter 21.60 OHMC. A waiver shall be granted only upon a finding 
that strict compliance with the provisions for subdivision, short subdivision, binding site plan or dedication would 
cause unusual and unnecessary hardship on the subdivider due to the following: 

(a) Because of the size of the tract to be subdivided; or 

(b) Its topography or underlying soil conditions; or 

(c) The condition or nature of adjoining areas; or 

(d) The existence of unusual physical conditions. 

Section Ninety. Section 21.50.050(3) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.50.050(3) General improvement standards. 
The standards of this section shall apply generally throughout the city of Oak Harbor. 

 (3) Drainage Stormwater. 

(a) All drainage in and through the subdivision shall be the responsibility of the subdivider Stormwater 
management within the subdivision shall be in conformance with manual, when feasible. 

(b) The subdivider may divert or enclose the natural drainage in his subdivision after providing a drainage 
system approved by the city engineer. The subdivider shall bear all costs associated with diverting or 
enclosing natural drainage and such alterations shall comply with OHMC Title 20. 

179

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=58.17.160
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2160.html#21.60
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor20/OakHarbor20.html#20


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 71 of 76 

(cb) All drainage within street rights-of-way must be contained in underground pipes and culverts except 
where permitted in gutters, or where low impact development (“LID”) stormwater management facilities are 
approved by the city The city engineer may determine LID infiltration and bioretention is infeasible without 
the infiltration testing required by the manual when infiltration and bioretention is known to the City to be 
infeasible due to any of the following: 
(i)   soil conditions; 
(ii)  presence of geologically hazardous areas that would be made unstable by infiltration; 
(iii) presence of significant naturally occurring groundwater; 
(iv) conformance with any competing need established under Section 5.3.1, Volume V of the manual; or, 
(v)  conformance with any infeasibility criteria established under Section 7.4, Volume V of the manual. 
 
(dc) Where required, the subdivider shall design and install storm drain detention or infiltration systems 
When infiltration and biofiltration practices are determined infeasible, alternative methods of stormwater 
conveyance and treatment shall be in conformance with requirements established in the manual. 

(e) Alternate drainage structures, facilities and conveyances, such as LID techniques, may be acceptable 
where soil conditions permit, subject to approval by the city engineer. 

(fd) For maintenance purposes, all stormwater detention or treatment facilities shall be placed in a tract, 
unless located within a public right-of-way. 

 
Section Ninety-One. Section 21.50.050(4) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.50.050(4) General improvement standards. 
The standards of this section shall apply generally throughout the city of Oak Harbor. 
(4) Streets. 

(a) Paved streets, sidewalks, landscape strips and concrete curbs and gutters shall be required on all 
dedicated street rights-of-way in all subdivisions, unless an alternative design has been approved in 
accordance with OHMC 21.60.070 and 21.60.080. LID alternatives such as permeable surfacing and on-
site stormwater management facilities are encouraged where site and soil conditions make these feasible 
alternatives. All improvements shall be constructed in conformance with city street and utility standards 
and, when applicable, the “LID Technical Guidance Manual for Puget Sound” (Puget Sound Action Team, 
January 2005 current eEdition). 
 
(b) The improvements shall be made from intersection to intersection, intersection to subdivision boundary, 
or from subdivision boundary to subdivision boundary. 

(c) All streets, roads and alleys shall be graded to their full width so that pavement and sidewalks can be 
constructed on the same plane. Before grading is started, the entire right-of-way area shall be cleared of all 
stumps, roots, brush and other objectionable materials, and all trees not intended for preservation. 

(d) On streets where a proposed subdivision adjoins an existing subdivision or existing street dedication 
and the existing subdivision or existing street dedication does not meet city standards, the subdivider shall, 
as a minimum, be responsible for installing paved streets, sidewalks, curbs, gutters, landscape strips, 
street trees, monuments, sanitary and storm sewers, street lights, water mains, and street name signs on 
both sides of all streets within the subdivision and on one side on streets around the perimeter of the 
proposed subdivision. Any partial street improvements required on the perimeter of a subdivision shall be 
designed to allow for two-way vehicular traffic where reasonably necessary as a direct result of the creation 
of the subdivision. 
 
(e) In subdivisions of 10 lots or more, one public parking space per single family residential unit shall be 
provided. This ratio may be reduced to a minimum of one public parking space per two units if additional 
on-parcel parking is provided under the following condition. For each public parking space reduced less 
than one per unit, a unit shall provide five on-parcel parking spaces with up to three garage spaces 
counted as part of the five. 

 
Section Ninety-Two. Section 21.50.070(1) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

180

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2160.html#21.60.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2160.html#21.60.080


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 72 of 76 

21.50.070(1) Streets – Required improvements. 
(1) Table 21.50-1 gives the minimum required dimensional standards for each functional street type listed in the 
transportation element of the Oak Harbor comprehensive plan. All public rights-of-way proposed within 
subdivisions, short subdivisions or binding site plans must conform to the requirements in Table 21.50-1, 
unless an alternative local residential street design has been approved in accordance with 
OHMC 21.60.070 or 21.60.080. 

Table 21.50-1 
 

Required Street Improvements  

Street Type 
Right-
of-Way 
Width* 

Face of Curb to Face of 
Curb Width 

Sidewalk 
Width 
Each 
Side 

Landscape Strip Width Each 
Side 

Bike 
Lane 
Width 
Each 
Side 

Principal Arterial,  
4-lane 

97 – 
105 feet 

52 feet without bike lanes, 60 
feet with bike lanes. 
Landscaped median is 12 feet 

8 feet 12 feet 4 feet 

Minor Arterial,  
2-lane 

80 feet 47 feet, with 11-foot center 
turn-lane 

5 feet 10.5 feet 5 feet 

Minor Arterial, 
Industrial 
(enterprise area) 

60 feet 38 feet None 6 feet (bioswale) 4 feet 

Collector with 
Bike Lanes 

66 feet 48 feet 5 feet 3 feet 5 feet 

Collector, 
Industrial 

50 feet 26 feet None 6 feet (bioswale) 4 feet, 
one side 

Local Residential, 
Narrow 

50 feet 28 feet with one parking lane, 
or 28 feet including two 4-foot 
bike lanes and no parking 

5 feet 5 feet 4 feet, 
optional 

Local Residential, 
Wide 

60 feet 36 feet parking on both sides, 
or 36 feet with parking on one 
side and 4-foot bike lanes on 
both sides 

5 feet 5 feet 4 feet, 
optional 

Local LID Street 
#1 

50 feet 20 feet (two 10-foot travel 
lanes) 

5 feet 8-foot planter strip on elevated 
side. 10-foot utility corridor on 
basin side. Bioretention outside 
of right-of-way 

None 

Local LID Street 
#2 

60 feet 28.5 feet, with one 8.5-foot 
parking lane on basin side of 
street 

5 feet 9.5-foot planter strip on 
elevated side. 10-foot utility 
strip on basin side. Bioretention 
outside of right-of-way 

None 

Alley 20 19 feet** None None None 

* All street types include a six-inch strip at the outside edge of the physical improvements, but within the right-of-way, 
with the exception of the “Minor Arterial, Industrial” which has a one-foot strip on the outside edge of right-of-way, 
the “Collector, Industrial” which has a four-foot strip on the outside edge of right-of-way, and the “Local LID Street 
#2” which has a one-foot strip on the outside edge of right-of-way. 

** Sixteen-foot width pavement sections may be used as approved on alleys by the city engineer. 

181

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2160.html#21.60.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2160.html#21.60.080


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 73 of 76 

Note: All streets include six-inch curbs not shown in the dimensions above, with the exception of alleys which do not 
have curbs. 

 

Section Ninety-Three. Section 21.50.100(1) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.50.100 Lot dimensions. 
The following requirements address the size and shape of lots created as part of subdivisions or short 
subdivisions and are intended to create a well ordered and efficient arrangement of lots. 

(1) Every lot shall have a minimum width of 650 feet at the building line. All lots which do not have a width of 
650 feet at the setback line as referenced under the applicable zoning ordinance shall indicate on the face of 
the final plat the location of said building line. 

Section Ninety-Four. Section 21.60.040 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.60.040 Blocks – Configuration. 
Blocks shall be deep enough to allow two tiers of lots, except where: 

(1) There is an abutting principal or minor arterial defined in the transportation element of the comprehensive 
plan; 

(2) The location and extent of environmental constraints prevents a two-tiered lot arrangement; 

(3) Unusual shape or small size of the lot prevents a two-tiered lot arrangement; 

(4) A single-tiered lot arrangement may be permitted on the boundary of a residential subdivision or short 
subdivision bordering existing nonresidential development; 

(5) Prior to approval of a single-tier lot configuration based on exceptions in subsection (1), (2) or (3) of this 
section, the proponent has demonstrated to the city that a different layout or provision of an alley system is not 
feasible. (Ord. 1617 § 4, 2011; Ord. 1568 § 8, 2010). 

(6) Clustering and lot densification is utilized to incorporate preservation of native vegetation and the use of 
stormwater low impact development techniques. 
 
Section Ninety-Five. Section 21.60.070(1) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.60.070(1) Local residential streets – Adjustment application for alternative designs. 
The director may, at the request of an applicant, allow adjustments under a Type II review process to the local 
residential street sections specified in Table 21.50-1, Required Street Improvements, in residential 
subdivisions. If an adjustment is requested, it must meet both provisions in subsections (1) and (2) of this 
section. 

(1) All of the “essential elements” continue to be provided in the street design. Essential elements are: 

(a) Pedestrian facilities must be provided on both sides of the street unless the utilization of low impact 
development in the form of adjacent biofiltration facilities prevents functional application of this 
requirement. Pedestrian facilities must be a minimum of five feet in width, but need to be either concrete 
(pervious or impervious) or hard-packed gravel. However, hard-packed gravel surfaces may only be 
provided adjacent to critical areas, and shall not be provided adjacent to residential lots. 

(b) Adequate public parking is provided. In place of on-street parallel parking lanes, applicants for 
residential subdivisions may provide public parking in the form of head-in parking, diagonal parking, 
parking courts, or parking in side alleys. A minimum of one public parking space per two residential units in 
the subdivision must be provided, whether or not parking is provided in on-street parallel spots, or an 

182

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1617.pdf


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 74 of 76 

alternative design (parking courts, parking alleys, etc.) or a combination. Public parking spaces must meet 
the parking space size and access requirements specified in OHMC 19.44.110, with the exception of on-
street parallel spaces which shall be eight feet in width by 20 feet in length. The public parking spaces 
must be interspersed throughout the subdivision or short subdivision and within convenient walking 
distance to all units. 

(c) A landscaping element which has a total dimension of 10 feet in width. The landscape element may be 
one or more landscape strips located within the street section. No single landscape strip may be less than 
three feet in width. Low impact development (LID) bio-retention and stormwater treatment facilities qualify 
as landscaping elements. as long as they are located within the public right-of-way. 

(d) Two minimum 10-foot-wide travel lanes. 

Section Ninety-Six. Section 21.60.180 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.60.180 Landscape buffer – Requirement. 
A landscaped buffer shall be required along all minor arterial roads for a width of at least 25 feet abutting all 
standard residential subdivisions. The purpose of the landscape buffer is to minimize the impact of the roads on 
adjacent residential uses, encourage tree preservation and planting, and to create visually attractive corridors 
along these roadways. The landscape buffer shall be established as a separate tract on the face of the plat. 
The provisions in this section and OHMC 21.60.190 and 21.60.200 do not apply to short subdivisions. 
(Ord. 1617 § 4, 2011; Ord. 1568 § 8, 2010). 
 
Section Ninety-Seven. Section 21.70.040(3) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.70.040(3) Procedure. 
(1) Short subdivisions shall be processed under a Type II review process, in accordance with 
Chapter 18.20 OHMC. 

(2) All applications for short subdivisions shall be submitted to the director and the fee, as established in OHMC 
3.64.500, shall be paid by the applicant prior to processing. 

(3) Inquiry shall be made into the public use and interest proposed to be served by the establishment of the 
short subdivision. The director shall make written findings and shall determine: 

(a) If appropriate provisions are made for, but not limited to, the public health, safety, and general welfare, 
for open spaces, on-site stormwater treatment and infiltration drainage ways, streets or roads, alleys, other 
public ways, transit stops, pedestrian/bike connections, potable water supplies, sanitary wastes, parks and 
recreation, playgrounds, schools and schoolgrounds; and 

(b) Consider all other relevant facts, including sidewalks and other planning features that assure safe 
walking conditions for students who walk to and from school; and 

(c) Ensure that the proposed design meets the general design standards and the residential design 
standards (if applicable) of this title; and 

(d) Consider the characteristics of the proposal and its conformance to the policies of the Oak Harbor 
comprehensive plan; and 

(e) Whether the public interest will be served by the subdivision and dedication. 

Section Ninety-Eight. Section 21.80.110 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.80.110 Standards for review of commercial and industrial binding site plans. 
The following standards shall apply to commercial and industrial binding site plans: 

183

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor19/OakHarbor1944.html#19.44.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2160.html#21.60.190
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor21/OakHarbor2160.html#21.60.200
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1617.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor18/OakHarbor1820.html#18.20


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 75 of 76 

(1) Division lines between lots in commercial binding site plans shall be considered lot lines under Oak Harbor 
zoning code. 

(2) Each such tract or lot created by such binding site plan shall have one designated front lot line and one rear 
lot line including those which have no street frontage. 

(3) All tracts, parcels and lots created by a binding site plan shall be burdened by an approved maintenance 
agreement maintaining access to the various lots, tracts and parcels and for the cost of maintaining 
landscaping, stormwater facilities, and other common areas. 

(4) When any lot, tract or parcel is created without 30 feet of street frontage, easements shall be given to the 
city allowing access for police, fire, public and private utilities along the access roads to each tract, lot or parcel. 

(5) If the city elects, the city shall be granted a power to maintain the access easements and file liens on the 
property for collection of the costs incurred in maintaining such way. The power to maintain such access ways 
shall impose no duty on the city to maintain the access way. 

(6) The binding site plan shall contain a provision that the owner’s failure to keep the fire access lanes open 
and maintained may subject the property to being abated as a nuisance and the city may terminate occupancy 
of such properties until the access easement ways are adequately maintained. 

(7) Freestanding signage may be off of the tract, parcel or lot where the business is located as long as sign 
requirements are met within the area encompassed by the binding site plan. 

(8) Sufficient parking for each use must be located on the lot where the use is located or joint parking 
agreements must be recorded by the owners for the area of the binding site plan. Prior to building permit 
approval, parking agreements will be reviewed by the director. 

(9) Landscaping requirements will be met for each phase of the binding site plan. Landscaping requirements 
may be met for an area of one or more lots as long as a joint maintenance agreement is recorded or included in 
declaration of covenants.  

(10) Each tract, parcel or lot created by the binding site plan shall provide on-site stormwater management  
consistent with the requirements found in the manual unless stormwater treatment and infiltration may be met 
for an area of one or more lots as long as a joint maintenance agreement is recorded or included in declaration 
of covenants. (Ord. 1657§ 1, 2014; Ord. 1568 § 10, 2010. Formerly 21.80.130). 
 
Section Ninety-Nine. Section 21.80.120 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

21.80.120 Standards for binding site plans for condominium developments regulated by 
Chapter 64.32 and64.34 RCW. 
Development standards for condominiums including residential units or structures shall meet either the 
standards set out in subsection (1) or (2) of this section: 

(1) All lots and development shall meet the minimum requirements of this title as now in effect or hereafter 
amended. Phase or lot lines shall be used as lot lines for setback purposes under the zoning code. 

(2) Condominiums may be developed in phases where ownership of the property is unitary but all structures 
may not be completed at the same time or differing lenders finance separate structures or areas of the 
property. The following conditions shall apply to phased condominiums: 

(a) All areas not within the building envelope are subject to joint use and are burdened by a joint obligation 
to maintain any and all access ways and stormwater facilities. The city shall have no obligation to maintain 
such access ways. 

(b) The city of Oak Harbor shall have an easement for access along and over access ways, common 
areas, and parking areas to allow police, building, fire and utility department personnel to inspect and 

184

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1657.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=64.32
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/rcw.pl?cite=64.34


Ordinance No. 1784 Amending OHMC Title 11, 
Title 12, Title 17, Title 19, Title 20, Title 21  
Page 76 of 76 

observe such property, buildings and activities on the property as well as for providing emergency and law 
enforcement services and easements for utilities over and under such access ways. 

(c) Reciprocal easements for parking shall be provided to all tenants and owners. 

(d) The developer has entered into a development agreement pursuant to Chapter 18.30 OHMC for 
completion of all phases. 

(e) Phase lines must be treated as lot lines for setback purposes under the zoning code unless the 
property owner will place a covenant on the binding site plan that the setback area for built phases, 
contained in all unbuilt phases, shall become common areas and owned by the owners of existing units in 
the built portions of the condominium upon the expiration of the completion schedule described in the 
development agreement pursuant to Chapter 18.30 OHMC. 

(f) All public improvements are guaranteed by bond or other security satisfactory to the city engineer or his 
designee. 

(g) All built phases in a condominium binding site plan shall have joint and several obligation to maintain 
landscaping through covenants or easements or both to assure that the responsibility is shared among the 
various owners.  (Ord. 1657 § 1, 2014; Ord. 1568 § 10, 2010. Formerly 21.80.140). 

Section One Hundred.  Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application of the 
provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
  
Section One Hundred-One.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
five (5) days after publishing. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this ______day of ___________, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
   Veto   (     ) 
   Approve (     ) 
       By       
        Robert Severns, Mayor 
 
       Dated:        
 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Published:        

185

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor18/OakHarbor1830.html#18.30
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/OakHarbor18/OakHarbor1830.html#18.30
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/OakHarbor/html/ords/1657.pdf


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-27: Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee Awards for 
the 2% Grant Applications 

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A.  Adopt Resolution 16-27 approving the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for the 2% Grant
Applications

B.  Authorize the City Administrator to execute the Contracts for Joint 2% Advisory Board with the 
Greater Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce- Marketing 365 and Greater Oak Harbor Chamber of 
Commerce- Operations

(Motion B. is necessary due to the fact that this agenda item seeks to authorize contracts initiating the 2%

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 7. a. 
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-27: Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee Awards for 
the 2% Grant Applications 

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A.  Adopt Resolution 16-27 approving the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for the 2% Grant 
Applications

B.  Authorize the City Administrator to execute the Contracts for Joint 2% Advisory Board with the 
Greater Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce- Marketing 365 and Greater Oak Harbor Chamber of 
Commerce- Operations

(Motion B. is necessary due to the fact that this agenda item seeks to authorize contracts initiating the 2%(Motion B. is necessary due to the fact that this agenda item seeks to authorize contracts initiating the 2%
grant awards that are $30,000.00 or more.  The remaining recipients' contracts that are under 
$30,000.00, do not fall within the requirements set forth in OHMC 2.390.010.)

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On September 6, 2016, the City Council referred to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) for 
consideration the amount of $250,000.00 for the 2017 Lodging Tax 2% Grant Award Program.  This 
action commenced the 45-day waiting period, required by RCW, before City Council can be taken on 
any subsequent recommendations from the LTAC.  A copy of the September 6, 2016 agenda bill is 
attached.

The LTAC met on November 1st, 2016 to approve the minutes of the November 23, 2015 meeting, to 
discuss procedures of the 2017 Grant Year and Duties of the Committee, and to briefly discuss the 2017 
applications received.  

On November 4th, the LTAC met to review the applications received for the 2017 Lodging Tax Grant 
Program and, after review and discussion, developed a recommendation on the use of these funds.  The 
LTAC made their recommendations consistent with the limitations imposed on the use of these funds by

(Motion B. is necessary due to the fact that this agenda item seeks to authorize contracts initiating the 2% 
grant awards that are $30,000.00 or more.  The remaining recipients' contracts that are under 
$30,000.00, do not fall within the requirements set forth in OHMC 2.390.010.)

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On September 6, 2016, the City Council referred to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) for 
consideration the amount of $250,000.00 for the 2017 Lodging Tax 2% Grant Award Program.  This 
action commenced the 45-day waiting period, required by RCW, before City Council can be taken on 
any subsequent recommendations from the LTAC.  A copy of the September 6, 2016 agenda bill is 
attached.

The LTAC met on November 1st, 2016 to approve the minutes of the November 23, 2015 meeting, to 
discuss procedures of the 2017 Grant Year and Duties of the Committee, and to briefly discuss the 2017 
applications received.  

On November 4th, the LTAC met to review the applications received for the 2017 Lodging Tax Grant 
Program and, after review and discussion, developed a recommendation on the use of these funds.  The 
LTAC made their recommendations consistent with the limitations imposed on the use of these funds by 

186



state law.
 
State statute limits the use of lodging tax dollars to the following:

 Tourism marketing;
 The marketing and operations of special events and festivals designed to attract tourists;
 Supporting the operations and capital expenditures of tourism-related facilities owned or operated 

by a municipality or public facilities district; and
 Supporting the operations of tourism-related facilities owned or operated by a nonprofit 

organization.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 67.28 authorizes cities to levy and collect a special excise tax of up to four percent for the 
furnishing of lodging. This statute chapter also requires the City’s legislative body to refer changes in the 
use of the lodging revenues to the LTAC. In turn, the LTAC choose makes recommendations for the use 
of revenue from the list of applicants applying for such funds. The legislative body may choose to make 
awards using the recommended amounts to all, some, or none of the candidates on this list.

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this action will be to authorize the commitment of lodging tax monies in the amount of 
ultimately determined by Council.  City Council may approve the total recommended list in the amount of 
$250,000, may remove items from the recommended list, or may choose to reject the list in its entirety.  
City Council may neither add new items nor adjust the amounts of the recommended items.

state law.
 
State statute limits the use of lodging tax dollars to the following:

 Tourism marketing;
 The marketing and operations of special events and festivals designed to attract tourists;
 Supporting the operations and capital expenditures of tourism-related facilities owned or operated 

by a municipality or public facilities district; and
 Supporting the operations of tourism-related facilities owned or operated by a nonprofit 

organization.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 67.28 authorizes cities to levy and collect a special excise tax of up to four percent for the 
furnishing of lodging. This statute chapter also requires the City’s legislative body to refer changes in the 
use of the lodging revenues to the LTAC. In turn, the LTAC choose makes recommendations for the use 
of revenue from the list of applicants applying for such funds. The legislative body may choose to make 
awards using the recommended amounts to all, some, or none of the candidates on this list.

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this action will be to authorize the commitment of lodging tax monies in the amount of 
ultimately determined by Council.  City Council may approve the total recommended list in the amount of 
$250,000, may remove items from the recommended list, or may choose to reject the list in its entirety.  
City Council may neither add new items nor adjust the amounts of the recommended items.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. LTAC November 1, 2016 Minutes
2. LTAC November 4, 2016 Minutes
3. Resolution 16-27 Lodging Tax Grant Program 2017
4. September 6, 2016 Agenda Bill
5. 2017 LTAC Contract Chamber of Commerce- Marketing 365
6. 2017 LTAC Contract Chamber of Commerce- Operations

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. LTAC November 1, 2016 Minutes
2. LTAC November 4, 2016 Minutes
3. Resolution 16-27 Lodging Tax Grant Program 2017
4. September 6, 2016 Agenda Bill
5. 2017 LTAC Contract Chamber of Commerce- Marketing 365
6. 2017 LTAC Contract Chamber of Commerce- Operations

187

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478560828x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478677814x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478719345x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478731828x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478811969x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478811988x_at.pdf


Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 1, 2016  
Page 1 of 1 

LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
November 1, 2016 – 12:00 p.m. 

 
City Hall – Mayor’s Conference Room 

865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Board Staff 

 
Councilmember Joel Servatius - Chair 
Margaret Livermore 
Jason McFadyen 
Ron Apgar 

 
Doug Merriman, City Administrator 
Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 
 

 

1. Call to Order  

Councilmember Joel Servatius called the meeting to order at 12:04 p.m. 

 

2. New Business  

a.  Approve Minutes  

Committee Member Margaret Livermore moved to approve the minutes of the 

November 23, 2015 Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Meeting, Committee Member 

Jason McFadyen seconded the motion.    

b. Discuss the Procedures of 2017 Grant Year and Duties of the Lodging Tax Advisory 

Committee 

Chairman Servatius explained the establishment of the Lodging Tax Advisory 

Committee and its purpose.  Dr. Merriman informed the committee about the 

Lodging Tax funds earmarked as determined by the City Council at an earlier 

meeting this year in the amount of $250,000.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 12:37 

188



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 4, 2016  
Page 1 of 4 

LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

November 4, 2016 – 1:00 p.m. 
 

City Hall – City Council Chambers 
865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Board Staff 

 
Councilmember Joel Servatius  - Chair 
Recipient 1:  Ron Apgar 
Recipient 2:  Jason McFadyen 
Recipient 3:  Margaret Livermore 
Collector 1:  Marshall Smith for Bob Lundstrom  
Collector 3:  Amanda Zimmerman  
 
 

 
Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator 
Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 
 

1. Call to Order  

Councilmember and Chair Joel Servatius called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m., 

introduced the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee members that were present and 

identified that Collector 1, Bob Lundstrom was absent, but sent Marshall Smith, General 

Manager of the Coachman Inn to take notes in his absence.  Collector 2, Pete Franssen 

was also absent.   

 

Dr. Merriman explained the establishment of the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee and 

its purpose.  He informed the committee about the Lodging Tax moneys available as 

determined by the City Council at an earlier meeting this year with $250,000 being 

earmarked. 

 

 

2. Review of Applications for Program Year 2017 

14 Project Applications and requests were received for Program Year 2017 and are as 

followed;   

Organization (Alphabetical Order) Amount Requested 

1. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
Island Ice  

$10,000 

2. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
Marketing 365  

$67,500 

189



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 4, 2016  
Page 2 of 4 

3. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
Operations  

$115,000 

4. CITY OF OAK HARBOR  
Whidbey Island Marathon  

$15,000 

5. CRAIG MCKENZIE TEAM FOUNDATION  
Hydros for Heroes  

$30,000 

6. FIDALGO AVENUE MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION  
Oak Harbor Pigfest  

$10,000 

7. ISLAND COUNTY MASTER GARDENER FOUNDATION  
Whidbey Gardening Workshop  

$7,825 

8. JOINT ADVISORY BOARD  
International Tourism Program  

$19,850 

9. MEGAN MCCLUNCG MEMORIAL FUND 
Megan McClung Memorial Run  

$9,800 

10. NORTH WHIDBEY LIONS CLUB  
32nd Annual North Whidbey Lions Car Show  

$5,000 

11. OAK HARBOR MAIN STREET ASSOCIATION  
Free Public Wi-Fi Zone in Historic Downtown  

$15,000 

12. OAK HARBOR MUSIC FESTIVAL 
Oak Harbor Music Festival  

$30,000 

13. PBY MEMORIAL FOUNDATION  
PBY Tourist Marketing and Operations Project  

$29,800 

14. WHIDBEY ISLAND RACE WEEK LLC. 
Whidbey Island Race Week  

$15,000 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT IN REQUESTS  

 
$379,775 

 
 

Attendance of the applicants was not required and no presentation was needed from the 

applicants.  The Lodging Tax Advisory Committee then reviewed their scores on the approved 

grading worksheets for each applicant. The grading worksheet was identified as a helpful guide 

for the Committee to make their recommendations.   

 

At 2:16 p.m. Councilmember and Chair Joel Servatius called for a recess to tally the total scores 

given by the committee members.  At 2:21 p.m. the meeting was reconvened.   

 

Clarifying questions were identified and responses were given by:   

 Christine Cribb, Chamber of Commerce for Marketing 365, Operations, and Island Ice 

 Doug Merriman, City of Oak Harbor for the Whidbey Island Marathon  

 Byron Skubi, Whidbey Island Race Week  

190



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 4, 2016  
Page 3 of 4 

 James Siggens, PBY Museum  

 Margaret Livermore, Oak Harbor Main Street  

 Jim Weizner, Jerry Lynn, and Craig McKenzie with the Craig McKenzie Group for the 

Hydro’s for Heroes  event 

 CJ Nielson, Island County Master Gardeners  

 Cynthia Mason, Oak Harbor Music Festival  

 Robyn Myers, Joint Advisory Committee 

Christine Crobb, Director of the Chamber of Commerce withdrew her application for Island Ice 

to enable other applicant the opportunity to have their application request funded.   

 

The Committee then discussed scoring strategies and proposed their initial recommended 

funding for each applicant.    

 

At 3:00 p.m. Councilmember and Chair Joel Servatius called for a recess to adjust the 

spreadsheet with the Committees requests for recommendations.  At 3:05 p.m. the meeting 

was reconvened.   

 

3. Development of Recommendation to City Council  

 

Organization (Alphabetical Order) Amount Requested 

1. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
Island Ice  

$0 

2. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
Marketing 365  

$65,000 

3. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
Operations  

$115,000 

4. CITY OF OAK HARBOR  
Whidbey Island Marathon  

$0 

5. CRAIG MCKENZIE TEAM FOUNDATION  
Hydros for Heroes  

$9,000 

6. FIDALGO AVENUE MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION  
Oak Harbor Pigfest  

$5,000 

7. ISLAND COUNTY MASTER GARDENER FOUNDATION  
Whidbey Gardening Workshop  

$1,500 

8. JOINT ADVISORY BOARD  
International Tourism Program  

$7,000 

9. MEGAN MCCLUNCG MEMORIAL FUND 
Megan McClung Memorial Run  

$3,000 

191



Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Special Meeting – November 4, 2016  
Page 4 of 4 

10. NORTH WHIDBEY LIONS CLUB  
32nd Annual North Whidbey Lions Car Show  

$4,000 

11. OAK HARBOR MAIN STREET ASSOCIATION  
Free Public Wi-Fi Zone in Historic Downtown  

$0 

12. OAK HARBOR MUSIC FESTIVAL 
Oak Harbor Music Festival  

$26,500 

13. PBY MEMORIAL FOUNDATION  
PBY Tourist Marketing and Operations Project  

$5,000 

14. WHIDBEY ISLAND RACE WEEK LLC. 
Whidbey Island Race Week  

$9,000 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT  

 
$250,000 

 

 

Motion:  Collector 3, Amanda Zimmerman moved to present the Lodging Tax Advisory 

Committee’s 2017 Grant Awards as identified to City Council for ratification, motion was 

seconded by Recipient 2,  Jason McFayden, motion was unopposed.   

 

ADJOUNRMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 3:28 p.m. 

192



RESOLUTION NO. 16-27 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, ACCEPTING 
THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE LODGING TAX ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

FOR FUNDING THE 2017 LODGING TAX GRANT PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor has imposed both the “basic” hotel-motel tax of 2% (RCW 
67.28.180) and the additional lodging tax of 2% (RCW 67.28.181) upon the sale of, or change 
made for the furnishing of lodging; and 
 
WHEREAS, cities with a population of 5,000 or more must establish a lodging tax advisory 
committee to ensure that interested parties have a forum for debating the merits of a proposed 
imposition of a lodging tax, proposed increase in a lodging tax rate, proposed removal of a tax 
exemption, or a proposed “change in use” of tax revenues. Proposals for change must be 
submitted to the lodging tax advisory committee for review and comment at least 45 days prior 
to taking action on the proposal; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee reviewed the applications submitted and 
hereby makes the following recommendations for funding to the City Council: 
 

Organization (Alphabetical Order) Amount Requested 
1. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  

Marketing 365  
$65,000 

2. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
Operations  

$115,000 

3. CRAIG MCKENZIE TEAM FOUNDATION  
Hydro’s for Heroes  

$9,000 

4. FIDALGO AVENUE MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION  
Oak Harbor Pigfest  

$5,000 

5. ISLAND COUNTY MASTER GARDENER 
FOUNDATION  
Whidbey Gardening Workshop  

$1,500 

6. JOINT ADVISORY BOARD  
International Tourism Program  

$7,000 

7. MEGAN MCCLUNCG MEMORIAL FUND 
Megan McClung Memorial Run  

$3,000 

8. NORTH WHIDBEY LIONS CLUB  
32nd Annual North Whidbey Lions Car Show  

$4,000 

9. OAK HARBOR MUSIC FESTIVAL 
Oak Harbor Music Festival  

$26,500 

10. PBY MEMORIAL FOUNDATION  
PBY Tourist Marketing and Operations Project  

$5,000 

11. WHIDBEY ISLAND RACE WEEK LLC. 
Whidbey Island Race Week  

$9,000 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT  

 
$250,000 

 

193



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor 
accepts the recommendations of the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee to award lodging tax 
funding to the listed applicants for the amounts and specific uses as shown. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this 15th day of November, 2016. 
 
 
 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Bob Severns, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 

194



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: 2017 LTAC 2% Grant Program 
Referral to Council - 45 day 
period 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to refer potential changes in the use of Lodging Tax (2%) funds to the Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee for review and comment.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill refers to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC), any changes in the use of 
Lodging Taxes (2 % Funds) that may be considered by the LTAC for disbursement to grant applicants.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. b.

Date: September 6, 2016

Subject: 2017 LTAC 2% Grant Program 
Referral to Council - 45 day 
period 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to refer potential changes in the use of Lodging Tax (2%) funds to the Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee for review and comment.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill refers to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC), any changes in the use of 
Lodging Taxes (2 % Funds) that may be considered by the LTAC for disbursement to grant applicants.Lodging Taxes (2 % Funds) that may be considered by the LTAC for disbursement to grant applicants.

For the 2016 Grant Year, City Council set aside a total of $250,000.00 for use of Lodging Tax Funds. 
$100,000 of those monies were previously designated by Council per Resolution 14-44 in 2014.  Staff 
recommendation is to suggest the same level of funding for 2017.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Under RCW 67.28.1817, Council refers any changes to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee for
consideration at least 45 days prior to taking action on any such changes.

FISCAL IMPACT
The estimated fiscal impact cannot be determined at this time. The fiscal impact of this action is
dependent on the amount of lodging tax funds referred to the LTAC for consideration, as well as the 
level of application interest by those entities requesting funding.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

Lodging Taxes (2 % Funds) that may be considered by the LTAC for disbursement to grant applicants.

For the 2016 Grant Year, City Council set aside a total of $250,000.00 for use of Lodging Tax Funds. 
$100,000 of those monies were previously designated by Council per Resolution 14-44 in 2014.  Staff 
recommendation is to suggest the same level of funding for 2017.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Under RCW 67.28.1817, Council refers any changes to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee for
consideration at least 45 days prior to taking action on any such changes.

FISCAL IMPACT
The estimated fiscal impact cannot be determined at this time. The fiscal impact of this action is
dependent on the amount of lodging tax funds referred to the LTAC for consideration, as well as the 
level of application interest by those entities requesting funding.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS

195



ATTACHMENTS
1. Schedule of Projected Lodging Tax (2%) Cash as of 12/31/2016
ATTACHMENTS
1. Schedule of Projected Lodging Tax (2%) Cash as of 12/31/2016

196

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1472601746x_at.pdf


City of Oak Harbor

Schedule of Projected Lodging Tax (2%) Cash as of 12/31/2016

Cash as of 7/31/2016 664,011.24

Plus: Estimated revenues to be received by 12/31/2016 82,515.48

Less: Committed amounts to be spent in 2% awards for 2016 (119,963.82)

     Projected Cash as of 12/31/2016 626,562.90

197



 
 
 
 

2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 1 of 13 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR AND 

OAK HARBOR CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the City of Oak  
Harbor, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and GREATER OAK HARBOR 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, a Washington CHAMEBR OF COMMERCE ("Consultant").  
 
WHEREAS, the City collects a 2% tax on the charge for furnishing lodging by a hotel, rooming 
house, tourist court, motel or trailer camp, and  
 
WHEREAS, the use of these tax revenues is restricted by RCW 67.28.180 to the certain explicit 
uses, including the promotion of local tourism, and the operation of tourism-related facilities; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City, after the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee duly advertised, reviewed and 
recommended lodging tax funded activities, wishes to have certain services performed 
hereinafter set forth requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, The CONSULTANT represents that it is qualified and possesses sufficient skills 
and the necessary capabilities, including technical and professional expertise where required, to 
perform the services set forth in this Agreement. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performances 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with consultant services regarding use of 
2% tax revenues for the promotion of local tourism and the operation of tourism-related 
facilities as recommended by the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee and confirmed by the 
City Council as described in Article II. The general terms and conditions of the relationship 
between the City and the Consultant are specified in this Agreement. 
 
 ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference 
(“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks outlined in 
the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in the Scope of 
Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with the standards 
of the Consultant’s profession. 
 

198



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 2 of 13 
 

 
 ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 
 
III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Consultant shall accept minor changes, 

amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the 
City when such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed 
delivery schedule.  Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in 
cost or schedules will be addressed as follows: 

 
 Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Consultant perform work or render 

services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services.  Such work will be 
considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope 
thereof.  All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared by the Consultant at no 
cost to the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until executed 
in writing by the parties. 

 
III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS.  The work product and all documents 

produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and upon 
completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Consultant 
will be responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted 
by the City. 

 
 In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 

Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work 
product of the Consultant, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or 
termination, shall become the property of the City.  Upon request, the Consultant shall 
tender the work product and summary to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a 
prerequisite to final payment under this Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be 
prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

 
 Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement 

or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this 
Agreement without the written authorization of Consultant. 

 
III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2017 and shall 

terminate at midnight, January 31, 2018.  The parties may extend the term of this 
Agreement by written mutual agreement upon Council approval. 

 
III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be 

assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 
 
III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in the 

performance of any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, 
shall be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and all 

199



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 3 of 13 
 

claims that may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any 
said employees while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a 
consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the Consultant or its 
employees while so engaged in any of the work or services provided herein shall be the 
sole obligation of the Consultant. 

 
III.6 INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and 

hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all 
claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to 
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of 
the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the 
Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the 
extent of the Consultant's negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood 
that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant's waiver of immunity 
under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. 
This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
III.7 INSURANCE.   
 

a. Insurance Term.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of 
the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives or employees. 

 
b. No Limitation.  Consultant's maintenance of insurance as required by the 

agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the 
coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City's recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity. 

 
c. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types 

and coverage described below: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 
leased vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability 
coverage. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO 

occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and 
advertising injury.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under 

200



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 4 of 13 
 

the Consultant's Commercial General Liability insurance policy with 
respect to the work performed for the City using an additional insured 
endorsement at least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance 

laws of the State of Washington. 
 
4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant's profession. 

 
d. Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain the following 

insurance limits: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no 

less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 
 
3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with the limits no less 

than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 

e. Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant's Automobile Liability and 
Commercial General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain that they shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any insurance, 
self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be 
excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
f. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 

A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 
 
g. Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the City with original 

certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not 
necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement evidencing the 
insurance requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work. 

 
h.   Notice of Cancellation.  The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice 

of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 
 
i. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain 

the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon 
which the City may, after giving five business days' notice to the Consultant to 
correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure 
or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, 
with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole 
discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Consultant from the City. 

 

201



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 5 of 13 
 

j. Public Entity Full Availability of Consultant Limits.  If the Consultant 
maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall 
be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or 
Umbrella liability maintained by the Consultant, irrespective of whether such 
limits maintained by the Consultant are greater than those required by this contract 
or whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the City evidences limits of 
liability lower than those maintained by the Consultant. 

 
III.8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 

OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION.  The Consultant agrees to comply with equal 
opportunity employment and not to discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for 
employment or for services because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital 
status, sex, sexual orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational 
qualification with regard, but not limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; 
demotion or transfer; recruitment or any recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for training, rendition of services.  
The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous 
places, setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant 
understands and agrees that if it violates this nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement 
may be terminated by the City, and further that the Consultant will be barred from 
performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a showing is made 
satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and that 
recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

 
III.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this Agreement, 

the Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment 
practices. 

 
III.10 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local 

laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Consultant 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be 
performed and that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this 
Agreement are fully qualified and properly licensed to perform the work to which they 
will be assigned.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with 
the laws of Washington.  Venue for any litigation commenced relating to this Agreement 
shall be in Island County Superior Court. 

 
III.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

 
a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the Consultant is 

an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his 
status as an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services 
required under this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part 
independent contractor test set forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.  
The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for 

202



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 6 of 13 
 

carrying out and accomplishing the services required under this Agreement.  The 
Consultant shall make no claim of City employment nor shall claim any related 
employment benefits, social security, and/or retirement benefits. 

 
b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, and 

assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security 
tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions 
from income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a 
result of this Agreement.  In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a 
result of this Agreement, the Consultant shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 
c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent 

contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs 
hereunder. 

 
d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business license 

from the City. 
 

III.12 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the City of 
any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant’s client base and shall obtain written 
permission from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or 
potential conflict of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a 
conflict is irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 

 
III.13 CITY CONFIDENCES.  The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict confidence, 

and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any 
information regarding the City or services provided to the City. 

 
III.14 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULTANTS. 

 
a. The Consultant shall be responsible for all work performed by 

subcontractors/subconsultants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subconsultants they directly 

hire meet the responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a 
subcontractor/subconsultant has proper license and bonding, if required by statute, 
must be included in the verification process. The Consultant will use the 
following Subcontractors/Subconsultants or as set forth in Exhibit ____: 

            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
 
c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subconsultants without 

the written approval of the City. 
 

203



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 7 of 13 
 

d. All Subcontractors/Subconsultants shall have the same insurance coverages and 
limits as set forth in this Agreement and the Consultant shall provide verification 
of said insurance coverage. 

 
 ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 
 
IV.1 PAYMENTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City for services rendered under this 
Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as provided in this section.  
In no event shall the compensation paid to Consultant under this Agreement 
exceed Sixty Five Thousand Dollars ($65,000.00) without the written agreement 
of the Consultant and the City.  Such payment shall be full compensation for work 
performed and services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment 
and incidentals necessary to complete the work.  In the event the City elects to 
expand the scope of services from that set forth in Exhibit "A", the City shall pay 
Consultant a mutually agreed amount. 

 
b. The Contractor shall be eligible for payment after the performance of all services 

under this contract on a reimbursable basis.  The Contractor shall submit an 
original written invoice, with necessary and appropriate documentation to receive 
payment.   

 
c.  Eligible expenses for reimbursement must be submitted using Exhibit C (page 

12). The Contractor must include an itemization of services provided. Attach to 
Exhibit C copies of invoices/statements along with proof of payment, such as 
cancelled checks, copies of checks used to pay for services, receipts, (or other 
payment documentation indicating proof of payment that is acceptable to the City) 
for services purchased by the Contractor for which reimbursement is being 
requested; copies of the work performed (e.g. advertisement, brochure, website 
page, flyer, etc.). For lodging tax contacts, include documentation that the 
promotional effort reached an audience outside of 50 miles if applicable.  

 
Address Reimbursement Request to: 

 
City of Oak Harbor 

     ATTN: City Clerk 
     865 SE Barrington Drive 
     Oak Harbor, WA  98277 
 

d. Invoices for reimbursement must be submitted by January 31, 2018. Receipts 
received after that date will not be paid. 

 
e. All payments shall be subject to adjustment for any amounts, upon audit or 

otherwise, determined to have been improperly invoiced. 

204



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 8 of 13 
 

 
f. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before the 

20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent 

contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the 
approval of the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been 
completed in compliance with the Scope of Services and City requirements. 

 
IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS.  The Consultant shall maintain all 

books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices.  All such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall 
be subject to inspection and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington 
State Auditor at all reasonable times, and the Consultant shall afford the proper facilities 
for such inspection and audit.  Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State 
Auditor may copy such books, accounts and records where necessary to conduct or 
document an audit.  The Consultant shall preserve and make available all such books of 
account and records for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this 
Agreement.  In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any discrepancy in such 
financial records, the Consultant shall provide the City with appropriate clarification 
and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the 
discrepancy. 

 
 ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 
 
V.1 NOTICES.  Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
  

 City of Oak Harbor  
 ATTN: City Clerk 
 865 SE Barrington Drive 
 Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 

 Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 
 

Greater of Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce 
Christine Cribb, Executive Director 
32630 SR 30 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

  
 Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 

notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 
 
 
 
 

205



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 9 of 13 
 

V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement in 
whole or in part at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Consultant. 

 
 If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 

shall pay the Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of 
termination in accordance with payment provisions of Section VI.1. 

 
V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation and 

compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

 
V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION.  This Agreement, together with 

attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the 
parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written 
or oral.  This Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written 
instrument properly signed by both parties. 

 
V.5 SEVERABILITY 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations 
shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid. 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory provision 
of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be deemed 
modified to conform to such statutory provision. 

V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party hereto of 
any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not in 
default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof.  Leniency, delay or failure of 
either party to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of 
this Agreement, or to exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall 
not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, 
condition or right. 

V.7 FAIR MEANING.  The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair meaning and 
shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of authorship.  
This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE.  The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall lie in the 
Superior Court of Washington for Island County, Washington. 

206



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 10 of 13 
 

V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same 
Agreement. 

V.11  AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT.  The 
undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to 
bind the parties for and on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 

 
 
 
 
DATED this ______ day of ________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR  GREATER OAK HARBOR CHAMBER 

OF COMMERCE  
 
 
By______________________________  By _______________________________ 
Douglas Merriman, City Administrator   Christine Cribb, Executive Director 
        
         
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Attest:   
 
      
Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 
 

207



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

The City will provide such assistance and guidance as may be required, in the City’s sole discretion, to support the 
objectives set forth in the Scope of Work and will provide funding for the services and activities as set forth below. 
 
The 2017 hotel/motel tax award for the Contractor is $65,000.00 

Uses of the funds are as follows: 

 

$65,000.00 Funds to be used for Marketing, Advertising, and Operations Costs. 
 

Post-Event Reporting 
 
The Contractor shall complete a Post Event/Activity Information Report, attached as Exhibit “B”, for the contract 
year.  The annual report is a requirement established by the 2013 Washington State Legislature. The report shall be 
provided to the CITY immediately after the event, festival or activity, but due no later than January 31, 2018. 

 
The City shall file an annual report with the State of Washington Joint Legislative Audit and Review Committee 
(JLARC) for lodging tax activity which will detail information received from the Contractor, and other recipient 
organizations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

208



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT "B" 

Post Event/Activity Information Report for Lodging Tax Contractors 
Report is due immediately after event but no later than December 1, 2018  

Send to: City of Oak Harbor, ATTN City Clerk, 865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277, or athompson@oakharbor.org  
 

1. Organization Name and Event/Tourism Facility Name: 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. Total Oak Harbor lodging tax funds used for Event or Facility  $    
 
3. Total Cost of Event or Facility    $    

4. Please provide the actual numbers for the following questions, including the methodology used: 

QUESTION ANSWER 

1. Overall Attendance at your event?  

Methodology used:  

2. Total people who traveled more than 50 miles for your event?  

Methodology used:  

3. Of those who traveled more than 50 miles, the number of people who 

traveled from another state or country? 

 

Methodology used:  

4. Of the people who traveled more than 50 miles, the number of people    who 

stayed overnight in the City of Oak Harbor or Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:  

5. Of the people staying overnight – the number of people who stayed in PAID 

accommodations (hotel/motel/bed-breakfast) in the City of Oak Harbor or 

the Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:  

6. Of the people staying overnight – the number of people who stayed in 

UNPAID accommodations (friends or family) in the City of Oak Harbor or 

the Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:  

7. Number of PAID lodging room nights resulting from your event? (E.g. – 20 

paid rooms on Friday & 30 paid rooms on Saturday = 50 paid rooms.) 

 

Methodology used:  

 
      Submitted by:           Date:     

209

mailto:athompson@oakharbor.org


2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 13 of 13 
 
 

Exhibit “C” 
Invoice Request for Payment 

 
 
 
BILLING DATE: ____________________ 
 
INVOICE AMOUNT: $_______________ 
 
CONTRACTOR NAME: ________________________________________________ 
 
ADDRESS: __________________________________________________________ 
 
EIN/TIN: _________________________ (For 1099 reporting purposes) 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED this ______day of _________, 2017. 
 
Signed: _______________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________________ 
 
Type of Services Rendered: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Invoice Requirements: 
Please provide an itemization of services provided.  Attach to this invoice copies of invoices/statements and 
cancelled checks (or other payment documentation acceptable to the City) for services purchased by the 
Contractor for which reimbursement is being requested; copies of the work performed (e.g., advertisement, 
brochure, website page, flyer, etc.); and, for lodging tax contracts, documentation that the promotional effort 
reached an audience outside of 50 miles. 

210



 
 
 
 

2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 1 of 13 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR AND 

THE GREATER OAK HARBOR CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  
FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the City of Oak  
Harbor, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and THE GREATER OAK 
HARBOR CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, a Washington CHAMEBR OF COMMERCE 
("Consultant").  
 
WHEREAS, the City collects a 2% tax on the charge for furnishing lodging by a hotel, rooming 
house, tourist court, motel or trailer camp, and  
 
WHEREAS, the use of these tax revenues is restricted by RCW 67.28.180 to the certain explicit 
uses, including the promotion of local tourism, and the operation of tourism-related facilities; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City, after the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee duly advertised, reviewed and 
recommended lodging tax funded activities, wishes to have certain services performed 
hereinafter set forth requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, The CONSULTANT represents that it is qualified and possesses sufficient skills 
and the necessary capabilities, including technical and professional expertise where required, to 
perform the services set forth in this Agreement. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performances 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with consultant services regarding use of 
2% tax revenues for the promotion of local tourism and the operation of tourism-related 
facilities as recommended by the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee and confirmed by the 
City Council as described in Article II. The general terms and conditions of the relationship 
between the City and the Consultant are specified in this Agreement. 
 
 ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference 
(“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks outlined in 
the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in the Scope of 
Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with the standards 
of the Consultant’s profession. 

211



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 2 of 13 
 

 
 
 ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 
 
III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Consultant shall accept minor changes, 

amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the 
City when such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed 
delivery schedule.  Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in 
cost or schedules will be addressed as follows: 

 
 Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Consultant perform work or render 

services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services.  Such work will be 
considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope 
thereof.  All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared by the Consultant at no 
cost to the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until executed 
in writing by the parties. 

 
III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS.  The work product and all documents 

produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and upon 
completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Consultant 
will be responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted 
by the City. 

 
 In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 

Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work 
product of the Consultant, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or 
termination, shall become the property of the City.  Upon request, the Consultant shall 
tender the work product and summary to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a 
prerequisite to final payment under this Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be 
prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

 
 Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement 

or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this 
Agreement without the written authorization of Consultant. 

 
III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2017 and shall 

terminate at midnight, January 31, 2018.  The parties may extend the term of this 
Agreement by written mutual agreement upon Council approval. 

 
III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be 

assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 
 
III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in the 

performance of any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, 

212



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 3 of 13 
 

shall be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and all 
claims that may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any 
said employees while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a 
consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the Consultant or its 
employees while so engaged in any of the work or services provided herein shall be the 
sole obligation of the Consultant. 

 
III.6 INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and 

hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all 
claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to 
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of 
the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the 
Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the 
extent of the Consultant's negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood 
that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant's waiver of immunity 
under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. 
This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
III.7 INSURANCE.   
 

a. Insurance Term.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of 
the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives or employees. 

 
b. No Limitation.  Consultant's maintenance of insurance as required by the 

agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the 
coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City's recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity. 

 
c. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types 

and coverage described below: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 
leased vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability 
coverage. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO 

occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and 

213



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 4 of 13 
 

advertising injury.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under 
the Consultant's Commercial General Liability insurance policy with 
respect to the work performed for the City using an additional insured 
endorsement at least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance 

laws of the State of Washington. 
 
4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant's profession. 

 
d. Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain the following 

insurance limits: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no 

less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 
 
3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with the limits no less 

than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 

e. Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant's Automobile Liability and 
Commercial General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain that they shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any insurance, 
self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be 
excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
f. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 

A.M. Best rating of not less than A: VII. 
 
g. Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the City with original 

certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not 
necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement evidencing the 
insurance requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work. 

 
h.   Notice of Cancellation.  The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice 

of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 
 
i. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain 

the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon 
which the City may, after giving five business days' notice to the Consultant to 
correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure 
or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, 
with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole 
discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Consultant from the City. 

 

214



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 5 of 13 
 

j. Public Entity Full Availability of Consultant Limits.  If the Consultant 
maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall 
be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or 
Umbrella liability maintained by the Consultant, irrespective of whether such 
limits maintained by the Consultant are greater than those required by this contract 
or whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the City evidences limits of 
liability lower than those maintained by the Consultant. 

 
III.8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 

OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION.  The Consultant agrees to comply with equal 
opportunity employment and not to discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for 
employment or for services because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital 
status, sex, sexual orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational 
qualification with regard, but not limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; 
demotion or transfer; recruitment or any recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for training, rendition of services.  
The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous 
places, setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant 
understands and agrees that if it violates this nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement 
may be terminated by the City, and further that the Consultant will be barred from 
performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a showing is made 
satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and that 
recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

 
III.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this Agreement, 

the Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment 
practices. 

 
III.10 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local 

laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Consultant 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be 
performed and that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this 
Agreement are fully qualified and properly licensed to perform the work to which they 
will be assigned.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with 
the laws of Washington.  Venue for any litigation commenced relating to this Agreement 
shall be in Island County Superior Court. 

 
III.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

 
a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the Consultant is 

an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his 
status as an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services 
required under this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part 
independent contractor test set forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.  
The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for 

215



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 6 of 13 
 

carrying out and accomplishing the services required under this Agreement.  The 
Consultant shall make no claim of City employment nor shall claim any related 
employment benefits, social security, and/or retirement benefits. 

 
b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, and 

assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security 
tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions 
from income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a 
result of this Agreement.  In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a 
result of this Agreement, the Consultant shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 
c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent 

contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs 
hereunder. 

 
d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business license 

from the City. 
 

III.12 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the City of 
any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant’s client base and shall obtain written 
permission from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or 
potential conflict of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a 
conflict is irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 

 
III.13 CITY CONFIDENCES.  The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict confidence, 

and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any 
information regarding the City or services provided to the City. 

 
III.14 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULTANTS. 

 
a. The Consultant shall be responsible for all work performed by 

subcontractors/subconsultants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subconsultants they directly 

hire meet the responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a 
subcontractor/subconsultant has proper license and bonding, if required by statute, 
must be included in the verification process. The Consultant will use the 
following Subcontractors/Subconsultants or as set forth in Exhibit ____: 

            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
 
c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subconsultants without 

the written approval of the City. 
 

216



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 7 of 13 
 

d. All Subcontractors/Subconsultants shall have the same insurance coverages and 
limits as set forth in this Agreement and the Consultant shall provide verification 
of said insurance coverage. 

 
 ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 
 
IV.1 PAYMENTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City for services rendered under this 
Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as provided in this section.  
In no event shall the compensation paid to Consultant under this Agreement 
exceed One Hundred and Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($115,000.00) without the 
written agreement of the Consultant and the City.  Such payment shall be full 
compensation for work performed and services rendered and for all labor, 
materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work.  In 
the event the City elects to expand the scope of services from that set forth in 
Exhibit "A", the City shall pay Consultant a mutually agreed amount. 

 
b. The Contractor shall be eligible for payment after the performance of all services 

under this contract on a reimbursable basis.  The Contractor shall submit an 
original written invoice, with necessary and appropriate documentation to receive 
payment.   

 
c.  Eligible expenses for reimbursement must be submitted using Exhibit C (page 

12). The Contractor must include an itemization of services provided. Attach to 
Exhibit C copies of invoices/statements along with proof of payment, such as 
cancelled checks, copies of checks used to pay for services, receipts, (or other 
payment documentation indicating proof of payment that is acceptable to the City) 
for services purchased by the Contractor for which reimbursement is being 
requested; copies of the work performed (e.g. advertisement, brochure, website 
page, flyer, etc.). For lodging tax contacts, include documentation that the 
promotional effort reached an audience outside of 50 miles if applicable.  

 
Address Reimbursement Request to: 

 
City of Oak Harbor 

     ATTN: City Clerk 
     865 SE Barrington Drive 
     Oak Harbor, WA  98277 
 

d. Invoices for reimbursement must be submitted by January 31, 2018. Receipts 
received after that date will not be paid. 

 
e. All payments shall be subject to adjustment for any amounts, upon audit or 

otherwise, determined to have been improperly invoiced. 

217



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 8 of 13 
 

 
f. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before the 

20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent 

contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the 
approval of the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been 
completed in compliance with the Scope of Services and City requirements. 

 
IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS.  The Consultant shall maintain all 

books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices.  All such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall 
be subject to inspection and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington 
State Auditor at all reasonable times, and the Consultant shall afford the proper facilities 
for such inspection and audit.  Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State 
Auditor may copy such books, accounts and records where necessary to conduct or 
document an audit.  The Consultant shall preserve and make available all such books of 
account and records for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this 
Agreement.  In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any discrepancy in such 
financial records, the Consultant shall provide the City with appropriate clarification 
and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the 
discrepancy. 

 
 ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 
 
V.1 NOTICES.  Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
  

 City of Oak Harbor  
 ATTN: City Clerk 
 865 SE Barrington Drive 
 Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 

 Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 
 

Greater of Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce 
Christine Cribb, Executive Director 
32630 SR 20 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

  
 Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 

notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 
 
 
 
 

218



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 9 of 13 
 

V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement in 
whole or in part at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Consultant. 

 
 If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 

shall pay the Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of 
termination in accordance with payment provisions of Section VI.1. 

 
V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation and 

compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

 
V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION.  This Agreement, together with 

attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the 
parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written 
or oral.  This Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written 
instrument properly signed by both parties. 

 
V.5 SEVERABILITY 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations 
shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid. 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory provision 
of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be deemed 
modified to conform to such statutory provision. 

V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party hereto of 
any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not in 
default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof.  Leniency, delay or failure of 
either party to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of 
this Agreement, or to exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall 
not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, 
condition or right. 

V.7 FAIR MEANING.  The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair meaning and 
shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of authorship.  
This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE.  The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall lie in the 
Superior Court of Washington for Island County, Washington. 

219



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 10 of 13 
 

V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same 
Agreement. 

V.11  AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT.  The 
undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to 
bind the parties for and on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 

 
 
 
 
DATED this ______ day of ________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR  GREATER OAK HARBOR CHAMBER 

OF COMMERCE  
 
 
By______________________________  By _______________________________ 
Douglas Merriman, City Administrator   Christine Cribb, Executive Director 
        
         
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Attest:   
 
      
Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 
 

220



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

The City will provide such assistance and guidance as may be required, in the City’s sole discretion, to support the 
objectives set forth in the Scope of Work and will provide funding for the services and activities as set forth below. 
 
The 2017 hotel/motel tax award for the Contractor is $115,000.00 

Uses of the funds are as follows: 

 

$115,000.00 Funds to be used for Marketing, Advertising, and Operations Costs. 
 

Post-Event Reporting 
 
The Contractor shall complete a Post Event/Activity Information Report, attached as Exhibit “B”, for the contract 
year.  The annual report is a requirement established by the 2013 Washington State Legislature. The report shall be 
provided to the CITY immediately after the event, festival or activity, but due no later than January 31, 2018. 

 
The City shall file an annual report with the State of Washington Joint Legislative Audit and Review Committee 
(JLARC) for lodging tax activity which will detail information received from the Contractor, and other recipient 
organizations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

221



2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 12 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT "B" 

Post Event/Activity Information Report for Lodging Tax Contractors 
Report is due immediately after event but no later than December 1, 2018  

Send to: City of Oak Harbor, ATTN City Clerk, 865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277, or athompson@oakharbor.org  
 

1. Organization Name and Event/Tourism Facility Name: 
_____________________________________________________ 

2. Total Oak Harbor lodging tax funds used for Event or Facility  $    
 
3. Total Cost of Event or Facility    $    

4. Please provide the actual numbers for the following questions, including the methodology used: 

QUESTION ANSWER 

1. Overall Attendance at your event?  

Methodology used:  

2. Total people who traveled more than 50 miles for your event?  

Methodology used:  

3. Of those who traveled more than 50 miles, the number of people who 

traveled from another state or country? 

 

Methodology used:  

4. Of the people who traveled more than 50 miles, the number of people    who 

stayed overnight in the City of Oak Harbor or Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:  

5. Of the people staying overnight – the number of people who stayed in PAID 

accommodations (hotel/motel/bed-breakfast) in the City of Oak Harbor or 

the Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:  

6. Of the people staying overnight – the number of people who stayed in 

UNPAID accommodations (friends or family) in the City of Oak Harbor or 

the Oak Harbor area? 

 

Methodology used:  

7. Number of PAID lodging room nights resulting from your event? (E.g. – 20 

paid rooms on Friday & 30 paid rooms on Saturday = 50 paid rooms.) 

 

Methodology used:  

 
      Submitted by:           Date:     

222

mailto:athompson@oakharbor.org


2017 City of Oak Harbor Lodging Tax 2% Grant Contact 
Page 13 of 13 
 
 

Exhibit “C” 
Invoice Request for Payment 

 
 
 
BILLING DATE: ____________________ 
 
INVOICE AMOUNT: $_______________ 
 
CONTRACTOR NAME: ________________________________________________ 
 
ADDRESS: __________________________________________________________ 
 
EIN/TIN: _________________________ (For 1099 reporting purposes) 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED this ______day of _________, 2017. 
 
Signed: _______________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________________ 
 
Type of Services Rendered: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Invoice Requirements: 
Please provide an itemization of services provided.  Attach to this invoice copies of invoices/statements and 
cancelled checks (or other payment documentation acceptable to the City) for services purchased by the 
Contractor for which reimbursement is being requested; copies of the work performed (e.g., advertisement, 
brochure, website page, flyer, etc.); and, for lodging tax contracts, documentation that the promotional effort 
reached an audience outside of 50 miles. 

223



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - Carollo 
Engineers - Consultant 
Agreement Amendment No. 16 
for Windjammer Park 
Improvements

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 16 with
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $969,726, increasing the total contract amount from $16,813,142 to 
$17,782,868.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8. a.
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - Carollo 
Engineers - Consultant 
Agreement Amendment No. 16 
for Windjammer Park 
Improvements

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 16 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $969,726, increasing the total contract amount from $16,813,142 to 
$17,782,868.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Carollo Engineers is currently under contract to provide design engineering, SCADA services and 
engineering services during construction for the Clean Water Facility.  The final stage of the project 
involves the renovation of Windjammer Park after completion of the treatment plant construction.  
Previously the project team engaged in the Windjammer Integration Plan, which involved a guided effort
to publicly establish an overall vision for the Windjammer Park.  The Windjammer Integration Plan was 
adopted by Council by Resolution 16-15 on June 7, 2016.

 The next stage of the process involves design of the park improvements.  While some elements of the 
park plan are beyond the Clean Water Facility impacts, half of the first phase of construction result from
restoration and mitigation requirement arising from the treatment plant project.  With the need for close 
coordination with the on-going construction, staff has elected to continue with the original design team.  
This team has detailed knowledge of the treatment plant, prepared the Windjammer Integration Plan, and 
most importantly understands the desires of the Oak Harbor residents. 

 The proposed limits of Phase 1 of the Windjammer Park Improvements is shown on Attachment A.  The 
improvements are largely based on impacts due to construction of the Clean Water Facility. The 
estimated construction cost of Phase 1 is estimated at $7.8 million which includes a 30% contingency.  
The total estimated project cost including design, survey, geotechnical, construction management, 
construction and archaeology is anticipated to be approximately $9 million.  As we go through the public 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Carollo Engineers is currently under contract to provide design engineering, SCADA services and 
engineering services during construction for the Clean Water Facility.  The final stage of the project 
involves the renovation of Windjammer Park after completion of the treatment plant construction.  
Previously the project team engaged in the Windjammer Integration Plan, which involved a guided effort 
to publicly establish an overall vision for the Windjammer Park.  The Windjammer Integration Plan was 
adopted by Council by Resolution 16-15 on June 7, 2016.

 The next stage of the process involves design of the park improvements.  While some elements of the 
park plan are beyond the Clean Water Facility impacts, half of the first phase of construction result from 
restoration and mitigation requirement arising from the treatment plant project.  With the need for close 
coordination with the on-going construction, staff has elected to continue with the original design team.  
This team has detailed knowledge of the treatment plant, prepared the Windjammer Integration Plan, and 
most importantly understands the desires of the Oak Harbor residents. 

 The proposed limits of Phase 1 of the Windjammer Park Improvements is shown on Attachment A.  The 
improvements are largely based on impacts due to construction of the Clean Water Facility. The 
estimated construction cost of Phase 1 is estimated at $7.8 million which includes a 30% contingency.  
The total estimated project cost including design, survey, geotechnical, construction management, 
construction and archaeology is anticipated to be approximately $9 million.  As we go through the public 

224



process and preliminary design, this estimate will be refined based on our capabilities and feedback from 
the public.

 Currently, we anticipate the cost distribution between the Clean Water Facility and other funds to be 
50/50. 

 Attachment B shows an extensive list of improvements anticipated by the design team.  This Phase 1 
work is consistent with the concepts adopted in the Windjammer Park Integration Plan.

 Based upon the Park Improvements shown in Attachment A, the Carollo scope of work anticipates the 
following

 The Windjammer Park effort will involve another round permit acquisition and public 
involvement.   During the Windjammer Park Integration Plan effort, the Citizen Advisory Group 
and general public expressed a strong desire for further involvement during the design process.

 The work plan anticipates a preliminary design effort, which will receive a public review, followed 
by the final design effort. 

 Design of Phase 1 is expected to be completed in the fall of 2017 with construction beginning in 
the spring of 2018, the scope of work includes bid period services and services during 
construction.  The proposal assumes the City will provide archaeological services.

 This amendment also allows a transfer between design and services during construction tasks to 
accommodate changes to the design resulting from the construction value engineering and GMP 
sequencing.

Thus the attached Amendment No. 16 (Attachment C) to the Consultant Agreement with Carollo 
Engineers a complete scope of services for this portion of the work. The additional scope of services has 

process and preliminary design, this estimate will be refined based on our capabilities and feedback from 
the public.

 Currently, we anticipate the cost distribution between the Clean Water Facility and other funds to be 
50/50. 

 Attachment B shows an extensive list of improvements anticipated by the design team.  This Phase 1 
work is consistent with the concepts adopted in the Windjammer Park Integration Plan.

 Based upon the Park Improvements shown in Attachment A, the Carollo scope of work anticipates the 
following

 The Windjammer Park effort will involve another round permit acquisition and public 
involvement.   During the Windjammer Park Integration Plan effort, the Citizen Advisory Group 
and general public expressed a strong desire for further involvement during the design process.

 The work plan anticipates a preliminary design effort, which will receive a public review, followed 
by the final design effort. 

 Design of Phase 1 is expected to be completed in the fall of 2017 with construction beginning in 
the spring of 2018, the scope of work includes bid period services and services during 
construction.  The proposal assumes the City will provide archaeological services.

 This amendment also allows a transfer between design and services during construction tasks to 
accommodate changes to the design resulting from the construction value engineering and GMP 
sequencing.

Thus the attached Amendment No. 16 (Attachment C) to the Consultant Agreement with Carollo 
Engineers a complete scope of services for this portion of the work. The additional scope of services has Engineers a complete scope of services for this portion of the work. The additional scope of services has 
increased the time and materials, not to exceed, contract by $969,726, increasing the total contract 
amount from $16,813,142 to $17,782,868.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $969,726                     

Appropriation Source:             50 % Wastewater Project Fund / 50% Windjammer Park Fund        

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This amendment has not been discussed at a City Council Workshop.

 

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 

Engineers a complete scope of services for this portion of the work. The additional scope of services has 
increased the time and materials, not to exceed, contract by $969,726, increasing the total contract 
amount from $16,813,142 to $17,782,868.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $969,726                     

Appropriation Source:             50 % Wastewater Project Fund / 50% Windjammer Park Fund        

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This amendment has not been discussed at a City Council Workshop.

 

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 

225



March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 
the wastewater treatment plant facility.

 

August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $1,089,561 for the Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.

 

October 16, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 with Carollo 
Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new wastewater treatment plant.

 

January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to negotiate engineering services with Carollo 
Engineers for preliminary and final plans and specifications for a new wastewater treatment plant.

 

March 19, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 6 
with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant.

 

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 

March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 
the wastewater treatment plant facility.

 

August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $1,089,561 for the Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.

 

October 16, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 with Carollo 
Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new wastewater treatment plant.

 

January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to negotiate engineering services with Carollo 
Engineers for preliminary and final plans and specifications for a new wastewater treatment plant.

 

March 19, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 6 
with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant.

 

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 
10 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $4,586,959 for final design of the new wastewater treatment 
plant.

 

May 5, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 11 with Carollo 
Engineers in the amount of $201,876, increasing the total contract amount from $7,907,388 to 
$8,109,264.

 

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 12 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,496,077, increasing the total contract amount from $8,109,264 to 
$9,605,341.

 

February 3, 2016 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 13 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,828,155, increasing the total contract amount from $9,605,341 to 
$11,433,496.

 

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 
10 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $4,586,959 for final design of the new wastewater treatment 
plant.

 

May 5, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 11 with Carollo 
Engineers in the amount of $201,876, increasing the total contract amount from $7,907,388 to 
$8,109,264.

 

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 12 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,496,077, increasing the total contract amount from $8,109,264 to 
$9,605,341.

 

February 3, 2016 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 13 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,828,155, increasing the total contract amount from $9,605,341 to 
$11,433,496.

 

226



 

May 3, 2016 – City Council authorized the release of management reserve in the amount of $218,427; 
and authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 14 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of 
$5,339,431, increasing the total contract amount from $11,433,496 to $16,772,927.

 

June 7, 2016 – City Council adopted the Windjammer Park Integration Plan through Resolution 16-15

 

September 4, 2016 – City Council authorized Council authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment 
No. 15 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $40,215, increasing the total contract amount from 
$16,772,927 to $16,813,142.

 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Windjammer Park Phase 1 Anticipated Improvements
2. Attachment B - Windjammer Project Elements List
3. Attachment C - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 16
4. Attachment D - Consultant Original PSA & Previous Amendments
5. Attachment E - Carollo Contract Summary

 

May 3, 2016 – City Council authorized the release of management reserve in the amount of $218,427; 
and authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 14 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of 
$5,339,431, increasing the total contract amount from $11,433,496 to $16,772,927.

 

June 7, 2016 – City Council adopted the Windjammer Park Integration Plan through Resolution 16-15

 

September 4, 2016 – City Council authorized Council authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment 
No. 15 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $40,215, increasing the total contract amount from 
$16,772,927 to $16,813,142.

 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Windjammer Park Phase 1 Anticipated Improvements
2. Attachment B - Windjammer Project Elements List
3. Attachment C - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 16
4. Attachment D - Consultant Original PSA & Previous Amendments
5. Attachment E - Carollo Contract Summary

227

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478565788x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478565833x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478565945x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478566006x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478810988x_at.pdf


Windjammer Park  

PROJECT LIMITS
11.4.2016

Area is currently included in 
Clean Water Facility design & 
construction contractscccoooonn

PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS

Acres

Waterfront Trail

Splash Park

Playground

Hard Courts

Events Plaza

Performance Stage

Kitchen

Bathroom

Parking Spaces

Windshelters
Maintenance Storage
Facility

12.5 ac.

700 feet

1

1

2

1

1

2

2

171

3

1

Attachment A-Phase I Phase I Windjammer Park 
Improvements 228



ATTACHMENT B 
PHASE I WINDJAMMER PARK PROJECT ELEMENTS 

 
Phase I Windjammer Park Improvement Design for the Clean Water Facility 

 
 New parking lot along SE City Beach Street per Windjammer Park Master Plan.  
 Redesign of the landscape on the north side of new CWF to include storm water 

treatment, interpretive plazas, integration of expanded odor control facilities and 
structures.  

 Expanded/enhanced wetland to replace existing delineated wetland/ditch. New wetlands 
provide increased flood storage. Coordination with storm-water and civil engineers. 

 Wetland overlook – to include boardwalk viewing platform and interpretive elements. 
 Pedestrian circulation – sidewalks and trails. 
 Rough grading for phase 1B – coordinated with civil engineers. 
 Partial/north side “crescent” parking lot and access adjacent to SW Beeksma Drive. Half 

street improvements along Beeksma not included. 
 Wayfinding and signage. 
 Park lighting design and engineering. 
 Planting and irrigation with reclaimed water provided by CWF. 
 Continuation of plaza south of CWF to waterfront trail. 
 New nature playground south of CWF. 
 Splash Park design – interactive, user activated Splash Park to resemble Windjammer 

Master Plan concept.  
 Water feature design at west edge of plaza, adjacent to the promenade. Design to 

include all mechanical, electrical and plumbing work. Water feature design concept and 
mechanics will be coordinated with new water feature at CWF.  

 Restrooms – will be pre-fabricated structures similar to the Portland Loo. Design to 
include civil coordination and specifications for procurement. 

 (2) Outdoor, open air kitchen structures: assume 72’ x 20’ in context with new 
architecture. Buildings will include secure storage, food prep area and space for seating 
larger groups. One kitchen located at the west end of the park, one on the east to 
replace existing structure. 

 Maintenance storage facility (approximately 16' x 32'). This facility, also designed within 
new architectural context is located behind the west park entrance, near the Kayak 
Campground. This facility will be used to store and maintain park equipment.  

 New multi-use entry/shelter structure at northwest parking lot. This facility is designed to 
be a gateway to the park. It features a covered shelter and performance space. 
Architecture to blend and compliment new kitchen and maintenance structures.  

 Remainder of “crescent” parking lot and access adjacent to SW Beeksma Drive. 
 Small park-and-view parking lot adjacent to Kayak Campground. 
 Wayfinding and signage. 
 Basketball courts – replace existing. 
 Pedestrian circulation – sidewalks and trails. 
 Enhancement of shoreline including grading, trails, and wind shelters. 
 Planting and irrigation with reclaimed water provided by CWF. 
 Park lighting design and engineering. 
 Wind shelters design and engineering – include (2 – 3 shelters).  

 

229



 
Amendment No. 16 11/4/2016 Page 1 of 2 
 
pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Oak Harbor Amendment 15 Form.docx 

Consultant Agreement Amendment  
Number 16 
 

Organization and Address 
 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
 
Phone: 360-279-4500 

Original Agreement Title:  Engineering 
Services for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and 
Facilities Plan 
Project Number:  8549A.00 (Amendments 1-
5) 
8549A.10 (Amendment 6 - 12, 15) 
8549A.22 (Amendment 13) 
8549A.21 (Amendment 14) 
8549A.30 (Amendment 16) 

Execution Date 
09/16/10 

Completion Date (Prior) 
December 2018 

Project Title:  Engineering, Facilities Plan and 
Preliminary Design 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
$17,782,868 

Description of Work:  This Amendment authorizes services to complete design and 
construction phase services for Windjammer Park Improvements adjacent to the Clean Water 
Facility (CWF). This Amendment also includes a no-cost transfer of $130,548 to cover 
additional CWF design costs, including: site plan grading revisions to coordinate with 
approved WPIP concepts; additional permitting support for multiple construction packages; 
additional printing/delivery costs for additional construction packages; and redesigned odor 
control facility to the North of the CWF. A summary of the budget transfer is included in 
Attachment 5. 

 
The City of Oak Harbor         
desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Carollo Engineers, Inc. 
and executed on  09/16/10 and identified as Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.  
              
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement. 
 
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT is hereby amended to add the following:  
Please see the attached Engineering Services Insert (Exhibit A). The requirements in this insert 
are hereby incorporated into the original agreement. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget. Please see the attached Scopes of Services (Exhibit B.1) for additional phases of work. 
 
PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO:  No Change 
 

230



 
Amendment No. 16 11/4/2016 Page 2 of 2 
 
pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Oak Harbor Amendment 15 Form.docx 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
The maximum total contract value is increased from $16,813,142 to $17,782,868. This 
maximum upper limit includes a Management Reserve as indicated in prior amendments. Exhibit 
D-3 summarize the level of effort associated with Amendment 16 services. 
 
Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract.  
 
If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 
 
 
 
By:  Brian R. Matson, Senior Vice President  By:  Robert Severns, Mayor 
 
 
             
Consultant Signature     Approving Authority Signature 
 
             
         Date 
 
By:  Karl Hadler, Vice President  
 
 
        
Consultant Signature      
 

231



EXHIBIT B.1 
 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Amendment 16 Scope_161031.docx 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR  
WINDJAMMER PARK IMPROVEMENT DESIGN FOR THE CLEAN WATER FACILITY 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Siting the Clean Water Facility (CWF) in Windjammer Park presents a unique opportunity to 
develop a long-term plan for the park, integrating existing and new elements in this community 
space. Accordingly, a Windjammer Park Integration Plan (WPIP) was developed to help guide 
future park programming. City Council approved the WPIP on June 7, 2016. The WPIP includes 
recommended improvements to the park and areas adjacent to the CWF to be constructed in 
multiple phases. Carollo Engineers (Consultant) will complete additional design services for an 
initial phase of improvements that are identified in the WPIP (Project). Attachment 1 highlights 
the area to be improved and summarizes the Project. Attachment 2 provides additional detail for 
each of the major project elements. Consultant's work consists of the following: 
 
Per the WPIP, Consultant will design the following amenities that are included as part of the 
mitigation and additional park improvements: 
 
 New kitchen facilities 
 New restrooms 
 New basketball courts 
 Improved playground areas and splash park 
 Additional parking  
 Increased pathways and access 
 Wetland enhancements 
 Site regrading, landscaping, and hardscape 
 
To complete the planning, permitting, and design of these improvements in a waterfront setting, 
Consultant's services include: 
 
 Topographical survey  
 Architecture and Landscape Architecture;  
 Civil, structural, electrical and geotechnical engineering;  
 Environmental and regulatory compliance; 
 Public outreach. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 
 
Task 1100 – Project Management 
Task 1200 – Public Process Support 
Task 1300 – Design Development 
Task 1400 – Construction Documentation 
Task 1500 – Permitting Assistance 
Task 1600 – Bid Period Services 
Task 1700 – Engineering Services During Construction 

232



EXHIBIT B.1 
 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Amendment 16 Scope_161031.docx 

 
TASK 1100 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
The objective of this task is to manage and coordinate engineering and related services 
required for Project completion. Consultant will provide the following services for Task 1100: 
 
Subtask 1110 – Project Monitoring and Reporting 
 
Manage the Project team to track time and budget, work elements accomplished, work items 
planned for the next period, manpower, scope changes, and time and budget needed to 
complete this Scope of Services. Prepare monthly project status reports that compare work 
accomplished with schedule activities and compare expenditures with task budgets, and submit 
reports to the City’s Project Manager with monthly invoices. Document expenditures on a task 
basis, and show hours by project personnel and other direct expenses related to work. 
 
Subtask 1110 Assumptions:  
 

1. Total Project duration for this phase is 12 months. 

 
Subtask 1120 – Project Meetings 
 
Schedule and conduct a Project Kickoff and Coordination Meeting to discuss project objectives, 
schedule, and integration with ongoing construction and public involvement activities siting 
conditions, permitting issues, and design details. Schedule and facilitate up to eight (8) 
additional project coordination teleconferences to review action items and decisions. Prepare 
and submit meeting minutes to the City within three (3) working days after meetings are held. 
Submit a final version of meeting minutes within five (5) working days after comments on the 
draft have been received from the City. 
 
Subtask 1120 Assumptions:  
 

1. Project Kickoff and Coordination Meeting will be held in Oak Harbor and attended by 
four (4) Consultant staff. 

2. Agendas, meeting minutes, and Action Items will be distributed electronically by the 
Consultant to City’s Project Manager. 

 
Task 1100 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date 
(12) Monthly Invoices and Progress Reports 1110 Monthly 

(9) Meeting Agendas, Materials, and Minutes 1120 Per Meeting Schedule 

 
TASK 1200 – PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT 
 
The purpose of this task is to provide public process support and meeting facilitation throughout 
the Project. Consultant will complete the following services: 
 

 Prepare for up to two (2) stakeholder briefings for community groups (e.g. Friends of 
Windjammer Park). Attend one (1) stakeholder briefing. 

233



EXHIBIT B.1 
 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Amendment 16 Scope_161031.docx 

 Plan and staff up to two (2) public open house meetings, including notification materials. 
Facilitate one (1) open house meeting in a workshop format. 

 Implement one (1) online open house for broader community input, associated with one 
(1) in-person open house. 

 Provide materials and/or logistics planning for one (1) additional grassroots outreach 
effort (e.g. half-day tour of other relevant parks within 90 minutes of Oak Harbor). 

 Assist in developing content for up to three (3) Council updates/presentations. 
Participate/present in one (1) Council workshop, and contribute content for one (1) 
briefing with the Mayor to supporting decision-making and Project implementation. 

 
Task 1200 Assumptions: 
 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved  

by City staff.  

2. Up to 40 hours of Consultant time is allocated for planning and attendance of site tours.  

 The City will be responsible for distributing materials to the public, including paying for 
printing, advertisements, and postage, with coordination by Consultant. 

 

Task 1200 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Task Anticipated Delivery Date 
(2) Information for Stakeholder Briefings 1200 Per Schedule 

(2) Materials/notifications for open houses meetings 1200 Nov. 2016; Feb. 2017 

(1) Materials for online open house 1200 Per Schedule 

(1) Grassroots event planning and facilitation 1200 Per Schedule and Authorization

(3) Council/Mayor Briefing presentations 1200 Per Schedule 

(1) Updated fact sheet 1200 Per Schedule 

(4) Project website updates 1200 Per Schedule 

(2) Newsletters 1200 Per Schedule 

(1) Email update 1200 Per Schedule 

 
 
TASK 1300 – DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 
 
The purpose of this task is to develop preliminary design information as a basis for final design 
of the Project. 
 
Subtask 1310 - Geotechnical Investigations and Survey/Base Mapping 
 
Develop geotechnical basis of design information, including: 
 

 Up to 12 hours of field explorations to drill borings to depths of approximately 40 feet 
(assumes Oak Harbor staff will perform necessary archaeological work). 

 Laboratory testing to develop necessary design criteria. 

234



EXHIBIT B.1 
 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Amendment 16 Scope_161031.docx 

 Boring log preparation. 
 Data report/summary memorandum describing field exploration program, results of 

laboratory testing and description of subsurface soil and groundwater conditions. 
 Results documented in a data report/memorandum. 

 
Complete a Topographical Survey and Base Map of the Project area. 
 

 Base-mapping to include locations of all structures and identification of trees 12” dbh. 
 
Subtask 1320 - Preliminary (30%) Design Development 
 
Prepare and submit Preliminary (30%) design documents (plans and specifications) for the 
Project incorporating refinements associated with public input. Preliminary design documents 
will undergo QA/QC by Consultant and will consist of the following: 
 

 Demolition Plans – all structures, existing park elements and salvage and relocation of 
existing park memorials. 

 Erosions Control and Tree Protection Plans. 
 Architectural Plans/ Specifications for Maintenance/Storage, (2) Kitchen shelters and 

new multi-use entry/shelter park structure. 
 Structural Plans for Maintenance/Storage, (2) Kitchen shelters and new multi-use 

entry/shelter park structure.  
 Utility Plans 
 Lighting Plans 
 Hardscape and Materials Plans 
 Planting and Irrigation Plans 
 Grading and Drainage Plans 
 Detailing for Water Features 
 Plaza Amenities Plans 
 Storm Water Plans 
 Associated Specifications 
 Opinion of construction cost for Project 

 
Prepare for and conduct three (3) review meetings during Preliminary Design, one of which to 
be held in Oak Harbor. 
 
Task 300 Assumptions: 

 

1. None 

 
Task 300 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date 
Geotechnical Basis of Design Memorandum 1310 Per Schedule 

Survey Base Mapping 1310 Per Schedule 

Preliminary (30%) Design Documents 1320 Per Schedule 

 
 

235



EXHIBIT B.1 
 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Amendment 16 Scope_161031.docx 

TASK 1400 – CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTATION 
 
The purpose of this task is to develop design information to support bidding and construction of 
the Project. Attachment 3 summarizes the anticipated sheet list for Project billing. 
 
Subtask 1410 - 60% Design Documents 
 
Prepare and submit 60% design documents (plans and specifications) for the Project. Update 
opinion of construction cost. Conduct internal QA/QC. Prepare for and conduct three (3) review 
meetings during 60% Design, one of which to be held in Oak Harbor. 
 
Subtask 1420 - 90% Design Document 
 
Prepare and submit 60% design documents (plans and specifications) for the Project. Update 
opinion of construction cost. Conduct internal QA/QC. Prepare for and conduct three (3) review 
meetings during 90% Design, one of which to be held in Oak Harbor. 
 
Subtask 1430 - Final (100%) Design Documents 
 
Incorporate City comments, prepare, and submit Final (100%) stamped and signed construction 
documents. 
 
Task 1400 Assumptions: 

 

1. City reviews will be performed in a timely manner according to the Project schedule  

 
Task 1400 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date 
60% Design Documents 1410 Per Schedule 

90% Design Documents 1420 Per Schedule 

Final (100%) Design Documents 1430 Per Schedule 

 
 
TASK 1500 – PERMITTING ASSISTANCE 
 
The purpose of this task is to complete environmental documentation for the WPIP, and to 
provide permitting assistance for implementation of the Project. 
 
Subtask 1510 - SEPA Checklist  
 
Prepare a SEPA Environmental Checklist in accordance with WAC 197-11. The document will 
evaluate the WPIP as a whole, with emphasis on implementation of the Project. Lead one (1) 

236



EXHIBIT B.1 
 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Amendment 16 Scope_161031.docx 

conference call coordination meeting with the City. Prepare an internal review draft, including 
graphics, incorporate review comments into a camera-ready original. 
 
Subtask 1520 - Section 404 Permit 
 
Prepare the JARPA application for submittal to the US Army Corps of Engineers for a 
Nationwide Permit for wetland disturbance and/or creation associated with the Project. Arrange 
a meeting or conference call with the Corps to discuss the wetland creation strategy prior to 
submittal of permit materials. 
 
Subtask 1530 - Biological Assessment No Effect Letter 
 
Prepare a biological assessment in compliance with Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act to 
accompany the JARPA application for submittal to the Corps. 
 
Subtask 1540 - Shoreline Substantial Development Permit 
 
Prepare the JARPA application for submittal to the City of Oak Harbor for the shoreline 
substantial development permit. The application will be prepared in compliance with City of Oak 
Harbor Code. Conduct one (1) conference call coordination meeting with the City regarding the 
permit submittal. 
 
Subtask 1550 - Floodplain Development Assistance 
 
Assist with the Floodplain development permit, and ensure the floodplain fill proposal is 
consistent with other code and permit requirements. 
 
Subtask 1560 - Critical Areas Report Update  
 
Update the critical areas report to include the new project elements and mitigation measures. 
The report prepared for the Clean Water Facility will be used as the basis for the report, and will 
include the Project elements of the WPIP. Prepare an internal review draft, including graphics, 
to be reviewed by the City and project team. Incorporate internal review comments into a 
camera-ready original for the City. Perform one (1) site visit to facilitate report update. 
 
Task 1500 Assumptions: 
 

1. The City will be responsible for SEPA public notification and printing and distribution as 
appropriate. 

2. A No Effect Letter (NEL) is the appropriate level of documentation for the Project. 

3. Compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act can be 
accomplished under the existing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 
City and the Tribes for the Clean Water Facility construction. Efforts to comply with 
Section 106 are not included in this scope and budget, but will be required for submittal 
of the permit application. 

237



EXHIBIT B.1 
 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Amendment 16 Scope_161031.docx 

 
Task 1500 Deliverables 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date 
Draft/Final SEPA Checklist 1510 Per Schedule 

Draft/Final JARPA for Submission to the Corps 1520 Per Schedule 

Draft/Final NEL 1530 Per Schedule 

Draft/Final JARPA for Submission to Oak Harbor 1540 Per Schedule 

Draft/Final Critical Areas Report 1560 Per Schedule 

 
 
TASK 1600 – BID PERIOD SERVICES 
 
Attend the Pre Bid Meeting in Oak Harbor. Prepare Addenda, answer RFI's and Clarifications 
during the Bid Phase. Prepare Recommendation to Award Memorandum. Create a conformed 
set of documents prior to construction. 
 

Task 1600 Assumptions: 
 

1. None 
 

 
Task 1600 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date 
Pre Bid Meeting Minutes 600 Per Schedule 

Responses to RFIs and Requests for Clarification 600 Per Schedule 

Conformed Design Documents 600 Per Schedule 

 
 
TASK 1700 - SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Complete the following services during construction of the project: 
 

 Attend Pre-Construction Meeting. 
 Review Documents (submittals/RFI's). 
 Perform up to eight (8) site visits. 
 Prepare Draft and Final Punch Lists. 
 Develop a Construction Close Out Memorandum and Operations and Maintenance 

Manuals. 
 
Task 1700 Assumptions 
 

1. Project duration is anticipated to be 12 months. 

238



EXHIBIT B.1 
 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts\Amendment 16 Scope_161031.docx 

 
Task 1700 Deliverables 
 

1. Meeting notes for up to nine (9) meetings on site. 
2. Final punch list. 
3. Close Out Memorandum. 
4. O&M Manuals. 

 
 
LEVEL OF EFFORT 
 
The estimated level of effort and associated fees for the services defined herein is presented in 
Exhibit D-3.  
 
SCHEDULE 
 
This Scope of Services to be completed on or before December 2018. The anticipated schedule 
for the Project is shown on Attachment 4. 

239



Windjammer Park  

PROJECT LIMITS
11.4.2016

Area is currently included in 
Clean Water Facility design & 
construction contractscccoooonn

PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS

Acres

Waterfront Trail

Splash Park

Playground

Hard Courts

Events Plaza

Performance Stage

Kitchen

Bathroom

Parking Spaces

Windshelters
Maintenance Storage
Facility

12.5 ac.

700 feet

1

1

2

1

1

2

2

171

3

1

ATTACHMENT 1

240



ATTACHMENT 2 
PROJECT ELEMENTS 

 
Windjammer Park Improvement Design for the Clean Water Facility 

 
 New parking lot along SE City Beach Street per Windjammer Park Master Plan.  

 Redesign of the landscape on the north side of new CWF to include storm water 
treatment, interpretive plazas, integration of expanded odor control facilities and 
structures.  

 Expanded/enhanced wetland to replace existing delineated wetland/ditch. New wetlands 
provide increased flood storage. Coordination with storm-water and civil engineers. 

 Wetland overlook – to include boardwalk viewing platform and interpretive elements. 

 Pedestrian circulation – sidewalks and trails. 

 Rough grading for phase 1B – coordinated with civil engineers. 

 Partial/north side “crescent” parking lot and access adjacent to SW Beeksma Drive. Half 
street improvements along Beeksma not included. 

 Wayfinding and signage. 

 Park lighting design and engineering. 

 Planting and irrigation with reclaimed water provided by CWF. 

 Continuation of plaza south of CWF to waterfront trail. 

 New nature playground south of CWF. 

 Splash Park design – interactive, user activated Splash Park to resemble Windjammer 
Master Plan concept.  

 Water feature design at west edge of plaza, adjacent to the promenade. Design to 
include all mechanical, electrical and plumbing work. Water feature design concept and 
mechanics will be coordinated with new water feature at CWF.  

 Restrooms – will be pre-fabricated structures similar to the Portland Loo. Design to 
include civil coordination and specifications for procurement. 

 (2) Outdoor, open air kitchen structures: assume 72’ x 20’ in context with new 
architecture. Buildings will include secure storage, food prep area and space for seating 
larger groups. One kitchen located at the west end of the park, one on the east to 
replace existing structure. 

 Maintenance storage facility (approximately 16' x 32'). This facility, also designed within 
new architectural context is located behind the west park entrance, near the Kayak 
Campground. This facility will be used to store and maintain park equipment.  

 New multi-use entry/shelter structure at northwest parking lot. This facility is designed to 
be a gateway to the park. It features a covered shelter and performance space. 
Architecture to blend and compliment new kitchen and maintenance structures.  

 Remainder of “crescent” parking lot and access adjacent to SW Beeksma Drive. 

 Small park-and-view parking lot adjacent to Kayak Campground. 

 Wayfinding and signage. 

 Basketball courts – replace existing. 

 Pedestrian circulation – sidewalks and trails. 

 Enhancement of shoreline including grading, trails, and wind shelters. 

 Planting and irrigation with reclaimed water provided by CWF. 

 Park lighting design and engineering. 

 Wind shelters design and engineering – include (2 – 3 shelters).  

 

241



Oak Harbor CWF / Windjammer Park
City of Oak Harbor, WA.  October 31, 2016

Sheet No. Sheet Title
G01  COVER SHEET
G02  INDEX SHEET 

EC01  EROSION CONTROL COVER SHEET - LEGEND & GENERAL NOTES
EC02 EROSION CONTROL PLAN 
EC03 EROSION CONTROL PLAN
EC04 EROSION CONTROL PLAN 
EC05 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
EC06  EROSION CONTROL DETAILS

D01   OVERALL LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION SITE PLAN
D02              LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION LEGEND & GENERAL NOTES
D03          LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'A'
D04    LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'B'
D05 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'C'
D06 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'D'
D07 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'E'
D08 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'F'
D09 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'G' 
D10 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN ‘H'
D11 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'I'
D12 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'J'
D13 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'K'
D14  LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'L'
D15 LANDSCAPE DEMOLITION PLAN 'M'

L01 OVERALL LANDSCAPE SITE PLAN

L02 MATERIALS LEGEND & GENERAL NOTES
L03     MATERIALS PLAN 'A'
L04     MATERIALS PLAN 'B'
L05   MATERIALS PLAN 'C'
L06     MATERIALS PLAN 'D'
L07  MATERIALS PLAN 'E'
L08 MATERIALS PLAN 'F'
L09 MATERIALS PLAN 'G' 
L10  MATERIALS PLAN ‘H'
L11  MATERIALS PLAN 'I'
L12  MATERIALS PLAN 'J'
L13 MATERIALS PLAN 'K'
L14 MATERIALS PLAN 'L'
L15  MATERIALS PLAN 'M'

L16  LAYOUT LEGEND & GENERAL NOTES
L17  LAYOUT PLAN 'A'
L18 LAYOUT PLAN 'B'
L19 LAYOUT PLAN 'C'
L20 LAYOUT PLAN 'D'
L21   LAYOUT PLAN 'E'
L22    LAYOUT PLAN 'F'
L23 LAYOUT PLAN 'G'
L24   LAYOUT PLAN ‘H'
L25      LAYOUT PLAN 'I'

Page 1 of 4

ATTACHMENT 3

242



Oak Harbor CWF / Windjammer Park
City of Oak Harbor, WA.  October 31, 2016

L26   LAYOUT PLAN 'J'
L27   LAYOUT PLAN 'K'
L28   LAYOUT PLAN 'L'
L29 LAYOUT PLAN 'M'

L30  GRADING PLAN - LEGEND AND NOTES
L31  GRADING PLAN 'A'
L32   GRADING PLAN 'B'
L33  GRADING PLAN 'C'
L34   GRADING PLAN 'D'
L35  GRADING PLAN 'E'
L36  GRADING PLAN 'F'
L37  GRADING PLAN 'G'
L38  GRADING PLAN ‘H'
L39 GRADING PLAN 'I'
L40 GRADING PLAN 'J'
L41 GRADING PLAN 'K'
L42   GRADING PLAN 'L'
L43 GRADING PLAN 'M'

L44  IRRIGATION LEGEND AND NOTES
L45    IRRIGATION PLAN 'A'
L46   IRRIGATION PLAN 'B'
L47  IRRIGATION PLAN 'C'
L48 IRRIGATION PLAN 'D'
L49 IRRIGATION PLAN 'E'
L50 IRRIGATION PLAN 'F'
L51  IRRIGATION PLAN 'G'
L52  IRRIGATION PLAN ‘H'
L53 IRRIGATION PLAN 'I'
L54 IRRIGATION PLAN 'J'
L55 IRRIGATION PLAN 'K'
L56 IRRIGATION PLAN 'L'
L57   IRRIGATION PLAN 'M'

L58   PLANTING LEGEND AND NOTES
L59 PLANTING PLAN 'A'
L60 PLANTING PLAN 'B'
L61 PLANTING PLAN 'C'
L62 PLANTING PLAN 'D'
L63 PLANTING PLAN 'E'
L64 PLANTING PLAN 'F'
L65  PLANTING PLAN 'G' 
L66 PLANTING PLAN ‘H'
L67 PLANTING PLAN 'I'
L68  PLANTING PLAN 'J'
L69   PLANTING PLAN 'K'
L70 PLANTING PLAN 'L'
L71 PLANTING PLAN 'M'

WATER FEATURE 
L72 WATER FEATURE PLAN & PIPING DIAGRAM
L73 WATER FEATURE - PLAN
L74 WATER FEATURE - PLAN 
L75 WATER FEATURE - DETAILS 

Page 2 of 4 243



Oak Harbor CWF / Windjammer Park
City of Oak Harbor, WA.  October 31, 2016

L76 WATER FEATURE - DETAILS
L77 WATER FEATURE – DETAILS

SITE DETAILS 
L78 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS - 1 SITE ENLARGEMENTS
L79 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS - 2 SITE ENLARGEMENTS
L80 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS - 4 SITE ENLARGEMENTS
L81 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS - 5 SITE ENLARGEMENTS
L82 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS - 6 SITE ENLARGEMENTS
L83 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS - 7 SITE ENLARGEMENTS
L84 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
L85 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS  
L86 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS 
L87  CONSTRUCTION DETAILS 
L88 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS  
L89 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS  
L90  CONSTRUCTION DETAILS  
L91 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS  

L92 DETAILS - IRRIGATION
L93 DETAILS - IRRIGATION
L94 DETAILS - PLANTING
L95 DETAILS - PLANTING

A1 General Architectural Notes
A2 Architectural Site Plan
A3 Floor Plan - Performance Structure
A4 Floor Plan - Kitchen
A5 Floor Plan - Maintenance Structure
A6 Roof Plan - Performance Structure
A7 Roof Plan - Kitchen
A8 Roof Plan - Maintenance Structure
A9 Elevations - Performance Structure
A10 Elevations  - Kitchen
A11 Elevations  - Maintenance Structure
A12 Sections - Maintenance Structure
A13 Sections - Performance Structure
A14 Sections  - Kitchen
A15 Assembly Details
A16 Assembly Details
A17 Assembly Details
A18 Roofing Details
A19 Roofing Details
A20 Roofing Details
A21 Flashing Details
A22 Flashing Details
A23 Flashing Details
A24 Door Window Details
A25 Door Window Details

S1 General Structural Notes
S2 General Structural Notes
S3 Special Inspection Tables

Page 3 of 4 244



Oak Harbor CWF / Windjammer Park
City of Oak Harbor, WA.  October 31, 2016

S4 Special Inspection Tables
S5 Foundation Plan - Performance Structure
S6 Foundation Plan - Kitchen
S7 Foundation Plan - Maintenance Building
S8 Roof Framing Plan - Performance Structure
S9 Roof Framing Plan - Kitchen
S10 Roof Framing Plan - Maintenance Building
S11 Wall Elevations
S12 Concrete Details
S13 Concrete Details
S14 Masonry Details
S15 Masonry Details
S16 Timber Details
S17 Timber Details
S18 Timber Details
S19 Timber Details
S20 Miscellaneous Details
S21 Miscellaneous Details

Page 4 of 4 245



ID Task Name

1 Windjammer Park Improvement Design

2 NTP

3 Surveying

4 Geotechnical Investigations

5 Public Outreach

6 Preliminary Design

7 Final Design

8 Permitting

9 Bidding

10 Construction

11/15

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov
2017 2018

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: Windjammer Park Desi
Date: Fri 11/4/16

ATTACHMENT 4

246



247



EXHIBIT D-3

City of Oak Harbor
Windjammer Park Improvement Design for the Clean Water Facility Project
Level of Effort Estimate Field 2.5%

November 2, 2016 Matson CAMP Lish Lish Office 1.9 $10.00

Direct Labor (DL) Rates $88 $76 $58 $62 $48 $54 $42 $40 $27

TASK 1100 - Project Management
Subtask 1110 - Project Monitoring and Reporting 24 24 48 $2,760 $5,244 $680 $8,684 $26,293 $34,977
Subtask 1120 - Project Meetings 36 36 $2,088 $3,967 $511 $6,567 $16,009 $22,576

Task 1100 Subtotal 24 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 24 84 $4,848 $9,211 $1,191 $15,251 $42,302 $0 $0 $0 $0 $57,553

TASK 1200 - Public Process Support 8 8 8 24 $1,776 $3,374 $369 $5,519 $37,731 $40,050 $83,301

Task 1200 Subtotal 8 8 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 $1,776 $3,374 $369 $5,519 $37,731 $40,050 $0 $0 $0 $83,301

TASK 1300 - Design Development
Subtask 1310 - Geotechnical and Base Mapping 4 8 12 $768 $1,459 $176 $2,403 $50,000 $52,403
Subtask 1320 - Preliminary Design Development 8 40 48 $2,928 $5,563 $692 $9,183 $122,676 $20,000 $25,000 $176,860

Task 1300 Subtotal 0 12 48 0 0 0 0 0 0 60 $3,696 $7,022 $868 $11,586 $122,676 $0 $0 $70,000 $25,000 $229,262

TASK 1400 - Construction Documentation
Subtask 1410 - 60% Design Development 8 60 60 40 12 180 $8,532 $16,211 $2,419 $27,161 $104,884 $132,046
Subtask 1420 - 90% Design Development 8 40 60 40 8 156 $7,264 $13,802 $2,087 $23,152 $92,058 $115,210
Subtask 1430 - Final (100%) Design Development 24 20 40 24 8 116 $5,840 $11,096 $1,583 $18,519 $92,179 $110,699

Task 1400 Subtotal 0 40 120 0 0 0 160 104 28 452 $21,636 $41,108 $6,089 $68,833 $289,122 $0 $0 $0 $0 $357,955

TASK 1500 - Permitting Assistance
Subtask 1510 - SEPA Checklist 2 4 6 $384 $730 $88 $1,201 $4,705 $8,302 $14,208
Subtask 1520 - Section 404 Permit 2 8 10 $616 $1,170 $145 $1,931 $4,705 $10,196 $16,832
Subtask 1530 - Biological Assessment NEL 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,705 $7,090 $11,795
Subtask 1540 - Shorline Permit 2 4 6 $384 $730 $88 $1,201 $4,705 $8,898 $14,804
Subtask 1550 - Floodplain Development Assistance 8 12 20 $1,304 $2,478 $295 $4,076 $4,705 $2,504 $11,285
Subtask 1560 - Critical Areas Report Update 4 4 $232 $441 $57 $730 $4,707 $5,198 $10,635

Task 1500 Subtotal 0 14 32 0 0 0 0 0 0 46 $2,920 $5,548 $672 $9,140 $28,232 $0 $42,188 $0 $0 $79,560

TASK 1600 - Bid Period Services 4 16 20 $1,232 $2,341 $289 $3,862 $23,764 $27,626

Task 1600 Subtotal 0 4 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 $1,232 $2,341 $289 $3,862 $23,764 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,626

TASK 1700 - Services During Construction 16 60 40 12 128 $6,856 $13,026 $1,777 $21,659 $53,229 $74,889

Task 1700 Subtotal 0 16 60 0 0 0 40 12 0 128 $6,856 $13,026 $1,777 $21,659 $53,229 0 0 0 0 $74,889

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 32 94 320 0 0 0 200 116 52 814 $42,964 $81,632 $11,255 $135,850 $597,056 $40,050 $42,188 $70,000 $25,000 $910,145
COST ESCALATION (3% of Carollo Cost) $4,076

CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $16,791
SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $29,853 $2,003 $2,109 $3,500 $1,250 $38,715

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $969,726

Carollo 
Indirect 

Cost

Carollo 
Expenses

Subtotal 
Carollo 

Cost
Total Cost

Subconsultant Cost

MWA/GW EI ESA HAI Geo
Carollo DL 

Cost
WORK TASKS Project 

Manager
Resident 
Engineer

WP/ Admin. 
Support Carollo 

Hours

Design 
Manager

SR. CAD 
Designer

Discipline 
Engineer

Staff 
Engineer

Start-up 
Lead EOM Lead

Page 1

248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



March 14, 2013  Page 1 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

PRELIMINARY DESIGN PHASE 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Oak Harbor (City) has completed a Draft Facilities Plan (Plan) that recommends 
constructing a new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP), marine outfall, and associated 
collection system improvements by 2017. The Plan identifies the “Windjammer Vicinity” as the 
proposed site for a new membrane bioreactor (MBR) treatment facility that is expandable to 
treat projected Year 2060 flows (6 mgd, maximum month basis). The Windjammer Vicinity site 
is approximately 50 acres in size. The actual footprint needed for the MBR treatment facility is 
between three and four acres. This phase of the work includes: development of preliminary 
engineering documents for Value Engineering (VE); additional engineering and public process 
support to select the final location within the Windjammer Vicinity site; development of 
procurement documents to select key process equipment (membranes and ultraviolet [UV] 
disinfection equipment); development of WWTP preliminary design to approximately 30 percent 
detail; assisting with selecting the preferred delivery method to complete WWTP construction; 
and development of Final Construction Documents, permits and bid period services for a 
replacement marine outfall into Oak Harbor. 
 
This Scope of Services is authorized as an amendment to an existing contract between the City 
and Carollo Engineers, Inc. (Carollo). Subsequent phases are anticipated to include: 

 Preparation of Final Construction Documents and Permitting for the WWTP (with 
participation from the City’s General Contractor/Construction Manager [GC/CM] if this 
delivery method is selected). 

 Bid Period Services (or assistance with negotiating a Maximum Allowable Construction 
Cost (MACC), if GC/CM delivery is selected to complete the WWTP. 

 Construction Support Services for the WWTP and Outfall Projects. 

 Preparation of Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manuals. 

 Start-up, Training, and Facility Commissioning. 

 
Project Objectives 
 
The objectives of the Project are to: 

 Complete VE to identify potential cost saving and value-added measures. Prior to 
selecting the final location for the WWTP. 

 Assist the City in identifying the final location for the City’s WWTP within the 
Windjammer Vicinity. 

 Procure major treatment process equipment (membranes, UV) as a basis for final design 
of the new WWTP, using competitive bidding. NOTE: Contracts for pre-procured 
equipment will be assigned to the construction contractor. 

 Prepare preliminary design information to approximately 30 percent level to be used as a 
basis for construction delivery analysis. 

383



March 14, 2013  Page 2 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

 Assist the City in selecting the preferred method for construction delivery. 

 
Project Team 
Carollo will serve as the Prime Consultant for the Project, and will be responsible for overall 
Project management and delivery. In completing the work defined by this Scope of Services, 
Carollo is authorized to use the following Subconsultants: 
 

Subconsultant Role 
ESA  Environmental/Cultural Resources Permitting Support 
EnviroIssues (EI) Public Meeting Facilitation and/or Support 
Michael Willis Architects (MWA) Architectural Design Services 
GeoEngineers(Geo) Geotechnical Design Services 
Bruce Dees & Associates (BDA) Landscape Architectural Design Services 
Webster Environmental (WE) Odor Control Design Services 
Cosmopolitan Engineering Group (CEG) Outfall Design Services 
Harmsen Associates, Inc. (HAI) Topographical Surveying 
 
Related Documents 
 
The following documents provide background information for this project:  

 Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Evaluation, City of Oak Harbor, October 2007. 

 City of Oak Harbor Comprehensive Sewer Plan, TetraTech/KCM, December 2008. 

 City of Oak Harbor Draft Facilities Plan, Carollo, March 2013. 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Carollo (Consultant) will provide engineering and other services for the City of Oak Harbor 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Preliminary Design Phase (Project), as defined by this Scope of 
Services. Work products submitted electronically will be produced using software as defined 
below: 

 Word Processing Microsoft Word 

 Spreadsheets  Microsoft Excel 

 Scheduling  Microsoft Project 

 Drawings  Bentley MicroStation and Portable Document Format (PDF) 

 
This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 
 
Task 100 Project Management 
Task 200 Value Engineering Support 
Task 300 Public Process Support  
Task 400 WWTP Preliminary Design 
Task 500 Project Delivery Analysis 
Task 600 Outfall Design  
Task 700 Management Reserve 
 

384



March 14, 2013  Page 3 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
A preliminary schedule for the Project is attached (Attachment 1). The Schedule defines 
anticipated durations for major tasks, Project milestones, and major deliverable dates, assuming 
Notice to Proceed (NTP) in April 2013. Throughout this Scope of Services, anticipated delivery 
dates for major deliverables are established based on this preliminary schedule. The Consultant 
and City recognize that the preliminary schedule and corresponding delivery dates are subject 
to change, should NTP be issued after April 2013 and/or for other reasons. Schedule changes 
may be approved by the City without an amendment to this Scope of Services, provided both 
Consultant and City staff approve of the change. An amendment modifying the Project schedule 
and dates for major deliverables will be issued if required by either the City or Consultant. 
 
TASK 100 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
The objective of this task is to manage and coordinate engineering and related services 
required for Project completion. Consultant will provide the following services for Task 100: 
 
Subtask 110 – Project Management Plan 
 
Complete a draft Project Management Plan (PMP) including scope, work plan and products, 
work breakdown structure, budget, schedule, organization and staffing, communication protocol, 
and project standards within ten (10) days of Notice to Proceed (NTP). Finalize the PMP 
following the Startup Workshop and receipt of City comments. Monitor the PMP throughout the 
project and provide one update of the PMP upon request by the City. 
 
Subtask 111 – Quality Management 
 
Develop and follow a Quality Management Plan (QMP) for the Project to be included in the 
PMP. Review technical memos, documents, drawings, reports, and address review comments 
addressed prior to submission in accordance with the QMP. For major work products develop a 
Record of Comment (ROC) to document City comments and Consultant responses. 
 
Subtask 110 Assumptions: 

1. A Draft PMP will be reviewed at the Project Startup Meeting. 

2. A Final PMP will be issued to incorporate City comments collected following the Project 
Startup Meeting. 

3. The PMP will be updated once during the project. 

 
Subtask 120 – Project Monitoring and Reporting 
 
Manage the Project team to track time and budget, work elements accomplished, work items 
planned for the next period, manpower, scope changes, and time and budget needed to 
complete this Scope of Services. Prepare monthly project status reports that compare work 
accomplished with schedule activities and compare expenditures with task budgets, and submit 
reports to the City’s Project Manager with monthly invoices. Document expenditures on a task 
basis, and show hours by project personnel and other direct expenses related to work. Include a 
project S-curve developed using Earned Valve Management (EVM) detailing anticipated 
progress, percent complete, and percent billed for each month. 
 

385



March 14, 2013  Page 4 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Subtask 120 Assumptions:  

1. Total Project duration for this phase is 12 months. 

 
Subtask 130 – Project Management Meetings 
 
Schedule and conduct Project Management Meetings throughout the project as directed by the 
City’s Project Manager. Meetings will be used to discuss project status, action items, and 
potential areas of concern. Publish meeting minutes with Action Items that require a response 
by team members, City staff, or other agencies identified at the meeting. A draft of the minutes 
will be submitted to the City within three (3) working days after the meeting. The final version will 
be submitted within five (5) working days after comments on the draft have been received from 
the City. 
 
Subtask 130 Assumptions:  

1. Up to six (6) Project Management Meetings will be held. 

2. Agendas, meeting minutes, and Action Items will be distributed electronically by the 
Consultant to City’s Project Manager. 

 
Task 100 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date
(1) PMP 110 April 2013 

(12) Monthly Invoices and Progress Reports 120 Monthly 

(6) Project Management Meeting Agendas 130 As Needed 

(6) Project Management Meeting Action Items Log 130 As Needed 

 
TASK 200 – VALUE ENGINEERING SUPPORT 
 
Value Engineering (VE) is required to satisfy Federal funding requirements, and is considered 
good practice to identify ways to reduce cost and/or improve the overall value of the Project. 
The objective of this task is to assist the City in completing VE to confirm key planning and 
conceptual design assumptions and identify potential cost-saving or value-added measures. 
Consultant will develop conceptual level design information prior to VE, to focus objectives and 
improve the benefit of the VE process. Consultant will provide the following services for Task 
200: 
 
Subtask 210 – Conceptual Design Development 
 
Develop conceptual level detail (approximately 15 percent) for the proposed alternative as 
defined by the 2013 Draft Facilities Plan. A Project Elements List is attached (Attachment 2). 
The conceptual design package is anticipated to include the following: updated hydraulic profile; 
major plans and sections for each facility listed in Attachment 2; major equipment cut sheets 
and equipment/electrical load lists; process control philosophies and control diagrams for major 
systems; overall control system block diagram; electrical single line drawings; and an updated 
cost estimate. Consolidate information into a conceptual level design package. Meet with City 
staff to review and confirm information.  
 

386



March 14, 2013  Page 5 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Subtask 210 Assumptions: 

1. Conceptual level design information will be developed based on information provided in 
the Draft Facilities Plan, March 2013. 

2. Consultant will use a facilitated design workshop approach to streamline conceptual 
level of design development. 

3. The conceptual level design package will consist of a brief summary, drawing package 
(approximately 30 drawings), and narrative process control philosophies for major 
systems (approximately 10 control philosophies). 

4. Consultant will present conceptual level design information to City staff at a full-day 
meeting, conducted at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

5. The conceptual level design package will serve as the basis for VE. 

 
Subtask 220 – WWTP Site Visits 
 
Site visits to nearby facilities will help to address questions from City staff related to equipment 
selection, performance, O&M concerns, and level of technical support. Schedule and conduct 
up to three (3) independent site visits to nearby facilities. Participate in site tours, facilitate Q&A, 
and complete brief trip reports summarizing results and recommendations collected as a result 
of the site tours. Incorporate recommendations into conceptual design information prepared 
under Subtask 210. 
 
Subtask 220 Assumptions: 

1. Site visits will be completed in the Pacific Northwest as close to Oak Harbor as possible. 
Costs for mileage and per diem for City and Consultant staff are included. Airline travel 
is not anticipated. 

2. Site visits will be conducted in a single day. If coupling site visits requires an overnight 
staff, lodging for Consultant and City staff will be billed at-cost. 

3. Two (2) members of consultant staff will participate in site visits. 

 
Subtask 230 – VE Support 
 
Develop a presentation and present basis of planning and conceptual design information to the 
VE team. Meet with the VE team at the onset of the VE workshop to review and present 
information. Meet with the VE team at the close of the VE workshop to receive comments and 
ideas. Review VE team recommendations with City and develop a narrative response accepting 
ideas or describing why ideas are not recommended. Meet with City staff to review responses. 
Consolidate comments and develop a brief memorandum and presentation to City Council 
summarizing the results of the VE effort. 
 
Subtask 230 Assumptions: 

1. City will contract directly with a Certified Value Engineering Specialist to conduct the VE 
workshop. 

2. Consultant level of effort includes preparation for and participation in two (2) full day 
meetings associated with the VE workshop, and one (1) 4-hour meeting with the City to 
review VE results. 

387



March 14, 2013  Page 6 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

3. Two (2) members of Consultant staff will participate in the VE workshop and City review 
meeting. 

4. VE workshop will be held at or near City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

5. Effort for City Council presentation is included in Task 300. 

 
Task 200 Deliverables: 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date
(1) Conceptual Design Package 210 Per Schedule 

(3) Site Visit Trip Reports 220 As Required 

(1) Materials for Staff Meeting 230 Per Schedule 

(1) VE Response Report to Council 230 Per Schedule 

 
TASK 300 – PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT 
 
The objectives of this task include: 1) support the City in selecting the final location for the 
WWTP within the Windjammer Vicinity; and 2) support successful project implementation by 
proactively identifying and addressing public and stakeholder concerns related to the Project. As 
defined below, the City will lead public process activities for the Project, with significant support 
from the Consultant. Consultant will provide the following services for Task 300: 
 
Subtask 310 – Public Process Planning 
 
Participate in one (1) meeting with the City to develop a project-specific public/stakeholder 
involvement plan (PIP) that identifies the following: 

 Target audiences and issues. 

 Anticipated schedule of activities. 

 Interrelationships and responsibilities. 

 Public involvement tools for each phase of the project. 

 
Prepare a Draft PIP, review with the City, make revisions, and produce a final PIP. Participate in 
coordinating phone calls with City staff to provide strategic advice on public involvement and 
communications issues as they arise throughout the Project. 
 
Throughout the Project, develop and maintain a contact list of stakeholders and interested 
parties. Maintain a log of public comments received outside of the public meetings (via the 
website, emails to project team staff, phone calls, etc.), and responses to public inquiries as 
requested by the City. 
 
Subtask 310 Assumptions: 

None. 

 
Subtask 320 – Establish Policy Framework 
 
Assist the City in planning and conducting a up to four (4) meetings with City officials to 
establish the policy framework for selecting the final location for the WWTP within the 

388



March 14, 2013  Page 7 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Windjammer Vicinity site. Assist City staff in preparing advance plans that identify: information 
needed; options to be considered; and impacts associated with each option. Assist City staff in 
summarizing policy-level decisions into a briefing document that can be shared with the public 
and potentially affected property owners prior to selecting the final WWTP location. 
 
Subtask 320 Assumptions: 

1. All meetings and planning sessions for Subtask 320 will be held at City of Oak Harbor 
facilities. 

2. The City will contract directly with others to provide specialized advice related to property 
acquisition, urban planning, commercial real estate, and cultural resources. 

3. Consultant Project Manager will attend all Subtask 320 meetings. 

 
Subtask 330 – Charrette Workshops 
 
Assist the City in planning and conducting a charrette workshop to collect additional community 
input and assist with selecting the final WWTP location within the Windjammer Vicinity site. 
Meet with City staff to develop charrette objectives, constraints, and other information reflecting 
policy decisions developed in Subtask 320. With City input, prepare conceptual layout options 
for up to three (3) different locations within the Windjammer Vicinity site as a starting point for 
the charettes. Assist charrette team in revising layout options during the workshop, and/or in 
developing new layout options that are consistent with City policy. Coordinate with City’s 
independent charrette facilitator to develop a final, recommended location based on charrette 
input. Summarize cost and non-cost/policy issues and present recommended final layout to City 
Council for direction.  
 
Subtask 330 Assumptions: 

1. All charrette workshops for Subtask 330 will be held at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

2. Consultant Project Manager, Design Manager, and Architect Lead will attend and 
participate in charrette workshops. 

3. City will contract directly with a charrette facilitator to plan, facilitate, and document the 
charrette process. 

4. The City will contract directly with others to provide specialized advice and expertise that 
may be useful during the charrette process, including services related to property 
acquisition, urban planning, commercial real estate, and cultural resources.  NOTE: 
Effort to negotiate land acquisition and to confirm the presence of cultural resources as a 
condition of land acquisition is not included in Consultant’s Scope o f Services. 

5. Effort for presenting charrette information to the Public and City Council is included in 
Subtasks 340 and 360. 

 
Subtask 340 – Public Meetings/City Council Workshops 
 
Assist in planning for and delivering joint Public Meetings/City Council Workshops, defined 
below. Participate in up one (1) preparation session for each meeting. Coordinate with City staff 
to direct Public Meetings/Workshops and produce one (1) draft and one (1) final summary 
(minutes). For each meeting: assist City to arrange for suitable meeting locations; prepare 
meeting plans; produce presentation materials; develop sign-in sheets and public comment 

389



March 14, 2013  Page 8 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

forms; develop draft and final agendas; and develop draft and final meeting 
announcements/save the date notices.  
 

Public Meeting/Council Workshop Objectives 
P1 – Public Meeting No. 1 

(Input on Siting Policy) 

Update Status of Navy Coordination 

Obtain Input to Set Policy for Final WWTP Location 

Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

P2 – Public Meeting No. 2 

(Input on Final Location) 

Communicate Results of Value Engineering 

Communicate Results of Charrette Process 

Update Status of Navy Coordination 

Obtain Input to Determine Final WWTP Location 

Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

P3 – Public Meeting No. 3 

(Input on Design Features) 

Communicate Final WWTP Location 

Update Status of Navy Coordination 

Obtain Input to Assist in Architectural Themes 

Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

P4 – Public meeting No. 4 

(Final Plan, Next Steps) 

Present Preliminary Design 

Communicate Decision RE: Navy Participation 

Update Project Phasing/Cost Information 

Communicate Future Opportunities for Input 

 
Subtask 340 Assumptions: 

1. Public Meetings will be held in conjunction with City Council Workshops to enhance 
efficiency for sharing information. 

2. The City will arrange and pay for meeting locations and facilities. 

3. The City will publish announcements in the local paper and include notices of meetings 
on their website. 

4. The City will pay for all costs related to meeting notifications, including printing and 
postage.  

 
Subtask 350 – Working Groups 
 
Working Group Meetings will be used to inform design decisions related to project features, 
architecture, public spaces, landscaping, etc. Assist City in planning for and conducting four (4) 
Working Group Meetings during the preliminary design process. Coordinate with City staff to 
prepare information necessary to communicate design layouts, opportunities and obtain input. 
Document input and issue meeting minutes with decisions to City. 
 
Subtask 350 Assumptions: 
 

1. Working Group Meetings will held at City of Oak Harbor facilities 

2. City staff will select community participants, schedule meetings, and communicate with 
participants as needed to maximize participation. 

390



March 14, 2013  Page 9 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

3. Working Group Meetings will be attended by approximately five (5) members of the 
community, in addition to Consultant and City staff. 

4. Consultant Design Manager and Lead Architect will attend Working Group Meetings. 

 
Subtask 360 – Council/Committee Meeting Participation 
 
Assist the City in planning and conducting Council/Committee Meetings, defined below. Prepare 
meeting objectives, agendas, roles and responsibilities, and presentation materials in advance 
of the meetings. Participate in up to one (1) preparation session for each meeting. 
 

Council/Committee Meeting Objectives 
C1 – Council Committee Meeting No. 1 Communicate Project Schedule and Approach 

Establish Policy Need for Final WWTP Location 

Review Status of Navy Discussions 

C2 – Council Committee Meeting No. 2 Discuss Policy for Final WWTP Location 

Review Status of Navy Discussions 

Communicate Plan for P1 

C3 – Council Meeting No. 1 Establish Policy for Final WWTP Location 

Confirm Navy Participation (in or out) 

C4 – Council Committee Meeting No. 3 Report Results of VE Process 

C5 – Council Committee Meeting No. 4 Report Results of Charrette Process 

Communicate Plan for P2 

C6 – Council Meeting No. 2 Accept Final VE Recommendations 

Select Final WWTP Location 

C7 – Council Committee Meeting No. 5 Update Project Status 

Communicate Plan for P3 

C8 – Council Committee Meeting No. 6 Summarize Project Delivery Options 

Communicate Plan for P4  

C9 – Council Meeting No. 3 Select Project Delivery Option 

 
Subtask 360 Assumptions: 

1. Council/Committee Meetings will be held at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

2. The City will coordinate announcements for meetings and deliver meeting materials to 
attendees. 

3. Consultant Project Manager will attend City Council Committee Meetings/City Council 
Meetings, and assist City staff in presenting technical information. 

 
Subtask 370 – Public/Stakeholder Involvement Product Development 
 
In consultation with City staff, develop a project website and periodically update the website 
content. Other options for products and activities, subject to Oak Harbor authorization and 
decisions from the PIP include:  

391



March 14, 2013  Page 10 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

 Project brochures/mailers. 

 In consultation with City staff, the Consultant may produce a segment for the City of Oak 
Harbor public access channel. As directed, Consultant will prepare a script and be 
involved in organizing productions that are filmed and produced by the City. 

 Consultant will assist with strategy and development of presentations for local 
community groups made by City staff. 

 
Task 370 Assumptions: 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff/consultants.  

2. City will print and send materials to the public.  

3. Costs for production of materials and Public Access TV productions are paid by the City 
outside of this contract. 

 
Task 300 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date
(1) Updated PIP 310 Per Schedule 

(1) Information for Charrette Workshops 330 Per Schedule 

(4) Public Meeting/Council Workshop Materials 340 Per Schedule 

(4) Working Group Meeting Materials and Minutes 350 Per Schedule 

(9) Presentations for Council/Committee Meetings 360 Per Schedule 

(1) Project Website 370 As Needed 

(12) Updates to Project Website 370 As Needed 

(6) Project Brochure/Public Information Materials 370 As Needed 

(1) Public Access TV Production Plan 370 As Needed 

 
TASK 400 – WWTP PRELIMINARY DESIGN 
 
The objective of this task is to complete a Preliminary Design of the recommended WWTP (as 
defined in the Facilities Plan and by Tasks 200 and 300) to approximately 30 percent level of 
completion. The Preliminary Design will consist of a Preliminary Design Document, Preliminary 
Design Drawings, and Preliminary Design Specifications. The expected project elements list for 
the WWTP is included as Attachment 2. 
 
Preliminary Design documents will be submitted in electronic (PDF) and hard copy format for 
City review. Five (5) hard copies of will be provided to the City. City review comments will be 
documented using the Record of Comment (ROC) log. City comments, modifications, and 
revisions to the Preliminary Design documents will be incorporated during subsequent 
development of Final Design documents. 
 

392



March 14, 2013  Page 11 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Subtask 410 - Preliminary Design Document 
 
Prepare and submit for City review a Preliminary Design Document (PDD) to include the 
following elements:  
 

 Process equipment information and data sheets for major pieces of new equipment 
(updated from Task 200). 

 Preliminary equipment and electrical load list for major pieces of new equipment 
(updated from Task 200). 

 Process Flow Diagrams (PFDs) and narrative control strategies for major processes 
(updated from Task 200). 

 HVAC and odor control requirements (updated from Task 200). 

 Three dimensional (3D) renderings of selected Phase 1 processes areas and buildings. 

 Building code classification table. 

 Architectural basis of design and renderings. 

 Project construction and sequencing schedule. 

 Final Geotechnical Report. 

 Updated opinion of Project Cost. 

 Decision log. 

 
Subtask 410 Assumptions:  

None. 
 
Subtask 420 - Preliminary Design Drawings 
 
Complete additional site survey as needed and prepare Preliminary Design drawings, including 
site plans, schematics, facility layout and equipment drawings, and major architectural, 
structural, mechanical, HVAC, odor control, electrical, instrumentation and control drawings, 
P&IDs for major processes. Develop a 3D model of selected process areas to assist in staff 
review of these facilities. The expected sheet list for the Preliminary Design Drawings is 
included as Attachment 3. 
 
Subtask 420 Assumptions:  

1. The 30 percent submittal will include approximately 120 to 180 drawings. 

 
Subtask 430 - Preliminary Design Specifications 
 
Prepare Preliminary Design Specifications using Consultant’s Master Specifications. Identify 
potential material and equipment requiring procurement outside of the general construction 
contract. The list of specifications expected to be submitted with Preliminary Design is included 
as Attachment 4. 
 
Subtask 430 Assumptions:  

1. The 30 percent submittal will include draft specifications for major equipment and control 
strategies for major systems. 

393



March 14, 2013  Page 12 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

 
Subtask 440 – Procurement Documents 
 
The objective of this task is to assist the City in selecting manufacturers for membrane and UV 
process equipment using a competitive bidding process. Preliminary design information 
prepared under Task 400 will be developed to 30 percent level around the selected equipment 
manufacturers based on the specific details of the selected UV equipment manufacturer. 
 
Prepare competitive bid documents for membrane and UV equipment procurement, including: 
preliminary layout drawings for each manufacturer; general ancillary facility requirements; and 
required technical specifications. Coordinate with City staff to include terms, conditions, and 
contract times (submittal dates and delivery dates) into procurement documents. Meet with City 
staff to review draft bid documents, incorporate comments, and issue final bid documents. 
 
Assist the City during the equipment bidding period by answering questions from the UV 
equipment manufacturers and preparing addenda. Attend the pre-bid conference. Assist the 
County in evaluating all bids and in selecting equipment manufacturers. 
 
Subtask 440 Assumptions: 
 

1. Bid documents will be prepared and bids solicited for up to two (2) UV equipment 
manufacturers and up to two (2) membrane equipment manufacturers. 

2. Contracts for low bidders will include assistance with design phase. Contracts for 
production and delivery of process equipment will be assigned to a General Contractor 
during subsequent phases of work. 

3. Consultant standard procurement documents will be used for technical and front-end 
documents. 

4. One (1) addendum will be prepared during the equipment bid period for each 
manufacturer, two (2) total addenda. 

5. The city will cover reproduction costs for bid sets as required. 

 
Subtask 450 – Technical Team Meetings 
 
Technical Team Meetings will be held during preliminary design to collect information from City 
staff, enhance communication with the design team, and to present 30 percent design concepts. 
Plan for and conduct three (3) Technical Team Meetings during the preliminary design process. 
Prepare information necessary to communicate with City staff and obtain input. Document input 
and issue meeting minutes with decisions to City. 
 
Subtask 450 Assumptions: 
 

1. Technical Team Meetings will held at City of Oak Harbor facilities 

2. Technical Team Meetings will be approximately four (4) hours in duration. 

3. Approximately three (3) members of Consultant design team will attend each meeting, 
including Design Manager and other necessary staff/discipline engineers. 

4. Meeting materials and minutes will be distributed electronically. 

 

394



March 14, 2013  Page 13 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Task 400 Deliverables 
 
Deliverable  Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date

(5) Preliminary Design Document 410 Per Schedule 

(5) Preliminary Design Drawing Sets 420 Per Schedule 

(5) Preliminary Design Specifications 430 Per Schedule 

(5) Draft and Final Procurement Documents 440 Per Schedule 

(3) Technical Team Meeting Materials and Notes 450 Per Schedule 

(1) Preliminary Design ROC 410 - 440 Per Schedule 

 
TASK 500 – PROJECT DELIVERY ANALYSIS 
 
The objective of this task is to select the preferred method for delivering the WWTP final design 
and construction. Consultant will provide the following services under Task 500: 
 
Develop and evaluate potential delivery alternatives for the project, including: 1) conventional 
design-bid-build (DBB), 2) design-build (DB); and 3) General Contractor/Construction Manager 
(GC/CM). Prepare a qualitative list of advantages and disadvantages associated with each 
delivery option. The list is anticipated to include factors such as quality, cost, schedule, and risk 
mitigation. 
 
Prepare a brief Project Memorandum (PM) summarizing results of delivery analysis. Review PM 
with City staff and present findings and recommendations to City officials for direction. 
 
Task 500 Assumptions: 
 

1. City will hire third-party advisor(s) to assist in evaluating project delivery options. 

2. Consultant support of City’s application to use alternate delivery will be included in a 
subsequent phase of services, if needed. 

3. Consultant Project Manager and Design Manager will attend one (1) Technical Team 
Meeting to review delivery options with City and City’s third-party advisor(s). 

 
Task 500 Deliverables: 
 

1. Project Delivery Alternatives PM (Draft and Final). 

 
TASK 600 – OUTFALL DESIGN 
 
The objective of this task is to provide preliminary and final design services, and bid-period 
assistance for the City’s new marine outfall into Oak Harbor. The marine outfall will be 
constructed to replace the City’s existing failed Oak Harbor outfall, in a similar location and 
alignment occupied by the existing outfall. 
 

395



March 14, 2013  Page 14 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Subtask 610 – Preliminary Design Documents 
 
Develop preliminary design documents to a level of detail required to achieve final permit 
approval (Shoreline Permit, JARPA, HPA, and BA) for the new/replacement outfall. Complete 
survey and geotechnical work to support outfall final design. Confirm required mixing is 
achieved for final diffuser design detail. Prepare final design criteria for mixing, wind/wave and 
current data, buoyancy/thrust/anchoring details, and other pertinent information needed for the 
outfall design. Develop 30 percent level drawings showing connection details and plan/profile 
views of the outfall and diffuser. Evaluate construction options and develop an engineer’s 
estimate of probable construction cost. Attend and participate in a Technical Team Meeting to 
review 30 percent design. Document City comments using ROC process and incorporate 
comments into subsequent submittals. 
 
Subtask 610 Assumptions: 
 

1. The 30 percent review meeting will be held at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

2. Consultant Design Manager and required engineering staff will attend 30 percent review 
meeting. 

3. 30 percent design submittal will include three (3) hard copies of drawings and technical 
specifications in CSI format, and one electronic (PDF) copy on CD. 

 
Subtask 620 – Outfall Permitting Support 
 
Coordinate between Consultant team members to secure permits associated with the outfall, 
including Shoreline Permit, JARPA, HPA, and BA. Prepare necessary figures and details to 
support permitting requirements. 
 
Subtask 620 Assumptions: 
 

1. Consultant level of effort includes two (2) meetings with regulatory agencies to review 
information and address questions and/or comments. 

2. Consultant will provide 30 percent design information as required to facilitate final 
permitting. 

 
Subtask 630 – Final Design Documents 
 
Develop final design documents (plans and technical specifications) for bidding and construction 
of the new/replacement outfall. Submit a progress submittal at approximately 60 percent 
completion. Review progress submittal with City staff, document and incorporate comments 
using the ROC process. Update engineer’s opinion of cost at 60 percent. 
 
Complete final design documents (ready to bid) incorporating comments from regulatory 
agencies and City staff. Prepare an engineer’s option of cost at final design. 
 

396



March 14, 2013  Page 15 of 15 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Oak Harbor Scope.docx 

Subtask 630 Assumptions: 
 

1. The 60 percent review meeting will be held at City of Oak Harbor facilities. 

2. Consultant Design Manager and required engineering staff will attend 60 percent review 
meeting. 

3. 60 percent design submittal will include three (3) hard copies of drawings and technical 
specifications in CSI format, and one electronic (PDF) copy on CD. 

4. City front-end documents will be used for final design submittal. Consultant will 
coordinate City front-end documents with consultant’s technical specifications. 

5. Final design submittal will include ten (10) hard copies of drawings and technical 
specifications in CSI format, and one print ready electronic (PDF) copy on CD. 

 
Subtask 640 – Bid Period Services 
 
Attend and participate in pre-bid meeting at City of Oak Harbor facilities. Respond to questions 
and requests for information (RFI) during the bid period. Develop contract addenda as required. 
Review submitted bids upon opening for conformance with contract documents, and provide 
recommendations for award of the contract. 
 
Task 600 Deliverables: 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date 

(3) 30 Percent Design Documents 610 Per Schedule 

 Information in Support of Permitting 620 As Needed 

(3) 60 Percent Design Documents 630 Per Schedule 

(10) Final Design Documents 630 Per Schedule 

(1) Contract Document Addendum 640 Per Schedule 

(5) RFI Responses 640 Per Schedule 

(1) Written Recommendation for Award 640 Per Schedule 

 

397



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

1 PRELIMINARY DESIGN PHASE 287 days Mon 4/1/13 Tue 5/6/14
2 TASK 100 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 279 days Mon 4/1/13 Thu 4/24/14
3 Notice-to-Proceed 0 days Mon 4/1/13 Mon 4/1/13
4 Tech Team Meeing - Project Kickoff 1 day Thu 4/4/13 Thu 4/4/13 3FS+3 days
5 Negotiate Final Design 0 days Thu 4/24/14 Thu 4/24/14 40
6 TASK 200 - VALUE ENGINEERING SUPPORT 88 days Mon 4/1/13 Wed 7/31/13
7 Subtask 210 - Conceptual Design Development 66 days Mon 4/1/13 Mon 7/1/13
8 Prepare for CAMP 30 days Mon 4/1/13 Fri 5/10/13 3
9 Tech Team Conduct CAMP 5 days Mon 5/13/13 Fri 5/17/13 8,15

10 Document CAMP 30 days Mon 5/20/13 Fri 6/28/13 9
11 Tech Team Meeting - CAMP Results 1 day Mon 7/1/13 Mon 7/1/13 10
12 Subtask 220 - WWTP Site Visits 13 days Fri 4/12/13 Tue 4/30/13
13 Tech Team Site Visit 1 1 day Fri 4/12/13 Fri 4/12/13 4FS+5 days
14 Tech Team Site Visit 2 1 day Mon 4/22/13 Mon 4/22/13 13FS+5 days
15 Tech Team Site Visit 3 1 day Tue 4/30/13 Tue 4/30/13 14FS+5 days
16 Subtask 230 - VE Support 22 days Tue 7/2/13 Wed 7/31/13
17 Prepare for VE 5 days Tue 7/2/13 Mon 7/8/13 11
18 Tech Team Meeting - VE Prep 1 day Tue 7/9/13 Tue 7/9/13 17
19 VE Workshop 5 days Wed 7/10/13 Tue 7/16/13 18
20 Review Results/Develop Recommendations 10 days Wed 7/17/13 Tue 7/30/13 19
21 Teach Team Meeting - VE Results 1 day Wed 7/31/13 Wed 7/31/13 20
22 TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT 287 days Mon 4/1/13 Tue 5/6/14
23 Subtask 310 - Public Process Planning 1 day Mon 4/1/13 Mon 4/1/13
24 Tech Team Meeting - Public Process Planning 1 day Mon 4/1/13 Mon 4/1/13 3
25 Subtask 320 - Policy Framework 33 days Tue 4/2/13 Thu 5/16/13
26 Tech Team Meeting - Policy Framework 1 day Tue 4/2/13 Tue 4/2/13 24
27 Tech Team Meeting - Policy Framework 1 day Wed 4/24/13 Wed 4/24/13 26FS+15 days
28 Tech Team meeting - Policy Framework 1 day Thu 5/16/13 Thu 5/16/13 27FS+15 days
29 Subtask 330 - Charrette Workshops 36 days Thu 8/1/13 Thu 9/19/13
30 Tech Team Meeting - Charrette Planning 1 day Thu 8/1/13 Thu 8/1/13 28,21
31 Prepare for Charrette 20 days Fri 8/2/13 Thu 8/29/13 30
32 Charrette Day 1 1 day Mon 9/2/13 Mon 9/2/13 31FS+1 day
33 Charrette Day 2 1 day Tue 9/3/13 Tue 9/3/13 32
34 Develop Charrette Alternatives 11 days Wed 9/4/13 Wed 9/18/13 33
35 Tech Team Meeting - Charrette Results 1 day Thu 9/19/13 Thu 9/19/13 34
36 Subtask 340 - Public Meetings/Council Workshops 230 days Thu 6/6/13 Thu 4/24/14
37 P1 - Input on Siting Policy 0 days Thu 6/6/13 Thu 6/6/13 48FS+5 days
38 P2 - Input on Final Location 0 days Thu 10/3/13 Thu 10/3/13 51FS+5 days
39 P3 - Input on Design Features 0 days Thu 2/20/14 Thu 2/20/14 52FS+87 days
40 P4 - Final Plan, Next Steps 0 days Thu 4/24/14 Thu 4/24/14 54FS+5 days,3
41 Subtask 350 - Working Group Meetings 124 days Fri 9/6/13 Wed 2/26/14
42 WG1 - Working Group 1 1 day Fri 9/6/13 Fri 9/6/13 31FS+5 days
43 WG2 - Working Group 2 1 day Tue 11/5/13 Tue 11/5/13 58FS+17 days
44 WG3 - Working Group 3 1 day Tue 1/14/14 Tue 1/14/14 65FS+25 days
45 WG4 - Working Group 4 1 day Wed 2/26/14 Wed 2/26/14 62FS-20 days
46 Subtask 360 - Council/Committee Meetings 268 days Thu 4/25/13 Tue 5/6/14
47 C1 - Committee Briefing (Policy Questions, Navy Status) 0 days Thu 4/25/13 Thu 4/25/13 26FS+17 days
48 C2 - Committee Briefing (Policy Questions, Navy Status) 0 days Thu 5/30/13 Thu 5/30/13 28FS+10 days
49 C3 - Council Meeting 1 (Siting Policy Decisions, Navy Decision) 0 days Tue 7/16/13 Tue 7/16/13 48FS+33 days
50 C4 - Committee Briefing (VE Results) 0 days Thu 8/22/13 Thu 8/22/13 21FS+16 days
51 C5 - Committee Briefing (Charrette Results) 0 days Thu 9/26/13 Thu 9/26/13 35FS+5 days
52 C6 - Council Meeting 2 (VE Results, Final WWTP Location) 0 days Tue 10/22/13 Tue 10/22/13 38FS+13 days
53 C7 - Committee Briefing - Progress Update 0 days Thu 2/6/14 Thu 2/6/14 39FS-11 days
54 C8 - Committee Briefing (Delivery Options) 0 days Thu 4/17/14 Thu 4/17/14 70FS+5 days
55 C9 - Council Meeting 3 (Select Project Delivery) 0 days Tue 5/6/14 Tue 5/6/14 54FS+13 days
56 TASK 400 - PRELIMINARY DESIGN 159 days Fri 8/23/13 Wed 4/2/14
57 Subtask 410 - Procurement Documents 80 days Fri 8/23/13 Thu 12/12/13
58 Develop Procurement Documents 35 days Fri 8/23/13 Thu 10/10/13 50,49
59 Procure/Award Equipment 45 days Fri 10/11/13 Thu 12/12/13 58
60 Subtask 420 - Preliminary Design Document 110 days Wed 10/23/13 Tue 3/25/14
61 Develop Preliminary Design 110 days Wed 10/23/13 Tue 3/25/14 52
62 Submit Preliminary Design 0 days Tue 3/25/14 Tue 3/25/14 61
63 Subtask 430 - Preliminary Design Meetings 129 days Fri 10/4/13 Wed 4/2/14
64 Tech Team Meeting - Info Gathering 1 day Fri 10/4/13 Fri 10/4/13 58SS+30 days
65 Tech Team Meeting - Info Gathering 1 day Mon 12/9/13 Mon 12/9/13 64FS+45 days
66 Tech Team Meeting - Preliminary Design Review 1 day Wed 4/2/14 Wed 4/2/14 62FS+5 days
67 TASK 500 - PROJECT DELIVERY OPTIONS 32 days Wed 2/26/14 Thu 4/10/14
68 Tech Team Meeting - Delivery Options 1 day Wed 2/26/14 Wed 2/26/14 62FS-20 days
69 Develop Delivery Alternatives Analysis 25 days Thu 2/27/14 Wed 4/2/14 68
70 Tech Team Meeting - Delivery Recommendations 1 day Thu 4/10/14 Thu 4/10/14 69FS+5 days

4/1

4/24

6/6
10/3

2/20
4/24

4/25
5/30

7/16
8/22

9/26
10/22

2/6
4/17

5/6

3/25

3/24 3/31 4/7 4/14 4/21 4/28 5/5 5/12 5/19 5/26 6/2 6/9 6/16 6/23 6/30 7/7 7/14 7/21 7/28 8/4 8/11 8/18 8/25 9/1 9/8 9/15 9/22 9/29 10/6 0/1 0/2 0/2 11/3 1/1 1/1 1/2 12/1 12/8 2/1 2/2 2/2 1/5 1/12 1/19 1/26 2/2 2/9 2/16 2/23 3/2 3/9 3/16 3/23 3/30 4/6 4/13 4/20 4/27 5/4 5/11 5/1
April May June July August September October November December January February March April May

Task Split Progress Milestone Summary Project Summary External Tasks External Milestone Deadline

ATTACHMENT 1 - PROJECT SCHEDULE

Page 1

Project: DRAFT Predesign Schedule_1
Date: Mon 3/4/13

398



pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements.docx 

ATTACHMENT 2 
MAJOR PROJECT ELEMENTS LIST 

 
The Scope of Services for the Oak Harbor WWTP Preliminary Design Project will include 30 
percent design documents that are sufficient to develop a full set of contract plans and 
specifications for the recommended Phase 1 improvements without substantial changes as 
required by the State of Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 173-240-060. The Scope of 
Services for Preliminary Design Documents is based on the major elements identified in the 
following Project Elements List: 
 
 

Facility Area 
 

Name 
0X General  
1X Yard Site Systems 
2X Preliminary Treatment 
3X Aeration/Equalization Basin 
4X Membrane System  
5X UV Disinfection/Effluent Equalization 
6X Solids Handling 
7X Ancillary Systems 

 Gallery (mechanical equipment) 

 Chemical System 

 Odor Control  

 Standby Generator  

8X Non-Process Facilities 
 Administration Building 

 Maintenance Building 

 Electrical Building 

 Landscaping  

 Public Areas 

 

Facility Area 0X – General  
General information for the overall project such vicinity and location maps, design 
data/schematics, existing site/utilities, and explanation for symbols and abbreviations. Area 
includes: 

1. Design Criteria. 

2. Process Flow Diagrams. 

3. Hydraulic Profile. 

4. Notes, Schedules, and Abbreviations. 

5. Building Analysis. 

399



pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements.docx 

Facility Area 1X – Yard Site Systems 
Plans depicting new structure footprints, locations, and orientation onsite/offsite. 

1. Existing Facility Demolition. 

2. Site Preparation. 

3. Anticipated ground improvements such as stone columns. 

4. Off-site Yard Utilities: 

a. Influent Diversion Structure from collection system and piping to site. 

b. Piping to effluent outfall connection. 

5. Electrical site service. 

6. Paving and Grading. 

7. On site Stormwater System.  

8. Routing of general process piping. 

9. Routing of Small Diameter Piping Utilities (during final design):  

a. Potable Water. 

b. Non-Potable Water (potable with air gap). 

c. Plant Water (low pressure). 

d. Plant Water (high pressure). 

e. Natural Gas. 

f. Service/Instrument Air. 

g. Plant Building/Process Drains. 

h. Fire Flow Water. 

10. Routing of Other Utilities (during final design): 

a. Electrical distribution system. 

b. Communication Devices. 

c. Site Lighting. 

d. Site Security. 

e. Telephone/Fiber Optic System. 

Facility Area 2X – Preliminary Treatment 
Plans depicting specific preliminary treatment components: 

1. First-stage coarse screening. 

2. Screenings washer/compactor. 

3. Influent pump station. 

4. Influent flow measurement and sampling. 

5. Grit removal system and grit handling. 

6. Flow splitting to flow equalization basin. 

7. Second-stage fine screening. 

400



pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements.docx 

Facility Area 3X – Aeration/Equalization Basins 
Plans depicting specific secondary components: 

1. Flow distribution structure. 

2. 2-below grade aeration basins (4 stages) in MLE configuration (2 anoxic zones, 2 aerobic 
zones). 

3. 1-below grade flow equalization basin with provisions to convert to aeration basin in the 
future. 

4. Associated mechanical equipment. 

5. Fine bubble diffusers in each aerobic zone. 

6. Flow equalization pump system. 

7. Scum handling (spray and removal), flushing systems, etc. 

Facility Area 4X – Membrane System 
Initial design will be capable of accommodating footprint needs of proven manufacturers to 
assist in early procurement. Final design will be based on specific requirements of selected 
manufacturer. General components include: 

1. 5 –MBR trains/tanks. 

2. Membrane cassettes and ancillary instrumentation. 

3. Provisions for 1 future MBR train. 

Facility Area 5X – UV Disinfection/Effluent Equalization 
Initial design for UV Disinfection and effluent system will be capable of accommodating footprint 
needs of proven manufacturers to assist in early procurement. Final design will be based on 
specific requirements of selected manufacturer. General components include: 

1. 3-trains of ultraviolet (UV) disinfection reactor units, cleaning system, power distribution, 
and control. 

2. Flow measurement per train. 

3. Single Effluent equalization/storage tank. 

Facility Area 6X – Solids Handling 
Solids handling will produce Class B solids for components include: 

1. Aerated WAS storage tank. 

2. Dewatering systems and equipment. 

3. Lime stabilization facilities. 

4. Footprint/electrical provisions for a future thermal drying system. 

5. Truck loadout facilities. 

Facility Area 7X – Ancillary Systems 
Ancillary facility areas support the main process units. Specific components include: 

1. Mechanical Gallery below-grade. 

a. Aeration basin blowers. 

b. Membrane blowers. 

c. Membrane feed pumps (mixed liquor pump station). 

401



pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Project Elements.docx 

d. Membrane permeate pumps and flow measurement per train. 

e. Plant water pump system. 

2. Chemical Systems: 

a. Sodium hydroxide (NaOH) feed for alkalinity content. 

b. Sodium hypochlorite (NaOCl) feed for membrane cleaning and potentially to support 
odor control and/or introduction of chlorine residual. 

c. Citric acid or phosphoric acid feed for membrane cleaning and potentially UV cleaning 

d. Lime feed for solids stabilization. 

3. Odor Control System – odor scrubbing technology to treat foul air streams. Areas scrubbed 
are anticipated to include: 

a. Headworks. 

b. Aeration Basins. 

c. Pump wetwells/open channels. 

d. Solids handling area (to extent necessary) 

4. Standby Generator – a single diesel unit capable of providing continuous operation for the 
entire facility in the event of a loss of utility power. The unit will be housed in the mechanical 
building and sound dampening devices will be employed to decrease the noise level while 
in operation.  

Facility Area 8X – Non-Process Buildings 
Process support buildings and areas highly visible/accessed by the public: 

1. Administration Building meeting ADA standards to support plant control, meeting/training, 
break areas, restroom/lockers, building mechanical systems, office(s), and laboratory. 

2. Maintenance Building for plant maintenance activities such as disassembling pumps, 
working on instrumentation, and in-house fabrication. The building will include a parking 
stall /loading dock. 

3. Electrical Building for housing electrical equipment such as main switch gear, motor control 
centers, variable frequency drives, programmable logic controllers, and other control 
panels. 

402



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

ANTICIPATED DESIGN DRAWING LIST
178 dwgs anticipated at 30% Design

DRAWING
GENERAL

1 00 G 01 COVER SHEET
2 00 G 02 DRAWING INDEX I
3 00 G 03 DRAWING INDEX II
4 00 G 04 DESIGN CRITERIA
5 00 G 05 PROCESS FLOW DIAGRAM
6 00 G 06 HYDRAULIC PROFILE
7 00 G 07 OVERALL SITE PLAN
8 00 G 08 ABBREVIATIONS
9 00 G 09 PIPING SYMBOLS AND GENERAL MECHANICAL NOTES

10 00 G 10 HVAC SYMBOLS AND NOTES
11 00 G 11 GENERAL STRUCTURAL NOTES
12 00 G 12 SUB-GRADE PREPARATION AT STRUCTURES - 1
13 00 G 13 SUB-GRADE PREPARATION AT STRUCTURES - 2
14 00 G 14 ARCHITECTURAL SYMBOLS AND CODE ANALYSIS
15 00 G 15 ARCHITECTURAL SCHEDULES
16 00 G 16 UTILITY SERVICE CONNECTIONS (WATER, ELECTRICAL, GAS)
17 00 G 17 STAGING PLAN

CIVIL
18 10 C 01 KEY MAP AND GENERAL CIVIL NOTES
19 11 C 02 OFF-SITE DIVERSION STRUCTURE PLAN AND PROFILE
20 11 C 03 CONNECTION TO COLLECTION PIPING PLAN 1
21 11 C 04 CONNECTION TO COLLECTION PIPING PLAN 2
22 11 C 05 CONNECTION TO COLLECTION PIPING PROFILE
23 11 C 06 CONNECTION TO EFFLUENT PIPING PLAN 1
24 11 C 07 CONNECTION TO EFFLUENT PIPING PLAN 2
25 11 C 08 CONNECTION TO EFFLUENT PIPING PROFILE
26 12 C 01 SITE DEMOLITION PLAN AND TEMP UTILITY RELOCATION
27 12 C 02 UTILITY RELOCATION DETAILS
28 13 C 03 SITE PAVING AND GRADING 1
29 13 C 04 SITE PAVING AND GRADING 2
30 13 C 05 PLANT ENTRANCE ROAD PLAN AND PROFILE
31 13 C 06 PLANT ENTRANCE ROAD PLAN AND PROFILE
32 13 C 07 TRUCK LOADOUT AREAS
33 14 C 01 YARD PIPING 1
34 14 C 02 YARD PIPING 2
35 14 C 03 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS
36 14 C 04 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS
37 14 C 05 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS
38 14 C 06 MISCELLANEOUS YARD SECTIONS AND DETAILS
39 15 C 01 TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN
40 15 C 02 TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL DETAILS
41 15 C 03 TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL DETAILS

STRUCTURAL
42 11 S 01 OFF-SITE DIVERSION STRUCTURE PLAN, AND SECTION
43 20 S 01 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
44 20 S 02 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
45 20 S 03 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PLAN
46 20 S 04 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PLAN
47 20 S 05 HEADWORKS BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
48 20 S 06 HEADWORKS BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
49 20 S 07 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
50 20 S 08 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
51 20 S 09 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
52 20 S 10 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
53 20 S 11 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
54 20 S 12 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS

DWG NO.
SHEET 

NO

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 1 of 8

403



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
55 30 S 01 AERATION BASIN OVERVIEW PLAN
56 30 S 02 AERATION BASIN - SPLITTER BOX PLANS AND SECTIONS
57 30 S 03 AERATION BASIN 1 - BOTTOM PLAN
58 30 S 04 AERATION BASIN 1 - TOP PLAN
59 30 S 05 AERATION BASIN 2 - BOTTOM PLAN
60 30 S 06 AERATION BASIN 2 - TOP PLAN
61 30 S 07 EQUALIZATION BASIN - BOTTOM PLAN
62 30 S 08 EQUALIZATION BASIN 1 - TOP PLAN
63 30 S 09 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
64 30 S 10 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
65 31 S 11 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
66 32 S 12 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
67 30 S 11 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
68 30 S 12 AERATION BASIN - ML WETWELL PLANS AND SECTIONS
69 40 S 01 MEMBRANE TANKS - BOTTOM PLAN
70 40 S 02 MEMBRANE TANKS - TOP PLAN
71 40 S 03 MEMBRANE TANKS - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
72 40 S 04 MEMBRANE TANKS - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
73 40 S 05 MEMBRANE TANKS - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
74 40 S 06 MEMBRANE TANKS - DETAILS
75 40 S 07 MEMBRANE TANKS - DETAILS
76 40 S 08 MEMBRANE TANKS - DETAILS
77 50 S 01 UV DISINFECTION - PLANS
78 50 S 02 UV DISINFECTION - SECTIONS, ELEVATIONS, AND DETAILS
79 47 S 03 UV DISINFECTION - DETAILS
80 49 S 04 UV DISINFECTION - DETAILS
81 50 S 05 UV DISINFECTION - DETAILS
82 51 S 01 EFFLUENT STORAGE TANK - PLAN AND SECTIONS
83 60 S 01 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
84 60 S 02 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - TOP PLAN
85 60 S 03 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
86 60 S 04 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
87 60 S 05 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
88 60 S 06 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
89 70 S 01 GALLERY - LOWER PLAN
90 70 S 02 GALLERY - TOP PLAN
91 70 S 03 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
92 70 S 04 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
93 70 S 05 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
94 70 S 06 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
95 70 S 07 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
96 71 S 01 CHEMICAL FACILITY - ROOF AND LOWER PLANS
97 71 S 02 CHEMICAL FACILITY - SECTIONS, ELEVATIONS, AND DETAILS
98 71 S 03 CHEMICAL FACILITY - DETAILS
99 72 S 04 CHEMICAL FACILITY - DETAILS

100 72 S 01 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - PLANS
101 72 S 02 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - SECTIONS
102 72 S 03 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - DETAILS
103 72 S 04 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - DETAILS
104 73 S 01 MECHANICAL BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
105 73 S 02 MECHANICAL BUILDING - ROOF PLAN
106 73 S 03 MECHANICAL BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
107 73 S 04 MECHANICAL BUILDING - DETAILS
108 80 S 01 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
109 80 S 02 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
110 80 S 03 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
111 80 S 04 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
112 80 S 05 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
113 80 S 06 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
114 80 S 07 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
115 80 S 08 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
116 81 S 01 MAINTENANCE BUILDING

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 2 of 8

404



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
117 81 S 02 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
118 81 S 03 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
119 81 S 04 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
120 81 S 05 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
121 81 S 06 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
122 81 S 07 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
123 82 S 01 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
124 82 S 02 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
125 82 S 03 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
126 82 S 04 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
127 82 S 05 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
128 82 S 06 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
129 82 S 07 ELECTRICAL BUILDING

MECHANICAL
130 11 M 01 OFF-SITE DIVERSION STRUCTURE PLAN, AND SECTION
131 20 M 01 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
132 20 M 02 HEADWORKS BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
133 20 M 03 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PLAN
134 20 M 04 HEADWORKS BUILDING - TOP PLAN
135 20 M 05 HEADWORKS BUILDING - HVAC BOTTOM PLAN
136 20 M 06 HEADWORKS BUILDING - HVAC TOP PLAN
137 21 M 07 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
138 21 M 08 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
139 21 M 09 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
140 30 M 01 AERATION BASIN OVERVIEW PLAN
141 30 M 02 AERATION BASIN - SPLITTER BOX PLANS AND SECTIONS
142 30 M 03 AERATION BASIN 1 - BOTTOM PLAN
143 30 M 04 AERATION BASIN 1 - TOP PLAN
144 30 M 05 AERATION BASIN 2 - BOTTOM PLAN
145 30 M 06 AERATION BASIN 2 - TOP PLAN
146 30 M 07 EQUALIZATION BASIN - BOTTOM PLAN
147 30 M 08 EQUALIZATION BASIN 1 - TOP PLAN
148 30 M 09 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
149 30 M 10 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
150 30 M 11 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
151 30 M 12 AERATION BASIN - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
152 30 M 12 AERATION BASIN - ML WETWELL PLANS AND SECTIONS
153 40 M 01 MEMBRANE TANKS - BOTTOM PLAN
154 40 M 02 MEMBRANE TANKS - TOP PLAN
155 40 M 03 MEMBRANE TANKS - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
156 40 M 04 MEMBRANE TANKS - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
157 40 M 05 MEMBRANE TANKS - DETAILS
158 40 M 06 MEMBRANE TANKS - DETAILS
159 50 M 01 UV DISINFECTION - PLAN
160 50 M 02 UV DISINFECTION - SECTIONS, AND DETAILS
161 50 M 03 UV DISINFECTION - DETAILS
162 51 M 01 EFFLUENT STORAGE TANK - PLAN AND SECTIONS
163 60 M 01 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - BOTTOM PLAN
164 60 M 02 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - TOP PLAN
165 61 M 03 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - HVAC BOTTOM PLAN
166 62 M 04 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - HVAC TOP PLAN
167 60 M 05 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
168 60 M 06 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
169 70 M 01 GALLERY - OVERVIEW AND HVAC PLAN
170 70 M 02 GALLERY - AERATION BASIN BLOWER PLANS AND SECTIONS
171 70 M 03 GALLERY - MEMBRANE BLOWER PLANS AND SECTIONS
172 70 M 04 GALLERY - MEMBRANE FEED PUMPS AND SECTIONS
173 70 M 05 GALLERY - MEMBRANE PERMEATE PUMPS AND SECTIONS
174 70 M 06 GALLERY - PLANT WATER SYSTEM AND SECTIONS
175 70 M 07 GALLERY -PLANT/INSTRUMENT AIR SYSTEM (IF NECESSARY)
176 70 M 08 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 3 of 8

405



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
177 70 M 09 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
178 70 M 10 GALLERY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
179 71 M 01 CHEMICAL FACILITY - PLAN
180 71 M 02 CHEMICAL FACILITY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
181 71 M 03 CHEMICAL FACILITY - DETAILS
182 72 M 01 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - PLAN
183 72 M 02 ODOR CONTROL FACILITY - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
184 73 M 01 MECHANICAL BUILDING - STANDBY GENERATOR PLAN
185 73 M 03 MECHANICAL BUILDING - SECTIONS AND DETAILS
186 80 M 01 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
187 80 M 02 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
188 80 M 03 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
189 80 M 04 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
190 80 M 05 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
191 81 M 01 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
192 81 M 02 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
193 81 M 03 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
194 81 M 04 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
195 81 M 05 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
196 82 M 01 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
197 82 M 02 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
198 82 M 03 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
199 82 M 04 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
200 82 M 05 ELECTRICAL BUILDING

ARCHITECTURAL
201 00 A 01 PROJECT SUMMARY GENERAL NOTES
202 00 A 02 ARCHITECTURAL SYMBOLS AND SCHEDULES
203 20 A 01 HEADWORKS BUILDING - SECTIONS
204 40 A 01 MBR BUILDING - SECTIONS
205 60 A 01 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING - SECTIONS
206 71 A 01 CHEMICAL BUILDING - SECTIONS
207 72 A 01 ODOR CONTROL BUILDING - SECTIONS
208 73 A 01 MECHANICAL BUILDING - SECTIONS
209 80 A 01 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
210 80 A 02 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
211 80 A 03 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
212 80 A 04 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
213 80 A 05 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
214 80 A 06 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
215 80 A 07 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
216 80 A 08 ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
217 81 A 01 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
218 81 A 02 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
219 81 A 03 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
220 81 A 04 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
221 81 A 05 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
222 81 A 06 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
223 81 A 07 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
224 81 A 08 MAINTENANCE BUILDING
225 82 A 01 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
226 82 A 02 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
227 82 A 03 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
228 82 A 04 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
229 82 A 05 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
230 82 A 06 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
231 82 A 07 ELECTRICAL BUILDING
232 82 A 08 ELECTRICAL BUILDING

LANDSCAPING
233 83 L 01 PLANTING NOTES AND LEGEND

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 4 of 8

406



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
234 83 L 02 PLANTING PLAN I
235 83 L 03 PLANTING PLAN II
236 83 L 04 IRRIGATION NOTES AND LEGEND
237 83 L 05 IRRIGATION PLAN
238 83 L 06 PUBLIC SITE ACCESS NOTES AND LEGEND
239 83 L 07 SITE ACCESS PLAN
240 83 L 08 SITE ACCESS SECTIONS
241 83 L 09 SITE ACCESS DETAILS

ELECTRICAL
242 00 GE 01 ELECTRICAL LEGENDS & ABBREVIATIONS
243 00 GE 02 ANSI DEVICE FUNCTION NUMBERS
244 00 GE 03 CONTROL SCHEMATIC LEGENDS
245 E SC 01 SCHEDULES - DISCONNECT, PANELBOARD, LUMINAIRE
246 E SC 02 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - AERATION BASIN 1 
247 E SC 03 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - AERATION BASIN 2
248 E SC 04 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - EQ BASIN
249 E SC 05 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - MEMBRANE TANKS
250 E SC 06 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - MEMBRANE TANKS
251 E SC 07 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - UV DISINFECTION
252 E SC 08 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING
253 E SC 09 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING
254 E SC 10 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - GALLERY
255 E SC 11 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - CHEMICAL FACILITY
256 E SC 12 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - ODOR CONTROL FACILITY
257 E SC 13 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - MECHANICAL BUILDING
258 E SC 14 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - MECHANICAL BUILDING
259 E SC 15 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
260 E SC 16 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - MAINTENANCE BUILDING
261 E SC 17 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - ELECTRICAL BUILDING
262 E SC 18 SCHEDULES - RACEWAYS - ELECTRICAL BUILDING
263 E OL 01 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - OVERALL POWER SYSTEM
264 E OL 02 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - SWGR-MAIN 
265 E OL 03 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-HEADWORKS
266 E OL 04 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-HEADWORKS
267 E OL 05 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-AERATION BASINS
268 E OL 06 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-MEMBRANE
269 E OL 07 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-UV DISINFECTION
270 E OL 08 ONE LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-SOLIDS HANDLING 
271 E OL 09 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-GALLERY
272 E OL 10 ONE LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-CHEMICAL FACILITY
273 E OL 11 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-ODOR CONTROL FACILITY
274 E OL 12 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-MECHANICAL BUILDING
275 E OL 13 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
276 E OL 14 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-MAINTENANCE BUILDING
277 E OL 15 ONE-LINE DIAGRAM - MCC-ELECTGRICAL BUILDING
278 E OL 16 ELEVATION - MCC-HEADWORKS
279 E OL 17 ELEVATION - MCC-HEADWORKS
280 E OL 18 ELEVATION - MCC-AERATION BASINS
281 E OL 19 ELEVATION - MCC-MEMBRANE
282 E OL 20 ELEVATION - MCC-UV DISINFECTION
283 E OL 21 ELEVATION - MCC-UV DISINFECTION
284 E OL 22 ELEVATION - MCC-SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING
285 E OL 23 ELEVATION - MCC-GALLERY
286 E OL 24 ELEVATION - MCC-CHEMICAL FACILITY
287 E OL 25 ELEVATION - MCC-ODOR CONTROL FACILITY
288 E OL 26 ELEVATION - MCC-MECHANICAL BUILDING
289 E OL 27 ELEVATION - MCC-ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
290 E OL 28 ELEVATION - MCC-MAINTENANCE BUILDING
291 E OL 29 ELEVATION - MCC-ELECTRICAL BUILDING
292 14 SE 01 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN-1
293 14 SE 02 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN -2

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 5 of 8

407



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
294 14 SE 03 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN - DUCTBANK SECTIONS
295 14 SE 04 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN - DUCTBANK SECTIONS
296 14 SE 05 ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN - DUCTBANK SECTIONS
297 20 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - HEADWORKS BOTTOM PLAN - POWER
298 20 E 02 HEADWORKS BOTTOM PLAN - LIGHTING AND GROUNDING
299 20 E 03 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - HEADWORKS TOP PLAN - POWER
300 20 E 04 HEADWORKS TOP PLAN - LIGHTING AND GROUNDING
301 30 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - AERATION BASIN 1 PLAN - POWER
302 30 E 02 AERATION BASIN 1 PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING
303 30 E 03 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - AERATION BASIN 2 PLAN - POWER
304 30 E 04 AERATION BASIN 2 PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING
305 30 E 05 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - EQUALIZATION BASIN PLAN - POWER
306 30 E 06  EQUALIZATION BASIN PLAN - LIGHITNG & GROUNDING
307 30 E 07 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - AERATION BASIN WETWELL PLAN - POWER
308 30 E 08 AERATION BASIN WETWELL PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING
309 40 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - MEMBRANE TANKS PLAN - POWER
310 40 E 02 MEMBRANE TANKS PLAN - LIGHTING AND GROUNDING
311 50 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - UV DISINFECTION PLAN - POWER
312 50 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - UV DISINFECTION PLAN - POWER
313 50 E 03 UV DISINFECTION PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING
314 50 E 04 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - EFFLUENT STORAGE TANK PLAN - POWER, LIGHITNG & GROUNDING

315 60 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING BOTTOM PLAN - POWER

316 60 E 02 SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING BOTTOM PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

317 60 E 03 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING TOP PLAN - POWER

318 60 E 04 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - SOLIDS HANDLING BUILDING TOP PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

319 70 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - GALLERY LOWER PLAN - POWER

320 70 E 02  GALLERY LOWER PLAN - LIGHTING AND GROUNDING

321 70 E 03 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - GALLERY TOP PLAN - POWER

322 70 E 04 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - GALLERY TOP PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

323 71 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - CHEMICAL FACILITY PLAN - POWER

324 71 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - CHEMICAL FACILITY PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

325 72 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ODOR CONTROL FACILITY PLAN - POWER

326 72 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ODOR CONTROL FACILITY PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING 

327 73 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - MECHANICAL BUILDING PLAN - POWER

328 73 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - MECHANICAL BUILDING PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

329 80 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING PLAN - POWER

330 80 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING PLAN LIGHTING & GROUNDING

331 81 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - MAINTENANCE BUILDING PLAN - POWER

332 81 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - MAINTENANCE BUILDING PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

333 82 E 01 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ELECTRICAL BUILDING PLAN - POWER

334 82 E 02 DETAILED CONDUIT ROUTING PLAN - ELECTRICAL BUILDING PLAN - LIGHTING & GROUNDING

335 EC S 01 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 1
336 EC S 02 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 2
337 EC S 03 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 3
338 EC S 04 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 4
339 EC S 05 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 5
340 EC S 06 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 6
341 EC S 07 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 7
342 EC S 08 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 8
343 EC S 09 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 9
344 EC S 10 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 10
345 EC S 11 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 11
346 EC S 12 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 12
347 EC S 13 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 13
348 EC S 14 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 14
349 EC S 15 CONTROL SCHEMATICS 15

INSTRUMENTATION

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 6 of 8

408



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
350 00 GN 01 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS I
351 00 GN 02 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS II
352 00 GN 03 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS III
353 00 GN 04 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS IV
354 00 GN 05 SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS V
355 00 GN 06 CONTROL SYSTEM BLOCK DIAGRAM
356 11 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - DIVERSION STRUCTURE
357 20 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - COARSE SCREENINGS
358 20 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - COARSE SCREENINGS
359 20 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - COARSE SCREENINGS
360 20 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - INFLUENT PUMPING
361 20 N 05 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - INFLUENT PUMPING
362 20 N 06 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - INFLUENT PUMPING
363 20 N 07 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - DEGRITTING
364 20 N 08 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - DEGRITTING
365 20 N 09 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - HEADWORKS - DEGRITTING
366 20 N 10 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - DIVERSION STRUCTURE
367 20 N 11 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - FINE SCREENINGS
368 20 N 12 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - FINE SCREENINGS
369 30 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - AERATION BASIN 1
370 30 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - AERATION BASIN 2
371 30 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - AERATION BASIN 3 (FUTURE)/EQUALIZATION BASIN
372 30 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - AERATION BASIN WETWELL
373 40 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE TRAIN 1
374 40 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE TRAIN 2
375 40 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE TRAIN 3
376 40 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE TRAIN 4
377 40 N 05 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE TRAIN 5
378 40 N 06 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE BLOWERS
379 40 N 07 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE BLOWERS
380 40 N 08 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MEMBRANE PERMEATE PUMPS
381 50 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - UV DISINFECTION - INFLUENT CHANNEL
382 50 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - UV DISINFECTION 1
383 50 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - UV DISINFECTION 2
384 50 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - UV DISINFECTION 3
385 50 N 05 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - EFFLUENT EQUALIZATION AND STORAGE TANK
386 60 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - DEWATERING
387 60 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - DEWATERING
388 60 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - SOLIDS HANDLING 1
389 60 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - SOLIDS HANDLING 2
390 71 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - CHEMICAL FACILITY 1
391 71 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - CHEMICAL FACILITY 2
392 71 N 03 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - CHEMICAL FACILITY 3
393 71 N 04 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - CHEMICAL FACILITY 4
394 72 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - ODOR CONTROL FACILITY 1
395 72 N 02 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - ODOR CONTROL FACILITY 2
396 73 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - STANDBY GENERATOR
397 74 N 01 PROCESS & INSTRUMENTATION DIAGRAM - MISCELLANEOUS HVAC

TYPICAL DETAILS
398 AT 01 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
399 AT 02 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
400 AT 03 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
401 AT 04 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
402 AT 05 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
403 AT 06 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
404 AT 07 ARCHITECTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
405 CT 01 CIVIL TYPICAL DETAILS
406 CT 02 CIVIL TYPICAL DETAILS
407 DT 01 CORROSION PROTECTION TYPICAL DETAILS
408 DT 02 CORROSION PROTECTION TYPICAL DETAILS
409 ET 01 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL GROUNDING - EG

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 7 of 8

409



ATTACHMENT 3
OAK HARBOR WWTP

Date Printed: 3/5/2013

DRAWINGDWG NO.
SHEET 

NO
410 ET 02 ELECTRICALTYPICAL DETAIL GROUNDING - EG
411 ET 03 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL LIGHTING - EL
412 ET 04 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
413 ET 05 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
414 ET 06 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
415 ET 07 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
416 ET 08 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL MOUNTING - EM
417 ET 09 ELECTRICAL TYPICAL DETAIL NAMEPLATES - EN
418 ET 10 ELECTRICALTYPICAL DETAIL OPERATORS - EO
419 HT 01 HVAC TYPICAL DETAILS
420 HT 02 HVAC TYPICAL DETAILS
421 NT 01 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
422 NT 02 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
423 NT 03 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
424 NT 04 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
425 NT 05 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
426 NT 06 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
427 NT 07 INSTRUMENTATION TYPICAL DETAILS
428 MT 01 MECHANICAL TYPICAL DETAILS
429 MT 02 MECHANICAL TYPICAL DETAILS
430 MT 03 MECHANICAL TYPICAL DETAILS
431 PT 02 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
432 PT 03 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
433 PT 04 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
434 PT 05 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
435 PT 06 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
436 PT 07 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
437 PT 08 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
438 PT 09 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
439 PT 10 PIPING TYPICAL DETAILS
440 ST 02 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
441 ST 03 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
442 ST 02 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
443 ST 03 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
444 ST 04 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
445 ST 05 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
446 ST 06 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS
447 ST 07 STRUCTURAL TYPICAL DETAILS

pw:\\PHX-POP-PW.Carollo.local:Carollo\Documents\Client\WA\Oak Harbor\8549A00\Project Management\Contracts\Final Design Drawing List.xlsx Page 8 of 8

410



March 2013 TOC-1 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

ATTACHMENT 4 

 
SPECIFICATION SAMPLE LIST 

(Procurement Packages not identified separately) 
 

OAK HARBOR WWTP 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
VOLUME 1 

DIVISION 0 - BIDDING REQUIREMENTS, CONTRACT FORMS 
AND CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT 

 
VOLUME 2 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 

DIVISION 1 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
Section No. Title 
01110 Summary of Work 
01116 Project Manual Language 
01140 Work Restrictions 
01201 Payment Procedures 
01292 Schedule of Values 
01294 Applications for Payment 
01312 Project Meetings 
01324 Progress Schedules and Reports 
01329 Safety Plan 
01330 Submittal Procedures
01340 Photographic and Videographic Documentation 
01350 Special Procedures 
01354 Hazardous Material Procedures 
01355A Stormwater Pollution Prevention Construction Activities-Best Management 

Practices 
01410 Regulatory Requirements
01424 Abbreviations 
01428 Identification Systems 
01450 Quality Control and Quality Assurance
01455 Special Tests and Inspections 
01500 Temporary Facilities and Controls
01600 Product Requirements 
01610 Project Design Criteria
01612 Seismic Design Criteria
01614 Wind Design Criteria 
01722 Field Engineering 
01732 Cutting and Patching 
01734 Work Within Public Right of Way
01756 Testing. Training, and Facility Start-Up 
01770 Closeout Procedures
01782 Operation and Maintenance Data
01790 Spare Parts and Maintenance 
01800 Post Final Inspection 

411



 

March 2013 TOC-2 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

DIVISION 2 - SITE WORK 
Section No. Title 
02050 Basic Site Materials and Methods 
02084 Utility Structures 
02200 Site Preparation 
02222 Building Demolition 
02240 Dewatering 
02260 Excavation Support and Protection 
02300 Earthwork 
02312 Controlled Low Strength Material (CLSM) 
02318 Trenching 
02370 Riprap 
02580 Manholes 
02622 Filter Fabric for Drains and Underdrains
02738 Decomposed Granite 
02742A Asphaltic Concrete Paving
02760 Sewer Line Cleaning 
02761 Closed Circuit Television Inspection of Sewer Lines
02772 Concrete Curbs, Gutters, and Sidewalks 
02810 Irrigation System 
02820 Fence, Plant Entrance Gates, and Motorized Gate Operators 
02821 Chain Link Fences and Gates 
02845 Guardrails 
02900 Landscaping 
02952 Pavement Restoration and Rehabilitation

DIVISION 3 - CONCRETE 
Section No. Title 
03055 Epoxy Bonding Reinforcing Bars and All Thread Rods in Concrete 
03071 Epoxies 
03072 Epoxy Resin/Portland Cement Bonding Agent 
03102 Concrete Formwork 
03150 Concrete Accessories 
03154 Hydrophilic Rubber Waterstop 
03155 Thermoplastic Elastomeric Rubber Waterstops 
03200 Concrete Reinforcement 
03212 Reinforcing Bar Couplers 
03300 Cast-in-Place Concrete 
03302 Mass Concrete 
03366 Tooled Concrete Finishes 
03491 Glass Fiber Reinforced Concrete 
03565 Basin Bottom Grout 
03600 Grouts 
03931 Epoxy Injection System 
03936 Water Leakage Test for Concrete Structures 

DIVISION 4 - MASONRY 
Section No. Title 
04090 Masonry Accessories 
04100 Mortar and Masonry Grout 
04220 Concrete Masonry Units 

412



 

March 2013 TOC-3 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

DIVISION 5 - METALS 
Section No. Title 
05120 Structural Steel 
05122 Galvanized Steel For Influent Screening Mezzanine 
05140 Structural Aluminum 
05310 Steel Deck 
05410 Structural Metal Stud Framing 
05500 Metal Fabrications 

DIVISION 6 - WOOD AND PLASTICS 
Section No. Title 
06072 Preservative Pressure Treated Wood 
06100 Rough Carpentry 
06200 Finish Carpentry 
06400 Architectural Woodwork 
06608 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic 
06611 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Fabrications 
06620 Plastic Liner (Polyvinyl Chloride) 
06650 Solid Polymer Fabrications 
06651 Fiberglass Reinforced Polyester Baffles and Appurtenances 

DIVISION 7 - THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION 
Section No. Title 
07110 Dampproofing 
07130 Sheet Waterproofing 
07190 Water Repellents 
07212 Wall Insulation System 
07214 Batt Insulation 
07220 Roof and Deck Insulation 
07240 Exterior Insulation and Finish Systems 
07321 Clay Roofing Tiles 
07322 Concrete Roofing Tiles 
07416 Metal Roof and Soffit Panels 
07530 Single Ply Membrane Roofing 
07600 Flashing and Sheet Metal 
07700 Roof Specialties and Accessories 
07722 Roof Hatches 
07840 Firestopping 
07900 Joint Sealers 

DIVISION 8 - DOORS AND WINDOWS 
Section No. Title 
08110 Steel Doors and Frames 
08212 Flush Wood Doors 
08255 FRP Flush Doors 
08320 Floor Access Doors 
08330 Ceiling Access Doors 
08362 Sectional Overhead Doors 
08412 Aluminum Entrances and Storefronts 
08710 Door Hardware 
08800 Glazing 

413



 

March 2013 TOC-4 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

08810 Fire Rated Glazing and Framing Systems 
08953 Translucent Skylight System 

DIVISION 9 - FINISHES 
Section No. Title 
09110 Non-Load Bearing Wall Framing 
09121 Gypsum Board Ceiling Suspension Systems 
09131 Lay-In Ceiling Suspension System 
09250 Gypsum Board 
09251 Cement Backer Board 
09300 Tile Crack Isolation/Joint Bridging 
09310 Ceramic Tile 
09511 Acoustical Ceiling Panels 
09650 Resilient Flooring 
09714 Metal Faced Acoustical Panels 
09881 Epoxy Lining System 
09910 Paints 
09920 Graffiti Resistant Coating 
09960 Coatings 

DIVISION 10 - SPECIALTIES 
Section No. Title 
10400 Identification Devices 
10520 Fire Protection Specialties 
10810 Toilet Accessories 

DIVISION 11 - EQUIPMENT 
Section No. Title 
11242 Chemical Metering Pumps 
11254 Lime Slaking System 
11287 Ultraviolet Disinfection System 
11292A Flap Gates 
11294B Stainless Steel Sluice Gates 
11295 Stainless Steel Weir Gates 
11312D Vertical Turbine Pumps 
11312G Submersible Pumps 
11312J Submersible Sump Pumps 
11312N Non-Metallic Sump Pumps 
11312R Rotary Lobe Positive Displacement Pump 
11317 Submersible Mixers-High-Speed 
11324 Vortex Grit Basin 
11331 Bar Screens 
11332 Fine Screens 
11333 Screenings Washer/Compactor System 
11362 Dewatering Press 
11372A Air Compressors 
11376 Turbo Blowers 
11378A Membrane Disk Fine Bubble Diffused Aeration System 
11378B Coarse Bubble Diffused Aeration System 
11379 Aeration Blower Intake Air Filters 
11393 Odor Control Systems 

414



 

March 2013 TOC-5 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

11452 Residential Appliances 
11500 Membrane Equipment System 
11510 Safety Equipment 
11610 Fixed Laboratory Equipment 
11620 Laboratory Fume Hoods 
11635 Automatic Samplers 
11640 Laboratory Ultrapure Water 

DIVISION 12 - FURNISHINGS 
Section No. Title 
12348 Laboratory Work Surfaces and Sinks 
12349 Laboratory Service Fittings 
12355 Metal Laboratory Casework 
12494 Manual Roller Window Shades 

DIVISION 13 - SPECIAL CONSTRUCTIONS 
Section No. Title 
13206A Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Aboveground Storage Tanks 
13238A Aluminum Covers 
13329 Biofilter System 
13446 Valve and Gate Operators 
13447 Motorized Operators 
13447B Quarter and Multi Turn Motorized Operators 
13870 Clean Agent Fire Suppression System 

DIVISION 14 - CONVEYING SYSTEMS 
Section No. Title 
14624 Monorail System 
14633 Top Running Double Girder Bridge Crane 
14650 Jib Cranes 

DIVISION 15 - MECHANICAL 
Section No. Title 
15050 Basic Mechanical Materials and Methods 
15052 Basic Piping Materials and Methods 
15057 Fusion Bonded Epoxy Lining 
15061 Pipe Supports 
15062 Preformed Channel Pipe Support System 
15063 Non-Metallic Pipe Support System 
15075 Mechanical Identification 
15082 Piping Insulation 
15084 Ductwork Insulation 
15110 Valves 
15111 Ball Valves 
15112 Butterfly Valves 
15114 Check Valves 
15115 Gate, Globe, and Angle Valves 
15116 Plug Valves 
15117 Specialty Valves 
15118 Pressure Reducing and Pressure Relief Valves 
15119 Air and Vacuum Relief Valves 
15120 Piping Specialties 

415



 

March 2013 TOC-6 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

15121 Pipe Couplings 
15125 Strainers and Filters 
15142 Disinfection of Domestic Water Lines 
15251 Ductile Iron AWWA C151 Pipe 
15252A Steel Piping 
15254 Cast Iron Soil Piping 
15255 Stainless Steel Piping and Tubing 
15265 Plastic Piping and Tubing 
15268 Hose 
15271 High Density Polyethylene Pipe and Fittings 
15281 Seamless ASTM B 88 Copper Water Tube 
15400 Plumbing Fixtures and Equipment 
15430 Emergency Eyewash/Shower Units 
15732 Air Conditioning Units 
15762 Heating Units 
15772 Heat Tracing Cable 
15812 Metal Ductwork 
15814 Fiberglass Reinforced Plastic Ductwork 
15815 Flexible Ductwork 
15820 Ductwork Accessories 
15830 Fans 
15832 Centrifugal Fans for Odor Scrubbing Service 
15838 Gravity Ventilators 
15852 Louvers 
15936 Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning Controls 
15954 HVAC Systems Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing 
15956 Piping Systems Testing 
15958 Mechanical Equipment Testing 

 
VOLUME 3  

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

DIVISION 16 - ELECTRICAL 
Section No. Title 
16050 General Requirements for Electrical Work 
16052 Hazardous Classified Area Construction 
16060 Grounding and Bonding 
16070 Hangers and Supports 
16075 Electrical Identification 
16123 600 Volt or Less Wires and Cables 
16130 Conduits 
16131 Aluminum Cable Trays 
16132 Fiberglass Cable Trays 
16133 Duct Banks 
16134 Boxes 
16135 Precast Concrete Pullboxes and Electrical Manholes 
16136 Wireway 
16140 Wiring Devices 
16150 Wire Connections 
16210 Utility Coordination 
16222 Low Voltage Motors up to 500 Horsepower 

416



 

March 2013 TOC-7 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

16232 Natural Gas Engine Generator Above 200 kW - Natural Gas 
16240 Battery Systems 
16245 Load Bank - Stationary Resistive 
16262 Variable Frequency Drives 0.50 - 50 Horsepower 
16264 Variable Frequency Drives 60 - 500 Horsepower 
16272 Dry Type Transformers 
16285 Surge Protective Devices 
16290 Power Measurement 
16295 Protective Relays 
16305 Electrical System Studies 
16411 Disconnect Switches 
16412 Low Voltage Molded Case Circuit Breakers 
16413 Low Voltage Insulated Case Circuit Breakers 
16414 Low Voltage Power Circuit Breakers 
16422 Motor Starters 
16430 Low Voltage Switchgear 
16442 Individually Mounted Circuit Breaker Switchboards 
16444 Low Voltage Motor Control Centers 
16445 Panelboards 
16446 Distribution Panelboards 
16472 Packaged Power Supply Center 
16491 Transfer Switches 
16494 Low Voltage Fuses 
16500 Lighting 
16670 Lightning Protection 
16710 Fire Alarm and Smoke Detection System 
16740 Data and Telephone Wiring System 
16750 Security General Provisions 
16758 Security Perimeter Intrusion Detection System 
16950 Field Electrical Acceptance Tests 
16990 Conduit Schedule 

DIVISION 17 - INSTRUMENTATION AND CONTROLS 
Section No. Title 
17050 Process Control and Instrumentation Systems General Requirements 
17051 Prequalification of Instrumentation and Control System Contractor 
17100 Control Strategies. 
17101 Specific Control Strategies 
17201 Level Measurement - Switches 
17206 Level Measurement - Ultrasonic 
17301 Flow Measurement - Switches 
17302 Flow Measurement - Magnetic Flowmeters 
17305 Flow Measurement - Thermal Mass 
17316 Rotameters (Variable Area Flowmeters) 
17401 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement - Diaphragm and Annular Seals 
17402 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement - Instrument Valves 
17403 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement - Switches 
17404 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement - Gauges 
17405 Pressure Transmitter 
17406 Pressure/Vacuum Measurement - Differential 
17502 Analyzers - ORP 
17504 Analyzers-Gas Monitors 

417



 

March 2013 TOC-8 8549A10 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A00/Project Management/Contracts/Design Specifications Example.docx 

17505 Analyzers - Residual Chlorine 
17506 Dissolved Oxygen (DO) Analyzer 
17509 Analyzers - Turbidity 
17515 Ultraviolet Intensity Meters 
17516 Ultraviolet Transmittance Monitors 
17601 Temperature Measurement - Temperature Switch 
17602 Temperature Measurement - Temperature Gauge 
17604 Temperature Measurement - RTD 
17605 Temperature Measurement - Thermocouple 
17710 Control Systems - Panels, Enclosures, and Panel Components 
17712 Control Systems - Uninterruptible Power Supplies 10 KVA and Below 
17720 Control Systems - Programmable Logic Controllers Hardware 
17721 Control Systems - Human Machine Interface Hardware 
17730 SCADA Computer Equipment 
17733 Network Materials and Equipment 
17740 Process Cameras Closed Television 
17761 PLC Programming Software 
17762 Control Systems SCADA Software 
17765 Human Machine Interface Software 
17902 Control Panels 
17903 I/O List 
17950 Testing, Calibration, and Commissioning 
 

END OF TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

418



City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant Preliminary Design
Carollo Level of Effort Estimate
March 2, 2013

TASK 100 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT $69,978

TASK 200 - VALUE ENGINEERING SUPPORT $289,417

TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT $198,610

TASK 400 - WWTP PRELIMINARY DESIGN $964,416

TASK 500 - PROJECT DELIVERY ANALYSIS $14,498

TASK 600 - OUTFALL DESIGN $262,343

CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $159,152

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $23,650

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $1,982,065

TASK 700 - MANAGEMENT RESERVE (5% of Authorized Budget) $99,103

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $2,081,168

SUMMARY BY ACTIVITY

"TRADITIONAL" PRELIMINARY DESIGN ACTIVITIES $1,511,644

ADDITIONAL SERVICES
Value Engineering $60,698
Public Process (Final Location & Architectural Design) $130,037
Outfall Design and Permitting $279,686
SUBTOTAL, ADDITIONAL SERVICES $470,421

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $1,982,065

419



EXHIBIT D-3
EXHIBIT D-3

Page 2

City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant Preliminary Design
Carollo Level of Effort Estimate 2.0%

March 2, 2013 Matson CAMP Hadler Misc. Misc Staff Enriquez Misc Lish 1.9 $10.00
Subconsultant Cost

Direct Labor (DL) Rates $85 $85 $69 $55 $58 $40 $38 $25 $25

TASK 100 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT
Subtask 110 - Project Management Plan 16 0 0 0 0 32 16 0 32 96 $4,046 $7,687 $1,195 $12,927 $12,927
Subtask 120 - Project Monitoring and Reporting 120 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 96 216 $12,582 $23,906 $2,890 $39,378 $39,378
Subtask 130 - Project Management Meetings 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 84 $5,691 $10,813 $1,170 $17,674 $17,674

Task 100 Subtotal 196 0 0 0 0 32 16 0 152 396 $22,319 $42,405 $5,254 $69,978 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $69,978

TASK 200 VALUE ENGINEERING SUPPORT
Subtask 210 - Conceptual Design Development 43 190 120 43 53 228 132 38 62 910 $50,186 $95,353 $12,007 $157,545 $38,000 $22,000 $217,545
Subtask 220 - WWTP Site Visits 0 0 42 0 0 42 0 0 6 90 $4,746 $9,017 $1,175 $14,938 $14,938
Subtask 230 - VE Support 24 40 56 0 24 48 16 0 20 228 $13,744 $26,113 $3,077 $42,935 $6,000 $3,000 $5,000 $56,935

Task 200 Subtotal 67 230 218 43 77 318 148 38 88 1,228 $68,675 $130,483 $16,259 $215,417 $0 $0 $44,000 $3,000 $0 $27,000 $0 $0 $289,417

TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT
Subtask 310 - Public Process Planning 12 0 2 0 0 4 4 0 8 30 $1,669 $3,171 $397 $5,237 $2,500 $7,737
Subtask 320 - Establish Policy Framework 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 26 $1,727 $3,282 $360 $5,369 $5,369
Subtask 330 - Charrette Workshops 32 0 48 0 0 44 44 0 20 188 $9,979 $18,961 $2,459 $31,399 $7,500 $5,000 $43,899
Subtask 340 - Public Meetings/Council Workshops 32 0 24 0 0 32 0 0 16 104 $6,061 $11,516 $1,392 $18,969 $12,500 $12,000 $8,500 $51,969
Subtask 350 - Working Group Meetings 24 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 6 42 $2,642 $5,021 $573 $8,236 $7,500 $5,000 $20,736
Subtask 360 - Council/Committee Meetings 72 0 36 0 0 54 0 0 36 198 $11,668 $22,170 $2,657 $36,495 $2,500 $38,995
Subtask 370 - Public/Stakeholder Product Development 16 0 0 0 0 40 32 0 20 108 $4,674 $8,880 $1,351 $14,905 $15,000 $29,905

Task 300 Subtotal 206 0 110 0 0 174 92 0 114 696 $38,421 $73,000 $9,188 $120,610 $0 $30,000 $29,500 $0 $18,500 $0 $0 $0 $198,610

TASK 400 - WWTP PRELIMINARY DESIGN
Subtask 410 - Preliminary Design Documents 0 12 120 0 84 160 0 0 16 392 $21,022 $39,943 $5,139 $66,104 $5,000 $11,000 $82,104
Subtask 420 - Preliminary Design Drawings 29 222 280 29 935 952 1,288 1,066 0 4,801 $210,261 $399,496 $60,203 $669,960 $36,500 $9,000 $5,000 $720,460
Subtask 430 - Preliminary Design Specifications 0 16 80 0 80 80 0 0 90 346 $16,994 $32,288 $4,442 $53,723 $15,000 $68,723
Subtask 440 - Membrane/UV Procurement Documents 0 16 160 40 100 60 0 0 24 400 $23,448 $44,551 $5,360 $73,359 $73,359
Subtask 450 - Technical Team Meetings 0 0 40 0 36 36 0 0 0 112 $6,305 $11,979 $1,486 $19,770 $19,770

Task 400 Subtotal 29 266 680 69 1,235 1,288 1,288 1,066 130 6,050 $278,030 $528,257 $76,630 $882,916 $0 $0 $36,500 $5,000 $9,000 $26,000 $0 $5,000 $964,416

TASK 500 - PROJECT DELIVERY ANALYSIS
Subtask 510 - Project Delivery Analysis 24 0 32 0 0 0 0 0 16 72 $4,658 $8,850 $990 $14,498 $14,498

Task 500 Subtotal 24 0 32 0 0 0 0 0 16 72 $4,658 $8,850 $990 $14,498 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,498

TASK 600 - OUTFALL DESIGN
Subtask 610 - Preliminary Design Documents 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 4 20 $1,211 $2,300 $270 $3,781 $76,000 $79,781
Subtask 620 - Outfall Permitting Support 0 0 4 24 0 0 0 0 8 36 $1,786 $3,394 $464 $5,643 $20,000 $30,000 $55,643
Subtask 630 - Final Design Documents 0 8 28 8 0 0 0 0 12 56 $3,360 $6,384 $755 $10,499 $2,500 $96,000 $3,000 $111,999
Subtask 640 - Bid Period Services 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 4 16 $933 $1,773 $214 $2,920 $12,000 $14,920

Task 600 Subtotal 0 8 60 32 0 0 0 0 28 128 $7,290 $13,851 $1,703 $22,843 $20,000 $0 $0 $2,500 $0 $0 $214,000 $3,000 $262,343

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 522 504 1,100 144 1,312 1,812 1,544 1,104 528 8,570 $419,393 $796,846 $110,025 $1,326,263 $20,000 $30,000 $110,000 $10,500 $27,500 $53,000 $214,000 $8,000 $1,799,263
CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $159,152

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $1,000 $1,500 $5,500 $525 $1,375 $2,650 $10,700 $400 $23,650
TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $1,982,065

TASK 700 - MANAGEMENT RESERVE (5% of Authorized Budget)

Task 900 Subtotal $99,103

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT $2,081,168

Carollo 
Indirect 

Cost

Carollo 
Expenses

Subtotal 
Carollo 

Cost
Total CostESA EI MWA Geo BDA WE CME HAI

Carollo DL 
Cost

WORK TASKS Project 
Manager

QA/QC 
Team

Design 
Manager

Senior 
Engineer

Discipline 
Engineer

Staff 
Engineer

Sr. CAD/ 
Graphics 

Tech.

CAD/ 
Graphics 

Tech.

WP/ Admin. 
Support Carollo 

Hours

420



421



422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445



446



447



448



449



450



451



452



453



454



455



456



457



458



459



460



461



462



463



464



465



466



467



468



469



470



471



472



473



474



475



476



477



478



479



480



481



482



483



484



485



486



487



488



489



490



491



492



493



494



495



496



497



498



499



500



Consultant Agreement Amendment Organization and Address: 
Number: 11 City of Oak Harbor 

865 SE Barrington Drive 
Original Agreement Title: Engineering Services Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan Phone: (360) 279-4521 
Project Number: 8549A.OO (Amend 1-5) and Execution Date I Completion Date 
8549A.10 (Amend 6-11) 09/06/2010 January 2016 
Project Title: Engineering, Facilities Plan and New Maximum Amount Payable 
Preliminary Design ENG 15-02 (previously $8,109,264 
ENG 13-05 
Description of Work: This Amendment authorizes services to complete construction phase 
services associated with the City of Oak Harbor Outfall Replacement Project. 

The Local Agency of City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with 
Carollo Engineers. Inc. and executed on September 16. 2010 and identified as 
Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan. 

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement 

The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed to read: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget. Please see the attached Scope of Services (Exhibit B) for additional phases of work. 

TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION IS AMENDED to read: No Change 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows: 
The maximum total contract value is increased from $7,907,388 to $8,109,264. This maximum 
upper limit includes a Management Reserve as indicated in prior amendments. Exhibit D-3 
summarizes the level of effort associated with Amendment No. 11 services. 

Approving Authority Signature 
resident 

Date 

501



EXHIBIT B - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
OUTFALL REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Oak Harbor (City) has completed Preliminary Design documents, and authorized 
Final Design for a new wastewater treatment plant (CWF). Construction of a new marine outfall 
is needed to replace the existing outfall , which has ceased functioning. 

Carollo Engineers (Consultant) will provide construction support and over sight, inspection and 
other engineering services during construction for the Outfall Replacement Project (Project) 
based on a General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) delivery method , and as 
described herein. 

It is assumed that the Owner will provide field staff including the City's Project Manager and 
Field Inspectors, as well as independent third party construction management staff. Consultant 
will provide the following staff over the duration of the Project: 

• Project Manager (PM). 

• Project Engineer/Field Inspector (PE/Fl) to assist with construction support and field 
engineering services. 

• Marine Outfall Design Engineer (ODE) to provide inspection of offshore marine activities, 
submittal review, and timely design interpretations and clarifications. 

• Office Administrator to provide contract documentation of engineering services during 
construction. 

• Public involvement professionals to facilitate outreach activities associated with project 
planning and outfall construction. 

LEVEL OF EFFORT 

The level of construction assistance required by Consultant is highly dependent on the GC/CM's 
performance and the level of assistance provided by the City. The City and the Consultant will 
review job progress on a monthly basis in accordance with the construction schedule, to verify 
the effort to complete Project tasks as defined by this Scope of Services (SOS). With written 
authorization from the City, adjustments to the SOS and Consultant's level of effort will be made 
as deemed appropriate by Consultant and the City Project Manager. The estimated level of 
effort and associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is presented in Exhibit D-3. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 

Task 200 - Public Process Support - Construction 
Task 810- Project Management 
Task 820 - Construction Meetings 
Task 830 - Field Services During Construction 
Task 840 - Office Services During Construction 
Task 850 - Baseline Sediment Sampling 

April 24, 2015 
pw://Carollo/Oocuments/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 1 O/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC _Scope.doc 

Page 1of9 

Wl/l/TP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

502



SCHEDULE 

This SOS is based on on-site staffing needs to support the construction duration of six (6) 
months, as currently estimated by the GC/CM Contractor. 

Milestone GC/CM Estimate of 
Construction Schedule 

Notice to Proceed (NTP) April 2015 

Substantial Completion October 2015 

Final Completion Clean Water Facility Start-Up 

TASK 200- PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT-CONSTRUCTION 

Provide additional public process support, materials development, and outreach as outlined in 
subtasks: 

Subtask 210 - Construction Communications Plan 

Assist City in developing project strategy for construction communications, to be defined in a 
Construction Communications Plan. Plan shall include a "Good Neighbor Plan" appendix, to be 
approved by City Council by resolution. 

Subtask 210 Assumptions: 

1. Plan will be coordinated with City, GC/CM, and Third Party CM. 

2. One draft, with one round of reviews is assumed to finalize plan. 

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize plan is included in Subtask 240. 

Subtask 210 Deliverables: 

1. Construction Communications Plan with a "Good Neighbor Plan" Appendix, one ( 1) draft 
and one ( 1) final. 

Subtask 220 - Outfall Construction Launch Materials 

Support near-term activities to ready for launch of outfall construction in June 2015. This can 
include: 

• Up to three (3) print materials (e.g. , bill stuffer, project one-pager, project newsletter); 
• One (1) display ad for media; 
• Review of and contribution toward Council briefing template for construction/project 

progress; and 
• Display/banner for construction fencing/way finding. 

Subtask 220 Assumptions: 

1. The City shall pay directly for any costs associated with mass printing, postage, 
newspaper advertising, and display materials. 

April 24, 2015 Page 2 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 10/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 
503



2. Limited time is assumed for ongoing Council template review and development (up to 
two (2) hours per month after creation for four (4) months). Any additional support for 
ongoing Council briefings review will require review of scope of work and budget. 

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize materials is included in Subtask 240. 

Subtask 220 Deliverables: 

1. Up to three (3) print materials for distribution. 

2. Up to one (1) display ad for media. 

3. One ( 1) display banner. 

Subtask 230 - Web Development Supporting Construction 

Ready website for construction, including refresh of Project Library page for ease of navigation 
and to easily capture history of project. Update website on a weekly basis during outfall 
construction. 

Subtask 230 Assumptions: 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff. 

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities. 

3. Updates to web do not require in-person meetings/coordination and can be completed 
via email correspondence/teleconference. 

Subtask 230 Deliverables: 

1. Update project website library page. 

2. Weekly website updates during outfall construction. 

Subtask 240 - Ongoing Planning and Materials/Product Development Supporting 
Construction 

Support day-to-day activities and strategic planning associated with project construction. This 
will include monthly meetings in Oak Harbor (total five (5)). Activities include a weekly 
construction update call in order to compile weekly project email updates (up to 25). 

Develop graphics and products that support project construction outreach (such as project base 
map, contact cards, comment cards, press releases, advertisements for project events) , to be 
defined through development of Construction Communications Plan in Task 210. 

Subtask 240 Assumptions: 

1. Monthly project meetings shall include up to two (2) subconsultant staff. 

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities. 

3. Content for weekly construction updates is assumed will be generated by other project 
staff, to be compiled and edited by Consultant for public consumption. 

April 24, 2015 Page 3 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Docurnents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 10/Project ManagernenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

504



4. Up to seven (7) additional public products/graphics materials assumed in this Subtask, 
to be further defined through completion of Task 210 (Construction Communications 
Plan). 

5. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff. 

6. Event planning support for a project groundbreaking or other commemorative event is 
not included in this subtask. Subconsultant support for such an event would require 
additional conversation/definition of scope of work and roles/responsibilities. 

7. Consultant shall provide limited media strategy/coordination associated with this task. 

Subtask 240 Deliverables: 

1. Seven (7) additional project graphics/public communication products, on an as needed 
basis. 

TASK 810- PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

Provide project management services throughout the duration of the Project, including: 

1. Management of Consultant's team to track schedule and budget, work elements 
accomplished, work items planned, labor, scope changes, and time and budget needed 
to complete this SOS. Coordinate with PE/Fl to review budget status, and coordinate 
Project activities. 

2. Prepare monthly Project progress reports with each monthly invoice that identify the 
month's accomplishments, anticipated tasks for the next month, and current or potential 
issues or changes. 

3. Manage, coordinate, and monitor subconsultant's efforts. 

4. Issue a Declaration of Completion letter in accordance with Department of Ecology 
(DOE) requirements, following Final Acceptance. 

Task 810 Assumptions: 

1. The monthly progress report will contain a summary of cost to date and remaining 
budget for each major task. 

2. A schedule update will be included in the monthly progress report, and will account for 
all activities and tasks defined in the SOS. 

3. Project duration is approximately 24 weeks. 

Task 810 Deliverables: 

1. Monthly progress reports. 

2. Declaration of Completion letter by the Engineer of Record. 

April 24, 2015 Page 4 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Clientl'NNOak Harbor/8549A 10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WVVTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

505



TASK 820-CONSTRUCTION MEETINGS 

Provide design team support at construction meetings as required throughout the Project, 
including: 

Subtask 821 - Construction Kick-off Conference 

Participate in a Construction Kick-Off Conference attended by the City, Consultant, GC/CM, 
subcontractors, and other interested parties to confirm roles, responsibilities, and other pertinent 
items related to construction of the Project. 

Subtask 821 Assumptions: 

1. City and GC/CM will schedule and conduct the Construction Kick-Off Conference. 

2. Three (3) members of the Consultant staff will attend , including the PM, PE/Fl, and ODE. 

Subtask 821 Deliverables: 

1. Meeting materials, as requested by the City. 

2. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM or City. 

Subtask 822 - Progress Meetings 

Attend weekly progress meetings that focus on the status of submittal reviews, requests for 
information (RFl 's) , change order requests, design clarifications, schedule issues, construction 
quality, and other issues relevant to the Project. 

Subtask 822 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will schedule, coordinate , and conduct Weekly Progress Meetings and prepare 
necessary materials and minutes. 

2. The Consultant's PE/Fl will attend Weekly Progress Meetings, and ODE will attend up to 
four ( 4) meetings. 

Subtask 822 Deliverables: 

1. Written recommendations in response to GC/CM action items, as required. 

TASK 830- FIELD SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Provide a Project PE/Fl to serve as the first point of contact in the field for the City and the 
GC/CM. The PE/Fl will be responsible for the following tasks: 

1. Monitor Construction for Compliance with Contract Documents: Review and monitor 
construction work for compliance with the contract documents. Document and report any 
observed non-conformances and deficiencies to the City and GC/CM, and monitor the 
correction of these deficiencies. 

April 24, 2015 Page 5 of 9 
pw://Carollo/DocumentslClient/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 1 Of Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC _Scope.doc 

VWVTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

506



2. Provide and Manage Subconsultant Field Inspection Personnel : Manage the activities of 
all subconsultant field inspection personnel. Coordinate with subconsultant performing 
forage fish sampling for Hydraulic Project Approval (HPA). Provide supplemental 
inspection of general , civil , and mechanical activities. Collect and log field inspection 
reports by others, and prepare inspection reports when inspections occur. Summarize 
weekly and monthly inspection reports for the City. 

3. Attend and Participate in Construction Meetings: Attend and participate in construction 
meetings, including weekly progress meetings. 

4. Track Requests for Information (RFI) : Coordinate and manage the RFI process 
according to the contract documents. Screen all RF ls and determine their validity before 
responding or distributing to subconsultant. Forward RFls and clarifications to the ODE 
when appropriate. 

5. Track Shop Drawing Submittals: Coordinate and manage the shop drawing and 
submittal review process. Screen the submittals and determine their completeness 
before distributing to the ODE for review. 

6. Prepare Field Memos and Clarifications: Manage and issue field memos and 
clarifications of drawings and specifications by the ODE to the GC/CM. 

7. Review Quantities in the Monthly Progress Payment Requests: Compare requested 
quantities in the GC/CM's monthly progress payment requests to the quantities 
completed, as requested by the City's Project Manager. 

8. Review Construction Schedule: Review and provide comments to the City regarding the 
baseline schedule and monthly updates consistent with the contract document 
requirements. The review will focus on key elements such as logic, duration of activities, 
duration of startup and testing, and construction sequencing constraints and milestones. 

9. Review Monthly Construction Progress Reports: Review monthly construction progress 
reports prepared by the GC/CM and provide comments to the City's Project Manager. It 
is anticipated that reports will include compliance with progress schedule, description of 
work completed, Project issues, potential claims status, and Project photographs. 

10. Review Change Order Requests: Review and provide comments to the City on change 
order requests based on changes in scope and conditions. Assist the City's Project 
Manager in developing change order value. Incorporate approved change orders into the 
contract. 

11. Photographic Documentation of Construction: Prepare periodic photographic records of 
site construction, in conjunction with inspection reports. 

12. Conduct Final Inspection: Schedule and conduct a final inspection of the completed 
facilities and issue punch lists of uncompleted items where necessary. Assist the City in 
negotiation of unsettled changes or disputes associated with these inspections, as 
requested . Advise City when final punch list items have been completed or resolved , and 
recommend final acceptance by the City. 

April 24, 2015 Page 6 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 10/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WINTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

507



Task 830 Assumptions: 

1. PE/Fl will be on-site as needed throughout the duration of the Project. Budget is based 
on PE/Fl providing an average of six (6) hours per week ( 15% commitment) over the six 
(6) month Project duration, between NTP and final acceptance. This time is allocated to 
both on-site observation of work under this task, and attendance of weekly progress 
meetings. 

2. Special testing and inspection associated with permitting requirements will be 
scheduled, provided for, and managed by the GC/CM and/or the City. 

Task 830 Deliverables: 

1. Daily inspection logs and photographs. 

2. Monthly summary inspection reports. 

3. Review comments on Weekly Progress Meeting Minutes. 

4. Review comments on Monthly Construction Progress Reports. 

5. Tracking logs for RFl's, submittals, field memos, design clarifications, change order 
requests, etc. 

TASK 840- OFFICE SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Provide office engineering services during construction, including: 

Subtask 841 - Requests for Information (RFI) 

Provide interpretation, review, and responses to RFls and incorporate decisions made during 
design into RFI responses. 

Subtask 841 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant's effort includes services to research, respond, and document each RFI in 
accordance with the contract documents. 

2. Budget is based on 20 RF l's with an average effort of one (1) hour per each to review 
and issue final responses drafted by the ODE. The ODE's scope of services included 
time for detailed RFI review. 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively coordinate these services and provide high quality submittals. 

Subtask 841 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 20 written RFI responses. 

Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 

Review shop drawing and submittals (test certifications and other specified reports) and provide 
written responses, including submittals and/or associated re-submittals as described below. 

April 24, 2015 Page 7 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak H arbor/8549A 1 O/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outfall_ESDC _Scope.doc 

WNTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

508



Subtask 842 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will implement quality control measures to screen each submittal prior to 
forwarding to Engineer for action. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the 
assumption that the GC/CM will proactively coordinate these services and provide high 
quality submittals. 

2. Consultant's effort includes services to review and respond to each shop drawing, and to 
document responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

3. Budget is based on a total of 32 basic submittals at 0.5 hours of effort each to review 
and issue final responses by the ODE. The ODE's scope of services includes time for 
detailed submittal review. 

Subtask 842 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 32 submittal responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

Subtask 843 - Review of Schedule of Value and Payment Applications 

Review contractor's schedule of value, draft payment applications, and provide comment to City 
for information and/or action. 

Subtask 843 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant's effort includes services to review the contractor's schedule of value, and 
draft payment applications. Written responses summarizing the review shall be provided 
to the City's PM. 

2. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review the schedule of values, and two (2) 
hours effort to review each draft payment application (up to 5 monthly payment 
applications, and 1 final payment application). 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review the schedule of value, draft payment applications, and recommend 
appropriate modifications to their contractor, prior to the Consultants review. 

Subtask 843 Deliverables: 

1. Up to six (6) payment application responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

Subtask 844 - Record Drawings 

Upon completion of project, Consultant will review GC/CM's as-built drawings, produce record 
drawings in Auto CAD format from the information provided , and will inform Owner of any known 
inaccuracies and/or omissions on the GC/CM's drawings. The Consultant will not be responsible 
for incorrect information that has been provided by others, or omitted information that should 
have been provided by others that was previously unknown to the Consultant. 

April 24, 2015 Page 8 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 10/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WVVTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 
509



Subtask 844 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review GC/CM as-built drawings, and 40 
hours to produce record drawings from the information provided. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review their contractor's work, and incorporate as-built information as work 
progresses. 

Subtask 844 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments following review of as-built drawings provided by GC/CM. 

2. Outfall record drawings in Auto CAD format. 

Subtask 845 - Claim Review 

As directed by the City, evaluate claims due to changed conditions, project delays, or design 
errors/omissions. Assist in evaluating the claimed impact by the Contractor. Prepare written 
responses to the claims merit, and submit written documentation to the City for action. 

Subtask 845 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of one ( 1) claim with an average effort of eight (8) hours to 
review and respond. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review and dismiss any unsubstantiated claims by their subcontractor(s). 

Subtask 845 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments and recommendations associated with the claim. 

TASK 850 - BASELINE SEDIMENT SAMPLING 

Following precedent from other aquatic lands easements for municipal WWTP outfalls, DNR will 
require baseline sediment sampling in the vicinity of the new diffuser. A sediment sampling and 
analysis plan including four (4) proposed sediment sampling stations will be submitted to DNR 
for approval. If any samples exceed any of the 47 SMS chemicals, then Consultant will 
communicate with DOE and DNR to determine whether bioassay analysis is required. 

Task 850 Assumptions: 
1. Budget is based on four (4) sediment samples, analysis of 47 sediment management 

standard chemicals, dioxin, furan , and conventional sediment variables. 

2. No sediment sample collection for bioassays (toxicity testing) is anticipated. Budget does 
not include any additional biological testing that may be required by DNR. 

Task 850 Deliverables: 

1. Sediment sampling and analysis plan will be submitted to DNR for approval. 

2. Laboratory report with sediment testing results. 

April 24, 2015 Page 9 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Oocuments/Client!WA/Oak Harbor/8549A 10/Project ManagemenUContracts/Outtall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 
510



EXHIBIT D-3 

City of Oak Harbor 
CWF Outfall Replacement Project 
Level of Effort Estimate 
Aoril 24 2015 

Subconsultant Cost 

WORK TASKS 
Project Design 

PE/Fl 
SR. CAD WP/Admin. 

Carollo Carollo DL 
Carollo 

Carollo 
Subtotal 

Manager Manager Designer Support Indirect Carollo Total Cost 
Hours Cost Expenses CME El 

Cost Cost 

Direct Labor (Ol) Rates $88 $76 $58 $40 $27 

TASK 200 - Public Process - Construction 

Subtask 210 -Construction Communication Plan $15,000 $15,000 

Subtask 220 - Outfall Launch Materials $9,500 $9,500 

Subtask 230 - Web Development Supporting Construction $10,000 S10,000 

Subtask 240 - On11oing Planning and Material Development $22 ,000 S22,000 

Task 200 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $56 500 $56,500 

TASK 810 - Project Management 16 12 28 $1 ,732 $3,291 $406 $5,428 $5,428 

Task 110 Subtotal 16 0 0 0 12 28 $1 732 $3 291 S406 S5 428 so so $5 428 

TASK 820 - Project Meetings 

Subtask 821 - Construction Kick..Qff Meeting 8 8 16 S1 ,072 $2,037 $238 $3,347 $3,347 

Subtask 822 - Progress Meetings 16 72 88 $5,392 $10,245 $1 ,271 $16,908 $16,908 

Task 120 Subtot•I 0 24 80 0 0 104 $6 464 $12 282 $1509 $20 254 $0 so $20 254 

TASK 830 - Field Services During Construction 60 60 $3,480 $6,612 $852 $10,944 $49,218 $60,162 

THk 130 Subtot•I 0 0 60 0 0 60 $3 480 $6612 $852 $10 944 $49 218 $0 $60 162 

TASK 840 - Office Services During Construction 

Subtask 841 - Request for Information 20 16 36 $1 ,592 $3,025 $475 $5,092 $5,092 

Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 16 16 32 $1 ,360 $2 ,584 $419 $4,363 $4,363 

Subtask 843 - Review of Schedule of Values/ Payment Apps 4 4 $232 $441 $57 $730 $730 

Subtask 844 - Record Drawings 4 40 44 S1 ,832 $3,481 $573 $5,886 $5,886 

Subtask 845 - Claim Review 4 4 4 12 $888 $1 ,687 $184 $2,760 $2 ,760 

Task UO Subtotal 4 4 48 40 32 128 $5 904 $11 ,218 $1 708 S18 830 $0 $0 $18 830 

TASK 850 - Baseline Sediment Sampling $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,391 $27,391 

THk 150 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27 391 $0 $27 391 

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 20 28 188 40 44 320 $17,580 $33,402 $4,475 $55,457 $76,609 $56,500 $188,566 

CAROLLO FEE (12% of Cuollo Cost) $6,655 

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5'~ of Subconsuttant Cost) $3,830 $2 ,825 $6,655 

TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $201176 

Page 1 
l/WYTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 11 related to the Outfall Construction - Attachment A 

511



512



513



514



515



516



517



518



519



520



521



522



523



524



525



526



527



528



529



530



531



532



533



534



Consultant Agreement Amendment Organization and Address 
Number 13 

City of Oak Harbor 
Original Agreement Title: Engineering 865 SE Barrington Drive 
Services for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and 
Facilities Plan Phone: 360-279-4500 
Project Number: 8549A.00 (Amendments 1-5) Execution Date Completion Date (Prior) 
8549A.10 (Amendment 6 - 12) 09/ 16/ 10 July 2016 
8549A.22 (Amendment 13) 
Project Title: Engineering, Facilities Plan and New Maximum Amount Payable 
Preliminary Design $11,433,496 
Description of Work: This Amendment authorizes services to complete SCADA Programming 
and System Integration for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility. 

The City of Oak Harbor 
desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Carollo Engineers. Inc. 
and executed on 09/16/10 and identified as Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan. 

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement. 

The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

AGREEMENT is hereby amended to add the following: 
Please see the attached Engineering Services Insert (Exhibit A). The requirements in this insert 
are herebv incorporated into the original agreement. 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget. Please see the attached Scope of Services (Exhibit B) for additional phases of work. 

PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO: December 2018 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows: 
The maximum total contract value is increased from $9.605.341 to $11.433.496. This maximum 
upper limit includes a Management Reserve as indicated in prior amendments. Exhibit D-3 
summarizes the level of effort associated with Amendment 13 services. 

Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract. 

Amendment No. 1_3, 1/22/2016 Page I of2 

pw·\\Carollo/DocumentslClient/WNOak Harborl85'19A 10/Pro,ect ~anagemenl/CootractslOak Harbor Amendment 13 Form doc• 
535



If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 

Approving Authority Signature 

z_-3.-J~ 

Date 

By: Karl Hadler. Vice President 

Amendment No. 13 li22/2016 Page 2 of2 

pw.\\CarollolOocuments;ClienW/NOall Harbor/8549A 10/Projecl Managemenl/ContractslOak Harbor Amendment 13 Fonn.docx 
536



1218 Third Avenue, Suite 1600 • Seattle, Washington 98101
P. 206.684.6532  F. 206.903.0419

carollo.com

January 19, 2016

Brett Arvidson
City Engineer
City of Oak Harbor
865 SE Barrington Drive
Oak Harbor, WA 98277

Subject: SCADA Integration and Programming Services Proposal for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 

Dear Brett:

Thank you for this opportunity to provide a draft scope of services for SCADA integration at the Oak Harbor Clean 
Water Facility. Our team of engineers, programmers, and operators has a single goal — to provide the most effective, 
innovative control solutions customized to meet your needs. 

We appreciate the opportunity to continue serving the City and we look forward to discussing our programming 
services with you.

Respectfully Yours,

CAROLLO ENGINEERS

Jeffrey A. Martin     Monte Richard
Vice President      Associate Vice President
Chief of Programming Services    Principal EI&C Engineer

537



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  1 

Scope of Work

INTRODUCTION

CONSULTANT will provide programming and SCADA 
programming services associated for the Oak Harbor 
Clean Water Facility. These services will include project 
design assistance, software coordination, supervisory 
control and data acquisition (SCADA) hardware and 
software integration, programmable logic controller 
(PLC) programming, SCADA Historian configuration, 
trending creation, report configuration, factory and field 
testing, startup, training, and warranty period services. 

TASK 1 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
COORDINATION AND PLAN 

1.01 Scheduling, Progress Reports, 
Invoicing and Project Management Plan

The CONSULTANT will submit a Project Management 
Plan (PMP) including the following elements:

  Scope 

  Budget

  Team Structure

  Team member contact information

  Workshop/Meeting Plan

  Schedule - tasks, meetings, milestones, delivery dates, 
regular monthly meetings and milestones

  Expectations of CITY

The CONSULTANT will submit monthly progress 
reports with each invoice to substantiate the progress of 
work to date, including potential out-of-scope items. This 
information will be utilized to determine if any changes 
are required in the management of the project.

CONSULTANT will oversee project efforts, monitor 
progress and budget expended, and ascertain proper 
execution of the project in accordance with the project 
scope, schedule, and budget.

It is assumed that the CONSULTANT will spend 4 hours 
per month preparing and reviewing the monthly Project 
Summary Reports.

1.02 Kickoff and Goal Setting Meeting

The CONSULTANT will conduct one, four-hour Project 
Kickoff and Goal Setting Meeting at the CITY’s facility. 
The meeting will include up to two representatives 

from the CONSULTANT. The purpose of the Project 
Kickoff Meeting will be to review the overall project goals, 
critical success factors, scope of work, schedule, lines of 
communication, and individual expectations.

1.03 Construction Progress Meetings

The CONSULTANT will attend weekly progress 
meetings throughout construction via conference call. A 
construction project duration of 24 months is assumed from 
notice to proceed through final completion and beginning 
of the warranty period. 

TASK 2 - DESIGN PHASE PROGRAMMING 
AND COORDINATION

CONSULTANT’s programming team will assist the design 
team with early programming coordination and planning 
between all technical disciplines. 

2.01 Development and Review of the 
Process Control Network Design

The CONSULTANT will assist in the development and 
review of the process and control network architecture, 
network routing diagrams, SCADA block diagrams, I/O 
list, and network panel layouts. Specific programming 
details will be incorporated as required to meet the 
CITY’s developed software and programming standards. 
Specifically, items like tag naming, tag database verification, 
and software architecture will be verified with the CITY’s 
software standards.

2.02 Facility Site Visits

The CONSULTANT will facilitate two site visits to 
wastewater facilities within the area who utilize a SCADA 
system for automated control. Site visit will include a 
presentation of the sites SCADA system followed by a 
lessons learned discussion with the facility staff to assess the 
merits and shortcomings of the facilities SCADA system.

2.03 Develop PLC and SCADA Software 
Standards

The CONSULTANT will develop PLC and SCADA 
Software Standards. These standards will be utilized 
throughout construction of the Clean Water Facility and 
will be written so that they can serve as a CITY standard 
for future projects. The effort of developing the Software 
Standards will be coordinated closely with CITY staff. 

538



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  2 

2.04 - 2.05 Software Standards 
Workshops

In order to facilitate the coordination of the PLC 
and SCADA Software Standards with the CITY, the 
CONSULTANT will conduct two Software Standards 
Workshops. The details of the workshops are listed in the 
following table: 

TASK 3 – PROGRAMMING SERVICES 
DURING CONSTRUCTION

The CONSULTANT will provide programming services 
during the construction phase. The services will include 
PLC and SCADA configuration services, various 
coordination meetings during construction, factory 
testing, field testing, start-up services, commissioning, and 
O&M training.

3.01 Hardware and Software Submittals

The CONSULTANT will furnish SCADA hardware 
and software submittals for items furnished by the 
CONSULTANT as detailed in Bill of Material Furnished 
by CONSULTANT.

3.02 PLC and SCADA Development

The CONSULTANT will provide PLC programming 
and SCADA software configuration for the Clean Water 
Facility. The CONSULTANT will provide flow charts 
and annotated function blocks to assist with future 
adjustments/troubleshooting of the program.

The CONSULTANT will develop the tag database and 
perform verification with all vendor applications. The 
CONSULTANT will provide PLC logic coordination 
with all vendor supplied PLCs.

Refer to assumptions section for I/O counts used for 
determining the total PLC and SCADA programming 
effort.

3.03 Historian Configuration and Custom 
Trend Screen Development

The CONSULTANT will provide Historian configuration 
and create a total of ten (10) trend screens customized 
by the CONSULTANT and CITY during the Software 
Coordination Meetings. 

3.04 Regulatory Compliance and Custom 
Operational Report Configuration

The CONSULTANT will configure a total of two (2) 
custom regulatory compliance and five (5) custom 
operational reports. The specifics of the reports will be 
customized by the CONSULTANT and CITY during the 
Software Coordination Meetings.

3.05 Software Coordination Meetings

The CONSULTANT will conduct  construction phase 
coordination meetings. The anticipated meetings are listed 
below:

  One (1) SCADA system configuration meeting 
for SCADA and PLC network communications 
coordination with CITY

  Two (2) Vendor programming coordination meetings 
with Vendors and CITY

  Four (4) software coordination meetings with CITY

  Construction period coordination with CITY, 
Contractor, and key subcontractors including electrical, 
ICSC, Vendors.

3.06 Attend Offsite Factory Acceptance Test 
(FAT)

The CONSULTANT will attend and assist the 
Instrumentation and Control System Contractor (ICSC) 
in conducting the witnessed control panel factory 
acceptance test (FAT) located at the ICSC facility. The 
CONSULTANT will prepare applicable FAT testing forms 
no less than one (1) week in advance of the date of the 
testing. 

3.07 Attend Vendor Systems Factory 
Acceptance Test

The CONSULTANT will attend the witnessed factory 
acceptance tests for Vendor provided systems to confirm 
software interfaces and general conformance to the project’s 
programming standards. It is assumed there will be a total 
of three (3) separate vendor factory acceptance tests, each 
lasting three (3) days.

WORKSHOPS

Subtask 
No.

Meeting Title Duration Consultant’s 
Team

Other 
Attendees

2.04 Preliminary 
Software 
Standards 
Workshop

4 hours Jeff Janowiak
Monte Richard

CITY 
SCADA 

Staff

2.05 Final Software 
Standards 
Workshop

4 hours Jeff Janowiak
Monte Richard

CITY 
SCADA 

Staff

539



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  3 

3.08 Conduct Software Acceptance Test 
(SAT)

The CONSULTANT will conduct a Software 
Acceptance Test (SAT) located in the CONSULTANT’s 
Roseville Cyber Lab. The CONSULTANT will prepare 
SAT testing plans and forms prior to conducting the 
SAT. The SAT shall include the configuration of 
communications and testing of the connection between 
SCADA and Vendor PLC’s. The CONSULTANT will 
test SCADA interface and screen functionality with all 
Vendor PLCs during the SAT.

3.09 Conduct Complete End-to-End 
Testing (CEET)

The CONSULTANT will provide Complete End to End 
Testing (CEET). After the electrical contractor has fully 
completed and submitted all loop drawings for review 
and approval and the ICSC have completed the control 
system installation. The CEET will occur only after the 
Contractor has submitted certified test reports that all 
field wiring has been tested and verified against the loop 
drawings. The CONSULTANT shall go to the field and 
load the PLC program for testing and the PLC will be 
connected to the network at this time. During the CEET, 
signals are tested through the PLC program, the network, 
and all the way to the operator’s SCADA graphic screens.

The Complete End-to-End Test (CEET) will be 
performed by the CONSULTANT and Contractor 
working together, with assistance from the CITY or the 
inspection staff, as needed. The CONSULTANT will 
provide staff to verify input signals at, and create output 
signals from, the SCADA system. The Contractor will be 
responsible for creating field signals and verifying proper 
operation of final control elements. It is assumed that 
full time dedicated Contractor staff assistance will be 
provided during the CEET. It has been assumed that the 
CEET will last six (6) weeks

3.10 Conduct Strategy Field Testing (SFT)

The CONSULTANT will provide Strategy Field Testing 
(SFT). After CEET and the contractor’s testing of the 
manual operation of equipment, the Strategy Field 
Testing (SFT) will be performed by the CONSULTANT 
with assistance from the Contractor and assistance from 
the CITY or the inspection staff, as needed. 

The purpose of the SFT is to verify the proper operation 
of all PLC control logic and its interaction with field 
equipment and devices. The CONSULTANT will 
exercise programs, conduct tests, and record results. 
Contractor staff will be responsible for equipment 
operation and verification of correct field operation 
results. Programmer will tune any feedback loops. It has 
been assumed that the SFT will last four (4) weeks.

3.11 Operational Readiness Testing (ORT)

The CONSULTANT will provide Operational Readiness 
Testing (ORT) after completion of the CEET and SFT. The 
ORT will be performed by the CONSULTANT. 

The purpose of the ORT is to conduct a final test after 
all other testing activities have been performed, and all 
SCADA components have been installed to confirm the 
system is ready for live deployment. The ORT will test 
for database backup, database recovery, correct software 
installation and configuration, failover operation, access 
control, and security viability. It has been assumed that the 
ORT will last two (2) weeks.

3.12 MCC Smart Overload and VFD 
Configuration

The CONSULTANT will provide configuration of all smart 
overload and VFD starters. The CONSULTANT will 
configure the network connection as well as program each 
starter for local and remote operations as indicated in the 
control strategies. Physical wiring of the starters along with 
wiring to/from the associated circuit components will be 
conducted by the Contractor.

3.13 Operation and Maintenance Manuals

The CONSULTANT will provide Operation and 
Maintenance Manuals for the following items:

  CEET, SFT, and ORT test results

  SCADA system hardware and software

  PLC system software

  Final PLC programs, including final flow charts, 
annotated function blocks.

  Final control sequencing describing startup, operation, 
shutdown, and safety procedures

Electronic copies of the individual Operation and 
Maintenance sections listed above will be delivered to the 
Contractor for incorporation into the overall project O&M 
manual.

3.14 Close-Out Services

The CONSULTANT will provide close-out services 
in order to finalize outstanding issues on the CITY’s 
programming punch list. It has been assumed that the 
close-out services will last two (2) weeks.

540



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  4 

TASK 6 - WARRANTY PERIOD SERVICES

6.01 Warranty Period Services

The CONSULTANT will provide warranty period 
services during the 1 year warranty period following 
final completion of the construction contract. Warranty 
services will include on-call, dial-in adjustments in 
addition to on-site visits following final completion of the 
construction contract.

Additional Items Not Included:

1.  PLC Hardware and associated training.

2.  Construction and associated testing of PLC cabinets.

3.  Hardware and Software not specifically called out in 
the Bill of Materials Furnished by CONSULTANT.

4. Work efforts for other items not specifically listed in 
this proposal.

5. Programming of Vendor provided PLCs.

Assumptions:

1. PLC and SCADA programming and configuration 
effort was based on approximately 2500 hard and soft 
I/O. The approximate I/O is broken up as shown in 
the following table:

2. The Contractor shall perform complete testing of 
all Ethernet cabling (Fiber and/or Copper) per the 
specifications. Testing must certify all paths to CAT 6 
specifications and provide a formal written report to 
CONSULTANT.

3.  CONSULTANT will use standard Rockwell PLC 
programming function blocks and add-on instructions 
as much as possible to develop the PLC code for this 
project.

 

HARDWIRED I/O 162

VCP I/O 681

SOFT I/O 941

VCP MBR I/O 494

VCP UV I/O 66

CENTRIFUGES NO. 1 AND NO. 2 118

VCP Dryer I/O TBD

TASK 4 - OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE TRAINING SERVICES

4.01 Training Preparation

The CONSULTANT will prepare training materials 
and handouts prior to conducting the on-site training. 
Training material will be delivered to the CITY no less 
than one (1) week in advance of the date of the training.

4.02 - 4.11 Training Courses

CONSULTANT will conduct the training courses 
detailed in the following table:

TASK 5 - Network Hardware and Software 
Configuration

5.01 SCADA Network Hardware and 
Software Configuration

The CONSULTANT will configure the network 
hardware and software provided by the CONSULTANT 
listed in the Bill of Material Provided by CONSULTANT. 
CONSULTANT will configure the network area racks as 
well as the network server racks. The CONSULTANT 
will perform setup and configuration of the SCADA 
servers, Historian server, authentication server, Network 
Attached Storage, Local Operator Interfaces, thin client 
nodes, and SCADA workstations.

OPERATOR TRAINING SERVICES

Subtask No. / 
Course Title

Minimum 
Course 

Length (hours 
per session)

Personnel 
(Estimated 

No. of 
Students)

Minimum 
No. of 

Sessions

4.02 System Overview 8 8 1

4.03 Operator Training 
        - Basic

24 8 2

4.04 Operator Training 
        - Advanced

16 5 2

4.05 CIS (Computer) 
Equipment Maintenance

8 4 1

4.06 Historian System 
Training

16 5 1

4.07 Reports Training 8 5 2

4.08 PLC Software 32 6 1

4.09 HMI Hardware and 
Software

16 5 1

4.10 Network Equipment 16 4 1

4.11 Follow-up Training 8 5 5

541



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  5 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
En

gi
ne

er

EI
C

 L
ea

d 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al

Se
ni

or
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
er

 II
I

Se
ni

or
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
er

 II

Se
ni

or
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
er

 I

D
oc

um
en

t 
Pr

oc
es

si
ng

228$ 205$ 198$ 167$ 140$ 102$

1.01 Scheduling, Progress Reports, Invoicing, Project Management Plan 156 16 116 24 32,180$ -$ 32,180$                           
1.02 Kick-off and Goal Setting Meeting 32 16 16 6,448$ 1,835$ 8,283$                             
1.03 Construction Progress Meetings 168 96 48 24 32,544$ -$ 32,544$                           

2.01 Development and Review of  the Process Control Network Design 24 24 4,752$ -$ 4,752$                             
2.02 Facility Site Visits 24 8 16 5,104$ 1,705$ 6,809$                             
2.03 Develop PLC and SCADA Software Standards 84 4 40 40 14,340$ -$ 14,340$                           
2.04 Preliminary Software Standards Workshop 16 8 8 3,224$ 1,835$ 5,059$                             
2.05 Final Software Standards Workshop 16 8 8 3,224$ 1,835$ 5,059$                             

3.01 Hardware and Software Submittals 92 4 32 24 24 8 15,340$ -$ 15,340$                           
3.02 PLC and SCADA Development 3,424 2200 1224 606,960$ -$ 606,960$                         
3.03 Historian Configuration and Custom Trend Screen Development 180 180 25,200$ -$ 25,200$                           
3.04 Custom Operational Report Configuration 112 112 15,680$ -$ 15,680$                           
3.05 Software Coordination Meetings 256 24 116 116 44,128$ 8,270$ 52,398$                           
3.06 Attend Offsite Factory Acceptance Test (FAT) 66 58 8 12,604$ 3,080$ 15,684$                           
3.07 Attend Vendor Systems Factory Acceptance Tests 200 120 80 34,960$ 4,220$ 39,180$                           
3.08 Software Acceptance Testing (SAT) 344 176 168 58,368$ -$ 58,368$                           
3.09 Complete End-to-End Testing (CEET) 360 180 180 60,840$ 7,510$ 68,350$                           
3.10 Strategy Field Testing (SFT) 300 160 140 51,280$ 7,510$ 58,790$                           
3.11 Operational Readiness Testing (ORT) 120 80 40 21,440$ 7,510$ 28,950$                           
3.12 MCC Smart Overload and VFD Configuration 120 40 80 19,120$ -$ 19,120$                           
3.13 Operation and Maintenance Manuals 80 8 32 32 8 13,272$ -$ 13,272$                           
3.14 Close-Out Services 120 80 40 21,440$ 3,755$ 25,195$                           

4.01 Training Preparation 188 96 16 68 8 32,016$ 8,810$ 40,826$                           
4.02 System Overview 10 10 1,980$ -$ 1,980$                             
4.03 Operator Training Basic 60 60 11,880$ -$ 11,880$                           
4.04 Operator Training Advanced 40 40 7,920$ -$ 7,920$                             
4.05 Computer Equipment Maintenance 10 10 1,400$ -$ 1,400$                             
4.06 Historian System Training 20 20 3,960$ -$ 3,960$                             
4.07 Reports Training 20 20 3,340$ -$ 3,340$                             
4.08 PLC  Software 40 40 7,920$ -$ 7,920$                             
4.09 HMI Hardware and Software 20 20 2,800$ -$ 2,800$                             
4.10 Network Equipment 20 20 3,340$ -$ 3,340$                             
4.11 Follow Up Training 48 24 24 8,112$ -$ 8,112$                             

5.01 Network Hardware and Software Configuration 208 208 34,736$ -$ 34,736$                           

6.01 Warranty Period Services 248 48 120 80 44,800$ 3,083$ 47,883$                           

7226 24 348 3852 288 2690 24 1,266,652$ 60,958$ 1,327,610$

1,327,610$        

118,157$           

1,445,767$        LABOR AND EXPENSES TOTAL

CITY OF OAK HARBOR CLEAN WATER FACILITY
PROGRAMMING SERVICES

LABOR AND EXPENSES SUBTOTAL

CONTINGENCY AND ESCALATION

TASK FEETASK DESCRIPTION
TASK 

NUMBER  Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
H

ou
rs

 

Labor Cost

 Travel, 
Subsistence, and 

Other 
Reimbursables 

ALL TASKS

TASK 1 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT COORDINATION AND PLAN

TASK 2 - DESIGN PHASE PROGRAMMING AND COORDINATION

TASK 3 - PROGRAMMING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION

TASK 4 - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE TRAINING SERVICES

TASK 5 - NETWORK HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE CONFIGURATION

TASK 6 - WARRANTY PERIOD SERVICES

PROGRAMMING SERVICES

Compensation for the Programming Services scope of work is presented in the following table.

542



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  6 

BILL OF MATERIAL FURNISHED BY CONSULTANT

The following table is a bill of material showing equipment that will be provided by the CONSULTANT. 

BOM Number Materials  Markup on 
Materials Total Cost

1 10,568$ 2,114$ 12,682$
2 9,459$ 1,892$ 11,351$
3 55,681$ 11,136$ 66,817$
4 8,160$ 1,632$ 9,792$
5 32,500$ 6,500$ 39,000$
6 16,902$ 3,380$ 20,282$
7 8,451$ 1,690$ 10,141$
8 4,600$ 920$ 5,520$
9 4,360$ 872$ 5,232$
10 2,180$ 436$ 2,616$
11 20,000$ 4,000$ 24,000$
12 15,341$ 3,068$ 18,409$
13 20,400$ 4,080$ 24,480$
14 25,915$ 5,183$ 31,098$
15 4,200$ 840$ 5,040$
16 16,780$ 3,356$ 20,136$
17 4,158$ 832$ 4,990$
18 1,545$ 309$ 1,854$
19 7,500$ 1,500$ 9,000$

322,440$          

28,697$            

351,137$          

31,251$            

382,388$          

Network Printer (Laser printer)
ACP thin Manager Software (10 clients)

Control Room Thin Client and Monitor (3)

SCADA Software (2) FT Server, (7) clients, TS, WIN 911
PLC Software (RA RS Logix Professional Edition)

Historian Software (5,000 tags)
SCADA Servers w/OS Software (2)

MATERIAL TOTAL

MATERIAL TOTAL

MATERIAL TAXES @ 8.9%

Description

Server Rack, UPS with Bypass, Closet Connector Housing, FPP, Wire Management System
Firewall, Ethernet Switch, NAS

Remote Thin clients throughout the plant (3)

CITY OF OAK HARBOR CLEAN WATER FACILITY
MATERIAL PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT

Historian Server w/OS Software (1)

Workstations w/OS Software (2)

Miscellaneous, Software, Patch Cables, Connectors, Labels, etc.

Panel Mount Thin Clients (3) - OIT-HW, OIT-ABRW & OIT-SH

Local Network Panels (3) - NP-HW, NP-ST & NP-SH

Engineering Workstation w/OS Software (1)

Domain Server

Hardened Industrial Laptop Workstations (2)

Color Printer

MATERIALS SUBTOTAL

CONTINGENCY AND ESCALATION

TOTAL COMPENSATION

Total compensation for the Programming Services in addition to the Material Provided by the CONSULTANT is 
presented in the following table.

1,445,767$       

382,388$          

1,828,155$       

LABOR AND EXPENSES TOTAL (PROGRAMMING SERVICES)

MATERIAL TOTAL (MATERIAL FURNISHED BY CONSULTANT)

PROJECT TOTAL

CITY OF OAK HARBOR CLEAN WATER FACILITY
COMBINED PROGRAMMING SERVICES AND MATERIAL PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT

543



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  1 

References 

The City of Casa 
Grande, Arizona, Water 
Reclamation Facility 
Phase 3 Expansion, from 
6 to 12 mgd, included 
the addition of four new 
clarifiers, an additional 
anoxic/aerobic basin, 
new solids-handling 
equipment, new 
odor control, new 
sodium-hypochlorite 
generation, and related 
supporting facilities. 
This large-scale plant upgrade included the addition of 17 new PLCs (for a 
total of 26) as well as a completely new Wonderware system, including an 
enterprise-class Historian.

An existing video surveillance system was expanded by adding new 
cameras, connected via fiber-optic technology, and adding digital 
video-recording equipment to allow plant operations to greatly improve 
security around the large facility.

The lead PLC programming effort put forth by Carollo helped to avoid 
many of the traditional pitfalls encountered when multiple programmers 
from different vendors provide logic for the same project. The extensive 
experience of our senior programming staff quickly earned the respect of 
the various individuals involved and greatly increased the cooperation 
among the vendors to accommodate a common programming standard. 
Carollo provided many of the standard program modules for integration 
into the overall plant control system.

Casa Grande Water Reclamation Facility Phase 3 Expansion SCADA

City of Casa Grande, Arizona 

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 

Owner 

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Kevin Louis
Public Works Director
City of Casa Grande 
3181 North Lear Avenue 
Casa Grande, AZ 85222
520-421-8600
klouis@casagrandeaz.gov

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Allen-Bradley 
ControlLogix and CompactLogix

• PLC count: 26 CPUs

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
4,600+

• Communication networks 
and protocols used: Ethernet, 
ControlNet, Ethernet-IP, ControlNet 
(CIP)

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Dell server-class HW 
& SW + Wonderware’s InTouch 
SCADA-HMI SW

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell server-class HW 
& SW + Wonderware’s Enterprise 
Historian + Microsoft’s SQL RDBMS 
SW

This large scale plant upgrade included the addition of 
17 new (for a total of 26) PLCs as well as a completely 
new Wonderware system, including an enterprise-class 
Historian.

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 25 months, Actual: 25 months
(9/06 – 10/08)

Contract Value: $2.7M
Programming: $1.2M
ESDC: $3.7M

Construction Cost:

Bid Price: $48.1M, Actual:  $50.4M

Change Orders (number/amount): 
11 / $2.3M ($2.0M owner-directed)

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

544



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  2 

Bollman Water Treatment Plant DCS Replacement

Contra Costa Water District, Walnut Creek, California

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 
Owner

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Jacob Lesov
Instrumentation Engineer
Contra Costa Water District
2411 Bisso Lane,
Concord, CA 94524
925-688-8193
jlesov@ccwater.com

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon Quantum 
Hot-Standby

• PLC count: 4

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
2,000+

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: Ethernet, Remote 
I/O, Modbus TCP, Remote I/O

• SCADA system hardware and soft-
ware: Dell Servers & Workstations/ 
Wonderware InTouch

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell Servers/ 
Wonderware Historian

Carollo Engineers was the prime 
contractor for a $1.7 million 
turnkey (hardware and software) 
replacement of the distributed 
control system at the 75-mgd 
Bollman Water Treatment Plant 
for the Contra Costa Water 
District (CCWD) in Concord, 
California. The project included 
replacement of the plant’s 
obsolete, proprietary Bailey 
Infi-90 DCS with a modern, 
open-standards-based distributed 
PC/PLC system.

The new system uses four Modicon Quantum Unity hot-standby CPU 
pairs connected to I/O modules in eight area control cabinets. The PLC 
control network is configured in a redundant Ethernet/fiber ring. The 
remote I/O communications are also redundant.

The operator interface is provided by 12 thin-client terminals connected 
to redundant SCADA terminal servers running Wonderware InTouch for 
Terminal Services version 9.5.

Carollo provided hardware, software, programming, and complete systems 
integration services. Carollo was the prime contractor and directed the 
work of subcontractors for electrical installation, fiber-optic cable testing, 
panel fabrication, and design assistance.

The Bollman Plant is the main source of water for several communities 
and allowable shutdown times were very short, considering the magnitude 
of the project. Carollo worked closely with CCWD staff to develop 
a comprehensive cutover plan including fallback options to ensure 
continuous water deliveries. Carollo completed the project on time, within 
budget, and with minimal disruptions to staff and operations.

Carollo Engineers provided hardware, 
software, programming, and complete systems 
integration services.

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 16 months, Actual: 16 months
(3/07 – 6/08 including programming)

Contract Value: $6.4M

Construction Cost:

Bid Price: N/A (only DCS replacement) 
Actual: $1.7M

Change Orders (number/amount): 

4 / $150,000

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

545



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  3 

Contra Costa Middle River Intake Project

Contra Costa Water District, Contra Costa County, California

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 
Owner 

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Scott Weddle
Senior Engineer 
Contra Costa Water District
2411 Bisso Lane
Concord, CA 94524-2099
925-688-8318
sweddle@ccwater.com  

Contractor Information: 

ProVen Management
Mr. Bill Gilmartin
President
712 Sansome Street
San Francisco, CA 94111
415-990-4448
Bill@ProvenManagement.com 

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon M340

• PLC count: 2

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 261

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: Modbus TCP, 
Modbus RTU, WAN (Radio)

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Televent/Televent OASys 
DNA 7.5

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell Server/Televent

The CCWD Middle 
River Intake Project 
protects CCWD’s 550,000 
customers from seasonal 
fluctuations and long-term 
degradation of water 
quality in the Delta by 
establishing an alternative 
intake at Victoria Canal 
in the central Delta. In 
addition to improving 
delivered water quality, 
the Middle River Intake 
Project enhances 
operational flexibility, 
improves health and aesthetic benefits to customers, provides fisheries 
protection via the change in timing/location of diversions, and protects 
delivered water quality during emergencies. The pump station includes five 
3,000-hp vertical turbine pumps to convey water to CCWD’s Los Vaqueros 
Reservoir or the Contra Costa Canal, automatic screen raking, a hydraulic 
surge suppression system, and a 69-kV substation.

The project will allow CCWD to consistently meet or exceed state and 
federal drinking water regulations and protect public health well into the 
future. It will also protect delivered-water quality during emergencies.

Key instrumentation and control elements:

 Redundant Modicon Quantum PLC system with segregated I/O for 
each pump.

 Data acquired from power metering systems, variable frequency drives 
(VFDs), motor starters, and intake screen cleaning system using 
Modbus TCP Ethernet and Modbus RTU communications.

 Water quality and process control instruments.

 Communications with SCADA at CCWD’s centralized control center 
over redundant radio networks.

 PLC and SCADA programming by Carollo Engineers.

Key electrical elements:

 69-kV substation with SF6 circuit breaker and 15-MVA transformer to 
step transmission voltage down to 4.16 kV to power the pump motors.

 4.16-kV switchgear and motor controls.

 Reduced-voltage solid-state motor starters for three 3,000-hp pump 
motors.

 VFDs for two 3,000-hp pump motors.

 Motor protection incorporating thermal overload modeling, current 
differential protection, and over-temperature protection that monitors 
six resistance-temperature detectors in the motor windings and two in 
the bearings.

Provided detailed control system design for the intake 
pump station including 5-3,000 hp pump, the PLC and 
SCADA control system, programming services, and 
engineering services during construction.

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 15 months, Actual: 15 Months
(09/06 – 11/07)

Contract Value:  $4.6M

Construction Cost: 
Bid Price: $32M, Final Amount: $33.56M

Change Orders (number/amount): 
162 / $1.56M (Field services for environ-
mental assessment)

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

546



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  4 

Carollo Engineers was 
retained to perform the 
City of Arlington’s John F. 
Kubala Water Treatment 
Plant Expansion I, 
which included the 
addition of six filters, two 
sedimentation basins, 
expanded recycle basin, 
and two finished-water 
high-service pumps (5 kV, 
800 hp on VFDs, and 
1,750 hp on RVSS), and a 
5-MG clearwell. 

The Expansion II project is the most recent in a series of major projects 
that Carollo Engineers has performed for the City of Arlington. The 
project involved hydraulic expansion from 65 mgd to 97.5 mgd through 
the addition of two sedimentation basins, eight granular media filters, 
chemical feed systems, a 1,000-hp high-service pump in the existing pump 
station, and ozone generation and contacting facilities.

The programming efforts included all high-service pumps (existing and 
new), which totalled 5,950 hp, with the largest pump being 1,750 hp.

Carollo performed the design and programming of the existing SCADA 
system expansion, which included redundant Allen-Bradley PLCs for the 
ozone facilities (programming by Ozonia), Modicon Premium PLCs for 
the rest of the plant, an Ethernet data highway and SCADA LAN, and an 
iFIX SCADA HMI system. The work included upgrading the iFIX software 
from version 3.5 to 5.0, a new Historian, and expanding the operator 
display system to include all of the new facilities. Carollo Engineers 
was also responsible for programming the new and expanded Modicon 
Premium PLCs, while two specialty subcontractors programmed the filter 
controls and ozone systems. The project included adding an enterprise 
Historian to the system, which collects data from all of the City’s water 
facilities into a central data repository for trending and analysis.

John F. Kubala Water Treatment Plant Expansions I and II

City of Arlington, Texas

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 

Owner 

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. David Smith
Water Treatment Manager/Maintenance
John Kubala Water Treatment Plant 
7001 U.S. Highway 287 
Arlington, TX 76017
817-478-5702
David.Smith@arlingtontx.gov

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon Premium, 
Allen-Bradley PLC5, and Allen-
Bradley SLC500

• PLC count: 28

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
6,000+

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: ModBus TCP, DH+, 
Ethernet 

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Panel View and Dell 
Workstations/GE Profi cy iFIX

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell Server/
GE Profi cy Historian

Control system design and programming for 32.5-mgd 
WTF hydraulic expansion using Allen-Bradley and 
Modicon PLCs, iFIX SCADA and Historian software.Completion Time – Design:

Original and Actual: 16 months/ 
16 months (1/07 – 4/08)

Contract Value: $5.0M

Construction Cost:

Bid Price: $28.8M, Actual: Ongoing

Change Orders (number/amount): 
4 / $2.6M

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

547



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  5 

Pleasant Grove Wastewater Treatment Plant Miscellaneous Upgrades

City of Roseville, California

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 

Owner

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Ken Glotzbach
Wastewater Utility Manager
City of Roseville
2005 Hilltop Circle
Roseville, CA 95747
916-774-5770 
kglotzbach@roseville.ca.us

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon Quantum

• PLC count: 12

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
3,500

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: EthernetIP over 
Fiber, Modbus Plus, Serial Modbus 
over Licensed Radio, Modbus TCP, 
Modbus Plus, Modbus RTU

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Transdyn Controls 
DYNAC SCADA Software, 
Wonderware

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Oracle Enterprise 
Edition

Carollo Engineers 
designed the Pleasant 
Grove Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, a new 
12-mgd treatment facility, 
for the City of Roseville. 
Carollo Engineers served 
as primary consultant for 
the design of SCADA 
and instrumentation 
systems at the Pleasant 
Grove plant and the 
replacement of an 
existing command center at the City’s Dry Creek WWTP.

Carollo Engineers designed a system that would meet the City’s need for 
“unattended operations” at the Pleasant Grove plant. The new plant is 
staffed on weekdays, but remains unstaffed on evenings and weekends. 
Control systems allow for communication between the Pleasant Grove 
plant and the Dry Creek plant. The Carollo Engineers team optimized 
process, SCADA, and communications system designs to allow for 
complete operation and monitoring of the Pleasant Grove plant from the 
Dry Creek plant.

The new SCADA system includes two command centers with a network 
of computers and control panels with Modicon Quantum PLCs, 
interconnected by a fiber-optic data highway, plus over 3,500 input/ output 
points of control. The Pleasant Grove plant includes an influent pump 
station, aerated grit basins, oxidation ditches, secondary clarifiers, a 
return activated sludge/waste activated sludge (RAS/ WAS) pump 
station, continuous backwash filters, a chlorine contact basin, and a 
solids-handling building. Automated valving, automated gates, and 
instrumentation are key project features that contribute to the plant’s ease 
of operation.

Carollo Engineers designed a system that would meet 
Roseville’s need for “unattended operations” at the 
Pleasant Grove facility. 

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 36 months, Actual: 36 months
(8/08 – 7/10 )

Contract Value: $2.9M

Construction Cost: 
Bid Price: $18.9M, Actual: $19.8M

Change Orders (number/amount): 

6 / $971,831

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

548



V
:\C

lient77_SE
A

\O
akH

arbor\Proposals\SC
A

D
A

Integration_0815\Indd\Jan2016\R
eferences_11x17.indd

References  |  6 

Record Documentation

Follow-up Services

Corrective Services

Maintenance Services

MST
Manual Equipment Start-Up Test

SFT
Strategy Field Testing

O&M Manuals

Operator
Training

Maintenance
Training

Field Bus
Testing

PAL
PLC Panel and
Loop Testing

NAT
Network Equipment

Acceptance Test

CEET
Complete End-to-End Test

Field Device
Calibration

LAN Cable
Post Testing

Industrial
Network Testing

FAT
Factory Acceptance Testing

Integrated System All Hardware and Software
Testing Simulator

Hardwired Devices
Hardware Simulator
Field Bus Devices

PreFat - Assurance that PCIS is ready for full FAT
Panel Inspections  for completeness and workmanship
I/O Test verify I/O is properly wired to field terminals
System Configuration Test for all

Operator Stations
Servers
Development Stations
Peripherals

Control Logic Test of strategies with simulation of I/O

PLCs SCADA
Networks

Local
Operator

Interfaces 
Historian Alarms

PROGRAMMING VALIDATION, START-UP, AND COMMISSIONING PLAN

Hardware and Software
PLC-SCADA-NETWORKS

Review and Document
Existing Systems

Detailed Design Submittals
For Equipment and Software

Historian
Report System
Alarm System
Control System Block Diagram
Control System Network Diagram

Develop and Document Programming Standards
Screen Layout and Graphic Color Conventions
Control Action Standards
Software Architecture
General Control Functions
PLC Programming Standards

Control Strategies
Confirm
Refine
Expand

Coordination with Vendor Control Systems

Initial Set-Up of PLC/SCADA
Hardware and Software at
Programmer's Office

Configuration and Programming

Field Bus
Networks

P
O

S
T

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

IN
G

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

IN
G

FI
E

LD
 T

E
S

TI
N

G
 A

N
D

 P
R

E
-C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
IN

G
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
TI

V
IT

IE
S

P
R

E
-C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
TI

V
IT

IE
S

Review and Document Existing Systems: Review the existing SCADA and control systems for Owner's 
other facilities and use the information collected to program the system expansion in a compatible manner, 
using similar programming standards. Visit the Owner's other facilities and become familiar with the system 
hardware and programming standards used, collect and review documentation on the existing system, 
including PLC code, SCADA software configuration files, block and wiring diagrams, and other O&M 
information available. 

Detailed Design Submittals: Prepare a detailed SCADA system design, based on the Contract Documents. 
Finalize computer system connections, history system expansion, report requirements, etc. Prepare a design 
submittal  including updated block diagram, software list, or other information required to define the final 
details of the complete control system.

Programming  Standards: Develop and document standard for use on the project to provide a consistent 
“look and feel” for operators and to make maintenance easier. The PLC programming and HMI and SCADA 
software configuration will follow these documented programming standards which shall include: Screen 
layout and graphic color conventions, Control action standards, Software architecture, General control 
functions, PLC programming standards. Screen layout and color standards define the way information is 
presented to operators on the SCADA screens. Control action standards define the way control actions are 
accomplished by the operator. Software architecture defines where in the system (PLC vs. servers vs. 
operator stations) various software functions are performed. General Control Functions describe typical 
control logic that will apply to all motors, valves, analog signals, etc. Meet with Owner to discuss options and 
preferences for graphic display standards, color conventions, and other programming standards and 
prepare a proposed graphic display and programming standards document for Owner acceptance.  

Control Strategies: The Contract Documents include specifications, P&IDs and Control Strategies  that 
describe the monitoring and control functions of the SCADA computer system and the operation of PLC 
logic. More detailed control strategies will be needed to confirm and refine the requirements for 
implementation of SCADA logic and functions prior to performing the programming.
 

Coordination with Vendor Control Systems: PLCs provided by vendors of packaged systems shall be 
integrated into the SCADA system. This requires coordination of programming work with the vendors. 
Vendors are responsible for all logic in their respective PLCs. They shall define the PLC registers in their 
PLCs that will allow remote starting and stopping of their systems, monitoring of data for display, alarming, 
event logging, trending, etc., and any other functions as required by the specification. Programmer shall 
coordinate its work with these equipment suppliers to provide proper control functionality between their 
equipment and the SCADA system. 

FAT: Before shipment to the project site, the complete PCIS system including all operator stations, servers, 
network equipment, printers, PCMs, PLCs, RTUs, LCPs, CCS, peripherals, communications equipment, and 
other SCADA equipment, shall be assembled, connected, and all software loaded for a full functional FAT of 
the integrated system. Perform tests to show that the integrated system hardware and software is fully 
operational. For systems that contain RTU’s or remote communications with other devices, the complete 
communications system must be factory tested, including actual interfacing with telephone company 
equipment and/or the actual radios used for radio based telemetry systems. Correct any deficiencies 
observed. Use hardware simulators connected to the I/O points within the SCADA System. All I/O shall be 
simulated and proper control and system operation shall be validated. 

Preliminary Factory Acceptance Test: Purpose of the Pre-FAT is to provide assurance that the control 
system is ready for the full FAT in terms of both stability and functionality. 

Panel Inspections: Inspect each control panel for completeness, workmanship, fit and finish, and 
compliance with the Contract Documents and the approved shop drawings.

I/O Test: Verify that I/O is properly wired to field terminals and is properly mapped into the PLC and the rest 
of the SCADA system, including all operator interface devices. 

System Configuration Test: Demonstrate and test the setup and configuration of all operator stations, 
servers, development stations, peripherals, utility software, virus protection, backup, optical drive burning, 
network monitoring, proper operation of all peripheral hardware, general SCADA functions, proper operation 
of log-on and other access security functions, historical data storage, trend, display, backup, report 
functions, automatic fail over of redundant equipment, alarm display and acknowledgement functions.

Control Logic Test: Verify that all software functions and logic work as specified, along with any hardwired 
logic or functions in the tested control panels.

PAL: The panels are shipped to the field and installed. After all instruments are installed and calibrated, and 
all field wires tested and terminated, conduct PAL. The purpose of the PAL test is to test the field wiring and 
instrumentation. The test is from the field devices, through any intermediate devices or control panels, to the 
PLC panel and into PLC registers. Each signal is tested from field device to PLC, and from PLC to final 
control element for PLC outputs. Programmer’s PLC code is not used in this test. 

NAT: After all fiber and other network cables are installed, conduct the NAT to demonstrate that all 
Contractor-provided cabling and hardware work as specified. 

CEET: Programmer shall load the PLC program for testing. PLCs are connected to the network at this time. 
The CEET is similar to the PAL, except now signals are tested through the PLC program, the network, and all 
the way to the operator’s SCADA graphic screens. Shall be performed by the Contractor and Programmer 
working together, with assistance from the OWNER or the inspection staff, as needed. The test shall  verify 
input signals and create output signals from, the SCADA HMI Station. 

MST: Test mechanical equipment and instruments with equipment operating under Local (Manual) control. 
These tests are performed without reliance on PLC program logic, unless the PLC logic is provided with 
packaged systems. Contractor shall also perform startup and commissioning tests of all mechanical 
equipment.

SFT: Performed by the Programmer and Contractor. Some OWNER assistance is generally required. 
Construction inspection staff witness the tests. The purpose is to verify the proper operation of all PLC 
control logic and its interaction with field equipment and devices. Feedback control loops are also tuned at 
this time.

O&M Manuals: Consisting of final Loop Descriptions and complete, annotated program listings for all 
control system programming and configuration. 

Operator Training: Training by the Programmer on the operation of the system and the use of the operator 
displays  for each of the software package developed by  the Programmer, utilizing the equipment and 
software applications that are to be supplied for the project.

Maintenance Training: Training by the Programmer on new and modified PLC and SCADA software 
programs and configurations. 

Record Documentation: Record documentation for programming work including PLC program listings, 
SCADA Software Configuration, Design drawings.

Follow-Up Services: Provide follow-up system support after the control system has been placed in 
operation. 

Corrective Services: For a period of one year after the start of beneficial use Programmer shall correct any 
errors or omissions in programming and other Programmer services, and repair or replace equipment 
provided that fails or is found to be defective during this period.

Maintenance Services: Provide maintenance services or modifications on hardware and software as 
directed by the Owner under a separate maintenance contract.

csu1210w1.ai

549



Carollo Contract Summary
City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Contract Purpose Authorized by
Approval 

Date

 Facilities Plan 
Authorized 

Amount

 Preliminary 
Design 

Authorized 
Amount

 Final Design 
Authorized 

Amount
SCADA 

Services

Authorized 
Management 

Reserve

Available 
Management 

Reserve

Base + 
Management 

Reserve
Original Contract Facilities Plan City Council 8/4/10 1,039,561$     50,000$           50,000$           1,089,561$     
Amendment 1 Increase No. of Alternatives Staff 7/6/11 14,683$           35,317$           
Amendment 2 Additional Field Investigation Staff 5/8/12 3,404$             31,913$           
Amendment 3 Added Charrette Process Staff 8/1/12 18,084$           13,829$           
Amendment 4 Complete Eel Grass Survey Staff 10/9/12 9,896$             3,933$             
Amendment 5 Geotech, Survey, Freund City Council 10/16/12 121,021$        28,679$           32,612$           149,700$        
Email Geotech Staff 3/13/13 28,679$           3,933$             
Amendment 6 Preliminary Design, Outfall City Council 3/19/13 1,982,065$     99,103$           103,036$        2,081,168$     
Amendment 7 ESA to Complete SEPA Staff 5/29/13 9,327$             93,709$           
Amendment 8 GC/CM Assist, Pump Test, Camera Staff 3/17/14 22,260$           47,107$           24,342$           
Amendment 9 Facilities Re-Design, GC/CM Coord. Staff 9/23/14 20,804$           3,538$             
Amendment 10 Final Design City Council 12/2/14 4,368,533$     218,427$        221,965$        4,586,960$     
Amendment 11 Outfall Engineering Services City Council 5/5/15 201,876$        221,965$        201,876$        

Amendment 12

Deep Excavation Eng. Services
Concept B & Parking Design
Park Planning and Outreach City Council 10/20/15 1,496,877$     221,965$        1,496,877$     

Amendment 13 SCADA Services City Council pending 1,828,155$     221,965$        1,828,155$     
Total 1,266,915$     2,049,976$     6,067,286$     1,828,155$     396,208$        11,434,296$   

February 2, 2016

550



551



552



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 2 

Carollo will serve as the Prime Consultant for the Project and will be responsible for 
coordinating ESDC. In completing the work defined by this Scope of Services, Carollo will use 
the following Subconsultants: 
 

Subconsultant Role 
MWA Architects (MWA) Architectural Field and Office ESDC Services 
GeoEngineers (Geo) Geotechnical Field and Office ESDC Services 
Cosmopolitan Marine Engineering (CME) Marine Engineering Outfall Startup Services 
Enviroissues (EI) Public Process Support 
Webster Environmental (WE) Odor Control Office ESDC and Startup Services 

 

The level of construction assistance required by the Consultant is highly dependent upon the 
GC/CM Contractor's (Hoffman Construction of Washington) performance and the level of 
assistance provided by the City. The City and the Consultant will review job progress on a 
monthly basis in accordance with the construction schedule, to verify the effort to complete 
Project tasks as defined by the Scope of Services. With written authorization from the City, 
adjustments to the Scope of Services and Consultant's level of effort will be made as deemed 
appropriate by the Consultant and the City Project Manager. The estimated level of effort and 
associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is presented in D-3.2. Task 900 of this 
Scope of Services includes a budget allowance that may be used to cover additional services, 
as authorized by the City. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 
Task 200 - Public Process Support for Construction 
Task 300 - Public Process Support 
Task 810 - Project Management 
Task 820 - Project Meetings 
Task 830 - Field Services During Construction 
Task 840 - Office Services During Construction 
Task 900 - Management Reserve 

SCHEDULE 

This Scope of Services is based on a duration of 32 months covering construction of the 
Secondary Building Foundation and Wall Package and construction of CWF, as currently 
estimated by the GC/CM Contractor's February 4, 2016 schedule. 
 

Milestone Schedule Estimate 
Deep Foundation Award April 2016 
Process Facility Award August 2016 
Commence Plant Startup and Commissioning June 2018 
Final Completion of CWF October 2018 

 

553



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 3 

TASK 200 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

Subtask 230 - Web Development Supporting Construction  

Continue maintaining website for construction and project activities. Update website on a weekly 
basis during facility construction, and overall monthly for ease of navigation for ongoing final 
design/project activities. 

Subtask 240 - Ongoing Planning and Materials/Product Development Supporting 
Construction  

Provide additional public process support, materials development, and outreach. Consultant will:  

 Continue to assist City in implementing construction communications as defined in a 
previously-finalized Construction Communications Plan/Good Neighbor Plan adopted by 
City Council in 2015. 

 Support ongoing public information availability during construction. This will include in-
person meetings in Oak Harbor every other month (total eleven), participation in a weekly 
project team call (up to 92), participation in a weekly construction update call in order to 
compile weekly project email updates (up to 92), development of weekly project email 
updates (up to 92). 

 Support briefing coordination to update community groups about project, including 
coordination of standard presentation slide deck with three major updates. 

 Lead logistics to implement a Ribbon Cutting event for facility, including event invitation, 
planning, day-of logistics, and keepsake. 

 In consultation with City staff, draft content and develop up to four (4) one-page double-
sided project update fliers and up to four (4) full-size (11x17 double-sided) project 
newsletters/mailers.   

Task 200 Assumptions 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff/consultants.  

2. Updates to web do not require in-person meetings/coordination and can be completed 
via email correspondence/teleconference.  

3. In-person meetings shall include up to two SUBCONSULTANT staff.  

4. Construction duration assumed to be 92 weeks for weekly activities.  

5. Construction duration assumed to be 22 weeks for monthly activities.  

6. Content for weekly construction updates is assumed to be generated, compiled, and 
edited by SUBCONSULTANT for public consumption. 

7. SUBCONSULTANT shall maintain an ongoing list of project fence graphics/banners and 
coordinate with contractor for location. If necessary, SUBCONSULTANT will work with 
City staff to make minor updates to the project fence graphic map or construction impact 
text.  

8. Direct costs associated with day-of logistics, notification/postcard and keepsake for 
Ribbon Cutting shall be invoiced directly to City staff.  

554



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 4 

9. SUBCONSULTANT shall provide limited media strategy/coordination associated with 
this task.  

10. SUBCONSULTANT shall not attend briefings.  

11. The City will be responsible for distributing materials to the public, including paying for 
printing, advertisements, and postage. 

Task 200 Deliverables 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date

Weekly web updates 230 Weekly per schedule 

Weekly construction updates 240 Weekly per schedule 

One (1) stakeholder briefing presentation and three 
(3) updates  

240 Per schedule 

Ribbon notifications and associated materials 240 Per schedule 

Up to four (4) project information fliers and four (4) 
project newsletters  

240 Per schedule 

TASK 300 - PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT 

Subtask 340 - Public Meetings/City Council Workshops 

Provide additional materials to support public process associated with design and permitting 
activities. SUBCONSULTANT services will include:  

Assist in planning for and delivering joint Public Meetings/City Council Workshops or another 
type of outreach event with similar level of effort, defined below.  

For each meeting coordinate with City staff to:  

 Participate in up to two (2) planning sessions via phone;  

 assist City to arrange for suitable meeting location; prepare meeting plan;  

 produce up to six (6) display boards;  

 assist with development of PowerPoint presentation;  

 develop sign-in sheet and public comment form;  

 develop draft and final agenda;  

 develop draft and final meeting announcement postcard and display ad notification;  

 provide day-staffing, including one (1) facilitator and one (1) support staff; and  

 produce one (1) draft and one (1) final meeting summary (minutes). 

555



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 5 

Public Meeting/Council Workshop Objectives 
P1 – Public Meeting No. 1, Q4 2016 Provide project update 

P2 – Public Meeting No. 2, Q2 2017 Provide project update 

P3 – Public Meeting No. 3, Q4 2017 Provide project update 

P4 – Public Meeting No. 4, Q2 2018 Provide project update 

Subtask 360 - Council Meeting/Workshop Participation 

SUBCONSULTANT will support monthly presentation development for Council meetings, and 
attend up to six Council meetings or workshops in a speaking capacity. 

Task 300 Assumptions 

1. Any other planning or Council meeting attendance shall be captured in Subtask 240. 

2. Public Meetings may be held in conjunction with City Council Workshops to enhance 
efficiency for sharing information. 

3. The City will pay for meeting locations and facilities. 

4. The City will coordinate with local paper to publish announcements and include notices 
of meetings on their website. 

5. The City will coordinate posting and distribution of meeting announcements.  

6. The City will pay for all costs related to meeting notifications, including printing and 
postage.  

7. The City will pay for all costs related to printing meeting boards.  

8. SUBCONSULTANT will participate in planning meetings via phone, unless coordinated 
with meetings identified in Subtask 240. 

9. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff/consultants.  

10. The City will be responsible for distributing materials to the public, including paying for 
printing, advertisements, and postage.   

11. Any other planning or Council meeting attendance shall be captured in Subtask 240. 

Task 300 Deliverables 
 

Deliverable Subtask Anticipated Delivery Date
Up to four (4) Public Meeting/Council Workshop 
Materials 

340 Per Schedule 

TASK 810 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

Provide project management services throughout the duration of the contract, including the 
following activities: 

1. Provide management of Consultant's project team to track schedule and budget, work 
elements accomplished, work items planned, labor, scope changes, and time and 
budget needed to complete this Scope of Services.  

556



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 6 

2. Prepare monthly Project progress reports with each monthly invoice that identify the 
month's accomplishments, anticipated tasks for the next month, and current or potential 
issues or changes. 

3. Manage, coordinate, and monitor the efforts of all subconsultants. 

4. Conduct meetings on a monthly basis through the Project completion with the City 
Project Manager and other City staff to discuss Project status, action items, and potential 
areas of concern. Publish meeting minutes with action items that require a response by 
team members, City staff, or other parties identified at the meeting. Develop and 
maintain a rolling Action Item list updated at least monthly and as needed. Develop and 
maintain a rolling Decision List updated at least monthly and as needed. 

5. Issue a Declaration of Completion letter in accordance with Department of Ecology 
requirements, following Final Acceptance. 

Task 810 Assumptions 

1. The monthly progress report will contain a summary of cost to date and remaining 
budget for each major task. 

2. A schedule update will be included in the monthly progress report and will account for all 
activities and tasks defined in the Scope of Services. 

3. The Consultant DM will be on-site an average of once per month throughout the duration 
of Project to review Project status. 

4. The GC/CM Contractor has elected to use Prolog as the Document Management 
System software for the Project. Consultant will use the software to manage 
construction-related documents in accordance with the City's objectives for the Project. 

Task 810 Deliverables 

1. Monthly progress reports (32). 

2. Declaration of Completion Letter by the Engineer of Record. 

3. Project Management meeting minutes and Action Items. 

TASK 820 - PROJECT MEETINGS 

Provide design team support at construction meetings as required throughout the Project.  

Subtask 821 - Construction Kick-Off Meeting 

Participate in a Construction Kick-off Meeting attended by the City, Consultant, GC/CM 
Contractor, Construction Manager (KBA), subcontractors, and other interested parties to confirm 
roles, responsibilities, and other pertinent items related to construction of the Project. 

Subtask 821 Assumptions 

1. City and GC/CM Contractor will schedule and conduct the Construction Kick-off Meeting. 

2. Four (4) members of the Consultant staff will attend, including the PM, DM, RE, and 
Architect. 

557



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 7 

3. GC/CM Contractor will preside and produce the agenda and meeting minutes. 

Subtask 821 Deliverables 

1. Supplemental meeting materials, as required by the City to assist the GC/CM 
Contractor. 

2. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM Contractor. 

Subtask 822 - Progress Meetings 

Attend weekly progress meetings that focus on the status of submittal reviews, requests for 
information (RFIs), change order requests, design clarifications, schedule issues, construction 
quality, and other issues relevant to the Project. The Consultant's RE will regularly attend 
meetings, and manage attendance of the design team and subconsultants as needed. 

Subtask 822 Assumptions 

1. GC/CM Contractor will schedule, coordinate, and conduct Weekly Progress Meetings 
and prepare necessary materials and minutes. 

2. DM will attend 32 meetings, and RE will attend up to 140 weekly progress meetings over 
the duration of the project. 

Subtask 822 Deliverables 

1. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM Contractor. 

2. Written recommendations in response to GC/CM Contractor action items, as required. 

TASK 830 - FIELD SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Provide on-site design coordination, general conformance review, and field administration 
services as defined by the following subtasks. 

Subtask 831 - Field Technical/General Coordination 

Provide a RE to serve as the first point of contact in the field for the City and the GC/CM 
Contractor. The RE will be responsible for the following tasks: 

1. Monitor Construction for General Compliance with Contract Documents: Review and 
monitor construction work for general compliance with the contract documents. 
Document and report any observed non-conformances and deficiencies to the City, and 
monitor the correction of these deficiencies. 

2. Provide and Manage Subconsultant Personnel: Coordinate and manage work of 
subconsultants and serve as the liaison between the subconsultants and the City and 
GC/CM Contractor. 

3. Track RFI: Coordinate and manage the RFI process according to the contract 
documents. Screen all RFIs and determine their validity before responding or distributing 
to the design team or subconsultant.  

558



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 8 

4. Track Shop Drawing Submittals: Coordinate and manage the shop drawing and 
submittal review process. Screen the submittals and determine their completeness 
before distributing for review. 

5. Prepare Field Memos and Clarifications: Manage, coordinate, and/or prepare field 
memos and issue clarifications of drawings and specifications to the GC/CM Contractor. 

6. Review Change Order Requests: Assist the City’s Project Manager in developing 
change order value on more complex Change Orders/Claims, at the request of the City. 

7. Documentation of Construction: Oversee inspection reports and photographs for visits 
by the Consultant's discipline engineers and/or subconsultants. 

8. Provide periodic site visits by the following disciplines to review progress and identify 
potential deficiencies in the work. 

Subtask 831 Assumptions 

1. RE will be on-site throughout the duration of the Project. Budget is based on RE 
providing an average of 40 hours per week (100% commitment) over the 32-month 
Project duration. This time is allocated to resolving technical issues as they arise, 
general review of on-going work, as a liaison to the design team under this task, and 
attendance at weekly progress meetings. 

2. The City's Construction Manager (CM) will review the Construction Schedule, progress 
payments, and handle normal change orders and/or simple claims. 

3. CM will monitor Force Account work. 

4. CM and GC/CM Contractor will prepare daily inspection documentation and 
photographs, which the Consultant's RE will be allowed to review. 

5. The Consultant will provide the following discipline and specialty staff to review work in 
progress:   

 
Discipline Site Visits 

Structural 20 
Electrical 10 
HVAC 2 
Odor 2 
Architect 20 

Observations by the Structural Engineer will be incorporated into a signed and sealed 
Structural Observation Report (SOR) to be filed with the building official. This document 
will be required for issuance of a CO. 

6. CM will provide qualified inspection staff to perform testing, special, and continuous 
inspection of work. CM will verify that deficiencies identified during Consultant's 
structural engineer visits have been properly addressed with reports that will supplement 
Consultant's SOR to the building official. 

Subtask 831 Deliverables 

1. Review comments on Monthly Construction Progress Reports. 

559



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 9 

2. Tracking logs for RFIs, submittals, field memos, design clarifications, change order 
requests, etc. 

Subtask 832 - Startup and Commissioning Services 

Assist the City and GC/CM Contractor during startup and testing activities. Witness startup and 
testing for compliance with the Contract Documents. Attend and participate in workshops and 
meetings associated with commissioning and startup planning and implementation. Assist in 
establishing appropriate process settings for operation of facility. 

Subtask 832 Assumptions 

1. SL will review and document commissioning/startup activities according to the Contract 
Documents. 

2. Consultant will provide additional engineering assistance from the design team as 
needed during commissioning and startup activities. A staff engineer familiar with the 
process will be present assisting the Consultant's SL during plant start-up. 

Subtask 832 Deliverables 

1. Written documentation of startup testing results, with process and operational 
recommendations as appropriate. 

Subtask 833 - Factory Acceptance Testing 

Provide a discipline engineer to attend and review the factory acceptance tests for the Vendor 
provided control systems to confirm electrical and instrumentation interfaces and coordinate 
with overall electrical, instrumentation, and control architecture.  

Subtask 833 Assumptions 

1. Conduct a total of three (3) separate vendor factory acceptance tests, one (1) each for 
the biosolids dryer, membrane bioreactor system, and ultraviolet disinfection system. It is 
assumed that each test will last three (3) days. 

2. Factory acceptance testing will be performed during a single site visit at facilities located 
in the United States with the exception of the biosolids dryer. It is assumed that the dryer 
FAT will occur in Germany. 

Subtask 833 Deliverables 

1. Brief summary of the results of the factory acceptance testing. 

Subtask 834 - Witness Testing 

Provide a staff engineer for witnessed factory testing of equipment as specified in the Contract 
Documents to confirm that testing is performed in accordance with the design intent. Prepare a 
brief summary report with recommendations documenting the results of the factory witness 
testing. 

560



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 10 

Subtask 834 Assumptions 

1. Witness testing is currently specified for the following equipment: 

a. Headworks Influent Pumps 

b. WAS Pumps 

c. WAS Transfer Pumps 

d. Centrifuges 

2. Factory witness testing for all equipment will be performed during a single visit to 
factories located in the United States. 

Subtask 834 Deliverables 

1. Brief summary documenting the results of the factory witness testing. 

Subtask 835 - Process Training of O&M Staff 

Direct and document activities associated with staff training for systems and facilities associated 
with the Project. Proactively schedule staff training to integrate with overall commissioning 
effort. Coordinate with City staff to confirm format and content for four (4) discrete training 
modules. Develop and digitally record staff training modules and deliver to City for use. Provide 
representatives from the design team to participate in field training and walkthrough tours of key 
systems and facilities, as requested by City. 

Subtask 835 Assumptions 

1. Four (4) training modules will cover Headworks, Aeration Basins and RAS/WAS, 
Membrane Bioreactors and UV disinfection, and Solids Handling. 

Subtask 835 Deliverables 

1. Meeting minutes, as required. 

2. Four (4) training modules (electronic format) on DVD (2 copies each). 

Subtask 836 - Punch List 

Conduct a final inspection of the completed facilities and identify uncompleted items to add to 
the punch list prepared by the GC/CM Contractor. If requested, assist the City in negotiations of 
unsettled changes or disputes associated with these inspections.  

Subtask 836 Assumptions 

1. GC/CM Contractor and CM will proactively perform their own punch list walks, and not 
rely solely on the Consultant's efforts. GC/CM Contractor will incorporate the 
Consultant's list into their master conformed punch list, and advise City and Consultant 
when items are resolved and ready for re-inspection. 

Subtask 836 Deliverables 

1. List of supplemental items to be included on the GC/CM Contractor punch list. 

561



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 11 

Subtask 837 - Warranty Services 

Visit the Project site near the end of the warranty period to review structures, equipment, and 
systems. Identify items that are not functioning in accordance with the design. Develop a list of 
items requiring corrective actions and issue to the City and GC/CM Contractor. 

Subtask 837 Assumptions 

1. City will notify GC/CM Contractor of any warranty issues that occur within the warranty 
period during the normal course of operation. Consultant will be notified if the identified 
issue is claimed to be a result of design deficiency. Consultant will review and provide 
input to facilitate resolution of warranty item. 

2. GC/CM Contractor will be responsible for coordinating with vendors and subcontractors 
to facilitate corrective actions. 

Subtask 837 Deliverables 

1. List of items requiring corrective action to be provided to the GC/CM Contractor. 

2. Correspondence to the City that addresses any claims of design deficiencies. 

TASK 840 - OFFICE SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

Provide office engineering services as defined by the following tasks. 

Subtask 841 - Request for Information 

Provide interpretation, review, and responses to RFIs and incorporate decisions made during 
design into RFI responses. 

Subtask 841 Assumptions 

1. Effort includes services to research, respond, and document each RFI in accordance 
with the Contract Documents. 

2. Budget is based on 850 RFIs. Review of RFIs directly related to Consultant's design is 
3.5 hours per RFI inclusive of time for processing through the GC/CM Contractor's 
Prolog Document Management System (DMS). Review of RFI's directly related to 
subconsultant design is 1.25 hours for coordination and includes DMS processing time. 

Subtask 841 Deliverables 

1. Up to 850 RFI responses in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 

Review shop drawings and submittals (test certifications and other specified reports) and 
provide written responses, as described below. 

Subtask 842 Assumptions 

1. GC/CM Contractor will implement quality control measures to screen each submittal 
prior to forwarding to the Consultant for review. 

562



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 12 

2. Effort includes services to review and respond to each shop drawing, and to document 
responses in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

3. Budget is based on a total of 800 submittals and 200 resubmittals. Review of submittals 
directly related to Consultant's design is 6 hours per submitted inclusive of time for 
processing through the GC/CM Contractor's DMS. Review of submittals directly related 
to subconsultant's design is 2.5 hours per submittal for coordination and includes DMS 
processing. 

4. GC/CM Contractor will review all site safety and "Buy America" related submittals. 

5. Total number of submittals and resubmittals is directly related to GC/CM Contractor's 
management of its subcontractors. It is assumed that GC/CM Contractor will proactively 
manage subcontractors to minimize the number of submittals required. 

6. City's CM will review schedule of values, progress payments, and construction schedule 
submittals. 

Subtask 842 Deliverables 

1. Up to 800 submittal responses and 200 resubmittal responses in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

Subtask 843 - Review of Start-up and Training Plans 

Review GC/CM Contractor and subsystem facility startup and commissioning test plans and 
schedules. 

Subtask 843 Assumptions 

1. SL will be responsible for reviewing the startup and training plans and schedules. 

Subtask 843 Deliverables 

1. Startup and training plan comments in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

Subtask 844 - Review of O&Ms 

Review manufacturers' O&M manuals with written responses. 

Subtask 844 Assumptions 

1. GC/CM Contractor will implement quality control measures to screen each O&M manual 
prior to forwarding to the Consultant for review. 

Subtask 844 Deliverables 

1. O&M manual responses in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

Subtask 845 - Design Clarifications 

Prepare design clarifications as needed to address questions regarding the existing design 
developed by the GC/CM Contractor. 

563



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 13 

Subtask 845 Assumptions 

1. Effort includes services to research, develop, and prepare each design clarification to 
allow the GC/CM Contractor to construct the facility. 

2. Budget is based on a total of 100 design clarifications. Consultant estimates 20 hours 
per Design Clarification. 

3. Effort excludes any City or GC/CM Contractor -requested redesign of the facility to alter 
its construction for purposes other than clarification of the original design, including any 
future value engineering suggested by the GC/CM Contractor. 

Subtask 845 Deliverables 

1. Up to 100 design clarification packages. 

Subtask 846 - Electronic O&M 

Prepare an Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manual for the Project as required by the 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 178-240-080, in an Electronic Operation 
Manual (EOM) in a SharePoint® Web site format including the following elements: 

1. The assignment of managerial and operational responsibilities, including plant 
classification and classification of required operators. 

2. A description of plant type, flow pattern, operation, and efficiency expected. 

3. The principal design criteria. 

4. A process description of each plant unit, including function, relationship to other plant 
units, and schematic diagrams. 

5. A listing of process controls that include descriptions, recommended design settings and 
alarm parameters. 

6. A discussion of how the treatment facilities are to be operated during anticipated 
maintenance procedures, and under less than design loading conditions, if applicable, 
such as initial loading on a system designed for substantial growth. 

7. A section on laboratory procedures, including sampling techniques, monitoring 
requirements, and sample analysis. 

8. Recordkeeping procedures and sample forms to be used. 

9. A maintenance schedule that incorporates manufacturer's recommendations, 
preventative maintenance, and housekeeping schedules, and special tools and 
equipment usage. 

10. A section on safety. 

11. A section that lists equipment attributes including spare parts inventory, address of local 
suppliers, equipment warranties, and related equipment O&M manuals. 

12. A listing of final as-built record drawings. 

13. Emergency plans and procedures. 

564



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 14 

Subtask 846 Assumptions 

1. Budget for this task includes a Project Initiation Meeting with City Staff to discuss a draft 
EOM project plan detailing tasks, schedule, budget, team contact and coordination plan 
for EOM development. 

2. Conduct an Organization and Structure Design Workshop to finalize the EOM project 
plan. The workshop will facilitate feedback on Web site structure and content 
organization via pre-defined templates. The draft site structure will be the initial basis of 
design (See Table of Contents). 

3. The Consultant's EOM Lead will attend up to three (3) coordination / review meetings 
either via conference call or on-site meetings. 

4. The Consultant will produce a prototype EOM chapter on an externally hosted website 
utilizing the finalized EOM project plan produced with City's input for guidance. The 
prototype chapter will be shared with Consultant guiding the effort to solicit City Staff 
comments for incorporation at a review workshop. The workshop will include a 
discussion of screen layouts, file formats, administration and integration needs. 

5. After City acceptance of the prototype chapter, Consultant will populate the remaining 
EOM chapters, with the following chapters as the initial basis: 

a. Facility Overview 

b. Preliminary Screening 

c. Influent Pumping 

d. Grit Removal 

e. Fine Screening 

f. Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) 

1) Aeration System 

g. RAS/WAS 

 1) WAS Storage and Pumping 

 2) WAS Storage Aeration 

f. Membrane Filtration 

 1) Aeration System 

 2) Clean-in Place System 

h. UV Disinfection 

i. Effluent Pumping 

j. Sludge Dewatering - Centrifuge 

k. Sludge Drying 

l. Solids Handling 

m. Support Systems 

565



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 15 

 1) Chemical Systems 

 2) Odor Control System 

 3) Stormwater and Drainage 

 4) Plant Air Systems 

 5) Electrical Systems 

 6) Back-up and Stand-by Power Systems 

 7) Plant Water Systems 

 8) HVAC Systems 

 9) Site Security and Fire Protection 

 10) Grounds 

 11) Laboratory 

6. Consultant will review all EOM chapters for content completeness, accuracy, and 
sufficient detail with City staff. The review will confirm functionality and navigation with 
incorporation of City review comments to improve functionality and usefulness. 

7. Consultant will provide system user training, content management training, and system 
administration training in two (2) workshops. 

8. Consultant will provide O&M documentation that, at a minimum, meets Ecology 
requirements. Additional level of effort to enhance O&M documentation based on City 
preferences may be authorized by the City under a separate amendment. 

Subtask 846 Deliverables 

1. O&M Manual meeting Ecology requirements in electronic format. 

2. Draft and final EOM Project Plans. 

3. Decision log from workshop sessions. 

4. EOM Prototype Chapter. 

Subtask 847 - Record Drawings 

Review the GC/CM Contractor's as-built drawings, produce record drawings in AutoCAD format 
from the information provided, and will inform Owner of any known inaccuracies and/or 
omissions on the GC/CM Contractor's drawings. Consultant is not responsible for incorrect 
information that has been provided by others, or omitted information that should have been 
provided by others that was previously unknown to the Consultant. 

Subtask 847 Assumptions 

1. GC/CM Contractor will be responsible for maintaining accurate as-built information 
throughout construction, and will provide information to the City and Consultant in a 
timely manner in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

566



EXHIBIT B.2 

pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Amendment 14 ESDC Scope of Services_160422.docx 16 

2. Consultant will submit Record Drawings to the City within 60 calendar days following 
receipt of the GC/CM Contractor's as-built markups. Consultant assumes that GC/CM 
Contractor will provide up-to-date accurate as-builts, and will return as-builts to GC/CM 
Contractor if found to be deficient. 

3. Budget is based on a total of 600 drawings. 

Subtask 847 Deliverables 

1. Three (3) half-sized final sets of record drawings. 

2. Two (2) CDs of electronic drawings in ".dwg" format and in Adobe PDF format. 

Subtask 848 - Dispute Resolution 

Evaluate claims due to changed conditions, project delays, or design errors/omissions, as 
directed by the City. Assist in evaluating the claimed impact by the Contractor. Prepare written 
responses to the claim's merit, and submit written documentation to the City for action. 

Subtask 848 Assumptions 

1. CM will review and provide comments on straightforward Change Order requests and/or 
claims based on changes in scope and conditions. Consultant will assist on a case by 
case basis on up to 60 Change Orders at the City's request. 

Subtask 848 Deliverables 

1. Written responses discussing the merit of claims, as requested by the City. 

2. Up to 60 Change Order responses, as requested by the City. 

TASK 900 - MANAGEMENT RESERVE 

Provide unplanned engineering services throughout delivery of the Project (e.g. additional 
workshops, meetings, evaluations, and field work). Any work performed under this task will 
require prior written authorization from the City's Project Manager. Authorization will specify the 
requested scope of services and cost for the work, which will be reviewed, negotiated, and 
agreed upon by the City's Project Manager and the Consultant prior to performing the work. 

567



Consultant Agreement Amendment Organization and Address 
Number 15 

City of Oak Harbor 
Original Agreement Title: Engineering 865 SE Barrington Drive 
Services for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and 
Facilities Plan Phone:360-279-4500 
Project Number: 8549A.OO (Amendments 1-5) Execution Date Completion Date (Prior) 
8549A.10 (Amendment 6 - 12, 15) 09116110 December 201 8 
8549A.22 (Amendment 13) 
8549A.21 (Amendment 14) 
Project Title: Engineering, Facilities Plan and New Maximum Amount Payable 
Preliminary Design $16,813,142 
Description of Work: This Amendment authorizes services to complete planning services for 
Clean Water Facilitv Exhibit Designs. 

The City of Oak Harbor 
desires to supplement the agreement entered into with Carollo Engineers. Inc. 
and executed on 09/16/10 and identified as Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan. 

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement. 

The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 

AGREEMENT is hereby amended to add the following: 
Please see the attached Engineering Services Insert <Exhibit A). The requirements in this insert 
are hereby incorporated into the original agreement. 

SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget. Please see the attached Scopes of Services (Exhibit B.1) for additional phases of work. 

PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO: No Change 

PAYMENT shall be amended as follows: 
The maximum total contract value is increased from $16.772.927 to $16.813.142. This 
maximum upper limit includes a Management Reserve as indicated in prior amendments. Exhibit 
D-3 summarize the level of effort associated with Amendment 15 services. 

Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract. 

Amendment No. 14 8116/2016 Page I of2 

pw:l\CmillolDocumentslCllllllJWAI01k H1rtiorl85&9A10IProjtct llar1'gt111ent/Contn11:t1101k H1rtior Amendment 15 Fonn.docx 
W/l/TP - Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers Amendment No. 15 - Attachment A 

568



If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 

By: Brian R. Matson. Senior Vice President 

~ tit 
CJ-7-Ji, 

Date 

Amendment No. 14 8/16/2016 Page 2 of2 

pw:\\CarollQj[)(lcumentalCll11111WA/01k H1rtiod8549A1DIPraject lhn1gt111111t/Conlncts\Olk Hartior Am111dm111t 15 Fonn.dOCll 
VVWTP - Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers Amendment No. 15 - Attachment A 

569



EXHIBIT B.1 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

EXHIBIT PLANNING FOR THE CLEAN WATER FACILITY 

BACKGROUND 

Within the new Clean Water Facility (CWF), viewing windows will look into various process 
areas to provide transparency, and a learning opportunity for the public. Educational signage 
will be provided at these stations for passersby to observe and learn about the technology 
associated with their infrastructure. Additionally, the Administration Building will have a room on 
the ground floor containing interpretive exhibits describing the technology, and give visitors a 
virtual tour of the plant, illustrating the broader need for this infrastructure as it relates to the 
marine environment of Oak Harbor. 

Carollo Engineers (Consultant) will complete the following services to plan for CWF exhibits: 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

TASK 400 - CWF FINAL DESIGN AND PERMITTING 

Subtask 490 - CWF Exhibit Planning 

• Review existing reports that document the wastewater treatment plant design and 
development. Review existing school district demographics, curriculum and interest in using 
the site. Inventory existing interpretation on Whidbey Island (i.e. market research to 
determine existing stories and exhibits in the area to avoid duplication and uncover potential 
collaborations). 

• Develop goals and objectives (e.g. what do we want visitors to know, feel and do onsite and 
following the visit) based on the Visitor Profile. Develop themes and the storyline for the site. 

• Develop recommendations for interpretive media (signage, exhibits, technology, curriculum, 
etc.) and programming based on visitor profiles that would be most appropriate for the 
anticipated visitor, themes and site. 

• Develop Draft Exhibit Plan (approximately 50 pages in length with rendered images) and 
submit to client for review. Respond to client review comments, revise, and submit Final 
Exhibit Plan with layout and design recommendations 

Task 400 Assumptions: 

None 

Task 400 Deliverables: 

1. Meeting preparation, materials, and presentations for three (3) meetings. 

2. Draft and Final Exhibit Plan. 

pw:llCuollolDocumentslCllentM'AI01k Harbllllll!W9A1WPtoject Management/Conlrlcts\Amendment 15 Scope_160815.dac:x 
WNTP - Consultant Agreement with Carollo Engineers Amendment No. 15 - Attachment A 

570



EXHIBITB.1 

LEVEL OF EFFORT 

The estimated level of effort and associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is 
presented in Exhibit 0-3. 

SCHEDULE 

This Scope of Services is will be completed on or before October 2016. 

pw:\\CllllllolDocullllflll\CHenbWAIOak lt•rborl85ot9A1Wl'roject Ma111gemen11Contr1cts1Amtndmenl 15 Scopt. 160815.docx 
1/1/WTP • Consullanl Agreement wilh Carollo Engineers Amendment No. 15. Attachmenl A 

571



EXHIBITD-3 

City of O.k Harbor 
Wa1tewlter Tntalment Plant Final Dnlgn & Pennlttlng 
Leval of Effort bUmate 
Auauat 15 2018 

Projod QAIQC Dnlgn .,..... - CAD/ WPI - ---TASKS Or .... - - -DL ~ ...._ T- ...._ I.Nd ~ TKh. ._ - Coot -- Ell-
~ 

ESA El 
MWA• 

Goo - WE 
AlrQu""1 

HAI 
laWC..t 

Coot Coot SMl!P ·-DtNCI ....... Ol A-. SU 57• 182 SU 527 127 

--- --------------- --- --- --- ------------ --- --- ------ --- --- ---
TASll «JO· wwrP FINAL DO-& l'ERMITTWO 

--.CWF~~ --- ------ DI.JOO -D D 0 0 0 0 0 0 .. .. IC .. .. . Ill .. • ., • .. ~ 

SUBTOTAi. ALITHOAIUll llUOOEl a a a a a • • • • • • • so so UI- so so so so so UI---- ------
SUBCOHSULTANT loWlllUI Ill ---iii - ,1 ,110 Ill Ill ID ID le 1u1i 
TMM.--~ L ~ -~s 

.._1 
VWiTP • Consulllnl Aqrffmlnl will c.,_ Engineefs- No. 15 • Alladunof'll A 

572



Carollo Contract Summary
City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Contract Purpose Authorized by
Approval 

Date

 Facilities Plan 
Authorized 

Amount

 Preliminary 
Design 

Authorized 
Amount

 Final Design 
Authorized 

Amount
Windjammer 
Park Phase 1

SCADA 
Services

Engineering 
Services 
During 

Construction

Authorized 
Management 

Reserve

Available 
Management 

Reserve

Base + 
Management 

Reserve
Original Contract Facilities Plan City Council 8/4/10 1,039,561$     50,000$           50,000$           1,089,561$           
Amendment 1 Increase No. of Alternatives Staff 7/6/11 14,683$           35,317$           
Amendment 2 Additional Field Investigation Staff 5/8/12 3,404$             31,913$           
Amendment 3 Added Charrette Process Staff 8/1/12 18,084$           13,829$           
Amendment 4 Complete Eel Grass Survey Staff 10/9/12 9,896$             3,933$             
Amendment 5 Geotech, Survey, Freund City Council 10/16/12 121,021$        28,679$           32,612$           149,700$              
Email Geotech Staff 3/13/13 28,679$           3,933$             
Amendment 6 Preliminary Design, Outfall City Council 3/19/13 1,982,065$     99,103$           103,036$        2,081,168$           
Amendment 7 ESA to Complete SEPA Staff 5/29/13 9,327$             93,709$           
Amendment 8 GC/CM Assist, Pump Test, Camera Staff 3/17/14 22,260$           47,107$           24,342$           
Amendment 9 Facilities Re-Design, GC/CM Coord. Staff 9/23/14 20,804$           3,538$             
Amendment 10 Final Design City Council 12/2/14 4,368,533$     218,427$        221,965$        4,586,960$           
Amendment 11 Outfall Engineering Services City Council 5/5/15 201,876$        221,965$        201,876$              

Amendment 12

Deep Excavation Eng. Services
Concept B & Parking Design
Park Planning and Outreach City Council 10/20/15 782,703$        713,374$        221,965$        1,496,077$           

Amendment 13 SCADA Services City Council 2/2/16 1,828,155$     221,965$        1,828,155$           
Amendment 14 Services during construction and City Council 5/3/16 218,427$        5,339,431$     3,538$             5,339,431$           
Amendment 15 Interpretative Center Design Services City Council 9/4/16 40,215$           3,538$             40,215$                
Amendment 16 Windjammer Park Design City Council pending 130,548$        969,726$        (130,548)$       3,538$             969,726$              

Total 1,266,915$     2,049,976$     5,540,426$     969,726$        1,828,155$     6,124,133$     396,208$        17,782,868$        

November 7, 2016

573



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP #10

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director & Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #10) in the amount of 
$5,373,040 + Sales Tax ($467,454) with Hoffman Construction for Phase 3 Self-Perform Concrete, 
RBC Plant Demo and Miscellaneous Earthwork.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8. b. 
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP #10

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director & Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #10) in the amount of 
$5,373,040 + Sales Tax ($467,454) with Hoffman Construction for Phase 3 Self-Perform Concrete, 
RBC Plant Demo and Miscellaneous Earthwork.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the 
General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) process.  The next phase of construction involves 
the concrete portions of the Electrical Building (Building 20), The Generator Building (area 32), the 
Biosolids Building (Area 50) and the Odor Control Structure (Area 60).  The work involves placing 
approximately 3800 yds. of concrete in 12 months.  This GMP essentially completes the concrete 
construction for the process areas, keeping the project on the critical path.  

In addition to the concrete structural work, GMP #10 includes the following changes or additions to the 
scope of work:

 Remobilization of the stone column contractor Malcolm Drilling to complete the site stabilization 
work.

 An allowance for backfilling and other earthwork activities associated with bringing the treatment
plant site to finish grade.

 Construction of a generator pad for the temporary relocation of the plant generator.
 An allowance for excavation and shoring of the odor control facility.

Hoffman is proposing to perform the concrete work on a Self-Perform Basis as allowed by RCW 
39.10.  This self-perform concrete work will be on a time and materials basis with a not to exceed 

The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the 
General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) process.  The next phase of construction involves 
the concrete portions of the Electrical Building (Building 20), The Generator Building (area 32), the 
Biosolids Building (Area 50) and the Odor Control Structure (Area 60).  The work involves placing 
approximately 3800 yds. of concrete in 12 months.  This GMP essentially completes the concrete 
construction for the process areas, keeping the project on the critical path.  

In addition to the concrete structural work, GMP #10 includes the following changes or additions to the 
scope of work:

 Remobilization of the stone column contractor Malcolm Drilling to complete the site stabilization
work.

 An allowance for backfilling and other earthwork activities associated with bringing the treatment
plant site to finish grade.

 Construction of a generator pad for the temporary relocation of the plant generator.
 An allowance for excavation and shoring of the odor control facility.

Hoffman is proposing to perform the concrete work on a Self-Perform Basis as allowed by RCW 
39.10.  This self-perform concrete work will be on a time and materials basis with a not to exceed 

574



amount of $3,296,445.  To ensure cost efficiency, performance measures have been incorporated into 
the contract document.  KBA and city staff will be monitoring the progress on a daily, weekly and 
monthly basis.  The City’s construction manager KBA has performed an independent cost evaluation as 
required by RCW 39.10350 (e) and found the project cost acceptable (Attachment C).  

 

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Amendment (GMP #10) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project 
(Attachment A).  This GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, 
contingencies, GC/CM fee, and Specified General Conditions.  The complete cost anticipated by this 
GMP #9 is $5,373,040 plus $467,454 in sales tax.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment B.  At 
the advice of Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but those 
amounts are included in the contract.

 

Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project GMP:

 Non-Process Building Construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, park improvements, etc.)

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT

amount of $3,296,445.  To ensure cost efficiency, performance measures have been incorporated into 
the contract document.  KBA and city staff will be monitoring the progress on a daily, weekly and 
monthly basis.  The City’s construction manager KBA has performed an independent cost evaluation as 
required by RCW 39.10350 (e) and found the project cost acceptable (Attachment C).  

 

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Amendment (GMP #10) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project 
(Attachment A).  This GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, 
contingencies, GC/CM fee, and Specified General Conditions.  The complete cost anticipated by this 
GMP #9 is $5,373,040 plus $467,454 in sales tax.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment B.  At 
the advice of Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but those 
amounts are included in the contract.

 

Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project GMP:

 Non-Process Building Construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, park improvements, etc.)

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $5,373,040 + Sales Tax ($467,454)    

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

December 3, 2013 –    City Council adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the 
delivery method for the new wastewater treatment plant.

 

December 17, 2013 - City Council adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to 
include a provision for alternative project delivery methods.

 

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $5,373,040 + Sales Tax ($467,454)    

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

December 3, 2013 –    City Council adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the 
delivery method for the new wastewater treatment plant.

 

December 17, 2013 - City Council adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to 
include a provision for alternative project delivery methods.

 

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to 

575



select a General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant 
project.

 

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project 
Approval – GC/CM Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to           the State 
of Washington Capital Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

 

July 1, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman                  
            Construction in connection with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

 

December 2, 2014 –    City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00.

 

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the 
amount of $2,337,687.

 

June 16, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount 
of $908,872.

select a General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant 
project.

 

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project 
Approval – GC/CM Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to           the State 
of Washington Capital Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

 

July 1, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman                  
            Construction in connection with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

 

December 2, 2014 –    City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00.

 

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the 
amount of $2,337,687.

 

June 16, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount 
of $908,872.of $908,872.

 

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #4 for construction of Site Preparation B in the 
amount of $5,109,549.

 

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #5 for procurement of the Solids Dryer in the amount 
of $2,028,222.

 

January 19, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #6 for procurement of the Site Preparation C in the 
amount of $3,966,503.

 

April 5, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #7 for procurement of the Deep Foundation Concrete in 
the amount of $9,355,968 + Sales Tax ($813,869).

of $908,872.

 

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #4 for construction of Site Preparation B in the 
amount of $5,109,549.

 

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #5 for procurement of the Solids Dryer in the amount 
of $2,028,222.

 

January 19, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #6 for procurement of the Site Preparation C in the 
amount of $3,966,503.

 

April 5, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #7 for procurement of the Deep Foundation Concrete in 
the amount of $9,355,968 + Sales Tax ($813,869).

576



September 6, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #8 in the amount of $10,824,756 + Sales Tax 
($941,754) with Hoffman Construction for Self-Perform Concrete Work for Buildings 20 and 30, and 
Miscellaneous Changes.

October 4, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #9 in the amount of $33,265,589 + Sales Tax 
($2,894,106) with Hoffman Construction for Self-Perform Concrete Work for Electrical, 
Instrumentation, and Controls, Process Mechanical, and Miscellaneous Changes.

 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 

November 13, 2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

 

November 19, 2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

 

February 26, 2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

 

June 25, 2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

 

September 6, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #8 in the amount of $10,824,756 + Sales Tax 
($941,754) with Hoffman Construction for Self-Perform Concrete Work for Buildings 20 and 30, and 
Miscellaneous Changes.

October 4, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #9 in the amount of $33,265,589 + Sales Tax 
($2,894,106) with Hoffman Construction for Self-Perform Concrete Work for Electrical, 
Instrumentation, and Controls, Process Mechanical, and Miscellaneous Changes.

 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 

November 13, 2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

 

November 19, 2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

 

February 26, 2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

 

June 25, 2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

  

November 19, 2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed.

 

April 7, 2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate.

 

May 17, 2015 – Council review of site selection process.

 

May 27, 2015 – Council review of GMP #3.

 

September 30, 2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options.

 

 

November 19, 2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed.

 

April 7, 2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate.

 

May 17, 2015 – Council review of site selection process.

 

May 27, 2015 – Council review of GMP #3.

 

September 30, 2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options.

 

577



March 23, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #7.

 

August 24, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #8.

September 27, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #9 and overall project status

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #10)
2. Attachment B - GMP #10 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - KBA Cost Validation Letter
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 GMP #1
6. Attachment F - A-133 GMP #2
7. Attachment G - A-133 GMP #3
8. Attachment H - A-133 GMP #4
9. Attachment I - A-133 GMP #5
10. Attachment J - A-133 GMP #6
11. Attachment K - A-133 GMP #7
12. Attachment L - A-133 GMP #8
13. Attachment M - A-133 GMP #9

March 23, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #7.

 

August 24, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #8.

September 27, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #9 and overall project status

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #10)
2. Attachment B - GMP #10 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - KBA Cost Validation Letter
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 GMP #1
6. Attachment F - A-133 GMP #2
7. Attachment G - A-133 GMP #3
8. Attachment H - A-133 GMP #4
9. Attachment I - A-133 GMP #5
10. Attachment J - A-133 GMP #6
11. Attachment K - A-133 GMP #7
12. Attachment L - A-133 GMP #8
13. Attachment M - A-133 GMP #9

578

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624529x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478805610x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624574x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624626x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624711x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624730x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624752x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624791x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624820x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624842x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624862x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624883x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478624905x_at.pdf


CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment A 579



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment A 580



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment A 581



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment A 582



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment B 583



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment B 584



 

Memorandum 

To: Brett Arvidson, PE - Project Engineer, City of Oak Harbor 

From: Chad Oxford, PE & K. Wendell Adams, PE - KBA Inc. Construction Management 

Date: November 1, 2016 

Subject: Validation of the Cost Estimate for Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Amendment No. 10 – 
Concrete Zones 32, 50,70 and 60 for the Odor Control and Building Foundations 

Project: Oak Harbor – Clean Water Facility 

This memo serves to confirm that the accuracy of the costs that Hoffman Construction (Hoffman) used 
to estimate the overall cost of proposed GMP Amendment No. 10, are reasonably acceptable.   

KBA performed an independent estimate review including checking production rates, volumes and unit 
costs.  Quotes for the cost of concrete were also verified with suppliers.  Several competitive bids for the 
furnishing and installation of reinforcing steel were also reviewed.   Labor rates were checked against 
local area prevailing wage rates.  

Hoffman’s proposed construction schedule was evaluated and the proposed schedule duration of 28 
weeks was found to be a reasonable amount of time to perform the Work.  

The total cost of the self-performed work in this amendment and previous work self-performed by 
Hoffman does not exceed 50% of the current contract value, which is the maximum percentage of self-
performed work allowed by RCW 39.10.370(7)(c).   

KBA’s recommendation is to accept Hoffman’s final cost estimate of $1,524,628 and $1,771,817 
(excluding Washington State Sales Tax) for concrete zone 50, 70 and zone 60 respectively. 

It is recommended that the Work and General Conditions continue to be tracked and paid on a time and 
material basis.  It is also recommended that weekly reports showing actual and planned hours with 
actual and planned volume of concrete poured per week be provided by the Contractor for the Work. 

The City and representatives for the City will be available to discuss any cost issues or savings that may 
arise in association with this Work. 

Analysis of Hoffman’s cost estimate was performed in a manner consistent with the degree of care and 
skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar 
circumstances, in the same geographical area and time period.  

Please contact K Adams or myself if you have any comments or questions.  

Sincerely,  

 

Chad Oxford, P.E. 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment C 585



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 586



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 587



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 588



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 589



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 590



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 591



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 592



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 593



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 594



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 595



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 596



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 597



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 598



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 599



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 600



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 601



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 602



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 603



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 604



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 605



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 606



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 607



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 608



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 609



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 610



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 611



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 612



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 613



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 614



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 615



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 616



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 617



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 618



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 619



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 620



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 621



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 622



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 623



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 624



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 625



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 626



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 627



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 628



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 629



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 630



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 631



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 632



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 633



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 634



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 635



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 636



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 637



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 638



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 639



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 640



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 641



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 642



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 643



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 644



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 645



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 646



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 647



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 648



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 649



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 650



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 651



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 652



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 653



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 654



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 655



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 656



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 657



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 658



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 659



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 660



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 661



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 662



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 663



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 664



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 665



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 666



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 667



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 668



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 669



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 670



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 671



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 672



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 673



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 674



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 675



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 676



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 677



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 678



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 679



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 680



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 681



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 682



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 683



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 684



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 685



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 686



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 687



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 688



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 689



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 690



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 691



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 692



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 693



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 694



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 695



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 696



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 697



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 698



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 699



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 700



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 701



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 702



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 703



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 704



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 705



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 706



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 707



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 708



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 709



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 710



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 711



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 712



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 713



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 714



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 715



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 716



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 717



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 718



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 719



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 720



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 721



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 722



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 723



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 724



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 725



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 726



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 727



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 728



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 729



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 730



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 731



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 732



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 733



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment D 734



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment E 735



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment E 736



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment E 737



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment E 738



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment F 739



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment F 740



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment F 741



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment F 742



lnlt. 

I AIA Document A 133111 

- 2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name a11d address or locat/011) 

Oak Barbor Clean W.ter Fac!Uty 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status a11d address) 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak HarbQr. WMfijnston 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Hol!maa Construction Company of Washington 
I SOS WistJake Aym\12 N .. Suite 500 
Settle. Wasbjngton 98109 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreement. the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agi:cemcnt to estelish a Q1tw1eed MuiMttlft Priee. avthorizc tbe 
Constmctim Manam to procees! wjth the Work of Sjtc Peco A - J>artja! Excavation and 
Arcbeologica! Survey <"Site Prmr A'!) and to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for 
the Site Prm A Work and relatijl •NCiOtjated Support Services and Soecified General 
Coniiirions. The Owner and'CjjstrnctiOn Manager anticipate subsequent amendment(s) to 
tbg Agrec;ment to establish a Gtiapnteed Maximum Price for tbc rm aindq of!he Work. 
Jhjs js the Third GMP Ammdinmt fq tbis Project. As agreed by the Owner and 
Construction Manager, die Guaranteed Maximum Price is an amount that the Contract 
Sum·shal! not e11eeed1 exceed for.the Site Prm A Work and related Negotiates! Suwgrt 
Services and Soccified 'Genera! 'Conditions. The Contract Sum consists of the Construction 
Manager's Fee plus' the Cost of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 6 of this 
AgreemenL 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed ES 
r,.Ejght Hundred Thitty-Six Thousand One Huncted Thirty Dollars ($836.130.00) fq the 
Site Prm A WorJc and includes all related Nesotiated Support Services. Specified General 
Conditions, Cootingency. and the Construction Manaeq's Fee of 4.28%, subject to 
additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents. Sales 
lll! is not jncludCd jn the aboVC amount and wj!I be added to the Cost of the Wor!s. 

§ A.1.1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingmcies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
(Pro1'ide below or n fere11ce a11 anac/1me11t.) 

Thls document has lmpcrtant 
legal consequences. 
CansullaUon wilh an attorney 
Is encouraged wilh respect to 
Its completion or modification. 

AtA Document A201 ""-2007, 
General Conditions of the 
Contract for Construction, Is 
adopted In this document by 
reference. Do not use with other 
general condlUons unless this 
document Is modified. 

AJA Document A133"' -2009 Eahlblt A. CopyrightO 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The Amark:an lnslltute Df An:hltecta. All rights reserved. WARHING: This 
AJA• Document 19 protected by U.S. Copyright Law and lnlematlonal Treaties. Unauthorized n1procluc:tlon ordlseributlon of this AJA" Document, <rK 1 
..., portion of It, ...., rwult In HVere c:lvll and erlmlnal penaltle1, and will be prosecuted to the maalmum •atn poulble und• the law. Thia 
document was pniduced by AJA llOftware at 08:28:11 on 0lilll9/2015 under Order No.1248342233_ 1 whlc:h explras on 04l22/2016, and Is not far resale. 
User Notes: {18319417501 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 743



lnlt. 

See the Ho[man Construction Company GMP Ameodmcnt No. 3 Recapitulation for SjJe frm A - Partial 
Excavation and Archeologiql Swvey. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alternates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner: 
(Slate tlie 1111mbers or other identificatio11 of accepted altemates. /f tlie Co11tract Doc11ments pem1it tlie Owner to 
accept oilier alternates subseq11ellt to tlie execution of this Ame,,dme111. attach a schedule of such other alternates 
showing the amo1mt for eacll a11d the date wlien the amo1111t expires.) 

Subcontractor Payment and Pcrfonnance Bond. included within the above prjce. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, if any: 
(Identify allowance and state e:cclmions, if a1!)', from tire a/fowa11ce price.) 

Item 
' Arcbco!ogical discovsrjq 

Dcwatcr!ne 

Price ($0.00) 
$57.114.00 
$14.400.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Assumptions, if any, on which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based: 

See the Hoffman Construction ComDaDv GMP Amendment No. 3 Recapitulation for Site Prco A· Panjal 
Exavatjoo and ArchaeoloSjcal Survey. 

§ A.1.1.6 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplementary and other Conditions of the 
Contract: See the Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Preparation and Archeologica! Exolm tjon 
TcchniCal Specifi cations elated June 8. 2015 and other documents listed in this Guaranteed Maidmurn Price 
Amendment. 

Doc:umant Title Date 

§ A.1.1.7 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
(Either list the Specifications l1ere. or refer to a11 e.Tl1ibit attaclred to this Agreement.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Wu1cwa1er Treatment Plant Sjte Pre;paratjon and Archeologica! Ewloratim Technical Soecifications 
c!atcc! Jvni S. 2015 and other documents listed in this Guaranteed Maximum Ptjcc AD1endmc:nt. 

Section Title Date 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawings here, or refer to an e:x/1iblt attac/1ed to tliis Agreeme11t.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Clean Water facility Sjte Preparation and Arclteo!ogical Exploration PacJsage dated June 8. 201 S and 
other documeots list·cd in thjs Guaranleed Maximum Price Amendment 

Number Title Date 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following other documents and information: 
(list any other doc11me11ts or i11fom1atio11 here. or refer to a11 e.Thibit attached to this Agreeme111.) 

Construction Manager shall comply with Washjngton Pcoanment of Ecology fimd jng requirements including the 
Water POllUtion Control Revolving Fund Spscjfications Insert dated 10/30/13. Construction Manager will perform 
construction activities in accordance wjth !he City of Oak Harbor Cultural Resources Memorandum of Agreement 
approved April 21. 2015. 

ARTICLE A:I. 
I § A.2.1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion for Site Peco A Work established by this Amendment: 

AIA Document AU31M - 2009 Exhllllt A. Copyright 0 1991, 2003 llld 2009 by The American lnstltu1e of An:hltacts. All rtg"'9 rallmld. WARNING: This 
AIA• Document I• pnitecttld by U.S. Copyright Law and lnc.matlonal TIWlllln. Unauthorized 1Wprocluctlon 0t dlstrlbullan of this AIA8 Document. or 2 
my portion of It, mmy Mull In....,.,. ctvn and crlmlnlll jMNl!tln, end will be proMCUted to the mulmum utent poslllble under the llw. This 
doc:umllnt wat produced by AIA IOllwanl at 08:28:11 on 06l09l201S under Order No.1248342233_ 1 which expires on 04/22/2016, and 19 not far l1IS8le. 
UNI' Notes: (1831941750) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 744



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 745



Certlflcatlcm of Document's Authenticity 
AfA®'Document D401TM- 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and bclier, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certillcation at 08:28: II on 06/09/2015 under Order No. 
1248342233_1 fi'om AlA Contract Documents sol\ ware and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
chflflges to th~ original text of AIA10 Document AIJJTM- 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, 
as published by the AlA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and strik. ng over deleted text. 

------~ ( v_~-+-(__;r 5==----------
roaredJ 

AlA Documont 0401"'- 2001 Cop~lf)ht 0 1992 and 2003 by The Amerlc:onlnaUMII of .Alehltacts. All tlghtu 1'11118rvod. WARNING: Thlu AIA0 Document Is 
protected by U.S, Copylfght t..ow and lnlomattonal Treatloo. Unauti\Qiiufl roproduetlon or dlalrlbutlon of lhls AIAQ Document, or any portion of It, 1 
may mutt In IHIV&I'il clvU Md criminal panal!leu, and wHI be proG<Jcu!Mito the mW<Imum extent poll!llblo undor tho raw. Thl9 docLO'llent was produced by 
AlA software at 06·28:11 or1 05/09/20151Rldar0rdar No.1240342233_1 which OI<JlilllB on0<1122J201&, 11M lo notror reaillo. 
Uaer Notllll: (1031941750) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 746



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY n OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 
Clean Water Facility Project 
Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 3 Recapit ulation 
Site Prep A - Partial Excavation and Archaeological Survey 

1 Direct Cost of Work 

2 Site Prep A 
3 Allowances for Archaeological Discoveries 
4 Allowance for Dewatering Pumping 
5 Total Direct Costs 

6 
7 Negotiated Support Services 

8 
9 

10 
11 

See Detail 

Total NSS 

12 
13 

Total NSS and Direct Costs 

14 GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% of Direct Costs 
15 
16 Total Dlrect+NSS+Risk Contlng. 
17 
18 Specified General Conditions 
19 
20 Sub Bonds 
21 
22 Sub-Total 
23 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

546,562 
57,114 
14.400 

618,076 

152,834 

770.909 I 

21,633 

192.541 I 

9,271 

801.812 I 
24 GCCM Fee at 4.28% $ 34.318 

25 ..-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~,r--~~~~~-, 
26 TotalGMPCostThisAmendment IS 836.130 I 
27 Washington State Sales Tax@8.7% $ 72.743 
28 Total Amendment No 3 (lncls Sales Tax) I $ 908,872 I 

Previously Issued Amendments (Including WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 
GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 
GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 
Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment incl WSST 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Is 

790,050 
2,775,456 
2.1§4.488 
6,638,866 I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 747



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUC'nON COMPANY noF-
BUILDING 
LOCA TION 
ENGINEE R 
SU BJECT 

o •. H • ••• . c ... . .. w .. .. f .. .... . 
O • • H . .... , W'4 
c . ... . 
GMP [ ••• .,. S • • P •• • A 

"'"•' Oe•••• u•• 
BuUdlna Gross .<:nuare ...,,,,,_ 

Reid Dintion 

DIVISION i! - EXISTING CONDITIONS 
0241 13 s •.• u ••• s.,. o .......... .. 
oz., 18 s ..... ..... o . ... ..... .. 
024119 s . .. .... . e ...... n. o .. .......... .. 
025000 S ... R. - . ........ .. 
021000 w •••. ~ .... .. ........ .. 
OZIOOO F ...... R.- ....... . 

DIVISION JI - EA RTllWORX 
312200 G . • • • o 

312300 E. . . ......... F.,, 
312319 o .......... . 
312500 E . . . ........ $.,,. __ ., ,., ....... c ... , ... , 
31 <COCO S .... ., .. ,. . ... . u .... . ... ,,,,,, .. "' 
31 tlCIO O.,, ... P., .. . 
316100 & ... ... P .... . 

SUBTOTAL. DIA.[CT COSTS 

GENERAL CONDITIONSANSIJRANCE 
G •• •• • • c ........ . 
s • ., a ... ,,. . 
P ...... .. . . B .. .. 
PL & POt .. ....... . . 
8 .. .. ... . , R,, . 1 ...... . ... . 
B&OT •• 

NEGOTIATED SUPPORT SERVICES 
DESIGN & EST/MA TING CONnNCENCY 
GCCM RISK CONTINGENCY 
GCCMFEE 

TOTAL. ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST 

SAL£STAX 
s ..... .. . .... s •... 1 •. 

S .. . P •• ., A 

TO!Al . E.:>llt.IATED GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 

E .. 
o .. u •• 

0 

0 

t .. 
1 .. 
I .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 

I .. 
I .. 
t .. 
I .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 

1 .. 
I 5% •• 

r ·-
F • • 

NSS 

··-
I .. 

.1'·!'.\ 
1 .. 

~ IO'i< •• 

S ... P . • ,. A ~2 

PROJECT csr ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

u •• 
P ... . 

S )l 4S!i, 56 

1000 
1000 
>ODO 
5000 

SSS l lO 88 
1263 88• 96 
S6U38 00 

S129 798 40 

$0.00 
SGIB.015 80 

F •• 
F • • 

NSS 
F • • 

51 52 83•00 
1000 

5818 015 80 
n• 311 &2 

Hl6 1'l1 

P . ,. .. i .,, 6, 

s ... 

111 •8& 

10 
10 

s8n11 
5263 805 
161 536 

1129 798 

S6 1B 076 

50 
U 2'1 

f •• 
f •• 
NSS 
f • • 

11 52 83' 
so 

S21 6Jl 
SJ< 318 

$836,131 

172 HJ 

,..,...175 

T ••• • P • ., • •• 
c ••. 

S71 486 
so 
so 
10 
so 
so 

185 371 
S263 885 

167.536 
s 12g198 

10 
so 
so 

$618 076 

F • • 
r •• 

so 
S9 21 1 

'155 
F •• 

S1 52 834 
so 

S21.633 
U 4 318 

$838.131 

s 72 14 3 

$908,875 

JOB NO 51 0001' 
ESTIMATOR IH T 

CHFCKED BY CAB 
DATE 61' 11 S> 

DWG DATE 

'···· c • • Jo .•••••• 

S7l 486 

$5•6 51)() 

SG l 8 076 

S118 055 

c •• • ••.. 

OOO'lo .. . .. . . . .... . 

1 . ...... •• F •• 

1 .... q .... .. ,., tiSS 
1 .. .., .., ....... F .... 

N . .. . , • • SP Jt. 

4 281' •• ,. •• , . ..... . , . 

$838.131 

112 70 

S908.875 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 748



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY ,-,OFWAIHINmlN 
BUILDING 
LOCATION 
ENGINEER 
SUBJECT 

A • .,, 

Q .. . H . . .... C .... . \V •• r "" "" ' 5,.. P . ... A 
O ... tt .. , .... Wflo. 
c ...... 
GMP E •• ,...... S ... P .• ,. A 

u ... ..... . 

c ..... ... , ,, .• , ....... : 

c .. 
o. 

S .. .. A11 .. . ... ,. S .... , ,., , A, . -••-* • t; . . ..... ... .. .. , ... .. £ . ... ... ... .. . 

S ., . p . .. . A ,2 

PROJECT CSI ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

u •• I P ..... s •. u •• 
I 

r . •• J .. . & 

JOB NO \ 100014 
ESTIMATOR THT 

CHEC(ED BV CAB 
DATE GJ111S 

owe; DATE 

I f ••u P••i•'"' I T • •" I c •.. c •• Jo .•••.•• 
I I I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 749



R0n')1.\S CO~STRUCTtO:'l COMPA.lll(y 
er \\'ASIUJ\'.GTON 

5, . P ••• A.2 

LIST OF ASSUMPTIONS. CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS 

BUILDING o ... H . ...... Ci.en Wet• • Fu ;oi.t :r S.r. p, • • A 
LOCATION Q. , H..... WA 
ENGINEER C . ..... 
SUBJECT L. ., • ' A .. ... ... ~ .... , & c ,. o"r•••••u P ....... . . E. ,,..,. . u 

BASIS OF ESTIMATE 
~ ... o._. 

1 6/3/1 5 HCC 
2 6/411 5 HCC 

1. 6/4/15 HCC 
4 
s 
~ 

7 

" 
ASSUMP1IONS OlJAl!E!CAJQNS INCL l/S!ONS AND EXCLUSIONS· 
~OM A.oo D•o••••n 

1. Hr r 
? Hr r 

HCC 

HCC 

1.1 r r 

6. 
1 
A 
Q 

11 
12 
n ,. 

Ill 

n ,, 
,. ,. 
26 

'"· on 

31 
12 

,. 

1A 

41 

44 
45 

47 

•• 
4Q 

51. 

• ..... S.,. P ••• A •• ., ~ . . .. 

o ... ., ....... .. 

N. • , .... .. .. , ""'"o,.. ar •• • '" " " "' "' , .., ,,.6 1M •• d 

108 NO 5100014 
ESTIMATOR THT 

CHECKED ev CAB 
DATE &111 5 

DWC.. DATE 0 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 750



Site Prep A r2 
HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF WASHINGTON 

ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

BUILDING: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility - Site Prep A ESTIMATE NO. 5100014 
LOCATION: Oak Harbor , WA ESTIMATOR: THT 
ARCHITECT: Carollo CHECKED BY: CAB 
SUBJECT: Division 2 Summary DATE: 6/1/15 

Dwr... nATE: 0 
TOTAL ES T UNIT PRC TOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST TOT/IL EST 

ACCT Df<;r.RIPTION OF WORK n llANTITY UNIT LABOR • ARnRCOST MTL MTL COST COST 

02 4113 
,_ 

CIHa -

Demolish Asnhall P"vfnn 48000 sf I0.7' 134 733 
Demo curbs Planters and Tr....., 60 tns S234.36 '-14 OR? 
Demo Undemround Utlllties 490 If 124.30 111907 
CaoUtillties ea incl 
Demo Site Liaht Pnl- and Circuits 6 ea !1:1 080.00 S6480 
Demo Uoht Pole Bases 6 ea C:'U2.36 520541 
Prntect Fire Hvdrant 1 ea !l:."'10.00 S500 

Protect monilorino wel 1 8 " 1250.nn $250 
Relocate Postal Service Gano Box 1 ea 11 500.00 S1 500 

171486 

!!:71486 571486 
Subcontractor GC, Eouic. OH&P incl 

Total, S.....,. Sect. 02 4113: ---> $71486 

Page 5 of 6 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 751



Site Prep A r2 

HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF WASHINGTON 

ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

BUILDING: Q • k Harbor C1aan Wacor Fe c-111t:t . Sil• Prop A ESTIMATE NO 51 0001 4 
LOCATION Q .... Harbor . WA ESTIMATOR. THT 
ARCHITECT- C., .... CHECKED BY- CAB 
SUBJECT- D1v1 ·1 .. on 31 Summuy DATE: 611115 

DWG- DATE. 0-J •• 00 
fOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST 101AI l Sl 

ACC T DESCRIPTION OF WORr; QUANTITY UNIT LABOR LABOR COST MH MTL COST COS! 

312200 r. .• ~·- -
Erau 1p m •"l mo b 111• a u on end d•moD1h 1t Dt1on 1 .. $39.000.00 $39.000 
Str ip 6 "' T opsotl •t Guas Ar •eu & Disp oso 2,700 .. $3.41 $9.215 
p,.•P and r ock hau l ro•d to stoc:koll• (515. 201 10.300 ., $1.62 $1 6.686 
Pr. a • nd roc k •cc••• roa d lo B••k•m• tt v RV P. , ... 0 " $1.62 so dete r 

Ramps into e1ca v H1 0n (6' high• 20' w ld a) 10:1 ..,...l\ h pad 729 ... $28.08 $20.470 

$85.371 $85,371 
S uocontroc:tor GC, Equip , OH&P tf'ICI 

Toto•, S.oc . s •••. 31 2200: - -> lln~,.J/ I 

31 2300 i ~ , .. ., ., - .. "'a n• F&u 
U nraslrt c-t. oa £ 111 cov•t•on at E 'llltStl ng Fm · P.'"' '"9 Ar • • 9,219 ... $9.75 $89.881 
~chaeolo u 1~•11y s.".IUVO Eicco wot;on 

6" Cut.•, cioonup bu 1; 1t•t. h•\11 to 1o100 111.p1tu 6.981 D<v $15.66 $109.330 
Auow•nc• fa,. Vacuum E•covotjon i8 1o c atton " ) 20 "" $378.00 $7.560 

A11ow•nc• to,. 1/2 p,.oduatlon r' oto ••c • vet.1on 698 ... $21 .17 $14 .778 
As1ow•nc• tor l,; row St.•ndby (••ngl• c ' ew} 40 "'" $1 .058.40 $42.336 

$263.885 

$263.885 $263.885 
Sub c onu- o cno,. GC, Equ i p, OH&P i nlOI 

I oUI , Speo . Soot. 31 23 00: - ------> >LO.>,<><>:> 

31 2319 10 -.w•t•r• • ... 
A 11 owanc• ror pu m po n l'I 12 wk • $1.200.00 $14.400 
Ecc. 1o~:r Stock W,.u D r ain 1.200 ,, $44.28 $53.136 

$67.536 

$67.536 S67,536 
Suoco~vuot•r GC, Equ 1~ , OH&P lrtC:t 

To•••· Sp•• · s •••. 31 2319: --··> .>Dt ,::J.>C 

312500 E',.""" . ....... ·-- s.d ..... -..... "Co -- I 

TESC M .... u, .~ 0\ St.oc ltpll•• 40.500 .. $0,77 $31 .055 
S11t..r •no o ot. we tlond bou nda r ,. wes t o oc ••• l" O lld 0 " $5.40 $0 d o tor 

Snt F on c o 11t. soulft bou n d •r'Y of B eok t mo a ccoaa rood do te r 

D u"t: Conirot wot.O r' uu e lil. 8 wko $1.500.00 $12.000 
Du a\ cont.t'OI •weepel' 8 wk• $1 .250.00 $10.000 

Sundsrd E co4o a'JI 8 1o ck Roulnll'\Q Wau ( 2 h rah) 222 .. $102.60 $22.743 
U1uo Bock R oto 1n •no Wou (J hlahl 313 .. $172-80 $54.000 

$129.798 

$129.798 $129. 798 
Subconuoct.or GC, Equi p . OH&P uu; I 

T ... ,. s •••. S •• •. 31 25 00: -······> :)l .nt ,/tfC 

I 
I 

division 1.ot•t: 5546,590 

Page 6 of 6 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 752



Hottrn•n Constructto"I Comp•"11' 

Building' Q • .., Hert.or Cl••" Wu.r Fa c im, E.i.a"'•t.• S""'"'. ' " Job No : 5109214 
locadon : Oak Ha r boll" . WA Preco n ·> SheH Na : 1 
E ... ,,. • • ,: C .. · 0 110 c. ,. ..: ·> 8 e .... "'.,.,: THT 
Su lloJnt: GMPA .... ,. d ... . ,.,3 ·· 5,,. P .. . . A GSF -> o ... ; 6/3/15 

E. u ... oud L ••• ,. E." '"•t•d M.~ E.u ....... T otel 

Ac et Oe • crllP UO" o ....... uc11' UOM u,.,, .. lo • or Un" M .... ,,., Ca•t Noi. • 
006088 Bulld•r• R1.1it l,..u .. •nce 1 .. 0 17.820 17.820 , 7 .820 NSS ,.,. pr•"''" m 

007001 SuP•' Wl•lon 

Ome• M•n•a•r • Fuu T • .,.. 0 w. 1,000 0 0 0 Amond 2 
s.,H)I Mar . 2 ... ,.1,.,.. 0 Oe)'I 443 0 0 0 A .. . ,.. 2 

007012 Super• llOrJ' T r a v el 

T, .... , ,. ..... b • • NSS 8 w .. 0 250 2.000 2.000 

007026 P 1a 11-• & B•u•p r1nn 

M ••e-a llanaou • 0 .0 Mo 0 250 0 0 NSS 

007060 Equip Ra .. 101· Hott"'•" LS 0 0 0 
Raa •o • • 4 •• 0 w •• 0 19 0 0 NSS 
P1a il •vp • lea J.,, s . .. ,, ,c•• OW1ita 0 150 0 0 NSS 

M11 c 10.0 w •• 0 300 3.000 3,000 NSS 

007061 f._ulp RatUal • Q,,..,,.. 0 LS 0 0 0 NSS 
fo , a. uf\ 10 --· 0 900 9.000 9.000 rr 

007063 Ga• , Ou & Ma1"'•"•nc• 
G •• . Ou & F .... , · E ••• R.cua. 12,000 0 0.20 2.400 2.400 NSS 

007080 U,.. T • • •• an Matorl a la 8 .7% PC 0 -2.600 ·226 -226 

007083 T • • anO frll'\OO 

007098 c.,.. pwt•r c .... ,v•• 0 w •• 0 50 0 0 

010500 Sur"•Y & La,.0 1n 

S ... ,..,.,, (oa "ty or 2) 10 d•1'• 0 1.700 17.000 17.000 NSS 

015100 T •"'P E t eovlo al SF 0 0.22 0 O NSS 
Pow•' D1au1bu1ion U"1t 0 E. 0 3.500 0 0 NSS 
P.- . .. Cord• & Sp•d•r• 0 LS 0 0 NSS 

015110 UtHttJ•• P • .,.,.,. Raimtt Mo 0 650 0 0 B, Owno< 

015120 Uc.nu •• W ••• , 0 Mo 0 100 0 O NSS 
T•mp Wu.rConnac1.& Ram 0 LS 0 2.250 0 0 w1U•

0

am•"'* 2 

015150 T •'"P s •. ut.atiOfl 

L•v•n•• • 2 ••c._ 0.0 Mo 0 0 0 0 whh a"'af\1:1 2 
Handw••" St•t1•11 • 1 ..... 0.0 M. 125 0 0 .... tt. .. amefld 2 

Drop Bo••• and Otapoaa t 0 , •• 0 750 0 0 with amend 2 

015180 Tamp W•ter 0 .0 Mo 0 160 0 0 .., Ith amend 2 

015200 T •mo . Suucu.ira• 
WIS Di..Udlng otn•• ••tup 

C•rpt1t ,epa lr 0 LS 0 1,500 0 0 NSS 
Roor R•P•'' 0 LS 0 1.750 0 0 NSS 
Tot1a1. room r1uur•• and "•P• lr 0 LS 0 1.250 0 0 NSS 
Mtsc. T •mp. 5' .. uct. 2 Mo 6.000 250 6.250 NSS 

015210 T •Mp P,. otao~•n 

Raacota la1td•caOl"G at. L•,.down 0 •• 0 0 0 ••tartonna t g""p 

Arcnaaologlcat S•na1U¥a P.,.,...,.,. 0" 8 0 Owltnamaftd2 

015220 T .... ,, R • ••• & p. , •• ,.. 
Ou at Con«-ol 0 .0 M. 0 750 0 0 ..... , • • , ••• , 

01 5240 T.,..P W oo 8 ••• 0 CY 0 10 0 0 
Tamp S coc1a ,ua aroa 0 .. 0 4.15 0 0 In dlr• a & C IU I 

Print Date: 6/~/m15 PagelofZ FotmRev. 1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 753



Hotrm•·" C.nu1· u cc1. ,. c • .; •• "• 

8u11 ~1n 9 : o .... Hu111or c, •• " Wu111r Feont•y E•"'"•U Su,..,,..,.,_ J.111 No: 5109214 

L•••••on: a •• Hue.or , WA Proe:an -> s,, •• t N.: 1 

Eno•"•• ' : c.,.. 11. c. "' .,-, . 8 E.v,,..,o,; THT 
s ... , •• a: GM"P A rot •1Ul,.UM 3 u-s~. p,., .A GSF ·• One! 6/3n5 

Euim•ud L.-.., Est1rq°aud M.a E.v ,,.•u• Tou• 
Aect o •• cne;ci.,, Ouof'IUty UOM U"" Lob or u.,, M ... ,.,. , c .... No••• 

015282 o ... .,. T ••U 35 •• 0 85 2.975 .. 2,975 NSS 

" 015290 f1rscA1d 0 LS 0 1.200 0 Q wlCJ\ •"'end 2 

015300 B . ,.,.lcocl•• ond F • .,, c-fng 

T •"'P fo,..co Ronuf 1,455 LF 0 0.6 87l 873 NSS 
Sotup and R • .., .... , 1.455 LF 1.35 1.964 1.964 NSS 
20' T,.uclt Gu.et 1 .. 450.00 450 450 NSS 
P ........ ""• ' G., •• 2 •• 225.00 450 450 NSS 
F•"•• a ..... , . K R.u 66 •• 75.00 4,928 4.928 NSS 
Ro111ng oc • • • llll O • li. wall 1.290" 15.00 19.350 19,350 NSS 

5 200 1.000 150 750 1,750 NsS 
015800 Consfr.,cUo" S 1111 n • 650 650 650 NSS 

ProJoet Stons 

0 .0 M. 0 800 0 Q wlU\ a "'end 2 
015920 F 0 Eq,..lpmont & SuPJl ~ lt 0 LS 0 3,000 0 0 E.1.u,.9 

f urnt1uro 0 .0 M. 450 0 Q w it~ a"'and~ 
Doc., m one Printer/So• n no,. 0 .0 LS 0 1.500 0 Q w lO• •"'Ond 2 
Oocu'" ont Pr1n1or "'0111/da moll 0 mo 0 40 0 0 WIU• •rn•nd 2 
Scanner 0 ,0 mo 0 100 0 0 wnh amontS 2 
F •• 0 Mo 0 50 0 Q wll,, •'"•nCI 2 
Owner'• Troller Fw,,. & Equip 

0.0 Mo 0 850 0 0 WICh Ofll•fl'd 2 
015940 Pho"• & Po-nao• 0 E. 0 750 0 0 .... n,. • .,..,.. 2 

T oC,l•cComputor• 2o• 0.0 M. 0 125 0 Q with alfto"d 2 
Dou Lu,. •nd Motnc 

GI• • • Ctean t .. 11 

017990 Jota s._..,.,:.. 0 MH 100 0 0 OwlU••m•fla2 
Es • •v•t•d 1aoct "'ontcor / dtr•C:IDr 8 wk• 3,800 30.400 30.400 

033062 Canon ·• • • Pu,..pln9 0 0 0 0 

37,400 115,434 152.834 0 

Print Date: 6/4/2D15 l'lplafl FormRev. 1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment G 754



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment H 755



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment H 756



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment H 757



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment H 758



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment I 759



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment I 760



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment I 761



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment I 762



lnlL 

I AIA Document A133 .. -2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

far the following PROJECT: 
(Name and address or location) 

Oak Harbor Clean Water f1cillty 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal ;status and addn!M) 

Citv of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrjnglm Drive 
Oak Harbor. Wasbinl!lon 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Homup Copstrgctlon ComRpy of Wasbl-cton 
1 SOS Westlake Avenue N .. Sui1e soo 
Seattle. Washington 98 I 09 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Gu11"1Ateed Mulmum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreemenl, the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agreement to estal911slt a Gwleed ManimHlll Pflee. authorize the 
Constmctjm Manager to proceed wjth the Work of Site Prep C • Microoile Installation 
and to establish a Guaranleed Maximum Price for !he Site Prep C • Miqopjle Installation 
Work and related Negotiated Suoport Senices and Specified General Conditions. The 
Owner and Coos1ruction Manaaq anticjoale svmuent amendmentCsl to the Agreement 
to establish a Guaran•eecl Maximwn P,lce for tbe remajnder of the Work. This is lhe Sixth 
OMP Amendniait for Ibis Project. As agreed by the OWner and Consaruction Manager, the 
Guaranteed Maximwn Price is an amount that the Conlract Sum shall not aeee.t. ~ 
for the Sjte Pren C • Mjcro0ile Installation and related Negotiated Supoort Seryic:es and 
Specified General Conditions. The Conlract Sum consists of the Construction Manager's 
Fee plus the Cost of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 6 oflhis Agreement. 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed {S 
)..Three Million Nine Hundred Sixtv-Six Thousand Five Hundred Three Dollars 
CS3.9§6.S03.00l for the Site Prep C- Mjqppilc Jnstpll&tion WorJc. which ContJJct Sum 
includes all related Nenotiated Suooort Services. Specified General Conditions. 
Contin11ency. and lhe Construction Manager's Fee of 4.28%. subject to additions and 
deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract DocumenlS. Sales tax is not 
included in the above amount and wjl! be added lo the Cost oflbe Work, 

§ A.1.1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingencies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximwn Price. 
(Provide below or reference an allachmenL) 

This document hn lmpcr1ant 
legal consequences. 
Consultatlon with 1n .uomev 
Is encouraged with raped to 
Its ccmpleUon or modlricallon. 

AIA Document A201 111-2007. 
General Concfdlons d the 
Contract for ConstNctlon, ii 
adopted In this document by 
reference. Do nol UH with other 
general conditions unlm this 
document Is modified. 

AIA Document A1lJ .. - 200I Elhlblt A. COpyrighl C 1 H t. 21lD3 and 2009 by The American lnltitule of An:hjtects. All rights nt111Vlld. WARNING: Thlll 
AIA• Document I• protec:t9d by U.S. Copyright Law ind lntem1Uon1I r .. 1t1es. Un1uthor1zed 1'9production or distribution of thl1 AIA• Documenl, or 1 
111y portion of It, may mun In 11111e111 clvll ind crtmlnal l*!lllln, and will be prDMClltld to the mulmum utent posalllle under tht law. Thll =:":r..W:-1 produced by Alo\ IOftware at 01138:'tftFO~etit9~M~-1~flR1~1,ttvtllch espltes on D412212D1e, and 11 not ror res11te 

111211547921) CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment J 763



Jnlt. 

See the Hoffinan Construction ComQl!'ly GMP Amendment No. 6 RecapjtyJatjon for Site Pcm C - Mjqopile 
Installation. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alrcmates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and arc hereby accepted by lhe Owner: 
(State the numbers or other identification of accepted alternates. If the Contract Documents permit the Owner to 
accept other alternates subsequent to the exec11tlon of this Amendment, attach a schedule of such other alternales 
showing the amount for each and the date when the amount expires.) 

Subconblctor Pavment and Perfonnance Bond. jnclydcd wjthjn the above price. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranleed Maximum Price, if any: 
(ldentlfl allowance and slate exclusions, If any, from the alloH'ance price.) 

n..n 
Ccmnection to new outftll 

Price ($0.00) 
$310.000.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Asswnptions, if any, on which the Gwnnteed Maximwn Price is based: 

Sec dJc Hoffinm Construction Comoany GMP Ameodmeot No. 6 Rec;apitu!ation for Sjte Pn;o c • Miqo0ile 
lngl!atjon. 

§ A.1.1.6 The Ounnlecd Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplcmcntery and other Conditions of the 
Contract: 

1. Addenda I tbrough 4. 

2. Hoffinan Rccommendalion of Award, 

3. Site Pren C - Mlqoojlg Rec!uest for Proposal. 

D11U1111Rl 

§ A.1.1.7 The Guanmteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
{Either list the Specifications here, or refer to an exhibit at/ached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment PIUJt Micro0ile Packasc Technical Specifications dated November 2015. 

Stdlon Datl 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawinp here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor W15tmler Treatment Plant Qctobq 2015 Miqopjle Pac!sage 90% Pesf1m. 

Number Title Dltl 

Pages 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon Che following other documents and infonnation: 
(List any other documents or information hen, or refer to an exhibit altoched to this Agreement.) 

ConstnJc:tjon Manggq shall com01y wjth Wasflington Department of Ecology funding requirements including the 
Water Pollution Conb'OI Reyolv!ng Fwd Specifications Insert dated 10/30/13. Construction Manaaer will wforrn 
con51ruc:tjon activities in acconlancc with theCjty of Oak Harbor Cyltl!'a! Resources Memorandwn ofAvcemeot 
IDDrOved April 21. 2015. 

AIA Dowmetlt A1:13,.-200t EiihlbltA. COpyriglltC 11191 , 2003 Ind 200t1 by TneAmeflcln lnttilU!eolArc/llledl. All rlghta rwHrVmd. WARNING: Thi& 
AJA• DcM:umtnt 19 pruttcttd by U.S. Copyright L.IW and lnteml1lon11 Trtatln. Un•uthortzed rwpniducUon or dlstTlbuUon of lhls ~A· Oocumtnt, or 2 
any portion of It. may mull In'""'""' clvU and crlmln•I ptnaltln, and wlll be prvncuted to th• m1almum extent posatbl1 unctor th• law. Thlt 
documlnt wa produced by AJA toftwn 8109 38 2• on 01/08/2011 under Order Ho.124B34223:U wtllch expires on 04122l2011. Ind Is not tor r9Slle 
UHr Notes: CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment A 

(92H<t7821) 
CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment J 764



lnlt. 

ARTICLE A2. 
§ A.2.1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion established by 1his Amendment: 

December 29. 2017. 

CONsTRUCTION MANAGER (Signature) 

ROBERT T. SEVERNS 

(Printed name and tllle) (Printed name and title) 

'G'~- ~...,. 

AIADoe&1menlAU3•-20ot ElChlbltA. CopyrightC 11111, 2003111112009bylheAmericln lnslitute otArdlltecb. Al lights rnerved. WARNING: This 
AJA• Document Is P"'tectad by U.S. Copyr1ght Law 1nd lntlmltlonal Tn111tltt. unall1hostnd r1producUon or dlatnbutlon of tta NA• Document, or 3 
any polt.lon or It, may mull In .. ,,.,.. clvll and crtmlnal penalties, 1nd wUI b1 proHCllled to the m1aJmum 111tent poulbl• under the law. Tllil 
doc:lnent waa l)Rlduced by AIA IOftWare 11 oe·311fi1111 Ol§IAP~~~ wtllch explrea on 04/2212018, and II not ror reuia. 
UHrNota: 

(112M47D21) CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment J 765



Certification of Document's Authenticity 
AJA® Document 0401™ - 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, to the best or my knowledge, infonnation and belief, that 1 created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certification at 08:48:55 on 01 /07/2016 under Order No. 
1248342233 I from AJA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
changes to the original text of AIAe Document A 133rn - 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, 
as published by the AIA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and striki g over deleted text. 

(fitle) 

(Dated) 

AIA Document 0401"' - 2003. Copyright 0 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Aldlilecla • .lill rights IHUvtd. WARNING: Thia AJA" Document 11 
prut.cted by U.S. Copyright Law and lnlllmallonal TreallH , Un1uthork9d reproduction or dlatributlon of tide AIA" Document, or any portion of It, 1 mt)' rqutt In nvere i:IYll and cr!mlnal penaltlH, and will be proncut.cl to the mulmum extent ponlble under tha 1-. Thia document was produced by 
AlA 1altware al 08 48:55 on 01 10712016 under Order No.12483-42233_ 1 which eJCplre1on04/22/2016, and 11 not for resale. 
U11rNot11a: 

(1247~276) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment J 766



=--..HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY - 1 OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 

Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 6 Recapitulation 

Site Prep C -- Micropile Installation 

Direct Cost of Work 

Micro-pile installation 

Micro-pile spoils handling Phase 1 

Micro-pile spoils handling Phase 2 and Cap Break at 

Headworks Area 

Sheet pile adjustment for tower crane ftg 

Site flood protection dike 

Connection to new outfall (Allowance) 

Total Direct Costs 

Negotiated Support Services 

CJA 

Pell co 

Pell co 

CJA 
Pellco 

TBD 

Negotiated Support Services HCC 

Tower Crane Foundation and Crane Erection 

Procurement of Diesel Pump for Plant WWF Xylem 

Total NSS 

Total NSS and Direct Costs 

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 

Total Direct+NSS+Risk Conting. 

Specified General Conditions 

Sub-Total 

GCCM Fee at 4.28% 

Total GMP Cost 

Washington State Sales Tax@ 8.7% 

Total Amendment No 6 (Incl. Sales Tax) 

Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 

GMP Amendment No 1-- Early Purchase MBR-UV 

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 

Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment w/o WSST 

s 
s 

s 
s 
s 
s 

s 

s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

s 
s 

Is 

s 

Is 

s 

Is 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

7-Jan-16 

Rev 2 

2,087,050 

73,149 

32,513 

54,108 

9,000 

310,000 

2,565,820 

558,105 

243,415 

98,624 

900,144 

3,465,964 I 

121,309 

69,319 

3,656,592 I 

147,112 

3,803,104 I 

162,799 

3,966,503 I 
345,086 

4,311,5891 

790,050 

2,553,317 

1,991,249 

836,130 

5,109,549 

2,028,222 

11,215,020 I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment J 767



L.J HOFFMAN CONSTRUcnON COMPANY 
,...., OF WASHIMJTON 

City of Oak Harbor Washington 
Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 6 -Addition of Micropiles 

Negotiated Support Services Scope 
16 Week Duration 

Description 

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance (.01 TCC) 

NSS 007001 Office manager (4 mos) 

NSS 007001 Job services I field supt - E Spicer (4mos) 

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce -- BIM modeling (8 hours per week x 16 weeks) 

NSS 
NSS 007012 Temp housing (16 weeks) 

NSS 007024 Construction Photographs 

NSS 007026 Plans and Prints 

TC 007061 Initial Tower Crane Rental 

TC 007065 Tower crane inbound freight 

TC 015200 Tower crane foundation concrete and reinforcing steel 

TC 015200 Tower crane isolation box design 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing excavation and subbase 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing stone columns (16 each) 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection tech assist 

TC 007067 Tower crane test weight freight 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection assist cranes 

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party 

TC 007067 Tower crane electrical 3rd party inspection 

TC 007067 Tower crane tower retorque 

TC 007069 Initial crane rigging supply 

NSS 015750 Initial crane operator ( 6/19/16 - 7/19/16) 

NSS 01S7SO Rigger/ Bellman for tower crane (4weeks) 

NSS na Tower crane foundation sheet piling impacts 

TC 007067 Tower Crane Embed Anchor 

TC 015100 Tower Crane Temporary Power Supply 

NSS 007061 RT Crane for duration of Micropile Work (16 weeks) 

NSS 00706S Transport Equipment 

NSS 007065 RT Crane mob/demob 
NSS 007069 Small Tools (4 months) 

NSS 0157SO Operator for RT Crane (4/4/16 - 7 /31/16) - 16 weeks 

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party 16 weeks 

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup 

NSS 007060 Radio rental extension (16 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 4 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 16 weeks 

NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters (4 each x 16 weeks) 

HCC 

Larson 

Pell co 

Malcolm 

NWTC 

Morrow-HCC 

Ness 

Ness 

Kent 

ETI 

NWTC, Morrow 

HCC 

Garner 

Garner 

Condon 
Morrow 

Triad Mach 

Triad Mach 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 

&n2l!!!1 Comment 

$ 4,312.00 

$ 20,368.00 

$ 47,120.00 

$ 12,800.00 

$ 6,000.00 

$ 
$ 
Incl w-amend 4 

Incl w-amend 4 

$ 68,850.00 

$ 2,359.00 

$ 9,5S3.00 

$ 14,960.00 

$ 23,300.00 

$ 13,000.00 

$ 1,000.00 

$ 3S,648.00 

$ 8,765.00 

$ 1,830.00 

$ 5,600.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 17,780.00 

$ 17,340.00 

$54,108 - carry in directs 

$ 16,550.00 FOB Jobsite per Morrow 

$ 12,000.00 

$ 59,372.00 

$ 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 2,400.00 

$ 70,160.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 

$ 1,216.00 

Add radios for operators 

$ 304.00 and bellman 

$ 600.00 

$ 2,400.00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment J 768



§ml!R 

NSS 
~ Description 

007063 Gas Oil and Maint 
NSS 007063 Fuel and Main! on Diesel Pump 

NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax 
NSS 007098 Computer Charges (16 weeks) 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 
Direct 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 

015940 Extension of Answering Service (130/month) 

010500 Ming Survey 9Sst and 117ot {768hrs ST and lOhrs OT) 

007024 Orthographically corrected aerial photos for Design 

Berming of site perimeter (flood protection dike) 

01S300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (2121f) 4 months 

01S300 Fence Rental Extension (4 months) 

015180 Temp Water Service (4 months) 

015280 First Aid/ Water Stations (4 each - Purchase) 

NSS OlSlOO Temporary Electric 

TC OlSlOO Tower crane -- transformer and drop off existing pole, 300' 

Answering 

Innovations 

Ming 

Soundview 

Pell co 

Yard 

United 

Yard 

NSS 015100 North side site power fed from Whidbey Island Bank Bldg Valley 

NSS 015100 Temporary electric service to jobshack area 

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each, 16 weeks) 

NSS 01Sl50 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 16 weeks) 

NSS 015180 Backflow preventer and meter on water service 

NSS 015940 Inkjet plotter -- field office 

NSS 015200 Coiling door installation at North Side of WIB 

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (16wks) 

NSS 015200 Installation of second stair tower 

NSS 015200 Second stair tower rental (12 weeks) 

NSS 015200 Prefabricated dumpster access platform 

NSS 015200 Concrete pad at dumpster access 12'x24'x4" 

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 16 weeks) 

NSS 015282 Drug Tests (50 ea) 

NSS 015800 Signage (20/ea @ 150) 

NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply (4 months) 

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage 
NSS 017990 Job Services (16 weeks, one individual) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #ffl - Attachment B 

Amount Comment 

$ 25,247.00 

$ 1,965.00 

$ 10,982.00 

$ 800.00 

$ 520.00 

$ 74,060.00 

$ 4,965.00 

In direct costs 

$ 2,244.00 

$ 1,300.00 

$ 640.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 25,000.00 

$ 16,000.00 

3ea 4" conduits x 2001f 

$ 3,600.00 w/SO Cord 

$ 6,750.00 

$ 24,260.00 

ByCOH 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 4,800.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 3,600.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 4,250.00 

$ 750.00 

$ 3,200.00 

$ 3,600.00 

$ 54,400.00 

$ 801,520.00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment J 769



Specified General Conditions & Staffing 

Weeks Weekly Rate Total 

Trevor Thies 12 $ 3,270 $ 39,240 
Bryan Shirley 14 $ 3,818 $ 53,452 
Ben Larson 16 $ 2,745 $ 43,920 

$ 136,612 

Other LS GC $ 10,500 

Total Specified GC $ 147,112 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 
CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment J 770



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 
Job No: 5100014 

Cost Dacriptio• of Work Spec HCCO 
Code Section Bud .. t 

Bid Co,..,,nrison - Microollts 01340 $2,901,440 
Pavment & Perfonnance Bonds 

Unit Price for Obstruction Abandonment of Piles 
Extended amount for 200 LF 

Unit Price for Addition of Micro Piles 
Extended amount for l 5 oiles 

Unit Price for Deletion of Micro Piles 
Extended amount for JO oiles 

Unit Price for Add/Reduce Micro Pite Leni?th 
Extended amount for 200 LF 

Total Bid Amount S2,901,440 
Yd to Buy 

Totol Bud1et $2,901,440 

Bid Bond 
Addendum No. 1 - 4 
WA License# 
Federal ID 
Washinlrton UBI 
Washington ES Number 
DBE Forms 

w HOfFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 

1505 WESTlAKE AVENUE NORTlf, sum 500 

n SEJ.Tn.E. WASHINGTON 98109 

http://www.hoffmi!lncorp.com 

Work Item: Bid Comparison - Microplles 
Bid Package: #1- Site Prep C 

Condon .. Jolrin100 Donald Morphy Malcom Drillinc Budincer 

$2,071,000 $2,1 15,000 $2,649,000 $2,924,431 

$16.050 $18 050 $26.825 $23.500 

$6,000 $14,000 $5,000 $41,600 
$3Mf $70/lf S25/l S208/lf 

$52,500 $79 500 SI05,000 $204,750 
$3500/eaoh S5300/each S7000/each S13650/each 

IS20,000) ($21,000) IS20,000) ($136.500) 
S2000/oach $2100/each S2000/each S 13650/each 

Sl0.200 S18,000 $18.000 $41,600 
$51/lf $90/lf S90/ll $208/lf 

S2,135,750 S2.223,550 S2,783,825 S.l,099,381 so 

S2,ll5.750 S2.223.S50 52,783,825 S.1,099,381 so 

CONDOJA034N7 DONALl331RO MALCOD263BS BUDINAI0550M 
94-2248694 91-0826786 94-1671918 91-1684799 
601368804 278049134 6000535337 601638902 
746380008 307986000 439189009 842157006 
lndudtd Included Included lndudtd 

We recommend that this work be awarded to: Condon - Johnson 

Subcontract!Purchase Agreement Amount $2,135, 750 
We recommend that thi.< woit be bonded: Yes 

Estimated Bond Cost: Included in bid 1mount 

Hoffman Construction Company By: \...?-~ 
Date: 1/5/2016 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment C 

so 

so 

Approved: Va 

Date: 

Date Printed: 1/S/2016 

File: BC 01340 

so 

so 

I No -- --

so 

so 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment J 771



lnlt. 

I AIA Document A 133TM - 2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name and address or location) 

Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor. Washington 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Hoffman Construction Company of Washington 
600 Stewart Street Suite I 000 
Seattle, Washington 98101 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreement, the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agreement to estelllish e GlillfflAh!etl Meiciffiliffi PFiee. authorize the 
Construction Manager to proceed with the Work of Deeo Concrete Work@ Area 30 & 
Misc. Changes and to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the Deep Concrete Work 
@Area 30 & Misc. Changes Work and related Negotiated Support Services and Specified 
General Conditions. The Owner and Construction Manager anticipate subsequent 
amendment(s) to the Agreement to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the 
remainder of the Work. This is the Seventh GMP Amendment for this Project. As agreed 
by the O\.Vller and Construction Manager, the Guaranteed Maximum Price is an amount 
that the Contract Sum shall not eKeeee. exceed for the Deep Concrete Work@ Area 30 & 
Misc. Changes and related Negotiated Support Services and Specified General Conditions. 
The Contract Sum consists of the Construction Manager's Fee plus the Cost of the Work, 
as that term is defined in Article 6 of this Agreement. 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed~ 
t,-:Nine Million Three Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Eight Dollars 
($9.355,968.00) for the Deep Concrete Work@ Area 30 & Misc. Changes Work. which 
Contract Sum includes all related Negotiated Support Services, Soecified General 
Conditions, Contingency, and the Construction Manager's Fee of 4.28%. subject to 
additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents. Sales 
tax is not included in the above amount and will be added to the Cost of the Work. 

§ A.1 .1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximwn Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingencies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
(Provide below or reference an attachment.) 

This document has Important 

legal consequences. 

Consultation with an attorney 

Is encouraged with respect to 
its completion or modification. 

AIA Document A201 ™-2007, 

General Conditions of the 

Contract for Construction, Is 

adopted In this document by 

reference. Do not use wtth other 

general conditions unless this 

document Is modified. 

AIA Document A1J3"' - 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright IC 1991, 2003 end 2009 by The Amelicen Institute of Architects. All rights niaarved. WARNING: This 
AJA• DOGument la protKted by U.S. Copyright Law and lnt.matlonal Trv•tl••· Un•uthorlzed reproducUon or dlatrlbuUon or thh• AJA• Document, or 
an rtlon of It, ma result In 1ev11re clvll and c:rlmlnaJ ~ltloa, and will be roaacutee to the maximum extent : aalble under the law. Thia 
oc:ument was y re at 09;08 30 on 0 Jl20;16 u er er No.1248342233_1 Wflx:ill expre5 on 04122/2016, and Is notfor resale 

U1erNotea: 
CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A (1094927688) 

1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment K 772



lnlt. 

See the Hoffinan Construction Company GMP Amendment No. 7 Recapitulation for Deep Concrete Work@ 
Area 30 & Misc. Changes. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alternates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner: 
(State the numbers or other identification of accepted a/le males. If the Contract Documents permit the Owner lo 
accept other alternates subsequent to the execution of this Amendment, attach a schedule of such other alternates 
showing the amount for each and the date when the amount expires.) 

Subcontractor Payment and Performance Bond. included within the above price. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, if any: 
(Identify allowance and srate exclusions, if any, from the a/lawance price.) 

Item 
Structure Crack Injection 
Structure Water Testing 
Emergency Repair at Existing Surge Tank 
Early Mechanical BIM Detailing and Spool Sheets HCC 

Price ($0.00) 
$100,000.00 
$50.000.00 
$45.000.00 
$75.000.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Assumptions, if any, on which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based: 

See the Hoffinan Construction Company GMP Amendment No. 7 Recapitulation for Deep Concrete Work @ 
Area 30 & Misc. Changes. Within this GMP Amendment. the "Concrete Foundations and Walls - Area 30 HSI" 
Work is on a time and materials basis with a not exceed amount of Five Million Four Hundred Forty-Four Thousand 
Eight Hundred Thirtv Dollars ($5,444,830.00). 

§ A.1.1.6 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplementary and other Conditions of the 
Contract: 

I. Hoffinan Cost Summary for Deep Concrete Work@ Area 30 & Misc. Changes. 

2. Hoffinan GMP No. 7 Project Schedule. 

OeGlllHAt 

§ A.1 .1.7 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
(Either list the Specifications here, or refer to an exhibit altached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Secondary Building (Area 30) Foundation and Wall Package Technical 
Specifications dated January 2016. as updated through addenda. 

Section Title Date 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawings here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondarv Building {Area 30) Foundation and Wall Package dated 
January 2016, as updated through addenda. 

Number Title Date 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following other documents and information: 
(List any other documents or information here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 

AJA Document A133"'- 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright C 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American tnstitute al Archi1ecls. All rights rvaerved. WARNING. Thia 
AJA• Document la protected by U.S. Copyright Law and 11\te!YMltlonal Tntatln. Unauthorized rvproductlon "distribution of th ta AJA• Docum•nr. or 
1"¥ poctlo0 of It, m•y cn11't In -.wera ch<f Inc! cdm•n•• penal!lq Md wu1 be paDNC11•11d ID thl mnlm&1111 ldaat po11lble undlf' th• I- TtA
docllment was produced by AIA software at 09:08:30 on 0312312016 under Order No 1248342233_ 1 which oxpires on IM/2212016, and is not for resale 

User Notes: CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A 
(1094927688} 

2 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment K 773



Contractor shall employ performance and cost control in accordance with the letter !Tom KBA dated March 22. 
2016. 

Construction Manager shall comply with Washington Department of Ecology funding requirements including the 
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Specifications Insert dated I 0130113. Construction Manager will perform 
construction activities in accordance with the City of Oak Harbor Cultural Resources Memorandum of Agreement 
approved April 21, 2015. 

ARTICLE A.2 
§ AJ..1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion established by this Amendment: 

6. 

~--} ~ ~---------CON~~at11re) 

&'o Se~ > JL~'--
fPrinted name and title) r..::-::-o--"- ·~~/ Th,~. s -- R~~l-f!!Jr· 

(Printed name and title) 

AJA Document A133"' - 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright C 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute af Architects. All rights rvserved. WARNING: Thl9 
AlA• Document le protected by U.S. Copyright Law •nd International Trvatln. Unauthorized rvproducllon or dl•trlbutlon ofthl8 N.A• Document, or 

----~•!Jr.......,Jl~!l-°!.. lt._~Lresult !.'!. a.tvm clvl!.Jif?!l_c!'.!rnl!'f !.M!lt~ ... •nd_~PJMJ>C01tcu~1.Jn••l0111.m..t"1tftt..00Ullllil 1u1dtc,1!LtJ1w...trJs __ 
document was produced by AJA sottware at 09:08 30 on 0312312016 under Older No 1248342233_ 1 which expires on 0412212016, and is not for resale. 
UaerNot111: 

lnlL 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A (1094927688) 

3 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment K 774



Certification of Document's Authenticity 
AJA® Document 0401™ - 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, lo the best of my knowledge, infonnation and belief, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certification at 09:08:30 on 03123/2016 under Order No. 
1248342233_ 1 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
changes to the original text of AJA e Document A 133™ - 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximwn Price Amendment. 
as published by the AIA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and striking over deleted text 

(Signed) 

(Title) 

(Dated) 

AJA Document 0401 "' - 2003. Copyriglll C 1992 and 2003 by The American lnsblula of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AJA• Document Is 
procac:tad by U.S. Copyright Law and lntematlonal Tr&11tln. Unauthorlzod rvproductlon or dl•trlbutlon of this AJA• Document, or any portion of It, 1 JD1Y t1Slltt In ff'drl..CJyJl.lJl:ClcrllnlDillJ;leDAltlH and wm be pmHcuted 10 !ht •.uknum Ht111t poulhll un<fer "'* la• Ibis 4«wn1:~-
AIA !.OflWare at 09 08 30 on 0312312016 under Order No.1248342233_ 1 which elq)ires on 0412212016. and is not for resale. 
UeerNotea: 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A ( 1094927688) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment K 775



L HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY ri OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 

Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No. 7 Recapitulation 

Deep Concrete Work @Area 30 & Misc. Changes 

Direct Cost of Work 

Concrete Foundatio ns and Walls -- Area 30 HSI 

Deep Concrete Structural Excavation and Backfill Pellco 

Underslab Piping at Area 30 TBO 

Aluminum Embedded edge angle at trenches WIW 

Additional Tie-backs at Sheet Piling - GL9 CJA 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

Additional Tie-backs at Sheet Piling - GLA at sump CJA S 
CE 0048 Additional MBR Cassette Suppor t Beams GE-Zenon S 

CE 0049 Remove 40hp VFD's from GE Scope GE-Zenon 

CE 0050 Remove Blower Starter from GE Scope GE-Zenon 

CE 0051 - Change MBR RIO Panels to Floor Mount GE-Zenon 

CE OOS8 -- Increased MBR Hanger Arm Lengths GE-Zenon 

CE 0043 - Sheet Piling Obstruction M itigation CJA, 

Pellco S 

Allowance - St ructure crack injection S 
Allowance - Structure water testing S 

Allowance - Emergency Repair at Exist . Surge Tank CE 0057 S 

Allowance -Early mechanical BIM detailing and Spool 

Sheets HCC 

15-Mar-16 

Rev 1 

5,444,830 

120,697 

120,320 

24,118 

90,000 

S0,000 

55,000 

(8,408) 

(25,988) 

11,467 

10,207 

76,942 

100,000 

50,000 

45,000 

75,000 

Total Direct Cost s ______ 6..,,2_3_9 ... ,1_8_5_ 

Negotiated Support Services 

Negotiated Support Services HCC s 1,307,264 

Builders Risk -- Premium for Projected Total GMP Woodr uff S 351,9S9 

Additional Dewatering Well for Deep Excavation Pellco S S,660 

Corrosion Resistant Dewatering Pumps (Purchase -3ea) Mitchell S 10,070 

Self Dumping Dirt Hoppers for Si r. Exe. (purchase) 2 ea HCC ....=.S ______ ..:2:.:2:<.:,1:..:1:.:6'-

Total NSS _..;..S _____ l..;.,6_9_7"-,0-6_9_ 

Total NSS and Direct Costs._! S;:;.._ ____ _c7..c,9:..:3:..:6:<.:,2:.:S-'4_.I 

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 

s 
s 

277,769 

158,725 

Total Direct+NSS+Contingencies ~I .,;S _____ ..:8:.c,3:.:7-=2"-, 7'-4"8'-'I 

Specified General Conditions s S99,220 

Sub-Total NSS and Spec Gen Condit ions Is 8,971,968 I 

GCCM Fee at 4.28% s 384,000 

Total GMP Cost._l ;,;.5 ____ ~9,c:.3::.;SS'-',9::.;6:..:8'--'I 

Washington Stat e Sales Tax @8.7% -'-5 ______ 8_1_3~,9_6_9_ 

Total Amendment No 7 (Incl. Sales Tax)._I .!;$ ____ .;;.10"''c:l-=6.;;.9,.;:,9c.;;3..;.7_1 
Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 
GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 

GMP Amendment No. 6 -- Site Prep C 

Total GC/ CM Contract with this Amendment w/ o WSST 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

790,050 

2,SS3,317 

1,991,249 

836,130 

S,109,549 

2,028,222 

3,966,S03 

26, 630, 9ss I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment K 776



HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY r1 OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor Washington 

Clean Water Facil ity Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 7 - Area 30 Foundation and Walls 

Negotiated Support Services Scope 

40 Week Duration 

Description 

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance (.01 TCC) 

NSS 007001 Office manager (10 mos) 
NSS 007001 Job services I field supt - E Spicer (10 mos) 

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce - SIM modeling (8 hours per week x 20 weeks) 

NSS 007012 Temp housing (40 weeks) 

NSS 007024 Construction and Aerial Photographs (10 mos) 
NSS 007026 Plans and Prints (lOmos) 
TC 007061 Initial Tower Crane Rental 

TC 00706S Tower crane inbound freight 

TC 015200 Tower crane foundation concrete and reinforcing steel 

TC 015200 Tower crane isolation box design 

TC 01S200 Tower crane footing excavation and subbase 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing stone columns (16 each) 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection tech assist 

TC 007067 Tower crane test weight freight 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection assist cranes 

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party 

TC 007067 Tower crane electrical 3rd party inspection 

TC 007067 Tower cr ane tower retorque 

TC 007069 Initial crane rigging supply 

NSS 015750 Tower crane operator (7 / 19/ 16 - 6/1/17) 

NSS 015750 Rigger/ Bellman for tower crane (7/19/16 - 6/1/17) 

NSS na Tower crane foundation sheet piling impacts 

TC 007067 Tower Crane Embed Anchor 

TC 015100 Tower Crane Temporary Power Supply 
NSS 007061 RT Crane for duration of Mlcropile Work (16 weeks) 
NSS 007065 Transport Equipment (10 mos) 

NSS 007065 RT Crane mob/demob 
NSS 007069 Small Tools (10 months) 
NSS 015750 Operator for RT Crane (4/4/16 - 7/31/16) - 16 weeks 

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party {40 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup 
NSS 007060 Radio r ental extension - 4 units (40 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 40 weeks) 
NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 40 weeks rental 
NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters for debris and recycle hndlg (4 each x 40 weeks) 

NSS 007063 Gas Oil and Maint 
NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax 

NSS 007098 Computer Charges (40 weeks) 

NSS 015940 Extension of Answering Service {130/month for lOmos) 

Ming Survey $95/hr st and $117 /hr ot 
NSS 010500 (1600hrs ST and 160hrs OT) 

Garner 

Garner 

Answering 
Innovations 

Ming 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

Amount Comment 

Remaining Premium on 

s Summary 

$ 50,920.00 

$ 117,800.00 

s 16,000.00 

s 15,000.00 

s 5,000.00 

s 1,000.00 
Incl w -amend 4 

Incl w-amend 4 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Ind w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w -amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w -amend 6 

Incl w -amend 6 

$ 213,360.00 

$ 208,080.00 

Incl w-amend 6 
Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 
Incl w-amend 6 

$ 30,000.00 
Incl w-amend 6 

$ 8,000.00 

Incl w-amend 6 

s 20,000.00 

w-spec GC 

$ 3,040.00 
Add radios for operators 

s 3,040.00 and bellman 

s 1,500.00 

s 24,000.00 

s 35,188.00 

$ 17,701.00 

$ 4,000.00 

s 1,300.00 
Half time 2 man crew, 2 

hours OT I week 7S% of 

$ 127,200.00 period 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment K 777



Group 
NSS 

NSS 

NSS 
NSS 

Code Description 

007024 Orthographically corrected aerial photos for Design 
015300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (2121f) 10 months 

015300 Fence Rental Extension (10 months) 

015180 Temp Water Service (10 months) 
NS5 015200 Temporary Structure Construction and Maint (10 months) 

NSS 

NSS 
NSS 

NSS 

015220 Temp Road Maint 
015240 Temp Work Base Maintenance (10 months) 

015280 First Aid / Water Stations (2 each additional- Purchase) 

015280 First Ai d Station Maintenance & Supply ( 10 months) 

NSS 015280 Safety Glasses, Gloves, Hearing Protection (10 months) 

Temporary Electric 

NSS 015100 -- Power and lighting distribution maintenance, 10 months 
TC 015100 Tower crane -- transformer and drop off existi ng pole, 300' 

Sub 
Soundview 

Yard 

United 

Yard 

NSS 015100 North side site power fed from Whidbey Island Bank Bldg Valley 

NSS 015100 Temporary electric service to jobshack area 

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each, 40 weeks) 
NSS 015150 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 40 weeks) 
NSS 015180 Backflow preventer and meter on water service 

NSS 015940 Inkjet plotter - field office 
NSS 015200 Coiling door installation at North Side ofWIB 

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (40wks) 

NSS 015200 Installation of second stair tower 
NSS 015200 Extension of Second stair tower rental (40 weeks) 

NSS 015200 Prefabricated dumpster access platform 
NSS 015200 Concrete pad at dumpster access 12'x24'x4" 

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 40 weeks) 
NSS 015282 Drug Tests (180 ea) 

NSS 015800 Sign age (10 mos) 
NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply (10 months) 

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage ( 10 mos) 
NSS 017990 Job Services (40 weeks, one individual) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

Amount Comment 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 5,610.00 

$ 5,750.00 

$ 1,600.00 

$ 20,000.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 28,000.00 

$ 1,500.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

Incl w-amend 6 
Incl w-amend 6 

3ea 4" conduitsx 200lf 

Incl w-amend 6 w/SO Cord 

$ 16,875.00 

$ 82,000.00 
By COH 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 12,000.00 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 12,000.00 
Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 20,000.00 

$ 15,300.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 9,500.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 136,000.00 

$ 1,307,264 .00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment K 778



S~ecified General Conditions & Staffing 

Weeks Weekly Rate Total 

Trevor Thies 30 $ 3,270 $ 98,100 

Bryan Shirley 40 $ 3,818 $ 152,720 

Ben Larson 40 $ 2,745 $ 109,800 

Kevin Ryan 40 $ 2,840 $ 113,600 

$ 474,220 

Other LS GC $ 125,000 

Total Specified GC $ 599,220 

RFFP Total: $ 2,007,490 

Total Specified Ge's Included to Date by Amendment 

Amount % ofTota l 

Amendment 1 $ 0% 

Amendment 2 $ 108,034 5% 

Amendment 3 $ 0% 

Amendment 4 $ 162,180 8% 

Amendment 5 $ 0% 

Amendment 6 $ 147,112 7% 

Amendment 7 $ 599,220 30% 

Total To Date $ 1,016,546 51% 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment K 779



3/22/2016 

Brett Arvidson, PE 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 

Re: Oak Harbor - Clean Water Facility 

Dear Mr. Arvidson: 

This letter serves to confirm that the accuracy of the costs that Hoffman Construction (Hoffman) 
used to estimate the overall cost of proposed GMP Amendment No. 7, are reasonably acceptable. 

KBA performed an independent quantity estimate (i.e., takeoff) to check the volume of concrete, 
weight of reinforcing steel and surface contact area for formwork. KBA obtained two independent 
quotes for the cost of concrete. Three competitive bids for the furnishing and installation of 
reinforcing steel were also reviewed. Labor rates were checked against local area prevail ing 
wage rates. Hoffman's proposed construction schedule was evaluated and the proposed 
schedule duration of 45 weeks was found to be a reasonable amount of time to perform the Work. 

The total cost of the self-performed work does not exceed 50% of the current contract value, 
which is the maximum percentage of self-performed work allowed by RCW 39.10.370(7)(c). 

KBA's recommendation is to accept Hoffman's final cost estimate of $5,444,830 (excluding 
Washington State Sales Tax) for proposed GMP Amendment No. 7. 

It is also recommended that the Work and General Conditions should be tracked and paid on a 
time-and-material basis. 

Analysis of Hoffman's cost estimate was performed in a manner consistent with that degree of 
care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under 
similar circumstances, in the same geographical area and time period. 

Please contact K Adams or myself if you have any comments or questions. 

Chad Oxford, PE 

KBA, INC. (MAIN OFFICE) 11201 SE 8th Street~ Suite 160 Bellevue, Washington 98004 
CWF - GMP Amendment #1 - Attachment C 

T 425 455 9720 F 425 455 9732 KBACM.com 

CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment K 780



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment L 781



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment L 782



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment L 783



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment L 784



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment L 785



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment L 786



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment L 787



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment L 788



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment L 789



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 790



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 791



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 792



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 793



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 794



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 795



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 796



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 797



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 798



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 799



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 800



CWF - GMP Amendment #10 - Attachment M 801



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: 10-Inch Transmission Main 
Bridge Hanger Replacement -
PSA Amendment with KBA, 
Inc.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director & Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign Professional Services Amendment 
No. 1 with KBA, Inc. in the amount of $45,000, increasing the total contract amount from $29,985 to 
$74,985.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8. c. 
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: 10-Inch Transmission Main 
Bridge Hanger Replacement -
PSA Amendment with KBA, 
Inc.

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director & Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign Professional Services Amendment 
No. 1 with KBA, Inc. in the amount of $45,000, increasing the total contract amount from $29,985 to 
$74,985.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Construction work to replace the hangers which suspend the 10-Inch water transmission main from the 
Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges is performed at night. The Washington State Department of 
Transportation (WSDOT) required night work in order to minimize the impacts of closing a lane on the 
bridges to the traveling public. WSDOT also requires that a City representative be on site on the bridges 
while the City’s Contractor is working.

 The Engineering Division does not have the staff necessary to provide full time overnight construction 
observation and management. Consequently a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with KBA, Inc. 
to provide the construction management services was signed by the Mayor on September 12, 2016 in the 
amount of $29,985. The original PSA amount is within the Mayor’s signature authority and the PSA was 
not presented to Council.

 During construction, the insulation that encapsulated the existing water main was removed to allow for 
hanger replacement.  Removing the pipe insulation revealed that most of the couplings located every 90 
feet are corroded and in need of replacement. Replacing the pipe couplings will add a significant amount
of time and effort to the construction management services needed at the bridge site. Consequently there 
is a need to increase the maximum amount of the construction management PSA with KBA, Inc. The 
original PSA has an amount not to be exceeded of $29,985.00 which is intended to cover approximately
30 working days on the bridges. The details of coupling replacement are not fully developed, however we 
believe that it is prudent to add approximately 41 additional days of work to the PSA and recommend 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Construction work to replace the hangers which suspend the 10-Inch water transmission main from the 
Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges is performed at night. The Washington State Department of 
Transportation (WSDOT) required night work in order to minimize the impacts of closing a lane on the 
bridges to the traveling public. WSDOT also requires that a City representative be on site on the bridges 
while the City’s Contractor is working.

 The Engineering Division does not have the staff necessary to provide full time overnight construction 
observation and management. Consequently a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with KBA, Inc. 
to provide the construction management services was signed by the Mayor on September 12, 2016 in the 
amount of $29,985. The original PSA amount is within the Mayor’s signature authority and the PSA was 
not presented to Council.

 During construction, the insulation that encapsulated the existing water main was removed to allow for 
hanger replacement.  Removing the pipe insulation revealed that most of the couplings located every 90 
feet are corroded and in need of replacement. Replacing the pipe couplings will add a significant amount 
of time and effort to the construction management services needed at the bridge site. Consequently there 
is a need to increase the maximum amount of the construction management PSA with KBA, Inc. The 
original PSA has an amount not to be exceeded of $29,985.00 which is intended to cover approximately 
30 working days on the bridges. The details of coupling replacement are not fully developed, however we 
believe that it is prudent to add approximately 41 additional days of work to the PSA and recommend 

802



authorizing an additional $45,000 for a total authorized amount of $75,985

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:__$45,000

Appropriation Source:__Water Fund_401

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL/BOARD/CITIZEN IMPUT/CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

 October 28, 2015 - The hanger replacement project was presented at the Council Workshop

 July 27, 2016 – The hanger replacement project was presented at the Council Workshop

 August 24, 2016 – Construction bid results for hanger replacement was presented at the Special 
Council Workshop.

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 17, 2015 - Approved the professional Services Agreement With Gray & Osborne, Inc. to 
conduct Structural Inspections on the water mains suspended from the Deception Pass and Canoe Pass 
bridges in an amount not to exceed $17,300.

authorizing an additional $45,000 for a total authorized amount of $75,985

LEGAL AUTHORITY
 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:__$45,000

Appropriation Source:__Water Fund_401

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL/BOARD/CITIZEN IMPUT/CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

 October 28, 2015 - The hanger replacement project was presented at the Council Workshop

 July 27, 2016 – The hanger replacement project was presented at the Council Workshop

 August 24, 2016 – Construction bid results for hanger replacement was presented at the Special 
Council Workshop.

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 17, 2015 - Approved the professional Services Agreement With Gray & Osborne, Inc. to 
conduct Structural Inspections on the water mains suspended from the Deception Pass and Canoe Pass 
bridges in an amount not to exceed $17,300.bridges in an amount not to exceed $17,300.

 April 7, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for Structural Inspection Services related to the 
Deception and Canoe Pass Bridge Water Line Inspection and Assessment in the amount of $4,160 
increasing the total contract amount from $17,300 to $21,490.

 December 1, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with 
Gray & Osborne, Inc. for the for design of the replacement hanger system for an amount not to exceed 
$60,000.00 and a management reserve of $6,000.00 (10%) to allow the City Engineer the ability to 
authorize minor contract changes.

June 15, 2016 - City Council authorized staff to solicit construction bids for replacement of the hangers 
used to attach the 10-Inch Transmission Main to the Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges.

 August 24, 2016 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign construction contract for replacement of 
the hangers used to attach the 10-Inch Transmission Main to the Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges to 
Bridge Masters, Inc. in the not to exceed amount of $685,617.59.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Professional Services Agreement with KBA, Inc. - Amendment 1

bridges in an amount not to exceed $17,300.

 April 7, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Professional 
Services Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for Structural Inspection Services related to the 
Deception and Canoe Pass Bridge Water Line Inspection and Assessment in the amount of $4,160 
increasing the total contract amount from $17,300 to $21,490.

 December 1, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with 
Gray & Osborne, Inc. for the for design of the replacement hanger system for an amount not to exceed 
$60,000.00 and a management reserve of $6,000.00 (10%) to allow the City Engineer the ability to 
authorize minor contract changes.

June 15, 2016 - City Council authorized staff to solicit construction bids for replacement of the hangers 
used to attach the 10-Inch Transmission Main to the Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges.

 August 24, 2016 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign construction contract for replacement of 
the hangers used to attach the 10-Inch Transmission Main to the Deception and Canoe Pass Bridges to 
Bridge Masters, Inc. in the not to exceed amount of $685,617.59.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Professional Services Agreement with KBA, Inc. - Amendment 1

803

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478710011x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478710054x_at.pdf


2. Attachment B - Professional Services Agreement with KBA, Inc. - Original Contract2. Attachment B - Professional Services Agreement with KBA, Inc. - Original Contract

804

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478710054x_at.pdf


 
Amendment No. __1___ 11/9/2016 Page 1 of 2 
 
 

Consultant Agreement Amendment 
Number _1_ 
 

Organization and Address 
 
City of  Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
 
Phone: 360-279-4500 

Original Agreement Title:  
10-Inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement 
Project 
 
Project Number: ENG 15-04 
 

Execution Date 
Sept 12, 2016 

Completion Date (Prior) 
June 30, 2017 

Project Title 
10-Inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement 
Project 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
 
$74,985.00 

Description of Work 
Construction management and on-site observation 
 
 
The City of Oak Harbor           
desires to supplement the agreement entered into with   KBA, Inc. 
and executed on _Sept 12, 2016_ and identified as  10-Inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger 
Replacement             
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement 
 
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby amended to add the following: 
Additional CM work on site at the Canoe and Deception Pass Bridges  _____________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed and supplemented with the following: 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

805



 
Amendment No. __1___ 11/9/2016 Page 2 of 2 
 
 

PROJECT COMPLETION DATE AMENDED TO:  ________________________________ 
TIME OF COMPLETION – SCOPE OF SERVICES: _______________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Payment shall be made in accordance with the terms and conditions described in the original 
contract.  
 
If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 
 
 
By:         By:        
 
             
Consultant Signature     Approving Authority Signature 
 
             
         Date 

806



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

AND KBA, INC. 
FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

Project Name: 10-inch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement Project 
Contract Number: ENG-15-04 
Contract Amount: $29,985 
Expiration Date: June 30, 2017 

THIS AGREEMENT ("Agreement') is made and entered into by and between the City 
of OAK HARBOR, a Washington State municipal corporation ("City"), and KBA, Inc., a 
Washington Corporation ("Consultant"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and 
performances contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with consultant services regarding 
Construction Management Services for the I 0-Jnch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement Project 
as described in Article II. The general terms and conditions of the relationship between the City 
and the Consultant are specified in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein by this 
reference ("Scope of Services"). All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks 
outlined in the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otheiwise in 
the Scope of Services or this Agreement. All such services shall be provided in accordance with 
the standards of the Consultant's profession. 

ARTICLE Ill. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULT ANT 

111.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE. The Consultant shall accept minor changes, 
amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the City 
when such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed delivery schedule. 
Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in cost or schedules will be 
addressed as follows: 

Extra Work. The City may desire to have the Consultant perform work or render 
services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services. Such work will be 
considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 

1 

807



services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope 
thereof. All proposals for extra work or services shal1 be prepared by the Consultant at 
no cost to the City. Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until 
executed in writing by the parties. 

IH.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS. The work product and all 
documents produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and 
upon completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records. The Consultant will be 
responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted by the City. 

In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 
Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work product of the 
Consultant, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or termination, shal1 become 
the property of the City. Upon request, the Consultant shall tender the work product and 
summary to the City. Tender of said work product shall be a prerequisite to final payment under 
this Agreement. The summary of work done shal1 be prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement 
or modjfications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this Agreement 
without the written authorization of Consultant. 

111.3 TERM. The term of this Agreement shall commence on September 7, 2016 and 
shall terminate al midnight, June 30, 2017. The parties may extend the term of this Agreement 
by written mutual agreement 

111.4 NONASSIGNABLE. The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be 
assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 

111.5 EMPLOYMENT. Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in 
the performance of any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, shall 
be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and a ll claims that 
may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any said employees 
while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a consequence of any 
negligent act or omission on the part of the Consultant or its employees while so engaged in any 
of the work or services provided herein shall be the sole obligation of the Consultant. 

111.6 INDEMNIFICATION I HOLD HARMLESS. Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any 
and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, 
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and 

2 

808



the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability, including the 
duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's negligence. It 
is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein 
constitutes the Consultant's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, 
solely for the purposes of this indemnification. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the 
parties. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 

a. Insurance Term. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the 
duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees. 

b. No Limitation. Consultant's maintenance of insurance as required by the 
agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage 
provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the ·City's recourse to any remedy 
available at law or in equity. 

c. Minimum Scope oflnsurancc. Consultant shall obtain insurance of the 
types and coverage described below: 

1. Automobile Liabilitv insurance covering all owned, non-owned, 
hired and leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad 
as ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and advertising 
injury. The City shall be named as an additional insured under the Consultant's 
Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect to the work 
performed for the City using an additional insured endorsement at least as broad 
as ISO CG 20 26. 

3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial 
Insurance laws of the State of Washington. 

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant's 
profession. 

d. Minimum Amounts oflnsurance. Consultant shall maintain the 
following insurance limits: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single 
limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

3 

809



2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with 
limits no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 

3. Professional Liabi1ity insurance shall be written with limits no less 
than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 

e. Other Insurance Provision. The Consultant's Automobile Liability and 
Commercial General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain 
that they shall be primary insurance as respect the City. Any Insurance, self-insurance, or 
self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the Consu1tant's 
insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

f. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a 
current A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VI1. 

g. Verification of Coverage. Consultant shall furnish the City with original 
certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily 
limited to the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of 
the Consultant before commencement of the work. 

h. Notice ofCance11ation. The Consultant shall provide the City with 
written notice of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such 
notice. 

i. Failure to Maintain Insurance. Failure on the part of the Consultant to 
maintain the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon 
which the City may, after giving five business days notice to the Consultant to correct the 
breach; immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure or renew such 
insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so 
expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole discretion of the City, offset 
against funds due the Consultant from the City. 

j. City Full Availability of Consultant Limits. If the Consultant maintains 
higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall be insured for the 
full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or Umbrella liability maintained 
by the Consultant, irrespective of whether such limits maintained by the Consultant are 
greater than those required by this contract or whether any certificate of insurance 
furnished to the City evidences limits of liability lower than those maintained by the 
Consultant. 

Ill. 7 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 
OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION. The Consultant agrees to comply with equal opportunity 
employment and not to discriminate against c lient, employee, or applicant for employment or for 
services because of race, creed, color, religion. national origin, marital status, sex, scxua1 
orientation, age or handicap except for a bona tide occupational qualification with regard, but not 

4 

810



limited to, the following: employment upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or any 
recruitment advertising; layoff or tenninations; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
selection for training, rendition of services. The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as 
appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous places, setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. The Consultant understands and agrees that if it violates this 
nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement may be terminated by the City, and further that the 
Consultant will be barred from performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a 
showing is made satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and 
that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

111.8 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES. During the perfonnancc of this 
Agreement, the Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60. I 80, prohibiting unfair 
employment practices. 

111.9 LEGAL RELATIONS. The Consultant shall comply with all fcder.d, state and 
local laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement. The Consultant 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be performed and 
that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this Agreement are fully qualified 
and properly licensed to perform the work to which they will be assigned. This Agreement shall 
be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of Washington. Venue for any 
litigation commenced relating to this Agreement shall be in Island County Superior Court. 

111.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the 
Consultant is an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement. The Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his status es 
an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services required under 
this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part independent contractor test set 
forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended. The Consultant, as an independent 
contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and accomplishing the 
services required under this Agreement. The Consultant shall make no claim of City 
employment nor shall claim any related employment benefits, social security, and/or 
retirement benefits. 

b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, 
and assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security 
tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions from 
income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a result of this 
Agreement. In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a result of this 
Agreement, the Consultant shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other 
independent contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs 
hereunder. 

5 

811



d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business 
license from the City. 

HI. I I CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the 
City of any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant's client base and shall obtain written 
pennission from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or potential 
conflict of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a conflict is 
irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 

111.12 CITY CONFIDENCES. The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict 
confidence, and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any information 
regarding the City or services provided to the City. 

111. 13 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULT ANTS. 

a. The Consultant shall is responsible for all work performed by 
subcontractors/subconsultants pursuant to the tenns of this Agreement. 

b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subconsultants they 
directly hire meet the responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a 
subcontractor/subconsultant has proper license and bonding, if required by statute, must 
be included in the verification process. The Consultant will use the following 
Subcontractors/Subconsultants or as set forth in Exhibit __ 

None. 

c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subconsultants 
without the written approval of the City. 

d . All Subcontractors/Subconsultants shall have the same insurance 
covemges and limits as set forth in this Agreement and the Consultant shall provide 
verification of said insurance coverage. 

6 

812



ARTICLE IV. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 

IV. I PAYMENTS. 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City on a time and materials basis for 
services rendered under this Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as 
provided in this section. In no event shall the compensation paid to Consultant under this 
Agreement exceed $29,985 without the written agreement of the Consultant and the City. 
Such payment shall be full compensation for work performed and services rendered and 
for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the 
work. In the event the City elects to expand the scope of services from that set forth in 
Exhibit A, the City shall pay Consultant a mutually agreed amount. 

b. The Consultant shall submit a monthly invoice to the City for services 
performed in the previous calendar month. At a minimum, invoices shall include (I) a 
summary of previous invoices; (2) current invoice amount; (3) total current monthly 
billing; (4) amount authorized under this agreement; and (5) total authorized amount still 
remaining under the agreement. The Consultant shall maintain time and expense records 
and provide them to the Cities upon request. 

c. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before 
the 20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 

IV.2 CITY APPROVAL. Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent 
contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the approval of 
the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been completed in compliance 
with the Scope ofServiccs and City requirements. 

IV .3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS. The Consultant shall 
maintain all books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. All 
such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall be subject to 
inspection and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor at all 
reasonable times, and the Consultant shall afford the proper facilities for such inspection and 
audit. Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor may copy such books, 
accounts and records where necessary to conduct or document an audit. The Consultant shall 
preserve and make available all such books of account and records for a period of three (3) years 
after final payment under this Agreement. In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any 
discrepancy in such financial records, the Consultant shall provide the City with appropriate 
clarification and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the 
discrepancy. 

7 

813



ARTICLE V. GENERAL 

V.I NOTICES. 

Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
ARNIE PETERSCllMIDT 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
865 SE BARRINGTON DRIVE 
OAK HARBOR, WA 98277 

Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 
K.ADAMS 
KBA,INC. 
11201 SE 8TH ST, SUITE 160 
BELLEVUE, WA 98004 

Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 
notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 

V.2 TERMINATION. The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement 
in whole or in part at any time upon ten ( J 0) calendar days' written notice to the Consultant. 

If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 
shall pay the Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of termination in 
accordance with payment prov is ions of Section V 1.1. 

V .3 DISPUTES. The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation 
and compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION. This Agreement, together 
with attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the parties 
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. This 
Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written instrument properly signed by 
both parties. 

V.5 SEVERABILITY 
a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of 

this Agreement to be illcga1 or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining 
provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall be construed 
and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be 
invalid. 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory 
provision of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 

8 

814



V .6 NONW AIVER. A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party 
hereto of any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not 
in default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof. Leniency, delay or failure of either 
party to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of this 
Agreement, or to exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall not be 
construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, condition or right. 

V.7 FAIR MEANING. The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair 
meaning and shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of 
authorship. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE. The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall 
lie in the Superior Court of Washington for Snohomish County, Washington. 

V .10 COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and 
the same Agreement. 

V.11 AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTms AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT. 
The undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to bind 
the parties for and on behalfof the legal entities set forth below. 

DATED this f2~ day of~ ,20~,. 

KBA, INC. 

9 

815



Intentionally blank. 

10 

816



KBA, Inc. 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Construction Management Services 
for 

September 8, 2016 

Oak Harbor 10-lnch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement Project 
Contract No. ENG-15-04 

KBA, Inc. (Consultant) wiU provide Construction Management (CM) services to City of Oak Harbor 
(Client), for the Project known as 10-lnch Pipeline Bridge Hanger Replacement Project. These 
services will include consultation, fleld observation, and documentation, as required during the 
construction of the Project, as detailed below. 

Project Description: 
The work shall consist of the replacement of approximately 165 - 1 0-inch-diameter steel pipe hangers on 
the Deception Pass and Canoe Pass Bridges to include removal and disposal of existing hangers, 
installation of new pipe hangers and pipe insulation, providing traffic control, touch up painting of the 
existing bridge coatlng system, and all associated work as shown on the Plans and as specified herein. 
The Designer of Record on this project is Gray and Osbourne, Inc. (Designer). 

I. CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

A. Consultant Contract Management. Provide overall day. to-day management of the 
consultant contract and staff, including: 

1. Decide on best modes and frequency of communication with Client and Designer, and use 
them. Liaison and coordinate with Cllent on a regular basis to discuss Project Issues and 
status. 

2. Review monthly expenditures and CM team scope activities. Prepare and submit to Client 
monthly, an Invoice and progress report describing CM services provided that month. 

Deliverables 
• Monthly Invoices and progress reports 

B. Preconstruction Services 

1. Review Contract Documents to famlliarize team with Project requirements. 

2. Provide one set of preconstruction photographs. 

Deliverables 
• Preconstruction photos, digital files on electronic storage medium 

C. Construction Phase Services - Field 

1. Observe the technical conduct of the construction, Including providing day-to-day contact with 
the construction contractor, Client, utilities, and other stakeholders, and monitor for 
adherence to the Contract Documents. The Consultant's personnel will act In accordance 
with Sections 1-05.1 and 1-05.2 of the WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications. 

2. Observe material, workmanship, and construction areas for compliance with the Contract 
Documents and applicable codes, and notify construction contractor of noncompliance. 
Advise the Client of any non-confonning work observed during site visits. 

817



KBA, lnc. September 8, 2016 

3. Prepare daily construction reports, recording the construction contractor's operations as 
actually observed by the Consultant: includes quantities of work placed that day, contractor's 
equipment and crews, and other pertinent infonnation. 

4. Interpret Contract Documents, in coordination with Designer. 

5, Evaluate issues which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of material furnished, 
work perfonned, and rate of progress of work performed by the construction contractor. 

6. Establish communications with adjacent property owners. Respond to questions from 
property owners and the general public. 

7. Coordinate with permit holders on the Project to monitor compliance with approved permits, if 
applicable. 

8. Prepare field records and documents to hetp assure the Project Is admtnfstered in 
accordance with funding agency requirements. 

9. Attend and actively participate in regular on-site meetings. 

10. Take periodic digital photographs during the course of construction. Photographs to be 
fabeled and organized as detailed in the CM Plan. 

11 . Punch List. Upon substantial completion of work, coordinate with the Client and affected 
agencies, to prepare a 'punch list' of items to be completed or corrected. Coordinate final 
Inspection with those agencies. 

Deliverables 
• Dally Construction Reports with Project photos - submitted on a weekly basis 
• Punch List(s) 

D. Assumptions 

1. Budget: 

a. Staffing levels are anticipated in accordance with the negotiated budget estimate. 
Consultant services are budgeted for an approximate 27 working day period, from 
September 19, 2016 through October 25, 2016. This work is Night Shift (NS) work and 
has been budgeted using a 15% NS differential for field staff labor. Overtime has not 
been figured Into the budget. 

b. Consultant will work up to the limltatlons of the authorized budget. If additional budget is 
needed to cover such instances as the following, Client and Consultant will negotiate a 
supplement to this Agreement: 

i. The contractor's schedute requires inspection coverage of extra crews and shifts. 
Ii. The construction contract runs longer than the lime period detailed above. 
iii. Any added scope tasks. 

c. The negotiated budget allocations are itemized to aid in Project tracking purposes only. 
The budget may be transferred between tasks or people, or between labor and 
expenses, provided the total contracted amount Is not exceeded without prior 
authorization. 

d. The budget assumes that Consultant's standard forms, logs, and processes will be used. 
Any customization to meet specialized Client requirements will be Extra Work. 

2. Items and Services Client will provide: 

a. Meeting arrangements and facilities for pre-bid and preconstruction meetings. Prepare 
and dlstribute meeting notes from pre-bid meeling(s), if any. 

818



KBA, Inc. September 8, 2016 

b. Retain Engineer of Record for shop drawing review, RFls, design changes, and final 
record drawings. 

c. Coordination with and enforcement of utility franchise agreements and/or contracts and 
schedules for services related to this Project. 

d. Verify that the required permits, bonds, and insurance have been obtained and submitted 
by the construction contractor. Obtain all permits not required to be provided by 
construction contractor. 

e. Construction Survey. Provide project control survey and staking that is not already 
assigned to the construction contractor. 

3. Scope; 

a. Consultant will provide observation services for the days/hours that its' I nspector(s) 
personnel is/are on-site. The lnspector(s) will not be able to observe or report 
construction activities, or collect documentation, during the time they are not on-site. 

b. The Consultant's monitoring of the construction contractor's activities is to ascertain 
whether or not they are performing the work in accordance with the Contract Documents; 
in case of noncompliance. Consultant will reject non-conforming work and pursue the 
other remedies in the Interests of the Client, as detailed ln the Contract Documents. The 
Consultant cannot guarantee the construction contractor's performance, and it is 
understood that Consultant shall assume no responsibility for proper construction means, 
methods, techniques, Project site safety, safety precautions or programs, or for the failure 
of any other entity to perform its work in accordance with laws, contracts, regulations, or 
Client's expectations. 

c. Definitions and Roles. The use of the term "inspe~ ln relation to Consultant services is 
synonymous with "construction observation, and reference to the ~Inspector" role is 
synonymous with •Field Representative." and means: performing on-site observations of 
the progress and quality of the Work and determining, in general, If the Work is being 
performed in conformance with the Contract Documents; and notifying the Client if Work 
does not conform to the Contract Documents or requlres special inspection or testing. 
Where •specialty Inspector" or "specialty inspection• Is used, it refers to Inspection by a 
Bulldlng Official or independent agent of the Building Official, or other licensed/certified 
Inspector who provides a certified inspection report in accordance with an established 
standard. 

d. Because of the prior use of the Project site, there is a possibility of the presence of toxic 
or hazardous materials. Consultant shall have no responsibility for the discovery, 
presence, handling. removal or disposal of toxic or hazardous materials, or for exposure 
of persons to toxic or hazardous materials in any form at the Project site, including but 
not limited to asbestos. asbestos products, polychlorlnated blphenyl (PCB), or other toxic 
substances. If the Consultant suspects the presence of hazardous materials, they will 
notify the Client Immediately for resolution. 

e. Review of Shop Drawings, samples, and other submlttals will be for general conformance 
with the design concept and general compUance with the requirements of the contract for 
construction. Such review will not relieve the Contractor from Its responslblllty for 
performance in accordance with the contract for construction, nor is such review a 
guarantee that the work covered by the shop drawings. samples and submittals Is free of 
errors, inconsistencies or omissions. 

f. Review of Shop Drawings and other construction contractor submittals is not intended as 
an approval of the submittals if they deviate from the Contract Documents or contain 
errors, omlssions and Inconsistencies. nor Is it Intended to relieve the construction 
contractor of their full responsibility for Contract performance, nor ls the review intended 
to ensure a guarantee lack of Inconsistencies, errors, and/or omissions between the 
submittats and the Contract requirements. This review will not include review of the 

819



KBA, Inc. September 8, 2016 

accuracy or completeness of details. such as quantities, dimensions, weights, or gauges, 
fabrication processes, construction means or methods, or coordination of the work with 
other trades, all of which are the sole responsibility of the construction contractor. 
Review of a specific Item will not indicate that the Consultant has reviewed the entire 
assembly of which the item is a component 

g. Any opinions of probable construction cost provided by the Consultant will be on the 
basis of experience and professional judgment. However, since Consultant has no 
control over competitive bidding or market conditions, the Consultant cannot and does 
not warrant that bids or ultimate construction costs will not vary from these opinions of 
probable construction costs. 

h. Quantity takeoffs and calculated quantities are for the purpose of comparing with 
Designer's and/or bidders' quantities, and are not a guarantee of final quantities. 

i. Development of construction schedules and/or sequencing, and/or reviewing and 
commenting on contractor's schedules, is for the purpose of estimatfng number of days to 
complete a project, and for Identifying potential schedule and coordination challenges 
and determining compliance with the construction contract. It is not a guarantee that a 
construction contractor will complete the Project in that sequence or tlmellne, as means 
and methods are the responsibility of the construction contractor. 

j. Consultant is not responsible for any costs, claims or judgments arising from or ln any 
way connected with errors, omissions, conflicts or ambiguities In the Contract Documents 
prepared by others. The Consultant does not have responsibility for the professional 
quality or technical adequacy or accuracy of the design plans or specifications, nor for 
their timely completion by others. 

k. RCW 4.24.115 is applicable to Consultant's services provided under this Agreement. 

I. Services provided by the Consultant under this Agreement will be performed In a manner 
consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same 
profession currently practicing under slmllar circumstances, in the same geographical 
area and time period. 

m. Client agrees that Consultant will not be held liable for the completeness, correctness, 
readabilfty, or compatibility of any electronic media submitted to Client, after an 
acceptance period of 30 days after delivery of the electronic files, because data stored on 
electronic media can deteriorate undetected or can be modlfied without Consultant's 
knowledge. 

n. Consultant will not be liable for any damage to the fieTd office premises or utilities 
provided by Client, unless caused by Consultant's own negligence. 

11. OPTIONAL SERVICES 

All services not detailed above, are considered Optional Services, which, along with any other Extra Work 
requested by the Client, will be performed only when a mutually negotiated Supplement to this Agreement 
Is executed, specifying scope of services and budget. 

Z:'l'roJeda\ENG.15-041D-INCH PIPELINE BRIDGE HANGER REPLACEMEtffi200.FINANCE'21D-CONTRACTS\KllA\Scope-BrldgeHanger·.,._2018-0908.docX 4 Of 4 

820



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Approval of Contract with 
McGrath Human Resources 
Group for Comprehensive 
Classification and Compensation 
Study for all Non-represented 
Employees

FROM: Emma House, Human Resources Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
This items if for informational purposes only.  This agenda bill sets aside time for a discussion on a 
proposed contract with McGrath Human Resources Group for Comprehensive Classification and 
Compensation Study for all Non-represented Employees in the amount of $21,747.00.  Being under 
$30,000.00, staff has the authority to enter into the agreement under OHMC 2.390.040.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8. d. 
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Approval of Contract with 
McGrath Human Resources 
Group for Comprehensive 
Classification and Compensation 
Study for all Non-represented 
Employees

FROM: Emma House, Human Resources Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
This items if for informational purposes only.  This agenda bill sets aside time for a discussion on a 
proposed contract with McGrath Human Resources Group for Comprehensive Classification and 
Compensation Study for all Non-represented Employees in the amount of $21,747.00.  Being under 
$30,000.00, staff has the authority to enter into the agreement under OHMC 2.390.040.$30,000.00, staff has the authority to enter into the agreement under OHMC 2.390.040.

2.390.040 Departmental authority to contract.

Each department director shall, subject to the mayor’s direction and control, budgetary restrictions, and 
the conditions and exceptions stated in Chapter 2.310 OHMC through this chapter, regulation, 
procedures adopted by the mayor and state law, make purchases of materials, supplies and equipment 
and enter into contracts or purchase orders for the same in amounts up to $30,000

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On August 17, 2016, request for proposals were advertised for a comprehensive Classification and 
Compensation Study for all non-represented employees in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey
News Times for three consecutive weeks.

This study is to include approximately 81 positions and would include salary and fringe benefit levels, a 
review and necessary, an update of job descriptions, and a review of and recommendations on its 
performance management system.

The City has not conducted a review in approximately twelve (12) years. The job descriptions for current
non-represented employees have been updated by City staff, but job descriptions may not reflect current

$30,000.00, staff has the authority to enter into the agreement under OHMC 2.390.040.

2.390.040 Departmental authority to contract.

Each department director shall, subject to the mayor’s direction and control, budgetary restrictions, and 
the conditions and exceptions stated in Chapter 2.310 OHMC through this chapter, regulation, 
procedures adopted by the mayor and state law, make purchases of materials, supplies and equipment 
and enter into contracts or purchase orders for the same in amounts up to $30,000

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On August 17, 2016, request for proposals were advertised for a comprehensive Classification and 
Compensation Study for all non-represented employees in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey 
News Times for three consecutive weeks.

This study is to include approximately 81 positions and would include salary and fringe benefit levels, a 
review and necessary, an update of job descriptions, and a review of and recommendations on its 
performance management system.

The City has not conducted a review in approximately twelve (12) years. The job descriptions for current 
non-represented employees have been updated by City staff, but job descriptions may not reflect current 

821



job duties. This project will be a comprehensive study of positions, classifications, and compensation.

RFP Results: Staff received and opened four proposals on September 19, 2016.  Due to incomplete and 
estimate proposals, staff recommended rejecting all proposals to re-advertise to allow for current vendors 
to resubmit complete and final proposals.  The rejection of proposals was approved through City Council 
on October 4, 2016. 

The RFP was released on October 12, 2016 and the deadline for proposals was November 2, 2016. 

RFP Results: Staff received and opened four complete proposals on November 2, 2016 which 
ranged in bid price from $21,747 up to $73,400.

After review and consideration of the bid proposals and qualifications for the study, Human Resources 
recommends contract award to McGrath Human Resources Group and recommends City Council 
approval in the amount of $21,747.00.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Pursuant to OHMC 2.34.080 Compensation
2.34.080 Compensation
(1) It is the policy of the city of Oak Harbor to pay adequate levels of compensation to city employees. 
Providing adequate compensation to city employees promotes productivity, reduces turnover, and 
improves the city’s ability to attract and retain qualified personnel to carry out the functions of city 
government. Compensation levels should reflect the market for such personnel in the region.

(2) The human resources director is directed to develop a wage and salary schedule for all regular 
positions within city government. The human resources director shall prepare a current wage and salary 

job duties. This project will be a comprehensive study of positions, classifications, and compensation.

RFP Results: Staff received and opened four proposals on September 19, 2016.  Due to incomplete and 
estimate proposals, staff recommended rejecting all proposals to re-advertise to allow for current vendors 
to resubmit complete and final proposals.  The rejection of proposals was approved through City Council 
on October 4, 2016. 

The RFP was released on October 12, 2016 and the deadline for proposals was November 2, 2016. 

RFP Results: Staff received and opened four complete proposals on November 2, 2016 which 
ranged in bid price from $21,747 up to $73,400.

After review and consideration of the bid proposals and qualifications for the study, Human Resources 
recommends contract award to McGrath Human Resources Group and recommends City Council 
approval in the amount of $21,747.00.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Pursuant to OHMC 2.34.080 Compensation
2.34.080 Compensation
(1) It is the policy of the city of Oak Harbor to pay adequate levels of compensation to city employees. 
Providing adequate compensation to city employees promotes productivity, reduces turnover, and 
improves the city’s ability to attract and retain qualified personnel to carry out the functions of city 
government. Compensation levels should reflect the market for such personnel in the region.

(2) The human resources director is directed to develop a wage and salary schedule for all regular 
positions within city government. The human resources director shall prepare a current wage and salary positions within city government. The human resources director shall prepare a current wage and salary 
schedule for presentation to the city council for consideration and adoption at the time of the adoption of 
the biennial budget. The wage and salary schedule, together with the current description of all regular 
positions within city employment to be known as “the classification plan,” shall be adopted as part of the 
biennial salary ordinance.

(3) Where wages and salaries are established through collective bargaining agreements, compensation for 
employee-members of each collective bargaining unit shall be reflected in the wage and salary schedule in 
conformity with the applicable collective bargaining agreements. This chapter shall not impair any 
obligations of the city under present or future collective bargaining agreements.

(4) At the time of adoption of the wage and salary schedule, the city council shall decide whether to set a 
cost of living adjustment (COLA) for regular employees not subject to collective bargaining agreement. 
(Ord. 1678 § 1, 2013; Ord. 1627 § 1, 2012).

FISCAL IMPACT
The start of the project would be billed $5,000; upon completion of the draft report $10,747; and the 
balance $6,000 upon completion of the final report. Training of the plan will be provided at the final site 
visit.  A total fiscal impact of $21,747.00. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

positions within city government. The human resources director shall prepare a current wage and salary 
schedule for presentation to the city council for consideration and adoption at the time of the adoption of 
the biennial budget. The wage and salary schedule, together with the current description of all regular 
positions within city employment to be known as “the classification plan,” shall be adopted as part of the 
biennial salary ordinance.

(3) Where wages and salaries are established through collective bargaining agreements, compensation for 
employee-members of each collective bargaining unit shall be reflected in the wage and salary schedule in 
conformity with the applicable collective bargaining agreements. This chapter shall not impair any 
obligations of the city under present or future collective bargaining agreements.

(4) At the time of adoption of the wage and salary schedule, the city council shall decide whether to set a 
cost of living adjustment (COLA) for regular employees not subject to collective bargaining agreement. 
(Ord. 1678 § 1, 2013; Ord. 1627 § 1, 2012).

FISCAL IMPACT
The start of the project would be billed $5,000; upon completion of the draft report $10,747; and the 
balance $6,000 upon completion of the final report. Training of the plan will be provided at the final site 
visit.  A total fiscal impact of $21,747.00. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

822



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. RFP Proposal from McGrath HR Group for Class Comp Study 2016

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. RFP Proposal from McGrath HR Group for Class Comp Study 2016

823

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1478716048x_at.pdf


824



825



826



827



828



829



830



831



832



833



834



835



836



837



838



839



840



841



842



843



844



845



846



847



848



849



850



851



852



853



854



855



856



857



858



859



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Discussion of Setting Non-
Represented City Employee's 
Annual COLA's to Consumer 
Price Index 

FROM: Councilmember Erica Wasinger

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Discussion 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
At the November 1, 2016 Regular City Council meeting Councilmember Wasinger made the following 
motion during the Councilmembers comments portion of the agenda:

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 9. a.
Date: November 15, 2016

Subject: Discussion of Setting Non-
Represented City Employee's 
Annual COLA's to Consumer 
Price Index 

FROM: Councilmember Erica Wasinger

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Discussion 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
At the November 1, 2016 Regular City Council meeting Councilmember Wasinger made the following 
motion during the Councilmembers comments portion of the agenda:motion during the Councilmembers comments portion of the agenda:

Motion:  Councilmember Wasinger moved to add an item for discussion on the November 15, 2016 
agenda in regards to setting an annual Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) to a consumer price index for 
non-represented City employees, seconded by Councilmember Almberg, unanimously approved. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

motion during the Councilmembers comments portion of the agenda:

Motion:  Councilmember Wasinger moved to add an item for discussion on the November 15, 2016 
agenda in regards to setting an annual Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) to a consumer price index for 
non-represented City employees, seconded by Councilmember Almberg, unanimously approved. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

860


	November 15, 2016 Regular Meeting Agenda 
	2. b. i.- Employee Recognition - Sgt. Cedric Niiro, 25 years
	2. c. i. - Presentation by Julie Langrock, Executive Director, Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County
	4. a. - Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers
	 11.15.16 Vouchers A
	 11.15.16 Vouchers B

	4. b. - Approve Minutes of the October 26, 2016 Special Meeting and November 1, 2016 Regular Meeting
	 November 1, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
	 October 25, 2016 Special Meeting- Auditors Minutes

	4. c. - Lease Agreement - Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County
	 Lease Agreement - Big Brothers Big Sisters of Island County

	4. d. - Special Event Permit to Serve Alcohol at Fort Nugent Park ~ Whidbey Island Bicycle Club
	 Thanks Given'er - Special Event Permit Application
	 Thanks Given'er - Permit Conditions
	 Thanks Given'er - Insurance Certificate
	 Thanks Given'er - Liquor License App - EMBA
	 Thanks Given'er - Liquor License App - PL
	 Thanks Given'er - Parks Reservation
	 Thanks Given'er - Electronic Sign Application

	4. e. - 10-inch Transmission Main Bridge Hanger Replacement - Contract Management Reserve Fund
	4. f. - Amendment to WQC-2016-OakHar-00240 - SRF Loan Financing
	 Amendment to Agreement WQC-2016-OakHar-00240

	5. c. i. - Clean Water Facility Project Update 
	 CWF Update

	6. a. - Ordinance No. 1780:  Model Homes
	 Draft Ordinance No. 1780, 'AN ORDINANCE AMENDING OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 21 "SUBDIVISIONS", ADDING CHAPTER 21.100 ENTITLED "MODEL HOMES"'

	6. b. - 2017-2018 Preliminary Biennial Budget
	6. c. - Ordinance No. 1777:  Property Tax Levy 
	 Regular Property Tax Ordinance No 1777

	6. d. - Ordinance No. 1785: Property Tax Substantial Need
	 Property Tax Substantial Need Ordinance No 1785

	6. e. - Ordinance No. 1784: Low Impact Development (LID)
	 Department of Ecology consistency matrix.
	 Minor revisions since October 19, 2016.
	 Draft Ordinance No. 1784.

	7. a. - Resolution 16-27:  Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Awards for the 2% Grant Applications 
	 LTAC November 1, 2016 Minutes
	 LTAC November 4, 2016 Minutes
	 Resolution 16-27 Lodging Tax Grant Program 2017
	 September 6, 2016 Agenda Bill
	 2017 LTAC Contract Chamber of Commerce- Marketing 365
	 2017 LTAC Contract Chamber of Commerce- Operations

	8. a. - Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 16 for Windjammer Park Improvements
	 Attachment A - Windjammer Park Phase 1 Anticipated Improvements
	 Attachment B - Windjammer Project Elements List
	 Attachment C - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 16
	 Attachment D - Consultant Original PSA & Previous Amendments
	 Attachment E - Carollo Contract Summary

	8. b. - Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP #10
	 Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #10)
	 Attachment B - GMP #10 Summary of Amendment Costs
	 Attachment C - KBA Cost Validation Letter
	 Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
	 Attachment E - A-133 GMP #1
	 Attachment F - A-133 GMP #2
	 Attachment G - A-133 GMP #3
	 Attachment H - A-133 GMP #4
	 Attachment I - A-133 GMP #5
	 Attachment J - A-133 GMP #6
	 Attachment K - A-133 GMP #7
	 Attachment L - A-133 GMP #8
	 Attachment M - A-133 GMP #9

	8. c. - 10-Inch Transmission Main Bridge Hanger Replacement - PSA Amendment with KBA, Inc.
	 Attachment A - Professional Services Agreement with KBA, Inc. - Amendment 1
	 Attachment B - Professional Services Agreement with KBA, Inc. - Original Contract

	8. d. - Approval of Contract with McGrath Human Resources Group for Comprehensive Classification and Compensation Study for all Non-represented Employees
	 RFP Proposal from McGrath HR Group for Class Comp Study 2016

	9. a. - Discussion of Setting Non-Represented City Employee's Annual COLA's to Consumer Price Index 



